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To leverage our
expertise and
experience to
secure sustainable
returns and mitigate
risk for our clients in
the volatile worlds
of shipping and
energy.

Foaevy W €Ve test
(EEETON B RSN - I

To enable more
prosperous, secure
and sustainable
global trade within
the shipping and
energy industries.

We are a leading provider
of expert advice in shipping
investment, chartering and

risk management.




cpE Governance Financial Statements

) Coee

s
T T
i

s

P

PO H H
q . : !

Ty
-

{ f

B f

|7 -
; i

e~ @

Making strategic progress Delivering growth

0

SRR TSR I I O A R R T

James Gundy
Group Chief Executive Officer

St

02 Hghiights
03  Braemar at a Glance
04 Investrment Case
06 Charman's Statement
08  Business Model and Stralegy
10 Strategy n Action
14 Group Chief Executive Officer’s Staterment
1B Stralegy n Action
18  Enhancing Braemar's Secunty Cffering
20 Key Performance Indicatars
272 Market Review
23 Operating Review
28  Financial Review
32 Secton 172 Statement
34 EPSG Reporl
36 Our environrnental responsitiiities
42 Our people
44 Society
45 Governance
45  Non hnancial Information Statement
47 Prncipal Risks and Uncertantes

66 Corporate Governance Report
58 Board of Directors
60 Report of the Audit & Risk Cornmittee
65 Report of the Nomination Commitlee
66 Drectors Rermuneration Report

69  Rermuneraton Policy

79 Annual Repart, on Remuneralion
86 Directors’ Report

90 Independent auditor's report
98  Consoldated Incorme Staterment
98 Consoldated Staternent of
Comprehenswve Income
100 Consoldated Balance Sheet
101 Consoldated Cash Flow Statement
102 Consoldated Staternent of Changes
In Total Equity
104 Noles to the Financial Statements
186 Company Balance Sheet
167 Cormpany Statement of Changes
in Total Equity
168 Notes to the Company Financial Slaterments
180 Fwe-year financial summary (unaudited)
182 Contact nformation

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023



02

Highlights
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51% increase in revenue from continuing operations to
£1529m (FY22: £101.3m)

100% increase in underlying operating profit to £201m
(Fy22:101m)

Cashflow from operating activities in the year
increased by B% to £220m (FY22: £206m)

Reported profit after tax for the year down by 67% to
£46m (FY22: £138m)

Underlying earnings per share increased by 65% to
4622 pence (FY22: 2795 pence)

Final dividend of 80 pence per share. Total dividend
for the year of 120 pence per share (FY22: 20 pence}

Successful implementation of shipbroking-focused
growth strategy

Acquired two new tanker desks: in Madrid, Spain, and
in Florida, USA

Launched new Natural Gas derivatives and Oil
derivatives desks

Opening of Corporate Finance desk in Athens, Greece
Launch of our inaugural Trainee Shipbroker Scheme
in London

On track to double the Group's FY21 underlying
operating profit by FY25

Braemar Pie Arnnual Repart and Accounts 2003
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Braemar at a Glance

i

£

Braemar provides expert
advice in investment,
chartering, and risk
management to enable its
clients to secure sustainable
returns and mitigate risk

in the volatile worlds of
shipping and energy.
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Our experienced brokers work in tandem
with specialist professionals to form teams
tailored to cur customers’ needs, and
provide an integrated service supported by a
ceollaborative culture.
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Sectors

Employees

R

We operate 24/7 across the world, covering
all of the major shipping hubs to provide
our customers with unigue opportunities in
both established and emerging markets.

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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The business is structured in three divisions,
reflecting our operations

Investment Advisory

The global shipping market is a volatle and cyclical business.
Evolving regulations combined with an increased focus on
compliance and accountability means that shipping companies
are under more pressure than ever before. We help them to make
careful, informed and justifhable decisions

Chartering

Our specialists pool resources, knowledge and industry-leading
expertise to build long-term relationships between shipowners and
charterers. Heavy investment in technology and databases allows
us to provide customised, cost-saving solutions that create and
protect the best deals for our clients.

Risk Advisory

Cur integrated corporate finance and brokerage teams help protect
our clients against the turbulent price movements and cyciical
iquidity crunches that are commonglace in shipping markets

¥ @

Aberdeen

Houston Perth
' Atﬁens Londen Shanghai
Beiing Madfid Singapare
Dubai Melbourne Southport
Géneva Mumbai
Hamburg New Delhi
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Investment Case

By streamlining our key services towards our core expertise, shipbroking, we have, over the last two years, transformed the
Group's balance sheet and delivered strong positive cashflow, with £69 millon net cash at 28 February 2023, compared to net
hank deht nf FA3 millon at 28 February 20272

We are investing for growth, and we remain on track to achieve our stated goal of doubling the Group’s FY21 underlying
operating profit by FY25 Braemar 1s led by an expenenced board and management team who are well positioned to continue

the executicn of our growth strategy and each bring a wealth of expernence to the board

Braemar has a clear and focused growth strategy that is orientated around organic and acquisitive expansion, and we have a
strong platform 1o act as a consolidator in a fragmented shipbroking market

Unique proposition

As cne of only two shipbroking
companies listed on the London
Stock Exchange, Braemar offers an
attractive, diversified opportunity 1o
Invest in the shipping ndustry, without
the need to invest directly in vessels.
Our proven, future-facing strategy is

delivenng sustainable profit and growth,

progressive dividends, and we remain
focused on delvenng quality returns for
our shareholders

Global, diversified

operations

With offices in 12 countrnies, including the
pivotal locations of London, Singapore
and Athens, Brazmar is well-positioned
to serve key industry players globally,
across many different tme zones and
cultures Our operations are diversified,
including Tankers, Dry Cargo, Sale &
Purchase, Securities, Corporate Finance,
and Offshore, supporting our goal

of creating a scalable business, with
resiient profit and cash flow generation
across the economic cycle

Braemar Plc Annual Reporl and Accounts 2023

Facilitating climate-

smart shipping

Qur global teams have proven track
records, delivenng expert advice

in Chartering, Corporate Finance,
Research and Analyvtics, Operations,
and Risk Management. We leverage
our strong networks 1o secure the best
prices and performance for our clients
In lne with our commitrment to UN SDG
84 — decoupling econamic growth
from environmental degradation - the
Group is endeavouring to promote
inclusive and sustainable economic
growth across the industry by
ncorporating climate-smart expertise
INto its chent senvices In April 2023,

the Group's ESG efforts and future
commitments were recognised Oy

the Financial Times and Statista, who
named Braemar one of ‘Europe’s
Climate Leaders’ This title reflects the
progress Braemar has made to reduce
its Scope 1and 2 emissions



Chairman’s Statement

The markets in which the Group
operates were generally favourable
during this financial year While the Group
1S cautiously optimistic about market
conditions In its key sectors in the years
ahead and has taken numerous steps
to make the business more resilient,

as shipping 1s an inherently volatile

and cyclical business, Factors such as
a weaker global economy, increased
environmental regulation, or commaodity
export bans could dampen demand for
seaborne trade, whereas geopoltical
tensions and conflict can increase
market prices leading to higher revenue.

| was appointed in May 2021 with

Governance

Financial Statements

Strong trading performance

It is well reported that the period
corresponding to FY23 was one of
strong trading N the globat shipping and
energy ndustries. Tradng in both sectors
is predorminantly in US dollars, but the
Group's major costs are in sterling.

This meant that the Group reaped the
rewards of a well-structured FX hedging
strategy as well as benefiing from
favourable foreign exchange rates

Revenue from continuing operaticns rose
by 51% to £152.9 million (2022: £1013
milion), generatng a 100% increase

In underlying operating profit frem
continuing operations of £201 millon

(2022 £101 millen) Prmarily as a result
of spechic tems, ncluding £81 million

of gooawill imparment, reported profit
after tax decreased by 67% 1o £48
million {2022: £139 milion). Underlying
earnings per share increased by 65%

to 4822 pence (2022 2795 pence), and
the Group’s reported eamings per share
decreased by 65% to 10.85 pence (2022,
4556 pence).

Eevrry chotiodedasot toope gard a mandate to help Braemar’'s new

: management team 1N two areas. to
streamline and simplfy the Group's
operations and to develop and execute
an ambitious, shipbroking-focused,
growth strategy.
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prrotianbainy for b i
Thi Tt i e | am pleased to report that we have
’ S made strong progress on both objectives
subietimbial seveiai The simplification of the Group 1s Now
SHEIY! byosigrafe oty complete we have disposed of all
A

non-core businesses and assets, and Progressive dividend policy

Corppaned bonnacio have transformed the Group's balance In my staterment last year, | was

velin s read ceney e sheet from net debt of £9.3 milien on pleased to announce the introduction

R : o 28 February 2027 to a net cash position of a progressive dividend policy to

LTt A CET et iR of £69 millon as at 28 Fetruary 2023, supglement the Group's growth

webitet botcing s s o strategy, The ntrociuction of this policy

yevizstsore et sl Staff numbers and transaction volumes demonstrated the board's confidence

’ o T o increased in line with our expectations, i1 the growing financial strength and

crvgsle fimenacnd jndotty augrmented by several bolt-on prospects of the Group, its belief

R I Y e N I A BT acquisitions, and the development in the importance of dvidends for
e e and execution of our growth strategy shareholders, and Its intention 1o Includs

ST e is also progressing well, During this the payment of progressive dividends in

TS LT IR AT STCNTS ;xi;ﬁ Lt past financial year, the Group acgurred the Group's growth agenda.

a leading US shipiroker in Southport
Maritime Inc in Florida, USA; a 10-strong
tanker desk in Madrid, Spain and a
Natural Gas desk; and an Oil Derivatives
desk in London | am pleased to report

4y = . 1.
HEBTE IR AN N SIS PR .
P S As a result of the exceptional cash-

generation by the Group's activities in the
vear, | am pleased to announce that the
board I1s recommending a final dvidend

ot BT st

that the Group’s clients have responded

positively to the services we have added
to our cperations and all of the additional
services are perfarming well

QOur targeted hinng strategy also proved
successful in the year The total number
of pecple working at Braemar increased
by 6% to 384 (28 February 2022 362),
with an increase In fixtures of 18% It

is important to note that this growth

in ixtures was proporticnately much
greater than the increase in the Group's
broker headcount, and demonstrates
the Group's ability to achieve non-iinear
growth, with average revenue per head
increasing by 42% to £398,000

Braemar Plc AnnLai Report and Accounts 2023

for FY23 of 80 pence per share for
approval by shareholders at the Group's
reconvened AGM on 18 December 2023,
to be paid on 9 February 2024. This

final dvidend together with the interm
dividend already paid of 40 pence per
share, represents a total dividend for the
year of 120 pence, an increase of 33%
over last year (2022 90 pence per share).

larm also pleased to report that

the Capital Reduction process was
completed as planned on 5 June 2023,
addressing the historic payment of
unlawful dwvidends and increasing the
Group's capacity to pay future dwvidends
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Chairman’s Statement continued

The final dividend will be paid cn

9 February 2024 to shareholders who
are on the register at the close of
business on 5 lanuary 2024, with a
corresponding ex-dividend date of

4 January 2024 The last date for
Dividend Reinvestment Plan ("DRIP”)
elections will be 19 January 2024.

Enabling climate-smart shipping

| am proud to be the Chairman of a
business which believes that taking care
of the environment, treating colleagues
and clients fairly, anc maintaining ethical
business practices is not only the right
thing to do, but is also good for business

QOur corporate operations have been
glokally carbon neutral for six years. This
has, to date, been achieved by nvesting
in offset programmes | am pleased to
report that the Group made continued
progress in the year by further reducing
its carbon footprint and adopting more
ervircnmentally friendly practices across
its operations. In April 2023, the Group's
ESG efforts and future commitments
were recognised by the Financial Tmes
and Statista, whe named Braemar

one of 'Eurcpe’s Climate Leaders’ This
title reflects the progress Braemar has
already achieved to reduce its Scope
1and 2 emissions. There 1 more to

be done to enhance the Group's
rmeasurement and reduction of Scope 3
emissions, and | lock forward 1o
reporting on progress in this area in

the coming years.

Braemar 1s incorporating climate-
smart expertise throughout its client
service offering, and, as a business.
we are committed to explorng new
ways to enable our clients to achieve
their sustainability ambitions. Over

the last year, we have developed our
sustainabilty offering further As well
as being able to service the voluntary
carbon market via Braemar Offset, the
Group I1s now providing clents with
the access to the mandatory carbon
credits they need to fulfil ther obligations
under the EU's Emissions Trading
System ("ETS")

The Braemar board

The Braemar board is functioning well.
We have a weli-balanced team of
executives and non-executives, with
wide ranging experience, skills and
expertise from diverse sectors, who are
united in their approach to the business.

On 31 January 2023, Stephen Kunzer,
non-executive director, stood down from
the board to take up the position of Chief
Executive Officer of Lila Global Stephen
played a supportive role in developing
the Group's new growth strategy and we
wish him well In his new executive role in
the industry

Cat Valentine joined the board, as an
independent non-executive director,
with effect from 18 May 2023 She s

a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Audt & Risk Committee
Cat is a communications professional
with extensive knowledge of the
small-cap growth companies’ market
and considerable M&A transaction
experience. As the Group continues to
develop and impiement its expansion
and growth agenda, her expertise wil
add considerable value to the board and
will help the Group to further deliver on
its strategic ambitions

Grant Foley joined the board as Group
Chief Financial Officer on 1 August
2023. Grant has more than 25 years’
expenence N leading public and private
financial services and technelogy
businesses, and joined the Company
from ClearScore, the UK's leading credit
rmarkelplace, where he served as Chief
Financial Officer At ClearScore, Grant
drove significant improvements across
the finance function, IMplementing new
systemns, processes and reporting as
the business scaled. Grant also brings
additional transaction experience to the
board, and his cther roles have included
CMC Markets Plc where, as Group Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer, he was instrumental In the
company’s successful IPO The board
thanks Nick Stone, who stepped down
as Group Chief Financial Officer on

31 July 2023, for his contributions during
hig four years at Braemar.

Braemar Ple Annual Beport and Accounte 2023
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| am proud to be

the Chairman of

a business which
believes that

taking care of the
environment, treating
colleagues and
clients fairly, and
maintaining ethical
business practices is
not just the right thing
to do, but is also good
for business.

Nigel Payne
Chairman

Photo: (c} MRL and Louis Dreyfus
Corporation, all rights reserved




Internal independent investigation
As anncunced on 26 June 2023,

the board commenced an internal
independent investigation into an
Fistorical transaction dating back to
2013, As a result, the publication of these
financial results was delayed, and the
Group was not able to pubhsh its FY23
results by 30 June 2023 as required
under the Financial Conduct Authonty's
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules. Consequently, the Company
requested that trading in its ordinary
shares be suspended, this request was
granted and suspeénsion in the trading
of the Company’s ordinary shares took
effect on 3 July 2023 The investigation
was overseen by an Investigation
Committee, chared by myself and solely
comprising the independent non-
executive directors. The investigation
was conducted by FRP Advisory
Trading Limited, an independent
specialst forensic accounting firm

and independent external counsel.

The investigation was complex, it was
comprengnsive and ultimately focused
on a review of several transactions
between 2006 and 2013,

Braemar Ple Annual R and A
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The investigation has now been
completed The board and the Group
have acted promptly to address the
process and control areas that were
dentified as requirmg improvermnent,
including taking key remedial actions and
the necessary steps o comply with the
Group's legal and regulatory obligations
The board s committed to mantaning a
high standard of corporate governance
and will ensure the remedial actions

are tracked through to completion.

The Group has recognised a provision

in relation to these transactions,

which is primarily historical unsettled
commissions payable and is treated as a
balance sheet reciassification as detailed
in the Financial Review, which the board
considers appropriate at this time.

Our most valuable assets

On behalf of the board, | would like

to thank every one of the Group's
empioyees for their hard work and
dedication; our clients for their trust and
support, and our shareholders for their
continued contdarce n ous Company

Qver the past year, the Group continued
to invest in its people. We expanded our
teams across the globe, implemented
now programmes t¢ attract and retam
1op talent, and cur strong performance
is due to their hard work and creativity

Financial Statements

As a result of their successes, the
Braemar brand continues to risa. This is
now beginning to create a virtuous circle,
in which, as our reputation grows, we are
better able to attract high performers,
who further enhance Braemar's
performance, working environment,
brand and overall chent offering to the
benefit of all stakeholders.

There is a renewed energy within
Braemar, and the business is in a geod
place, led by our excellent Group CEQ,
James Gundy, and his experienced
executive management team. The
energy, drive and focus within the
business Is there to be seen.

Outlook

The market conditions in the Group's
core sectors, shipping and energy,
generally remain healthy, and the
long-term outlook for the Group
remains favourabie

Trading in FY24 to date has been

good (and in ine with the board's
expectations), as the penefits of
Braerar’s increased breadth, depth,

and scale continue to compound. As
expected, the investments made In

the last year have increased the cost
base for the new financial year, but also
provide a platform for further growth in
future years. The Group remains on-track
to doubte FY21's operating profit by FY25.
delivering strong returns and creating
iong-term value for our stakeholders.

With this growth-focused strategy
delivering strong results, the board tocks
to the future w th confidence

Nigel Payne
Chairman
15 November 2023
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Business Model and Strategy

Strategic direction

Focused on
shipbroking

Our business model

Expert advisers in
investment, chartering
and risk management
for the shipping and
energy markets.

Our integrated teams deliver creative
solutions and tailored support for
customers around the world, placing
Braemar at the forefront of the
shipbroking incustry.

\ Why Braemar

VY ity s,
A S A NN

To leverage our expertise and experience
to secure sustainable retums and mitigate
risk in the volatle worlds of shipping

and energy

RN ST R TR I

Experienced brokers work in tandem
with specialist professicnals to offer
an integrated service supported by
a coifaborative culture.

1 P . Lot
N vy A

Qur team draws on a wealth of diverse
sector experience to provide the most
advanced market inteligence in the

shipping industry.

To enable more prosperous, secure and
sustainabie global trade within the shipping
and energy industries.

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

What we do

oo im0 g

The night vessels, at the right price, at

the right time. Our team combines years
of commercial, financial, technical and
operational expertise with the most
comprehensive market analytics in the
industry to create investment opporturities
that are both protected and maximised for
sustanable returns.

Custormised chartering solutions built
around the specific needs of our clients
By investing in cutting-edge technology
and bespoke databases, cur brokers and
analysts create innovative strategies that
deliver iong-term gains over short-term
fixes

Volatie price movernents are
commonplace in shipping markets. Our
Securities desk helps cur clients manage
their exposure by providing a liquid
marketplace, while our Corporate Finance
desk assists those facing liquidity crunches
with loan portfolio pricing, management
and restructuring.
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Our strategic
priorities will
enable us to
take advantage
of future growth
opportunities.-

How we operate

D

RIME .
;

Irformation can empower - but only when
you know how to use it. Our specialists
know exactly how market inteligence

can be applied to give our clents the

best advantages.

We draw on in-depth knowledge and a
wide breadth of coverage to help clients
navigate a complicated landscape.

Governance

i g -
Voo

We are cornmitted to proactive, measurable
Environmental, People, Social & Governance
("EPSG™) initiatives and the facilitation

of climate-smart shipping. We set high
standards for our team and give them

clear frameworks and polcies within

which to operate.

5 HRERIAS ST L S I

By sharing knowledge and resources
across desks, our team can anticipate
our clients’ needs and provide prompt,
informed solutions.

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Financial Statements
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Strategy in Action

A new chapter
for Braemar

0]

‘z
I
Enhancing E
P,

our Securities
offering

OO

There are clear synergies for
Natural Gas with our shipping
desks. We have similar client
bases, and there are big
opportunities to expand the
breadth of activities.
Marc Jarvis

Head of Natural Gas,
Braemar Secunties

Enhancing our Securities offering
and diversifying into the energy
broking space

In late 2022 Brasmar acquired a
talented and resourceful Natural Gas
derivatives team with a long track record
of success

The acquisition was a response to

a clear need in the energy market

for assistance navigating volatile

rate changes and price fluctuations,

and, the Nat Gas desk additionalty

s complements cur market-leading
Risk Advisory function

Nat Gas fits with our prefile of seeing

the synergies with the products that our

clients are transporting, and capitalising
. . on the opportunities provided by the
?ﬁ overlap with our Chartenng operations.

LA

Braemar Pic Annual Report and Accounts 2023



The desk 1s primarily dealing in EU gas,
UK Naticnal Balancing Pont ("NBP™) gas,
and LNG. They are also able to broke EU
Allowances ("EUAS"), which are carizen
credits used in the European Union's
Emissicns Trading Schere {(“EU ETS™).

From 2024 all ships greater than 5,000GT
transporting carge or passengers for
commercial purposes will be supject to
these rules, and the vessels’ owners will
be required to account for ther carbon
emissions Due to the partnership
between our Chartering and Energy
Derivatives desks, we're uniquely able

in the shipbroking industry to help our
clents manage their EU ETS compliance
via physically delivered, and exchange
cleared EUAs.

Photo: (¢} Alpha Gas,
ail rights reserved

The desk serves a sophisticated and
demanding client base, including many
of Europe’s leading energy companies
as well as banks and hedge funds,
and we are pleased to see that it has
pecome profitable for Braermar ahead
of our expectations

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Providing access

to voluntary and
mandatory emission
reduction solutions

We have invested In solutions that
enable our clients to fulfil then voluntary
ambitions, as well as to ensure therr full
compliance with the European Union's
ETS (*Emissions Trading Scheme”)

Braemar Offset enables our clents

to fulfil their voluntary sustanability
ambrtions, by directly connecting them
with some of the most Impactful and
verified cimate projects avallable today
In partnering with Braemar Offset,
companies can proactively play a rcle
In improving their green credentials and
helping to accelerate climate action.

Through our new Natural Gas derivatives

desk, we can offer direct access to
European Unicn Allowances ("EUAS™).
The EU ETS s a comerstone of the
EU's policy to combat climate change,
and from 2024 it will apply to ships
calling at EU ports above 5000 GT
transporting cargo or passengers for
COMMercial purposes

Enhancing our
renewables
offering

We are investing in our renewables
offerng, as part of cur overall growth-
onentated strategy. We are positioning
the business to support the transition
to a low carbon economy and for
future growth in renewable energy
and low carbon fuels

While transporting fossil fuels is a key
part of our clents’ businesses today,
we expect and are planning for major
change on this frant as the industry
transitions to ‘Net Zero'

Braemar Ple Annuaf Report and Accounts 2003
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Helping our
clients navigate
new regulations

Braemar sees ships throughout their
lifecycle, and this presents opportunities for
collaboration and value creation. We see
thermn when they start life on our Newbuilding
desk; through changes of ownership via

our Sale & Purchase desk; as they voyage
around the globe under instructions from
our Chartering desks. and finally, as they
reach the end of ther working lives, with our
Recycling desk By working in partnership
with our clients, we use our expertise

and experience to maxmise that vessel's
potential, while minimising ts aggregate
environmental footprint

The rules which govern shipping are
Increasing vear-on-year, and the prnmary
focus is erwironmental improvement
Regulations, such as the EU ETS, as well
as major new techrical measures such as
the Energy Efficiency Existing Shigs Index
{"EEXI"} and the Carbon Intensity Incicator
("CII"}, are changing the way ships trade
and making it much less viable to cperate
nefficient ships Acress our Chartening and
Shipping Investment desks, we are focused
on helping our clients to ensure that ther
assets and future iInvestments are cleaner,
safer, and more productive



14

Group Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

My key focus upon becoming CEO
was to return to our core expertise,
shipbroking, as this has always been

at the cantre nf our success. Wao have
simplified the business and returned

it to growth, which in turn has placed
Braemar firmly back on a growth
trajectory We have achieved this by
capitalising on strong markets, seling
non-core businesses, reducing our debts
and subsaquently investing in the long-
term resilience of the Group

The successful implementation of this
strategy has achieved excellent results
for the Group in FY23. Underlying
operating profit rose by 100% to £201
million (FY22: £101 millicn), and revenueg
increased by 5% from £101.3 million

to £1529 million, as revenue and

fixture volumes Increased on almost
every Shipbroking desk It 1s worth
emphasising that the growth the Group
has achieved In terms of revenue and
profit are from a business that has a
rmuch lower headcount (compared with
the headcount prior to the Cory Brothers
sale In March 2022) and has been hugely
simpilified since | became CEQ in 2021
Average revenue per head for FY23 was
£398000, an increase of 42% on the
prior year

We have a deeply expenenced
leadership team that knows this industry
inside and out, and a strong balance
sheet that is bullt for growth.

Together they are enabling us to be

a platform for consolidation in the
fragmented shipbroking market, and

we expect to continue diversification
within shipbroking, in addition to growing
organically and through M&A.

As part of the execution of our
shiphbroking-focused growth strategy we
achieved significant milestones in FY23
inchuchng the acquisitions of Southport
Mantime in the US, and a new tanker
desk in Madrid. We also continued to
enhance our Securities offering with the
launch of new Ol derivatives and Natural
Gas denvatives desks, which strongly
complement our axisting Tanker and

Dry Cargo FFA desks. Our clients are
respending favourably to our enhanced
and diversified offering and the synergies
which they provide

Internal independent investigation
As detailed mn the Charrman’s Statement,
the internal iIndependent investigation
commenced in late June 2023 has

now been compieted It was time
consuming and complex and | would like
to thank the independent Investigation
Committee for overseeing the process

[ would also like to thank our clients

and shareholders tor their patience

and understanding during this penod.
Braemar and its people have shown
considerable resilience throughout

this penicd, and | want to thank all our
empioyees for their hard work and focus

Braemar’s growth and achieverments this
year would not have been possible without
the relentless hard work and dedication

of our global teamn, whose commitment

to excellence continues to drnve our
performance and nspires me every day.

Building on strong foundations
Throughout a year of many challenges
for the global economy, we remained
firmly focused on delivering value to all
our stakeholders Our commitment to
innovation and operational excellence
has enabled us to remain agle and
responsive in the constantly evolving
shipping and energy landscapes

As | outlined last year, cur main ambition
over the medium-term is to achieve a
sustainable annual underlying operating
profit, that regardless of market factors,
is double the £89 millon undertying
operating profit in FY21

In FY23, we achieved 51% revenue growth
and increased our underlying operating
rnargin from 10% to 13% over £Y22 In the
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year under review, we delivered further
gains 1N revenue and profitability Net
bank cash at 28 February 2022 was £69
rmillion, helped by the intial proceeds of
the sale of Cory Brothers (£6.5 million)
in March 2022 but after cash outflows
for acquisttions tetaling £7.3 milion
{Southport for £63 miflon, and a new
tanker desk n Madrnd for £13 millon
upfront) — a substantial improvement
on the net bank debt of £23 million at
28 February 2022 Profit after tax was
£4.5 millon (FY22 £139 milhon), argely
lower due to the impairment of gocdwill
relating to the Corporate Finance
business

Over this financial year, trading has been
good across our Chartering and Sale

& Purchase desks, as well as on our
Investrment and Risk Advisory desks
Chartering fixture volumes were up 18%
across all desks, Risk Advisory revenues
increased 42%, and Sale & Purchase
transactions volume grew 23%.

Buoyant shipping and

energy markets

In our ndustry, earnings are determined
by the relationship between the supply
of ships and the demand for ships At
its simplest, shipping is ‘Economics 1071,
While there are vanations from sector to
sector, the key positive supply factors
were shared across the industry: longer
voyage distances, minimal fleet growth,
and supply-chan inefficiencies Al these
factors will remnain in FY24 although they
are likely to moderate and the demand
picture N Mmost sectors supports a
positive rate floor.

Oil demand growth is back to where it
was pre-Covid, and the [EA predicted
n May 2023 that global oil demand

In 2023 would be two millon barrels
per day higher than in 2022, Despite

oll companies wanting newer ships

to reduce the nsks of accidents, the
average age of the global fieet is
becorming much clder than it has been
historically. Low scrapping and an
unusually low crderbook is expected to
further shrink the avalability of modern
ships over the next few years. This puts
a high flocr under tanker rates during a
period when energy security concerns
have increased voyage distances and
tanker demand growth has accelerated
relative to ol export volume.

The average age of the bulk carrer fleet
1S alse increasing, while the orderbook
for new ships is very small by historical
standards — and it s a similar story in
sectors such as Offshore



With demand for green energy and dry
cargo commodities growing globally,
combined with increased consumer
demand now that China's Zerc Cowid
policy has been revoked, we can
expect ¢ see positive returns over the
medium term

It is worth noting that not all markets
are strong at the same time, and
events impact shipping sectors in
different ways For example. i broad
terms, Covid was good for dry cargo,
and bad for tankers. This is why we
are priortising diversification in our
shipbroking operabons: and this is a
key strength of the Group. Resllence
through diversification 1s what will enable
Braemar to be successful throughout
the business and shipping cycles.

Investing in our EPSG

As | sad in my report last year and

have emphasised since, we reman
committed to delvering sustainable
growth and value to our shareholders
and contributing to the communities
and environments in which we operate
We are proud of the positive impact that
our business has, and it will always be a
Group pnority to operate ethically

Our sustanability strategy focuses on
mintmising our environmental impact,
encouraging diversity and nclusion,
and supporting local initiatives that
drive positive change. We beleve that
shipping has a crtical role to play in
shaping a more sustainable world, and
we are committed to doing our part

Governance

Outlook: A stronger, more
resilient business

Our resllience and adaptability have
been tested over the last year, Sut our
commitment to our strategic vision and
values enabled us to emerge stronger
than ever A year on since my first CEO
statement, | am delighted to be able tc
say that we have achieved the results
we promised across every metric, and
now we are a much more diversified and
rasilient shipbroking business.

We have invested in our people,
expanded our product portfohio, and
entered new markets and locaticns

to diversify our revenue streams and
mitigate risk. The investments that we
have made, as we mplemented our
growth strategy, have enabled us to stay
ahead of the curve in a rapidly changing
industry, and will provide the foundations
for an even stronger business in the
years 1o come.

It is an exciting time 1o be at Bragmar,
Shipping s undergoing huge changes:
N fuels, IN trade patterns, and in the
global regulations that govern how

we operate Thanks to these types of
devetopments, the markets in which we
operate are facing rmajor volatility, and
to achieve success in them requires the
highest levels of expertise and practical
experience. The investrnents that we
have made since | became CEO have all
been in the service of ensuring that we
are able to continue to be able to deliver
best-in-class advice, and to maximise
the value we create for our clients.
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The Group has traded well In FY24 to
date and we are on track to achieve the
sustainable doubling of FY21's underlying
operating profit by FY25 Given our
investments, costs will be higher in FY24
and we have Incurred non-recurring
costs of cE£25m in relation to the
investigation. However, we have built
strong foundations in my first two years
as CEQ and there is much maore work

to be done 1o achieve the Group's full
potential | look forward with confidence
to the rermnainder of the year, as we
relentlessly continue to execute our clear,
growth-focused strategy.

| would ke to express my gratitude to
our shareholders, ermployees, clients,
and partners for ther continued support.
Qur successes would not have peen
possible without the hard work and
dedication of our talented teams, or
the trust and lovalty of our clients and
partners. | ook forward to another
successful year ahead and remain
committed to delivering exceptional
results for all our stakeholders.

James Gundy
Group Chief Executive Officer
15 Noverber 2023



Shipbroking
breadth and
market share

These combined locations provide the ideal
platform for us to fully penetrate the North and
South American markets and add beneficial
scale to the Group’s activities.

Tris Simmonds
Group Chief Operating Officer
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Southport Maritime increases
Braemar’s presence in the
Americas

Enhancing Braemar’s coverage in
the Americas has been an important
strategic goal of Braemar, since the
board launched its growth agenda in
November 2021

In Southport, we have acguired one
of the leading tanker shipbrokers in
the USA, and strongly enhanced our
presence in the Americas.

Southport Maritime Inc is recognised
as a specialst for crude and refined
products in the North American export
market, as well as in the Latin American
and Caribbean markets.

With a particular focus on spot tanker
fctures, Southport's 18-strong team

has a reputation for high performance
within the industry Since it was founded,
Southport has enabled tts clients to
transport billons of barrels of liguid
petroleum and ol preducts worldwide,
helping them to benefit from both
short-term volatility and long-term
industry trends
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Working from offices in Flonida, the
Scuthport team complernents Braemar's
existing Tanker desks in London,
Singapore, Madrid, Houston, and Geneva,
as well as significantly enhancing
Braemar’s presence in the Amencas.

These combined locations provide the
ideal platform for us to fully penetrate
the North and South American markets
and add benaficial scale 1o the

Group’s actvities
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Enhancing Braemar’s Security Offering

Building on
five years of
progress

QOver the last year, Bragmar has
continued to buld s Securties offering
with the arrival of a ten-strong Natural
Gas derivatives desk, and a new Oil
Derivatives desk

These desks are complementary
additions to Braemar’s Securities
offering. which has substantially grown
revenue and market share in recent
years. Braemar's Securities desks now
employ almost 40 pecple

The new Natural Gas dervatives and Ol
dernvatives desks foliow the successful
acquistion and integration of Atlantic
Brokers - which Trig Simmonds led - in
2018, the launch of BraemarScreen in
2020 that Grought new levels of price
transparency to dry freight derivatives,
and a highly successful two-decade
Tanker FFA partnership with GHI.

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Tris Simmonds began his career as an
oil broker at Spectron Energy, before
moving 1o GFl and co-starting its Qil
Derivatives desk, as well as subsequently
helping to launch its European Power,
Gas and Coal desks, and helping to set
up Braemar's Tanker FFA JV with GFL
Between 2001 and 2012, Tris was the
Head of Coal and the Head of EMEA
Physical Commodities at GFI. In 2013, Tris
co-founded Atlantic Brokers, a business
that he subsequently scld to Braemar

N 2018 Tris has been an Executive
Committee Member of Braemar for five
years, and Braemar's Chief Operating
Officer since 2021
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Why did Braemar choose to invest
mare in its Securities offering?

A — Providing access to more energy
products was always part of our growth
strategy. There are clear synergies with
our chartering desks, and many of our
clients have told us that they need better
market access

When | worked at GF, it was clear that
their Coal desk existed because of ther
European Power and Gas desks, and
that, in turn, supported the work of their
EU Allowances ("EUA")/EU Emissions
Trading System ("EU ETS") desk.
There's a complementary crossover of
dernvatives traders in shipping and the
kind of products they trade Not only are
they trading freight, but because of the
nature of how freight prices are dictated
theyre often trading the underlying
products as well.

The maost notable ones have historicalty
been iron ore and coal, and we've seen
consistently strong value from cur

Coal desk and our Dry Cargo desks,

50 we recognised that there were

clear opportunities for us to develop
similar synergies across our Investment
Advisory and Chartering operations.

What are the benefits to having
greater access to a derivatives
offering for Braemar’s clients?

A — We're smplifying the process

of execution, and we're providing
inteligence value well beyond just
providing a screen to check on prices
and execute a deal.

We've been able to do this because
we've brought in talented teams with
good track records, strong customer
bases, and deep product knowledge
They're natural collaborators that work
closely with our Chartering desks. This
makes them maore attractive brokers
because of how their knowledge and
understanding of their market - whether
it's price, volume flow, or cargo volumes
- is improved
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Over the last five years, Securities®
share of Braemar’s revenue has
quadrupled. Why have these desks
been so successful?

A - In Sander Bots and Andy Hill, Michael
Gnffin, and, latterly Jay Lovell we've had
strong, capable desk leaders who have
bullt very talented teams. Marc larvis and
Rebecca Reed-Spernn are at different
stages of ther desks’ development,

but | expect to see them grow in a
smilar way

Our Tanker FFA desk is a strategic
agreement with GFI that's more than 20
years old, and the value that it creates for
Brasmar continues to compound year
after year

On our Bry Cargo FFA desk, we have
found a niche by supplying products to
a marketplace that - for all intents and
purposes - didn't exist. There have been
attempts to create a trading screen far
the dry FFA market, but they provided
incomplete solutions. Bragmar Screen
has enabled customers to simplify their
internal workflows, and the provision

of liquidity, coverage, and pricing
removed the friction from ther ability to
executs trades

What can Braemar’s clients expect
from its Securities desks in the
coming years?

A - In the coming years there will be
substantial change in how shipping
must account for ts greenhouse gas
emissions. The BEuropean Union's
Emissions Trading System (“EU

ETS") 1 one of the first to attempt

this, but it won't be the last. We're
investing in the soluticns and expertise
required 1o enable our clients to
achieve their regulated and voluntary
sustainabiity ambitions

To date, the only option that charterers
and owners had for managing their EU
ETS nsk was to go to a specialist EU ETS
provider However, we can now provide
that access directly, via our new Natural
Gas desk. They've been executing clean
spark spreads (this i1s the difference
between the wholesale market price

of electricity and tts cost of production
using natural gas) - buying natural gas
as well as the required number of carbon
allowances to offset the gas’'s emissions
- for their custemers using EU ETS for
several years

2023
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This 1s going to be particularly attractive
because most of our Chartering clients
don't want 1o have to execute a futures
contract every time they fix a ship If

you do that in-house you then have

to deal with the initial margining and

the vanation margining challenges In
addition, the physical charter versus the
possible hedge that you're doing with
your EU ETS can becorme two totally
different risks to control Managing
these challenges requires very specialist
skillsets as well as large balance sheets,
because if you execute your own futures
contracts they will quickly become
capttal intensive

EU ETS is a complex mechanism, and
it carmes risks that are not correlated
to shipping If you den't have the nght
experience to manage its challenges,
you're going to struggle to handle it
efficiently and cost-effectively

OO

The Natural Gas desk
is another addition to
our Securities offering,
which has substantially
grown revenue and
market share in

recent years.

Tris Simmonds
Group Chief Operating Officer
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Key Performance Indicators
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The performance of our Shipbroking
business was very strong, with revenue
and profit well ahead of our expectations

and the preceding financial year’s results.

The success we have realised this year
is due in large part to our decisicn to
divest non-core assets and streamline
our operations in FY22. Thanks to our
greater focus on Shipbroking, we were
able to capitalise more effectively on
the opportunities in the market and to
create substantially enhanced value for
our clients.

We have realised totat revenue growth
of 40% in Investrnent Advisory, 57% in
Chartering, and 42% in Risk Advisory,
as well as an 8% increase in cash
generated from operations.

All KPIs relate to continuing operations.

Cash generated
from operations

£205m

2022

+8%

2022: £205m

Number of offices

14

2022

202214
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2022: £101.3m
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2022: £101m
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Reported EPS

45 56p

" 15.85p

2022

-65%
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Number of employees
(average across the year)

3
&_ 2

362

+6%
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2022: 362
Equity scheme
participation
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2022: 37%

Underlying EPS

w1 i

27950

g ey

2022

+65%

cd

2022: 2795 pence

Full-year dividend
per share

9p

2022

+33%

2022: 4556 pence
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2022: 9 pence
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Market Review

During FY23, shipping markets
performed well. Earnings across the
Container, Gas, and Tanker markets were
some of the highest recorded in the last
20 years, and Dry Cargo revenues were
close behind.

As we look ahead, we are cautiously
optimistic. Sentiment in the short and
medium term, as measured by time
charter rates, is broadly positive, and
the vessel supply and freight demand
pictures for the shipping markets look
promising in our two biggest markets
— Tankers and Dry Cargo — over the
foreseeable future.

The delivery schedule of ships in almost
all sectors remains manageable; many
inefficiencies in global supply chains
remain post-Covid; large parts of the
tanker and dry cargo fleets are traveling
much longer voyage distances due to
sanctions; and vessel scrapping is likely
to pick up ahead of a stricter regulatory
environment and an increased focus on
ESG-criteria for investments.

We now present a FY23 summary of our

three business segments: Investment
Advisory, Chartering, and Risk Advisory.

e s AR e e bt e
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Operating Review

Investment
Advisory

Photo: {c) Big Lift Shipping,
all rights reserved

Corporate Finance

Strong earnings In 2022 and the start of
2023 across most sectors have meant
that many shipowners have achieved
significant profits and accumulated
large cash reserves. Many owners
decided to use therr profits to opt for
more conservative financing structures
As a result, the diversity of Corporate
Finance’s mandates has varied
considerably These diverse projects
have included the disposal process for
the Cruise Ship Global Class One out of
the insolvency of the German yard MV
Werften, restructuning in the Offshore
space, disposals in the Container market,
and inland waterway M&A advisory.
Despite these successes, revenus

and profits were down compared to
the previous year Corporate Finance
successiully launched a new office

in Athens, Greece, and expanded its
Singapore office

|

Sale & Purchase/Newbuildings
Sale and Purchase activity has remained
strong with a record number of second-
hand sales across all sectors and

desks The strong spot tanker market
has contrnbuted hugely to a signficant
rise In tanker asset pnces, and the
tail-end of the strongest container
rnarket in decades has created many
high asset value transacticns The

desk has continued to grow Its forward
orderbook in many sectors, Including
LNG, Bulkers and Tankers Newbuilding
berths have been at a premium, and the
desk’s strong relaticnships with leading
shipyards have reaped benefits for its
clients. However, with strong freight
markets across the board, ship recycing
volurmes have remained light The desk
is optimistic about the outlook for the
wet and dry freight markets in FY24 and
expects this to continue to translate into
a geod volume of transactions

raemar Plc AnnLal Report ar counts 2023
B Plc A I Report and Accounts 2023
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Operating Review continued

Tankers

Vessel earnings increased across all
classes of Deep Sea Tankers The
increase N long-haul voyages because
of changes to crude trade flows was

the major driver for Aframaxes and
Suezmaxes, and VLCC earnings were
driven by increased activity in the US
Gulf. However, VLCC demand was limited
by the economic restrictions In China
which were removed only recently

The acquisitions of Scuthport and

the new desk In Madnd have already
created several productive cross-office
collaborations, and further enhanced and
complemented the gquality of Braemar's
glebal coverage, particularly for the
Spanish clean markets and US Gulf's
crudes and ¢l products.

Supply chan challenges prompted

by the pandemic and a resurgence of
interest in nearshoring and reinvigorating
American manufacturing put the Jones
Act in the spotlight this year Demand 1s
likely to remamn strong, and further use of
its waterways to transport freight looks
increasingly likely The US Fiag desk

has seen strong rates in FY23 which
lock likely to continue, and recently
launched an Iniand desk to caprtaise on
opportunities In that market The desk
worked with three ol majors for the first
time last year, and the desk 1s currently
on track for 30% revenue growth

Braemar Ple Annual Roport and Accounts 2023

Dry Cargo

Coal was the major theme of the year as
natural gas prices soared and countries
sought less expensive energy sources.
The arderbook remains historically

low, and new erwvironmental regulation
arnving In 2023-24 - with more on the
horizon — 15 likely to set the tone for

a favourable vessel supply/dernand
balance in the coming years Dry Cargo
has continued 1o strengthen its presence
in strategic bases such as Athens,
Greece, and Sao Paulo, Brazii The desk
has already seen positive results from its
abllity to leverage those enhanced local
relationships In Australia. major gains
have been seen in the graing market,
and solid Contract of Affreightment
(“COA" cover - an agreement to
transport a given quantity over a fixed
period - for 2023 has strengthened
relationships with key charterers
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The Dry Cargo desk has also been
instrumental in helping the United
Kingdom’s Ministry of Defence
department fuifil its multipurpose
vessel ("MPP”) requirements, and it
worked closely with the UN's World
Food Programme to help ship fertiliser
to Malawi to help it reduce the costs of
crop production

Offshore Energy Services

The Renewables and Ol & Gas markels
delivered growth throughout the year
Vessel supply was insufficient to meet
demand, and charter rates increased
substantially A lack of newbuilding
orders in recent years increases the
Iikelihood that these rate levels are going
to remain elevated for a prolonged
period. This shortage of vessels has led
to substantially increased S&P activity
for the desk, particularly in the Platform
Supply Vessels ("PSV7) and Subsea
sectors. The desk's forward order book
grewth to March 2023 was double that
of March 2022, and the outiook for the
year ahead is positive with the volume
of term fixtures increasing, and spot and
term rates likely to continue to improve.

Specialised Tankers

FY23 saw the strongest chemical and
European coastal products tanker market
for many vears This was prmarty caused
by reduced ship supply — increasing ton-
miles, swing tonnage exiting chemicals,
and a reduced order book -, and these
tailwinds are unlikely to completely
disappear in FY24. The desk continued

to grow, and it is capitalising on its
investment in research, and geographical
expansion to Dubai, Houston, and
Melbourne which strongty complement
the main desk in London. This growth has
enabled Specialised Tankers to expand
its reach and market share, and to realise
further intra-desk synerges

The elimination of Russian pipeline gas
supply to Europe, in large part because of
the war in Ukraine had profound effects
on the LNG market. Long established
trade routes switched from West to East
as US gas volumes were drected to
Europe to replace Russian volumes. Gas
prices soared and with it demand for
medium and long-term LNG shipping,
with rates for certain vesseis peaking

at approximately USD 50Ok per day. In
line with Braemar’'s growth strategy, the
LNG desk has grown 1o six people, split
between London and Geneva. Revenue
continues to be wel diversified across
the desk’s activities, and there is further
growth planned into in FY24.

Braemar Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Prospects for the freight market look
positive as Very Large Gas Carrier
("VLGC") shipowners expect Increased
vessel dermand, despite the current
forward order book of approximately
20% of the existing fleet. Similarly, in the
Medium Gas Carrier ("MGC”) market the
outlook remains good; mostly due to the
projected expansion in liquid ammonia
shipments in the near future. From a
shipping perspective the Petrochemical
segment had a reasonably strong year,
and the Pressurised segment had a
solid year with improved resufts from
both spot and time charter coverage.
Braemar's LPG & Petrochemicals desk
has enhanced its MGC and VLGC
presence with the recruitment of an
ex-bunker broker, and concluded two
new long-term petrochemical COAs as
well as renewing another. The desk has
realised increased time charter coverage
and grown its customer base this

year, with several promising long-term
projects on the horizon for FY24.

- -
-

Photo: {c) Kyklades Maritime Corporation,
all rights reserved
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Operating Review continued

Risk Advisory
(Securities)

Photo: (c) Qlobal Class One, = *
Global Dreain, ali rights reserved
. ES

Braemar’s Securities business consists of four derivatives markets: Dry Cargo, Natural Gas, Oil, and Tanker.

Dry Cargo Derivatives

The FFA rmarket reflected the volatility

of the Dry Cargo market over the last 12
months, but the auticok for the next year
and beyond is looking lkely to be fertile
Yolumes across the market have grown
dramatically, and continue to Increase,
with more non-tradiional financial caprtal
ncreasingly finding 1ts way nto the FFA
market. The Dry Cargo FrA desk has also
started to reap the benefits of Braemar's
investrnent in its Secunties businesses.
including through the launch of Dry Cargo
FFA operations for Asia in Singapore, as
well as hinng several brokers The addition
of the Natural Gas and Oil Denvatives
desks has led to cross-desk synergies as
the business is able to service customers
across asset classes, and Braemar
Screen continues to provide the market's
leading technology platform

Natural Gas Derivatives

The Natural Gas market is returning to
price normality after the major shock it
endured when Russia invaded Ukraine in
2022 Substantial pressure on Nat Gas
availability led to record high spot prices,
and gas mport markets remain sensitive
to further supply restnctions, Bragmar's
Natural Gas desk started operations in
January 2023, and Is already profitable It
has successfully launched a new product
- Trade At Heren ("TAH”) - that the market
hasn't previously traded, and the desk is
receiving significant interest in its ability
to broker European Union Allowances
("EUAT) for compliance with the EU's
Ermissions Trading System {("ETS™)

Braemar Plc Annual Repart and Accounts 2023
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Oil Derivatives

In the ol markets the last 12 months
have been marked by high volatility and
low trading volumes in swap markets,
Although these trends have been
softened by war in Ukrane and the
post-Covid recovery of global demand
2023 has brougnt renewed activity, and
traded volumes are steadily increasing
The desk’s initial focus on fuel ol and
rmiddle distillates is progressing steadlly,
and Braemar’s new ability to help its
chents hedge their bunker fuel exposure
through swap and option markets has
been warmly received.

e Governance

Tanker Derivatives

The Tanker FFA market was extremely
volatiie throughout 2022, primarily
pecause of the Russia-Ukraine conflict
That volatility led to a historical dealing
high across the Dirty, Ciean and LPG FFA
sectors. This year has continued in a
similar fashion with growing requirerments
to hedge and opportunities to speculate
on prices As a result, the Tanker FFA
rmarket 1s expected to continue to thrive
N FY24 The acguisttion of Southport has
enabled the desk to create a stronghold
on US Gulif FFA routes, and the desk
remains the leading global faciltator of
Clean, Dirty and LPG FFAs

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Financial Review

A funndo o
Summary Income Statement FY23

continuing profit measures

- Underlying profit before tax increased by 1

Statutory proftt in FY23 was impacted by the

the previous management team in 2017,

Underlying
FY23 FY22

£'000 £000

P s el Reveriue 152,91 101310
T S S AL Operating profit 20,076 10060
O S N A Profit before tax 18,040 8885
PR TS PR P I Profit 13,399 8539

- Earnings per share 46.22p 2795p
Grant Foley :

Group Chief Financial Officer - )
Continuing operations

L
Revenue from continuing operations
grew by 51% fror £101.3 milion to

£152 9 milhon, as revenue and fixture
volumes across almest every Shipbroking
desk increased, with the exception of
Corporate Finance.

The US dollar exchange rate moved
frorm USS134/F1 at the start of the year
to USS12V/E1 at 28 February 2023 with
an average of US$121 A significant
proportion of the Group's revenue is
earned in US dollars Revenue growth
was positively impacted by the strong
US dollar, which contributed around 24%
of the overall Increase US dollar revenue
increased by 48% in the period.

To protect the future sterling value of
those revenues, at 28 February 2023, the
Group held forward currency contracts to
sell US$123 milion at an average rate of
USS122/F1

Braemar Plc Annual Reporl and Accounts 2073

The strong trading and higher revenues have delivered significant increases across all

- Statutory operating profit ncreased by 22% to £117 millon (FY22 £95 millon}
- Underlying operating profit ncreased by 100% to £201 milion (FY22 £101 million)
- Statutory profit before tax increased by 1% to £95 millon (FY22 £85 millon)

02% to £18 0 milllon {FY22 F89 millon)

imparrment of the goodwil on

acqusition of Naves {now Braemar Corporate Finance), which was complated by

Statutory
% Inc/ FY23 Fyz2z % Inc/
1Dec) E°000 £000 {Dec)

51% 152,911 101310 51%
100% 11,688 9546 22%
103% 9,451 8,543 1%

57% 4,596 13819 (67)%

cb% 16.8bp 4LbGp  (B69)%

U I A
Due to the substantial increase in
revenue and the considerable hard work,
which was put Into its generation, there
was a corresponding ncrease N profit-
related bonuses paid tc the brokers. This
was the main contributor to the increase
In operating costs, compared to the
prior year. As planned, salary costs also
iNncreased, due to the investment In new
brokers and desks, the new office In
Madrid and the acquisition of Southport
in the US Traveling and entertaining
expenditure increased to £64m from
£21m, as a result of a full year largety
free from Covid restnictions As a result
of all these factors, underlying operating
costs increased by 46% from £80bm to
£1326m.

Central costs increased in total by 49%
from £4.2 milion to £6 2 million. This
was the result of Increased share-based
payment charges, inked in part to the
improved performance in the year and
higher levels of expected vesting of
awards. higher staff costs and non-
recurnng costs related to the delayed
year-end audt process
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Net finance costs for the year

increased by 123% to £2.2 million

{2022 £10 millon) The cost has three
elements the revolving credit facility
provided by HSBC, which provides the
working capital needed by the business
as well as the core Indebtedness; the
convertible loan notes associated

with the acguisition of Braemar Naves,
and the interest charge on the lability
associated with nght-of-use assets
accounted for under IFRS 18 Average net
debt improved versus FY22 and average
borrowing Is fargely In Iine with FY22, but
costs have increased In the year as a
resuft of the increases in interest rates
with average SONIA increasing from
01% In FY22 t019% in FY23 In addtion.
there has been an adverse movement
in fareign exchange ratas, causing

an increase of £05 millen to finance
costs largely in relation to the euro
denommnated Naves labilities

Included within the net finance costs

N FY22 15 a credit of £02m, which did
not recur In FY23 This was in respect of
the accounting for the restructuring of
deferred consideration owed In relation to
the acguisition of Braemar Naves,

Firance income includes a credit of

£01 millon, relating to the revaluation of
armounts due for the sale of Cory Brothers
that took place in the previous year.

Underlying operating profit before specific items

Governance

Financial Statements

Specific tems — Acguisition and disposal-related

expenditure
Specific tems - Other operating costs
Specific tems - Cther Income

Operating profit

Specific items and discontinued
operations
N N N AT
In FY22, the board successfully executed
several transactions with the amm of
simplifying the Group's operations to
concentrate on a new growth strategy
centred around Shipbroking. As a

result, the financial results of Wavespec,
AqualisBraemar and Cory Brothers,
which were disposed cf during the year,
have been presented as discontinued
operaticns, together with the profits and
losses on their dispesal. In aggregate, all
these tems total a profit of £72 millon

Specific items

SO T ST O R A SR TR
Braesmar uses APMs as key financial
indicators to assess the performance
of the Group Management considers
that the APMs used by the Group help
to provide an alternate assessment of
business performance, by excluding
iterms which management does not
believe relate to business performance
in the period, and provide useful
information to investors and other
nterested parties. We have separated
the impact of individually material capital
transactions, such as acquisitions

and disposals, from ongoing traging
activity to allow a focus on ongoing
operational performance. Our APMs
nclude underlying operating profit and
underlying earnings per share.

items that are not considered to be
part of the ongoing trade ¢f the Group
have been presented as specific
These items are matenal in both size
and/or nature and we beleve may
distort understanding of the underlying
performance of the business If not
identified separately Detals of these
iterns can be found in Note 10 to these
Financial Statements.
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Fy2a Fy22
£°000 £000
20,076 iC,080
(1,999) (122)
(10,263) (392}
3,846 0
11,669 9,546

The most significant of these tems s

an impairment of goodwill. As a result of
a weaker performance in FY23, a more
negative outlock for the business and
challenging market conditions, the Group
has recognised an impairment of £91
million to the Goodwill which arose on
the acquisition of Naves. Further details
can be found in Note 15,

As aresult of accounting requirements,
a gain on bargain purchase on the
acquisition of Southport of £36 million
was recognised in the Group's income
Staterment This gain arises due to the
recognition of acquired net assets,
while for accounting purposes the
consideration 1s treated as a post-
acquisition employee expense.

Balance Sheet

Net assets at 28 February 2023 were
E787 million (FY22 restated £715

million} The year saw an increase in
gross trade receivables of 28% to £320
millon from £250 milllon, due to the 51%
revenue growth in shipbroking during the
pericd Despite this rise in gross trade
recevables, the provision for impairment
of trade receivables only increased

by 18%, reflecting strong working

capital management and control over
recewvables ageing. A receivable of £50
million (FY22: £4.8 millon) is included n
ather long-term receivables in respect of
the VertomCory deferred and contingent
consideration.

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure was £17m
(FY22 £23m) The most significant item
of capital expenditure relates to the
treatment of office ieases under IFRS

16 whereby the lease is treated as an
asset addition. These lease additions
were £09m in the year (FY22: £10m) and
do not relate to cash payments in the
year. The balance relates to capitalised
expenditure on computer equipment/
software of £05m (FY22 £08m) and
other expenditure on fixtures and fittings
of £03m (FY22 £0.3m)
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Financial Review continued

Provisions (internal

independent investigation)

In June 2023, the board commissioned
an internal independent investigation
nto an historical transaction crignating
in 2013, The investigation was overseen
by an Investigation Committee chaired
by the Group’s non-executive Chairman
and was conducted by an independent
specialist forensic accounting firm and
independent externai counse|. The
investigation was comprehensive and
complex and ultimately encompassed
several transactions between 2006 and
2013, which required further investigation

As a result of the investigation, the

Group has recognised a provision

of £20m in relation to the uncertain
obligations connected 1o a number of the
transactions and commission obligations
identified as part of the Investigation

Of the £20m, £17m relates to histoncal
unsettled commission payable, which
was recorded in 2017 upon completion of
the relevant contracts, which originated in
2013 This balance has been reclassihed
from trade payables to provisions

during the year While the board cannot
forecast with certainty final cutcomes

in respect of these obligations, based

on the Groug's current nformation, the
amount recognised is the current best
estimate of the amount required to settie
the obligations at the balance sheet
date, taking into accourt the nsks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligations,
including interpretation of specific laws
and lkelhood of settlemeant Non-
recurmnng costs of cE26m will be reported
N FY24 regarding the investigation.

As the ultirmate potential obligations and
outcomes in relation to the transactions
subject to the internal ndependent
investigation are uncertan, there
remains a nisk that the final cutcomes
could materially impact the recogrised
balance It is impracticable to provide
sensttivity estimates of potental
downside variances at this time.

Borrowings and cash

At the Balance Sheet date, the Group

had a revolving credit faciity with HS8C

of £300 millon The facility also provides
access to a giobal cash pocling facilty n
the UK, Germany and Singapore, which
enables efficient management of hguidity
between its man regional hubs. The
Group operates a pooing arrangerent for
cash management purpcses and at the
end of the year the Group had net cash of
£68 milion (2022 net debt £93 milion).

Retirement benefits

The Group has a defined benefit pension
scheme, which was closed to new
members during FY18. The scheme has
a surplus of £11 millon (FY22 deficit

£21 million), which s recorded on the
Balance Sheet as at 28 February 2023
The agreed annual scheme-specific
funding, since the triennial valuation as at
March 2020, was a cash contribution of
£05 million per annum. As a result of the
net asset position, these contributions
were stopped from March 2023.

Taxation

The Group's underlying effective tax rate
in relation to continuing operations I
FY23 was a charge of 26% (FY22. 21%),
which is broadly in ine with the UK tax
rate in the current year The increase was
largely driven by a benefit In the prior
year relating to a change in applicable
tax rate to an overseas entity, and
additional non-deductible costs in the
current year.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital structure
and adjusts it In response to changes

in ecocnomic cenditions and its capital
needs. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or 1ssue new
shares and debt instruments The Group
has a policy of maintaning positive cash
balances, whenever possible, which

can be supported by short-term use of
its revolving credit facility. This 1s drawn
down as required, to provide cover
against the peaks and troughs in our
working capital requirements.

ESOP Trust

During FY23, the Company requested
that SG Klenwort Hambros Trust
Company (Cl) Ltd, as Trustee of the
Cormpany's ESOP Trust, purchase shares
In Braemar Shipping Services Plc During
the year a total of 2795000 shares

In the Company were purchased by

the Trustee and 1877473 shares were
released, as a result, at 28 February
2023, the ESOP held 3578630 shares
(FY22. 2669603 shares}. The total

cash outflow as a result of these share
purchases was £80m (FY22: £70m)

At FY23 year end, the ESOP contaned
sufficient shares as are expected to be
needed to cover all current share awards
described in Note 31 of the Financial
Statements,
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Dividend

The directors are recommending for
approval at the reconvened AGM on

18 December 2023, a final dividend of
8.0 pence per share, to be paid on

9 February 2024 The interim dividend
of 40 pence per share in respect of the
six months ta 31 August 2022 was paid
4 lanuary 2023, The total dividend of
120 pence for the year is covered 3.0
times by the underlying earnings per
share from continuing operaticns of 4319
pence. The total cash outflow in respect
of dividends paid during the year ended
28 February 2023 was £32m (2022
£21m).

Following a project started dunng the
year to improve the level of distributable
profits of the Company, it was
discovered that certain dvidends paid
between 2016 and 2023 were paid by
the Company without having sufficient
distributable reserves from which to
lawfully pay them Having identified these
issues, to rectify the gap in retained
earnings and the unlawful payment

of dividends, after the balance sheet
date the Company completed a Capital
Reduction and entered releases from
liatiity for the benefit of shareholders
and directors. For further details see
Note 12,

Going concern

The strong trading cash flows generated
duning the year, combined with the
cash consideration received for the
sale of Cory Brothers on 2 March 2022
have placed the Group in & strong cash
position, with a net cash position at the
year end The Group will maintain its
prudent approach to working capital
forecasting and credit controls The
Group's revolving credit facility was
renewed N Novermber 2022 on largely
similar terms to the previous one it
replaced and provides the seasonal
working capital that is reguired
Accordingly, the accounts have been
prepared on a going concern basis

Grant Foley
Group Chief Financial Officer
15 Novernber 2023
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The board 1s pleased to confirm that
during the year ended 28 February
2023, the drrectors have discharged
therr duties to act in a way they believe
prometes the long-term success of the
Cormpany for the benefit of its members
as a whole. This statement sets out
how the directors have done this whilst
having regard to the matters set out in
section 172 of the Cornpanies Act 2006,

The board is respongible for ensuring
that the principal decisions it takes
promote Brasmar's long term success
for ts members and in doing so, they
must have regard to the:

- likely consequences of any decision
In the long term,

- interests of the cornpany’s
employees;

- need to foster the company's
business relationships with suppliers,
customers and others,

- impact of the company’s operations
on the community and the
environment;

— desirability of the company
rmaintaining a reputation for high
standards cf business conduct; and

- need to act fairly as between
members of the company.

The board has determined the
Company’s key stakeholders are its
employees, clients and sharehoiders
The views of these stakeholders

are considered by the board when
principal decisicns are taken The

board understands the importance of
effectively engaging with the Company’s
key stakeholders, to better understand
therr views and interests. and o better
consider the potential impact of the
Directors’ decisions on them. Information
on how the Company engaged with
vanous stakeholders during the year can
be found in the EFSG Report on pages
34 to 45 and the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 54 to 57 of this

Annual Report.

The directors’ duties under Section 172 of
the Comparves Act 2006 are embedded

in all the decisions that the board and
ts Committees make, as are a range of
other factors, including algnment with
the board's strategy and values

Jourone b 0

Principal decisions of the board:

Decision

Acauisition of Southport Maritme Inc. +

.

Hiring of the tanker desk, in Madrid,
Spain

Enhanced Secunties offering with .
new Natural Gas and Qi denvatives  +
desks

Recommended a final dividend of
8 pence per share for approval by
shareholders at the 2023 AGM .

Change of Audit & Risk Committee -
name

Board decision making in action

ook o

Poooiinme g,

- In December 2022, the Group

announced the strategic acquisition
of leading US shipbroker Southport
Maritimme Inc The acquisition
enhanced the Group's coverage in
the Americas, which has been an
important strategic objective since the
board launched its growth agenda

In November 2021 In conaidering the
acquisition, the board considered

the likely impact on all stakeholder
groups. The Scuthport team
complements Braemar’s existing
Tanker desks in London, Singapcre,
Madrid, Houston, and Geneva as well
as signficantly enhancing Braemar's
presence in the Americas. The
acquisition also enhanced the Group's
existing coverage in Houston and
Sao Paulo, these combined locatons
provide the ideal platform for the
Group to penetrate the North and
South American markets and add
further scale to the Group's activities
Additionally, the board considered
that the transaction was expected to
enhance earnings for the year ending
February 2024. More detail on this
acquisition can be found on pages
18 to 17 of this Annual Report
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A surmmary 1s provided below of the principal decisions taken by the beard durnng
the year and how key stakeholders and other matters set out in section 172 were
considered by the board in making these decisions:

Section 172 and stakeholders

conseguences of decisions in the long term
interests of all stakeholder groups

+ consequences of decisions i the long term
+ Interests of all stakeholder groups

consequences of decisions in the long term
interests of all stakeholder groups

+ consequences of decisions in the fong term

interests of stakeholders. shareholders
the need to act fairly as between members
of the Company

consequences of decisions in the long term
reputation for high standards of business
conduct

IR T & T T I I

- In December 2022, Braemar recruited
a new tanker broking team, based
in Madrid, The highly expenenced
team of ten brokers is renowned
within the international tanker
market having previously worked for
Medcc Shigbrokers SL. The team
gpecialises in crude, dirty products,
clean products, and period chartering
This new desk offerng and client
base complemented Braemar’'s
existing tanker desks in London and
Geneva, strengthened Braemar's
global coverage and brought new
commercial relationships to the
Group. Expanding into new markets
is a core tenet of the Group's strategy
and the recrutment of this team was
another step In the execution of the
Group's growth plan.
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-~ In November 2022, Braemar launched

a ten-strong Natural gas desk, the
step was taken in response to a

clear need in the Energy market for
assistance navigating volatle rate
changes and price fluctuations.

The Natural Gas desk was another
addition to Braemar’s Securities
offerng and providing access

to more energy products Is a
component of Braemar’s growth
strategy. Additicnally, there were clear
synergies with cur shipping desks
and there was client dermand for
greater market access. A talented
team with a strong track record would
provide a strong platform tc add more
products. More detail on this launch
can be found on pages 10 to 11,

In March 2023, the board agreed
to recommend a well-covered final
dwidend of 8 pence per share for
approval at the forthcoming AGM The
board is mindful of the importance

of dvidends to shareholders and this
decision 1s in lIne with the Cormpany’s
stated progressive dividend policy
Together with the Intenm dividend

of 4 pence per share, this equates

to total divdends per share for the
year of 12 pence, a 33% Increase over
the prior year dvidend of 9 pence

per share

Braemar Plc Annual Repaort and Accounts 2023
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— During the year, the board approved

the proposal to change the name

of the Audit Commitiee to the Audit
& Risk Committee This step was
taken to recognise the Committee’s
responsibilities with respect to nsk
management and to demonstrate the
Company's continued cormmitment
to strengthening risk oversight and
internal control. The decision also
supports our strategy which is aimed
at long-term sustanable growth and
development of the business. Further
detail on the Group's corporate
governance arrangements, the work
of the Audt & Risk Committee and
the Principal risks can be found on
pages 60 to 64 and 47 to 53.

ol e e
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Environmental, People, Social and
Governance (“EPSG”) Report
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At Braemar, we recognise the
importance of sustainakility to our
success as a business and we are
committed to being a sustainable
business, delivering growth whilst
creating a positive impact on society.
The environmental, social, and
governance elements of traditional ESG’
criteria help us to measure, manage, and
demonstrate our contributions to fairer,
more prosperous, and more sustainable
way of doing business. However, we
believe that because of the mportance
of people to our business, we need to
explcitly recognise their contribution in

EPSG Framework

S

oL envirenment

Giving our people’s time,
passion and experience
to benefit society and the

the title of our Framework and to ensure
we maintan equal focus on our most
Important asset.

We are a people-focused Company,
and without our people we wouid not
have a sustainable business Therefore,
we place cur people front and centre
within our EPSG strategy tc demonstrate
the importance we place on them, and
to ensure therr continued growth and
success. This year we have invested in
our pecple, developing both therr skills
and capacity to enable our business to
thrive. We report further on this in the
Pecple section below.

Facilitating climate-smart shipping

F &

Giving a percentage of
our profit to support our
ESG work

DECENT WON AND
ECOMOMI GROWTH

o

Incorporating climate-
start expertise into our
client servicas

As a business within an industry that's
responsitle for between 2-3% of the
world’'s GHG emissions we recognise
that we can play a part in helping the
industry with the green transition. We
remain true to our EPSG purpose to
facilitate climate-smart shipping and
discuss in detail how we are doing that
throughout our Report,

Ensunng effective governance and
managing our business ethically are
guding principles for Bragmar. Through
our EPSG strategy we are committed o
Increasing the maturity and transparency
of our reporting and strengthening board
oversight in this area

We believe it takes expertise and experience to secure sustainable returns and mitigate
risk in a volatile shipping world

g

teae T N R

Collabarating with the
maritime industry to
achieve shared ESG goals

' ’ o Targets
' 6.3,6.6

Reduce operational emissions.
U Achieve net zero emissions
R by 2050

Protect 10,000km? of marine
biodiversity areas by 2030

Facilitate responsible and

sustainable shipping within
the industry

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

Targets
84,88

Think globaliy to activate
One Braemar

Activate global programmes
for bringing diverse talent
into the workplace

13 o "
Target Targets
13.3 141,14.2

Collect data and report
on ESG metrics aligned
to strategy

Think globaliy, act locally
to drive benefit for our
communities
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Future Plans
In addition to the cimate-smart intiatives already instigated. we are coramitted to implementing these plans by 2025

X© ad s

Strengthen our existing charity  Identfy new beneficianes Develop a strategy for Collaborate with industry
partnerships to focus on the with a focus on the transitioning to net-zerc initiatives to expedite our
key social issues affecting needs of maritime and carbon emissions, environmental objectives.
the countries in which seafanng communities

we operate

V- o

Cellaborate with expert Strengthen our Executive Develop a clear set of reportable

organisations to protect and board supenrusion for metrics 1o evaluate our activities

marine biodiversity all aspects of governance and show the progress of our
relating to our ESG work ESG commitrments for all our

stakeholders, including employees,
clients, communities and nvestors.

We have built the foundations we need to deliver our EPSG strategy Going forward, we will start to deliver on activities to reach the
commitrment we have made to reach our goals

Clean water and sanitation
Ensure availability and sustainable management of water and sanitation for all

Target 6.3 Improve water quality by reducing pollution ... minimising release of hazardous chemicals
and matenals . and substantially increasing recycling and safe reuse globally

Target 6.6 Protect and restore water-related ecosystemns, including mountains, forests, wetlands,
rvers, aquifers and lakes

el Decent work and economic growth

Promote sustained, inclusive and sustainable economic growth, full and productive
employment and decent work for all

Target B4 Endeavour to decouple economic growth from environmental degradation
Target 8.6 Reduce the proportion of youth not n employment, education or training

Climate action
Take urgent action to combat climate change and its impacts

Target 13.3 Improve education, awareness-raising and human and mstitutional capacrty on cimate
change mitigation, adaptation, mpact reduction and early warning

Life below water
Conserve and sustainably use the oceans, seas and marine resources for

sustainable development
Target 141 Prevent and significantly reduce marnne pollution of all kinds

Target 14.2 Sustanably manage and protect marnne and coastal ecosystems to avoid sigrificant
adverse impacts, ncluding by strengthening therr resilience, and take action for therr
restoration In order to achieve healthy and productive oceans

Braemar Plc Annual Repcit and Accounts 2023
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EPSG Report continued

Our enwronmental

Nevertheless, the international shipping
industry accounts for approximately 2-3%
of worldwide greenhouse gas emissions
and faces significant challenges in the
transition 10 a green economy. However,
efforts to reduce shipping's greenhouse
gas emissions have picked up pace In the
last twelve months

The International Martime Organisation
("IMO™) Introduced regulations targeting
emissions of existing ships In January
2023, the Carbon Intensity Indicator
("CII") and the Energy Efficiency Existing
Ship Index ("EEXI™). The EEXI 15 a one-
time requirerment for existing vessels to
demonstrate that they are as technically
eficient as ther new-build counterparts
The ClI, on the other hand, icoks at
operational efficiency, with each vessel
recening an A-E efficiency rating based
on ther performance in the previous
year.

The Eurcpean Union is also bringing
in its own rules targeting international
shippmng The past year has seen
pretiminary deals reached on the EU
Emissions Trading Scheme ("EU ETS")
and FuelEU Marttime

Alongside these regulations, companies
are facing growing financial pressure

to decarbonise. This 1s now translating
into early adeption of alternative

fuels, production is increasing, and
infrastructure is being put i place In
large EU ports. Methano! has emerged
as a fuel option, and the first ammonia
engines are expected by the end of
2024 or early 2025

Developing an affordable and
sustainable global supply of these
fuels remams a momentous challenge,
however Efficiency iImprovements will
therefore be key to meeting immediate
emissions goals A range of ermissions
saving devices are being used, with
some even turning back to wind,

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accourts 2023

Optimising cperations by taking
advantage of the latest data and
Al technologies can also offer
considerable savings

While there 15 a long road ahead, shipping
1S now taking soid steps towards a
green energy transition, and we are well
positioned to help our clients to achieve
several of their sustanability ambitions

Our direct impact

As a broker we seek to faciitate chimate-
smart shipping, aimng Lo reduce risk
and seek opportunities to aid our clients
in thar green transiions.

We take care to reduce our carbon
footprint, which s a result of energy use
from our offices and business travel

In Aberdeen, for example, we have
relocated to more energy efficient offices
which have car chargers for electric
vehicles, and we continue to work
toward reducing the amount of paper
we use In our offices
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As with the prior year, we have continued
to offset our reported footorint through
the purchase of carbon credits through
Braemar Offset We have invested

in offset schemes that INclude wind
power, solar phatovoltaic projects,
conservation intiatives, and biomass/
landfiil gas projects

Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting *SECR’

We measure and monitor cur energy
and calculate our greenhouse gas
emissions based on the use of gas

and electricity in our offices, car use for
business purposes, and corporate travel,
as shown in the table below. The data
in this table represents the Group's GHG
emissions and excludes associate- and
joint ventures,

Scope 1 covers direct emissions from
owned or controlled sources.

Scope 2 covers indirect emissions from
the generation of purchased electricity,
steam, heating and cooling consumed
by the Group.

Scope 3 includes the following indirect
emissions from the Groug's vaiue chain
most material to our business: business
travel, empioyee commuting and
working from home, and transmission
and distribution of electricity. Scope

3 emissions do not currently include
purchased goods and services, waste
disposal, investmeants, or leased assets.

Our carbon footprint has been
calculated using the GHG Protocol
Corporate Standard guidelines,

using the UK emission conversion
factors produced for 2022 by the

UK Department of Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy (“BEIS™} and
Department for the Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs ("DEFRA") The
maodel used to calcuiate the Group’s
GHG emissions was developed by an
independant consultant however the
data used to populate this mode! has
not been independently verified

The Group's total emissions have
increased by 54% to 830721C0 e
{2022: 4891C0. e continuing operations
only). This 1s mainly due to increases

In corporate travel, specifically fights
which have returned to the pre-Cowid
level. Other areas of energy and carbon
emissions have remained on a level with
the prior year except for a decrease in
emissions refated to employees working
from home as they return to working in
the offices We continue to Improve our
management and reporting of emissions,
as our systems develop and reporting
accuracy Increases, this may highlight a
greater level of emissions— such as that
seen in the increase in reporting Scope 1
gas emissions

Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions

® Scope1
® Scope 2

7 Scope 3

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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In line with the SECR requirements, we
have calculated our Intensity Ratio based
on our emissions per employee; an
appropriate measure for a people-based
business. Our carbon intensity for the
reporting year is 2tCO,e per FTE (2022
13tC0O e/fte). with the ncrease related to
corporate travel. This is a maternal aspect
of our carbon footprint and we aim to
reduce and mamntain this at lower levels
over the long term

The Group are committed to reaching
the UK’s net zero goal by 2050 and waill
set out our transition plan in the next
reporting pernod.

Scope 3 emission sources

wifoa

@ Transportation and distribution (“T&D")
of electricity

® Employees working from home:

@ Business travel in rental cars or
employee-owned vehicles

Emissicns from flights
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Braemar Plc — Group energy usage and associated GHG emissions

Year ended 28 February 2023 Prior year
UK RoW Total UK Row Total

Energy consumption (kWh}
Gas 31,760 58,610 890,370 - 10,000 10,000
Electricity 377,581 210,762 588,343 313,083 263,338 576,401
Mileage 644 131,003 131,847 - 56,064 56,064
Total energy consumption 409,885 400,375 810,360 313,083 329,402 642,465
GHG Emissions (tCO_e)
Scope 1
Emissions from combustion of gas 6.80 10.70 16.50 - 200 200
Emissions from combustion of fuel
for the purposes of owned transport 0.16 8.75 8.91 - 200 9.00
Scope 2
Emissions from purchased electricity
(location-based) 73.02 93.77 166.79 66.00 126.00 19200
Scope 3
Emissions from transportaticn and
distribution (' T&D™) of electnorty 709 1.66 8.75 6.00 500 100
Emissions from employees working
from horme 5.10 14.61 19.71 4000 4900 8900
Emissions from business travel in rental
cars or employee-owned vehicles - 26.27 25,27 - 500 500
Emissions from fights 352.92 234.30 587.22 7000 9100 161.00
Total gross emissions 444.09 389.06 833.15 183.00 28600 48200
FTE 138 246 384 174 188 382

3.22 1.57 216 140 150 130
Carbon intensity per FTE tCO.e/fte tCO_e/fte tCOeffte (CO effte COeffte  1CO gffte
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Facilitating climate-smart shipping
The Group is clear that its EPSG purpose
is to facilitate climate-smart shipping.
This 1s the primary way that we can
support our clients N navigating both the
risks and opportunities associated with
clmate change.

Over the years we have developed
several products and services to support
our clients’ transition to the green
economy. These include our newbuild
and ship recycling advisory services,
which help shipowners to maximise

the green potential of their vessels

at the beginning and the end of ther
working lives

Cur Research desk provides analysis for
our clients on the transition to the green
economy. In the reporting year this has
included topics such as green fuels,
methano! and slow steaming

Brazmar's representatives speak
regularly at industry events on issues
related to the green transitions For
exampie. Braemar’s jan Metzger was the
lead presenter at TradeWinds's Green
Seas Fuels Forum in March 2023,

Braemar Cffset, cur platform to

enable carbon offsetting of our chents
corporate and operational emissions,

is now in its second year. Bragmar
Offset directly connects our clients with
impactful and venfied clmate projects
which helps them play a proactive role to
improve ther sustanability and positively
accelerate climate action The Group

1s developing metrics to report on the
success of Braemar Offset from FY23

e
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The European Union is bringing in rules
which target the GHG emissions of
international shipping. The past year
has seen pretminary deals reached on
the EU Emissions Trading Scheme
(“EU ETS™) and FuelelU Maritime.

The EU ETS will introduce what is
effectively the world’s first carbon tax
for international shipping, requiring
companies to purchase and annually
surrender allowances for emissions on
EU voyages from 2024,

FuelEU Maritime will bring further
challenges from 2025, setting imits
on the carbon intensity of marine
fuels used on Bt voyages and
charging a menetary penalty for
underperformance.
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Targets ramp up every five years,
starting at -2% in 2025 (compared

to 2020) and working up 1o -80% by
2050, phasing out most fossi fuel use
on EU routes.

These rules and increased legislation
bring challenges but also cpportunities
to develop green products to develop
the carbon transition market.
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Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures Report

The Group recognises that the international shipping industry In the table below, we have stated where we are fully, partially

accounts for approximately 2-3% of world-wide greenhouse or not yet compliant against each disclosure

gas emissions which presents significant nsks and opportunities

for our business The following summary sets out how the Group incorporates
climate-related risks and opportunities inte the four pillars set

We seek to incorporate the Task Force on Climate-related out by the TCFD: governance, strategy, nsk management, and

Financial Disclosures (“TCFD™} recommendations into our strategic  metrics and targets.
decision making going forward This is our second year of TCFD
reporting, where we have bult on the solid foundation of the first This summary includes references to other sections of this

year and started to analyse the impacts of climate change cn Annual Report where further disclosures are provided, and an
our business While we are not yet fully cornpliant with the TCFD explanation s given where the Group's compliance with TCFD
recommendations we are building towards full compliance with disclosures 1s partial or omitted

TCFD-recommended disclosures in future years.

] . [

Describe the board’s oversight Full The board has overall responsibiity and oversight of climate-related risks and

of climate-retated risks and opportunities 1s nformed by the Audt & Risk Committee of risks and opportunities in
opportunities refation to climate change,
Principal risks and uncertainties The Audit & Risk Committee reviews the impact of climate-change nisks and
on pages 47 to 53 oppertunities and incorporates these risks and opportunities into the Group's Risk
Audit & Risk Committee Report on Management Framework.
pages 80 to 64 . ‘ . !
The Risk Committee reports to the Audit & Risk Committee via the Group Chief Operating

Officer and the Group Chief Financial Officer, the fatter having executive responsioility for
this area. Further detalls on the roles and responsibilities of these two Committees can be

found on page 48.
Describe management’s role in Full During FYZ3, the Group Chief Financial Officer (with the support of the Risk Committee)
assessing and managing climate- had cveral responsibility for assessing and managing climate-related risks and
related risks and opportunities uncertainties. With the support of external consutants and internal Industry experts
. ) ) the management team is kept updated on cimate change risks and opportunities
[I_—l Zgn:;;;z;lans‘,‘;s'insdauncertamtles throughout the year Goeing forward, once the scenario analysis is complete, management
teams will discuss the Ikely climate nsks and cpportunities to decide those most material

to the business.

R - P . . et e

Describe the climate-related risks Partial  The Risk Committee has considered the Group's clmate-related risks and opportunities
and opportunities the organisation and has identified the following relevant timeframes.
has identified over the short,

medium and long term Short term; 0-2 years.

Medium term: 3-10 years,

Principal risks and uncertainties Long term: Beyond 10 years
D:J on pages 47 to B3
Ervironment and Climate Change has been dentfied as a principal risk, although it 1s not

expected to have an impact on financial performance In the short term

The Group has commissioned an external ESG advisory firm to support the Company
to better identfy climate-related nsks and cpportunities on the organisation's business,
strategy and fnancial planning.

Further detailed risks and opportunities wil be presented on completion of the scenario
analysis work in time for reparting in the FY24 Annual Report.

Describe the impact of climate- Non- The commissioned external ESG advisory firm will alse help quantify the impact of
related risks and opportunities compliant climate-related risks and opportunities on the organisation’s business, strategy and
on the organisation’s businesses, financial planning

trati d fi {al plannin )
strategy andiinancialp g The Risk Committee has been tasked with ensuring that the impacts of climate-related

risks and opportunities are assessed In the Group's business, strategy and financial
planning. We will continue to develcp this area throughout the year and provide updates
in future reports

Describe the resilience of the Non- The Group has started to model cimate-related scenarios and to assess the reslience
organisation’s strategy, taking into compliant of the orgamisatior’s strategy to these scenanos It 1s considered that there s Iittle or no
consideration different climate- negative impact in the short term, and this s balanced with possible opportunities,

related scenarios, including a 2°C or

e Group incorporates varous fina i i
lower scenario The Group o’ ncial scenarios In 1ts strategic modeling, including

freight rates, commedity prices, and foreign exchange rates In FY24, work wil commence
to ncorporate cimate change scenarios into the Group's financial madellng and expects
to continue this work in future reporting years.

When this initial work is complete the Group will be able to better guantfy the impacts and
assess the resiience of the Group's strategy Updates will be provided in future reports.
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During FY23 the Audit & Risk Committee, with suppaort from the Risk Committee,

Describe the organisation's processes

Partial
for identifying and assessing climate- had responsibility for identifying, assessing and managing climate-related risks and
related risks opportunities. The Audit & Risk Committee has responsibility for monitenng this as an
ongoing risk.
Describe the organisation’s processes Partial  The Audit & Risk Committee, with support from the Risk Committee, 1s responsible for
for managing climate-related risks identifying, monitoring and managing clmate-related risks.
Describe how processes for Full The processes described above are fully integrated into the Group's overall risk
identifying, assessing and managing management procasses.
climate-related risks are integrated
into the organisation’s overall
risk management
Principal nsks and uncertainties
I:L| on pages 47 to 63
Disclose the metrics used by the Non- Throughout FY24 we are working to develop a set of metrics to demonstrate how we
organisation to assess climate-related compliant will assess our climate-related risks. An update on this work will be published in future
risks and opportunities in line with its Annual Reports. These metnics will be aligned to the Group's specific climate-related
strategy and risk management process risks as well as the Environment pillar of the Group’s EPSG Framework.
Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and, if Partial  The Group has disclosed all mandatory Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG emissions.
appropriate, Scope 3 greenhouse gas ' ) o .
(“GHG") emissions, and the related Thg Qroup has also disclosed certgm voluntary Scope 3 emissions, including the GHG
risks emissions due to employees working from home.
Describe the targets used by the Non- The Group has committed to reach net zero by 2050 In fine with the UK’s objective for
organisation to manage climate- compliant doing so.

related risks and opportunities and

performance against targets The Group continues tc offset its carlbon footprint on an annual basis through our

Braemar Offset platform in partnership with CHOOOSE.

Throughout FY24, we wil develop the targets that will be used to manage climate-
related nsks and oppertunities and performance against targets. An update on this work
will be published in future Annual Reports.

In ts EPSG framework, the Group has committed to aligning its climate-related targets to
certain references in the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals ("SDGs").
The references that are relevant to climate-related risks and opportunities are:

SDQ 8.4 Improve Resource Efficiency in Consumption and Production.
The Group is developing targets to improve the energy-efficiency of its offices.

§DGA 13.3 improve education, awareness-raising and human and institutional
capaclity on climate change mitigation, adaptation, impact reduction and early
warning.

The Group is developing targets to raise awareness of cimate change and mitigations in
our industry amaongst beth our team and our clienits.

The recent change to regulation with shipping now included
In the European market Emissions Trading Scheme (“EU ETS)

Ag we journgy through this process, we are becoming more presents both a short-term nisk and offers ODDOrtUnltleS e

aware of both the risks associated with climate change, in
terms of the physical and regulatory effects and, also. the
opportunities this presents for a business like ours.

On the one hand, we know that climate change regulation will
impact the selling and transportation of seme of the goods
that we help our clients ship around the world, such as coal
Over time some nations will ban this fossil fuel from entering
ther country, and we expect a downturn of the amount that will
need to be transported over the long term

On the other hand, we are presented with opportunities to
broker ships that directly support the transition to green energy
as wel as for alternative goods needed for the green transition,
the increase In the renewabies markets and auxliary services
required to facilitate that, and chartering voyages via zero
shipping routes, among cthers We currently operate an offset
provision service via Braemar offset

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2025

the market

On balance, we feel well prepared for both the possible risks
and opportunities for the business Over the next reporting
year, we are developing climate scenarnos and analysis based
on the short, medcium and long term and according to the
Pars algned commitments of both 15 and 2 degree scenarios,
Further detail on our chmate-related financial risk will be
disciosed as a result of this ongoing work.
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EPSG Report continued

OO

We continue to create
one global Braemar
experience across all
our departments and
offices by introducing
new, more agile,
systems, impeccable
operations, and a
balanced corporate
structure. This will
support growth

and make us

more competitive

o R S £ R A R T AT b ST P gt ey

T P A in retaining and

‘ S T rewarding our current
T talent, as well as
‘ L e T T attracting talent for

EE S the future.
: ‘ Becki Mackay
Group Head of HR
i
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Diverse talent development

We retain our strategic focus on
recruitrent and retention as well as
mitigating the nsk of losing highly
specialised people within a relatively
small industry. Shipbroking can be a job
for life, and we are proud that so many of
our people choose to stay with Braemar
for significant parts of therr career

Our strategy 1s to maintain a compelling
value proposttion for our employees, and
to be the employer of choice for top
talent and the talent of the future This
approach 1s already enabling us to hire
leading brokers from the ndustry. Our
EPSG strategy, focused on facilitating
climate-smart shipping, is creating
opportunities to hire and train new talent.
We know we need to attract the talent
of the future, and we have created

a Tranee Broker Scheme to provide
opportunities for the next generation

of shipbrokers and attract a greater
dwersity of pecpie; many of whom might
not have considered shipbroking as

a career

Kay Woods

LPG & Petrochemicals
desk for 35 years'

Kay inftially joined a team of 10
on the LPG & Petrochemicals
desk, one of two women, and
she has seen many changes
over the years. "The sector

is far more regulated and
professional, and there are
many more women coming into
the industry, both in operations
and as brokers!

While the { PG & Petrochemicals
Desk is a smaller part of

the shipping world it can be
stressful. if something goes
wrong with a ship, such

as it running late, it can be
worth millions of dollars, so
relationships and trust are
critical, and Kay has built these
OVEr many years.

1 Kay intmally joned Burbank, which was
later acouired by Braemar,

The Trainee Brcker Scheme 1s open to
anycne with the drive and curnosity to
start a career in shipbroking we are not
an industry which only hires graduates
or people with previous experience We
want to give jobs, training, and support
to pecple of any age or background with
the character, tenacity, and capability

to benefit from the job satisfaction,
personal growth, and long-term rewards
that come from being a shipbroker

Employee engagement

Our people have largely returned to
working in our offices, and we continue
to focus on creating a safe, healthy
working ervirorment Cur offices are
increasingly environmentally friendly, with
many of our teams engaging In recycling
waste and energy reduction activities
We continue to support employees

with their mental health and overall
well-being The ongoing exercise t©
benchmark employee remuneraticn and
review employee incentive packages

will be more easily achieved with the
increased visibility of global pay and
benefits afforded by our new HR system

“ft's vital to be personable, to make
connections and find commonalities
with all kinds of people, to be
solutions-focused, and to gain

the trust of the charterers so you
can ring them in the middle of the
night ta negotiate a compromise,
solve an issue, or deliver bad news.
it’s the relationships which make
things happen smoothly and keeps
bringing clients back to Braemar -
and leads to the mega-deals”

She uses her experience to support
trainees as they learn about the
waorld markets and how they're
connected which, she says, often
changes their view of the world.
Covid was an eye-opener for many
with the realisation of just how many
products arrive by sea and the
impact of delays to shipping.

If Kay could have known 35
years ago what she knows now,
she would have toid herself she
was going down the right path:
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Gender diversity

As at 31 December 2022 women
accounted for 23% of our global
workforce (2022 23%), with 2 female
and 4 male directors on the board

We remain committed to addressing
the gender imbalance across our
organisation, an integral part of our
EPSG strategy, and we lock forward

to reporting our progress in this area.
We are seeing more women joining
the industry, and women are among
Braemar’s longest-retained employees
Qur Tranee Broker Scheme 1s one of
the first actions we have taken to attract
maore diverse talent to the ndustry.

“Shipping is dynamic, you're a
critical part of the world market,
working with different people in
many places. Youre never bored,
there’s always something to do or
solve, or new projects to work on””

Kay Woods
LPG & Petrochemicals desk
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EPSG is overseen at the board level by
Ehizabeth Gooch, senior iIndependent
non-executive director Managing the
business in an ethical manner is an
essantial part of the ethos of Braemar
drivers by both our CEQ, Jarnes Gundy,
and our Chairman, Nigel Payne; both
refer to our EPSG commitrments in their
respective reports on pages 5 to 7 and
14 1o 15 of this Annual Report

We set high standards for our team and
give them clear frameworks and paolicies
within which to operate, as set out In our
Employee Handbook. This is supported
by an externally provided telephone

line to report any incidents under our

whistleblowmng policy, and by the Group's

internal training programme which
covers key policies

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2273
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Our Anti-Meoney Laundering ("AML")
and Know Your Customer ("KYC™)
polcies and procedures form a key
component of Braemar’s governance
framework. OQur Compliance team
provides a Group-wide training
program to help ensure our employees
are aware and camply with all relevant
legal and reguiatory obligations
including our AML and KYC policies
and procedures

We are committed to protecting
hurman nghts and ensurng there is
no slavery or human trafficking n our
business or supply chain. There 1s a
Clear staternent of our intent on our
website www braemarcom,
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Non-Financial Information Statement
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Environmental matters

e W

+ Health, safety and environmental

45

Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to

s -

Our employees - Employee handbook Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45
- Whistleblowing
< Health and safety

Social matters Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45

Human rights + Anti-slavery Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45
+ GDPR

Anti-bribery and corruption + Anti-Bribery and Corruption Refer to the EPSG Report on pages 34 to 45

+ Anti-Tax Evasion

+ Anti-Fraud

* Ant-Money Laundering/Know Your Customer
+ Entertanment, Meals and Gifts

Our business mode! For more information, refer to pages 810 9
Principal risks — Risk For mare mformation, refer to pages 47 to 53
management

Non-financial key performance Refer to page 21 for the non-financial key
indicators performance indicators

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk management
Effective nsk management forms an
integral part of how we gperate. It s
essential for delivering our strategic
objectives as well as protecting our
relationships and reputation.

Tha Lo e, e

e ttreen Lt
Risk awareness I1s a key element of
Braemar’s organisational culture at all
levels and is key in managing risks to our
business, helping to ensure the process
of nsk identification. assessment and
response s embedded within daily
cperational and functional activities
across the Group,

The board 1s responsible for managing
the Group's risk, overseeing the internal
control framework, and determining

the nature and extent of the principal
risks the Company is wiling to take to
achieve its long- term objectives. The
Greup's nsk management and internal
control frameworks are contnually
rmonitored and reviewed by the board
and the Audit and Risk Committce,

with support from the Risk Committce
The board 1s comrmitted to mantaning
tha highest standards of conduct in all
aspects of its business. Group policies
and procedures have been designad to
ensure that the level of risk to which the
Group 15 exposed is congistent with the
Group's rsk appetite and aligned with
the Group's long-term strategy.

Reporting to the Char of the Audit and
Risk Committee and administratively
to the Group Chief Financial Officer,
the Head of Internal Audit and Risk
leads the Internal Audit and Risk
Management function

The Group's Risk Management approach
or framework incorporates both
bottom-up and top-down identiication,
evaluation, and management of risks,
Within our framework:

- Senior management have initial
responsibility for identifying,
rmonitoring, and updating business
risks; while

- Group IT, HR, Legal, Compliance
and Finance management alsc
assess their respective functions for
operational and functional risks.

The Groug's Risk Management
framework is managed via an online
gystern which 1 accessible 10 the seror
management team and operational and
functional management teams globally
The system’s functionality has allowed
for enhanced monitoring and reporting
automation. The system allows for:

- Group-wide real-time updating,

- Distribution and completion of
periodic intermal control self-
assessment surveys;

- Ongoing monitcring of risks and
Lnlbgation actwitics at Grour,
Operational, and Functional levels: and

- Risk Management reporting at
Group, Regional, and Company
location levels

The Groug's risk management framework
considers both the likelihood and the
impact of identfied risks matenalising
Risks are mitigated, where possible, by
the implementation of control activities,
which are evaluated as part of the nsk-
based internal audrt plan to determine
their effectiveness In miigating or
reducing risk to acceptable levels

Allidentified nsks are aggregated and
reviewed to assess ther mpact on the
Group’s strategic objectives and the
resources required to manage therm
effectively Principal risks are aggregated
together with associated issues or areas
of uncertainty The extent of controls and
mitigation as well as the patential for a
matenal effect on the market value of
the Group are then assessed Inherent
nsks can be significant, but our control
processas and management actions
reduce the nsk level,
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The nsk management process evaluates
the timescale over which new or
emerging risks may occur. The rnsk
rmanagement process also considers
the potential impact and likelihood of
risks, as well as the timescaie in which
risks may occur. The outcome of this
process is then reviewed with further
consideration and assessment provided
by the Risk Committee, the Audit and
Risk Commuittee, and the board

Oversight and evaluation of the
effectiveness of Braemar's nsk
management framework s led by

the Group Chief Financial Officer,
supported by the Risk Committee whose
membership includes the Group Chief
Operating Cfficer, Company Secretary,
Head of Internal Audit and Risk, Head of
Compliance, and representatives of other
functions and locations of the business.
The Risk Committee monitors nisks
regularly, taking into consideration the
appetite, tclerance, and potential impact
for specfic nsks on the Group
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Principal risks

The principal nsks which may impact the
Group’s ability to execute its strategic
objectives have changed since 2022
Three risks previously disclosed as
principal risks have been removed with
two emerging risks added to the 2023
disciosure, The nisks that follow, whilst
not exhaustive, are those principal
nsks which we beleve could have the
greatest impact on our business and
have been discussed at meetings

of the board, the Risk Committee

and the Audit and Risk Committee
The board reviews these nsks in the
knowledge that currently unknown,
non-existent or immaterial nsks could
turn out to be significant in the future
and confirms that a robust assessment
has been performed. The Audit and
Risk Committee review and approve
the principal risks and any related
mitgation plans
T T N I LA O
[Rew g rnogcin,

Exacerbated by the ongoing conflict
i Ukraine, the increased significance
and prominence of sanctions and trade
restrictions have been assessed as
necessary to disclose separately as a
principal nsk in its own night.

.- . #
' i N

As outlined in the 2022 Annual Accounts,

Braemar’s pnmary medium-term
ambition is, through strategic hires and
acquisitions, to increase the size of the
business. This means that iIntegrating
and aligning new acquisitions 1s an area

of increased focus of the operational and

financial functions of the Group

Three principal risks disclosed In

2022 have been omitted from the
current year's disclosure. Whilst the
related nsk has not been mitigated

N its entirety, they no longer reflect
the most significant risk to which the
board considers the Group is exposed
to. These nisks are namely. ‘Change
Management’, ‘Financial capacity’ and
‘Major business disruption’.

Risk mitigation

The Group takes various measures
to miigate risk Key steps in our nsk
management process throughout the
year included.

- Ongoing periodic review and updating

of policies and procedures, including
AML and KYC, to enhance/strengthen

Group risk governance

Top-down

QOversight, identification,
assessment, and mitigation
of risk at Group level.

N,
N,
N\
\
BT TERTEY S S A

Bottom-up

Identification, assessment
and mitigation of risk across
Braemar's operational and
functional areas.

Board of Directors

TS e e ST W ST TR,

Operational and functional business areas
- Performs risk identification and assessment across operational and functional areas.

the Group's governance framework,
with ongoing monitoring of employee
comphance by the Head of Internal
Audit & Risk and Head of Compliance.
A system of internal checks and
authorsations, compiemented by
Independent agsurance activities.
Usage of common finance, HR and
operations systems across the Group
supported by our IT team.
Succession planning and strategic
recruitment supported by the Group
HR team.

Establishment of board-approved
Group budgets with ongoing
performance monitoring aganst
budgets/reforecasts and independent
nvestigation of significant vanances
Regular reporting of Treasury
management activity to the board

by the Group Chief Financial Officer
{Nete. the Group does not enter
speculative treasury transactions.)
Ongoing menitoring of contractual
risk by the Group legal team.
Operation of the Group's
whistieblowing procedure.

- Maintenance of appropriate

nsurance cover

- Reviews and approves risk management and internal control systems.

- Determines the nature and extent of principal risks

- Monitors exposures to ensure their nature and extent are aligned with Braesmar’s goals
and strategic objectives.

~ Sets the tone for developing and embedding a risk-aware mindset into Braemar's
organisational cuiture,

B e

YR B (T 5 o 9T

- Embeds risk mitigation and internal controls rmonftoring across functional areas and regions.
- Embeds risk awareness culture in day-to-day processes and operations.

Risk governance includes principal, operational and emerging risks.
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-:; { Increased o Decreased e No change NEW New

Group Risk Governance

Principal Risks

The directors have carmed out an assessment of the principal and emerging risks facing the Company The most significant risks
to which the board considers the Group is exposed, based on the evaluation process described in the Group's Risk Management
Framework are set out below

e

Sanctions and trade restrictions

Braemar operates ina Conducting business with sanctioned - Enhanced KYC procedures performed and

global landscape of trade entities, through sanctioned regions specialised legal team engage in constant NEW
and financial sanctions and facilitating transport of sanctioned monitoring of updates to applicable sanction

with a variety of associated goods wil lead to non-cormplance regmes and regulations

compliance reguirements. with sanctioned regimes resulting - Technology solutions used to optimise the

This has been assessed as a in financial penatties/fines and efficiency of sanction screeming performed

reputational damage

new Principal Risk for the 2023 External assurance providers perforrming internal

financial year. Note audt reviews over the sanctions process and
Increased scrutiny from regulatory providing reccmmendations which management
bodes and rising geopoltical and ntend to mplerment In the current inancal year

macroeconomic Issues, including the
continued Russia/Ukraine conflict, has
increased the potential impact of nsks
assoclated with breaches of sanctions
and trade resiction requirerments

Integration risk

As outlined in the 2022 Financial nefiiciencies an~d/or reduced - Performance of new business is monitored through
Year, Braemar’s primary medium- expected synergies realised after regutar dialogue with relevant business leaders NEW
term ambition i‘s,‘ through strategic ntegrating new acquisitions into the An ntegration strategy s monitored throughout the
hires and acquisitions, to increase Group and algning them with the various stages of an acquisition
the size of the business. respective Group strateges _

- Compliance and legal mechanisms in place to
Integrating and aligning any ensure the purchase mests any relevant regulatory
new acquisition with the Group requirements and the target company algns
poses various challenges appropriately with the relevant Group values
frorn an operation.al and Prortisation of identified growtr: cpportunities
financial perspective. to ensure resources are appropriately allccated

This has been assessed as a to opportunities with the best potential return

new Principal Risk for 2023 on investment
financial year.

Loss of key personnel and weak organisational culture

Braemar is a people-based Employee relations clams/tigation/ Ongoing review of policies ncluding Conflicts
business and people are vital to trbunals aftributed 1o negative of Interest, Code of Conduct, and the Employee e
its success. behaviours or actions, ncreases the Handbook, to ensure behavioural expectations and

potential for reputational darmage empioyrment practices for managers and employees

Inadequate policies and reward

; . because of negatve publicty in the are clearly defired
structures could incentivise

putlc domain

negative behaviours, create Organisation structure changes included the creation
internal confiict, lead to Loss of key staff could result n of associate director roles to dentify key employees
reputationai damage, and recuced revenue If former staff and to better define progression oppartun tes
contribute to failure in attracting attempt 1o fake contacts and

Ongoing development of a culture of engagement and
‘ ' ) covenants included in employment professional development including implementation of

Failure to adapt t‘o, or .allgn v!nth, contracts help to mitigate this risk performance management objectives. clearly defined

market expectations, including pathways for career progression, and succession

the offering of flexible or hybrid Strategic growth objectives may not plarnning at senior managenent levels

working arrangements, could result  be achieveo f Braemar fails to attract

in the inability to attract and retain and retan skilled personnel

skilled personnel.

and for retaining skilled personnel. business with therm The restrictive

Annual review of compensation with external
benchmarking helps to ensure remuneration packages
continue to be appropriate and compettive

Lack of appropriate consideration
of environmental and wider social
issues could also contribute to
the inability to attract and retain
skilled personnel.

Ongong consideration of roles potentially sutable for
hybrd and flexible working arrangements

Braemar Pl Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

F
¥

Braemar generates revenues from
a global business that exposes
the Group to risks associated with
legal and regulatory requirements
in muttiple jurisdictions.

Currency fluctuations

The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk because of a large
proportion of its revenue being
generated in US dollars while the
cost base is in multiple currencies.

Cybercrime/data security

Cybercrime could result inloss

of business assets or disruption

to the Group’s IT systems and its
business. Lack of appropriate data
security could result in loss of data.

Disruptive technology

Shipbroking is still largely a
business that is transacted via
personal relationships dependent
on quality service. Hehce the

risk of technological change,
disintermediation and increased
customer demands for enhanced
technological offerings could
render aspects of our current
services obsolete, potentially
resulting in loss of customers.

Compliance with laws and regulations

Legal and regulatory breaches
could result In fines, sanctons being
imposed on our business, and the
loss of Braermar's ability to continue
operating

Failure to meet all reporting obligations
could lead to reputational damage
which could then lead to loss of
revenwe and staff

A change in exchange rates could
result N a financial gan or loss

Loss of service and associated loss
of revenue Reputational damage
Potenual for loss of cash due to fraud
or phishing

Relationships could be devalued and
replaced by disruptive technology
platforms, resulting n increased
compettion. consequent price
reductions, and loss of revenue
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Group wide traning prograr to help ensure employee 9
awareness of, and compliance with, all relevant tegai &
and regulatory obligations

Braemar corporate governance framewoark,
Braemar risk management methodclogy.

Compliance with our policies, ncluding our AML/
KYC policies’ (enhanced) customer due diigence
requirermeants, and

Complance with relevant laws & reguiations,
meciuding anti-bribery and corruption regulations

Enhanced KYC procedures and ongoing monitonng
of compliance with governance pelicies and legal/
regulatory requirernents across the Group

Cngoing monitonng 1o ensure INsUrance cover 1s
maintained at adequate levels

The board sets the treasury policy which detalls

the level of exposure the board 1s comfortable with
and the Group hedges to the level stpulated in the
treasury policy Forward currency (US S} contracts are
entered INto o Mitigate the nsk of adverse currency
MOVEMENtS

Globally, cyber-attacks increased significantly during
and post the COVID pandemic To address the
persistent threat, and to enhance securty measures
aiready In place, Braemar has embarked on a global
Cyber Secunty programme This programme includes
the implermentation of the NIST Cyber Security
Framework and I1SO 27001 as Braemar's controls
catalogue Our Secunty Operations Centre 1s fully
operational with 24/7 monitoring and coverage

Investrment 1N technology through partnenng with best
in-class providers. such as Zuma Labs. has effectively
diferentizted Rraemar

Ongoing modernisation of our infrastructure to allow
for focus on Innovation and strategic direction
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Environment and climate change

Seaborne transportation is
estimated to create approximatety
3% of the worlds carbon emissions
and there will be increased
pressure to reduce that in future
years. Fallure to monitor and
address the risks associated with
that reduction process could result
in loss of revenue for Braemar and
its customers and counterparties.

The Group's P&L and iquidity could
be negatively mpacted f custormers
are lost as a result of Braemar not
keeping pace with cur peers and
industry best practice

Non-complance with regulations ar
disclosure requirements could result i
fines or penalties

Fallure to appropriately montor
and mitigate these risks could
lead to Brasmar sufferng sernous
recutaticnal damage

Note:

Management does not expect
clmate related nisks to have a matenal
mpact on the Group's short term
financial perforance

Geopolitical and macroeconomic

Braemar’s business is reliant cn
global trade flows and as such

may be negatively impacted by
geopolitical and/or macroeconomic
issues, such as changes in crude
oil price, restrictions in global trade
due to pandemics such as COVID,
sanctions, and changes in supply
and demand.

A downturn in the world economy
could aect transaction volumes,
resulting in reduced revenue

Changes In shipping rates and/
or changes in the dermand or
pricng of commodities couke affect

suply activity

Note:

The continued conflct between
Russia and Ukraine and related global
sanctions has increased the potential
impact of risks associated with both
geopolticat and/or macroeconcmic
1ssues and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations
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Investinent in the offshore tenewables market and
technology 1o allow the Group and its clients to offset
carbon emissions

Ongoing development of the EPSG strategy
which allows the Group to monitor and report on
environmental and cimate related risks

Diversi®cation on a zector and geograpic pasis
reduces dependeancy on individual business areas

Ongoing menitoring to ensure the Group 1s
appropriately resourced across ts activities and
geographies

Ongeing management of costs based on current and
reasonably foreseeable market conditions.

Enhanced KYC procedures and ongoing monitonng of
compliance with governance pelicies. sanctions, and
ather legal/regutatory requirernents across the Group
0 hele ensure laws and reguiations are not breached

Braemar's divarse service offerrq, led by experts in
trer fields mears the Group 1s 1IN the bost position to
find new opportunit es in volatile market condit ors and
able to take advantage of market turnarounds,

-

Financial Statements
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Internat audit

The Group's internal audit function is
monitored and reviewed by the Audit
Committes, to ensure that the Groug's
rsk managerment and internal controls
processes are working effectively

A detailed description of the Group's
internal audit function can be found on
page 64 of this Annual Report.

LR . [N

The Group generated strong uncerlying
operational cash flow i the year of
£221m, up from £200m in FY22, and has
continued to do so N the first months of
trading in the current year. The Group’s
Balance Shest has strengthened
significantly due te the strong trading
and cash receipts and is in & stronger
position than at February 2022, with

net bank cash of £69m (2022 net

bank debt: £93m) This is despite the
nvestments that were made towards
the end of the year N the new office In
Madrid and the acquisition of Southport
Maritirme in the US that total £73m -
£13m upfront for the new Madnd desk,
and £8m for Southport. Therefore, the
directors believe that the Group 1s well
positioned to manage its nsks. Whilst
there are still uncertainties facing the
busiress including those related to the
conflict in the Ukraing, they are nothing
like those that were the case In the
previous two yaars due to the Covid
disruptions.

A more detaled analysis of the nsks
facing the business 15 outlined In

Note 1 (see pages 104 to 106}, The
analysis concludes that there is no
rmaterial uncertainty relating to going
concern, based on cash flow forecast
for & 15-month pericd from the signing of
these accounts to 28 February 2025 The
drrectors have a reascnable expectation
that the Company and Group have
adequate resources to continue to trade
for twelve months from the date of the
approval of these Financial Statements
and for this reason they continue 1o
adopt the going concem basis in
preparing the Financial Statements

EERE N

In accerdance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the directors have
assessed the prospects of the Group
over a penod of four years, which they
believe is an appropriate periad based
on the Group's current financial position,
banking faciliies, budgets and forecasts,
strategy, principal nisks, and exposure to
potentially volatle market forces

In recent years and particularly during the
COVID pandemic, the Group’s bankers,
HSBC, have been highly supportive and
allowed relaxations of covenants to give
the board the time to make alternative
plans to ensure suficient lquidity is
avallable to continue the Group's plans.
Those relaxations of covenant levels
were never In fact reguired and the
Group traded comfortably withm the
covenants relating 1o the facility during
the last financial year and 1s confident
that it will continue to do so.

During the year, the directors were
successful in renewing facilities with
HSBC with very similar terms to the
previous one that expires N the first
instance in November 2025 but that
may be extended with lender approval
by a further one or two years giving a
maximum duration until Novermber 2027,
More detal can be found in Note 1 to the
Financial Statements on pages 104 to
106 of this Annual Report. The viability
assessment has been carried out over a
four-year period from the balance sheet
date to 28 February 2027, by which time
new banking facilities will need to have
been concluded. It therefore assumes
that similar banking facilities will be made
available to the Group for the whole of
this time. The directors’ assessment
considers those current facility terms
and includes a review of the financial
mpact of significant adverse scenanos
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In generating those scenarios,
consideration was alsc given to the risks
to the business that have been identified
in this Annual Report on pages 47 to 51
as new or INcreasing:

Sanctions and trade restrictions —
Braemar operates in a global landscape
of international and financial sanctions
with a variety of associated compliance
reguirements. This has been assessed
as a new Principal Risk for 2023
financial year Although the degrae of
due diigence and legal reviews has
increased N the pernod due to the
enhanced sanctions regime resulting
from the Ukrame war, there 1s iittle
evidence of reduced volumes or values
of commissions as a result

Integration risk - the business macde
an acquisition in the US during the year
and set up a new office In Madnd, in
Spain toward the end of last year It 1s
still early days but there 1s no evidence
currently of weaker revenues and prohts
from those offices than forecast, Indeed
both have traded well since coming into
Braemar ownership.

Compliance with laws and
regulation = the risks to the business
caused by the increasing degree of
sanctions resulting from the confict
in the Ukraine have clearly increased
over the last six months tut have yet
to manifest itself in reduced revenues.
Exposure to sanctioned business 1sm't
material to the Group and experience
to date suggests that although freight
patterns are changing as a result,
overall volumes are not declining The
Group alse has a number of reporting
obligations that must be met. During
2023, the Group was late in delivering
its Annual Report and accounts,
however, this has not led to a materal
loss of revenue or staff The Group Is
implementing measures to prevent any
delays reoccurring and acknowledges
that any future delays could have an
impact on the reputation of the Group
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Environment and climate change —
environmental and climate change
factors will have a significant long-term
impact on the Shipping industry and
pose arisk to the Group if they aren't
recognised and adapted to. In the short
to mediurn term, these changes will
also provide opportunities to provide
additional support to the industry and
for additional revenue generation. The
longer-term risks are not expected to
have an impact on the business during
the penod under review.

Geopolitical and macroeconomic -
similar to the compliance with laws

and regulation risk the confiict in the
Ukraing war raised the risk level due

to geopolitical and macroeconormic

risk with a resultant global downturn

or recession lkely to have a negative
impact on the business Heightened
tensions in other parts of the world such
as Taiwan could also lead to further
disruption, however the expenence to
date 1s that the shipping market volatility
has If anything increased revenue
generation rather than reduced it

Revenue was chosen as the main
variable in generating the adverse
scenanos as there are no costs of sale
within the business and the remaning
costs are largely fixed or made up of
bonus pools which will vary in line with
the levels of revenue Set against those
falls in revenue 1s the lkely effectiveness
of potential mitigations that are
reascnably believed to be available to
the Group over this period

I considering these potential
mitigations, the beard was mindful

of its duties under Section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006 and considered
the potentially competing interests of
dfferent stakeholder groups and the
potential long-term consequences of
the actions, Including the use of funds
for employee remuneration (and the role
this plays in the retention of staff}, paying
dividends, making investments and
repaying debt.

The assessment INvolves the production
of cash flow forecasts designed 1o
assess the ability of the Group to
operate both within the banking faciity
covenants and liquidity heacroom. The
main downside sensitivities used were
annual revenue reductions of /5% and
16% from October 2023 to Decermber
2024 and stabilised thereafter Under the
75H% cases the board concluded that
with only very minor cost-saving or cash
management mitigations avalable to it,
the Group could continue to operate
under the current banking facilities over
the three- year period. Under the 15%
case certan additional cost saving and
cash mitigabion actions were required to
allow the Group to continue to operate
within the current banking facilities, all of
which were within the board’s control,

The assessment also incorporated a
“reverse stress test” which was designed
to identify scenarios under which the
Group's banking faciities would be
inadequate to continue as a going
concern despite using all the mitigating
options available. The result of this test
shows that alt available mitigations
would be exhausted, and faciities
breached If there was approxmately

a 35% decrease In forecast revenue
from October 2023 through to
December 2024

The directors have concluded that whilst
future outcomes cannot be guaranteed
or predicted with certanty the revenue
and operating margin scenarios that
would lead to such a falure are highly
unlikely. This I1s especially so In the hight
of current trading where revenues are
running in ine with forecasts They also
noted that the facility headroom in terms
of lquidity remained adequate even
under the reverse stress test condiions
and that it was the leverage covenant
which would be breached If revenue

fell by more than 35% and then only
during 2024.
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Financial Statements

There 1s no evidence indicating that
revenues will fall to levels indicated in thig
test and that the Ikelhood is therefore
remote and that there is therefore no
material uncertainty in this regard, nor
any impact on the basis of preparation
of the Financial Statements. There is also
a reasonable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue in operation and
meet its iiabilities as they fall due over the
next three financial years

This Strategic Report was approved on
behalf of the board on 15 November 2023,

Grant Foley
Group Chief Financial Officer
16 November 2023
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Strategic Report

Corporate Governance Report

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the board of directors,

| am delighted to present the Corporate
Governance Report which details the
Company's governance arrangements,
the operation of the board and its
Committees and how the board
discharged its responsibilittes duning
the year

Braemar mantains a robust governance
framework, designed tc support the
Company’s long-term strategy and be

i alignment with the Company's values
and culture The board remains highly
engaged in fuffiling its role of leading

the Company and overseeing the
governance arrangements across the
Group and continues to be committed to
mamntaining a high standard of corporate
governance Throughout the financial year
ended 28 February 2023, the Company
fully comphed with all the provisions of
the UK Corporate Governance Code
{"Coae™), except for provision 11 and we
have provided a full explanation in the
board composition and changes section
betow; the beard is now fully compliant
with prowvisicn 1.

Gevernance 1s a key pillar of our
Environment, People, Social and
Governance “EPSG” framework and a
high stancard of corporate governance
is essential for the Group to succeed In
delivering its strategy and 1s integral to
enhancing its reputation and maintamning
the trust of its sharehoiders, clients,
employees and other stakeholders Mare
information on our EPSG framework

can be found on pages 34 to 45 of this
Annual Report

This Corporate Governance report
comprises this introduction (pages 55 to
57}, the Audit & Risk Committce Report
on pages 60 to 84, the Nomination
Committee Report on page 65 together
with the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 66 to 85, describes how the
board and its Committees operate and
how the Company has applied the Code
during the year ended 28 February 2023,

Board composition and changes
The board consists of the non-executive
Chairman, the Group Chief Executive
Officer, the Group Chief Operating
Officer, the Group Chief Financial Officer
and three independent non-executive
directors. The Chairman leads the

board and is respensible for its overall
effectiveness In directing the Company.
taking into account the interests of

the Company’s various stakeholders.
The Group Chief Executive Officer

leads the executive management in

the development of strategy and the
management of all aspects of the
performance and operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries. We

have a strong board who bring diverse
experience and personal skillsets,
please refer to the skills section in the
drector biographies for more detail cn
each drector’s skils and expenence An
internal board performance review was
undertaken in 2022 which concluded that
the board continues to operate effectively
with each director contributing positively
to the board's overal effectiveness

Lesley Watkins stepped down from the
board with effect from 31 March 2022
Stephen Kunzer stepped down from the
board with effect from 31 January 2023
to take up a CEO positon at Lila Global in
Dubai The board was pleased to welcome
Cat Valentineg as a non-executive director
with effect from 16 May 2023 Catis a
communicaticns professional with over
25 years” experience, advising guoted
and privately-owned companies on
investor and corporate communications.
She has extensive knowledge of the
small-cap growth companes’” market
and considerable M&A transacticnal
experience, having advised a broad range
of clients on both AIM and the Man
Market. Cal's extensive expenence hag
added considerable value to the board.
On Cat's appointment to the board, she
was also appointed to the Remuneration
Committee and Audit & Risk Committee
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Provision 11 of the Code states that at
ieast half of the board, excluding the char,
should be independent non-executive
drrectors As the board had Iittle pnor
notice of Stephen's departure to take up
a CEO posttion at Lila Global In Dubai,
for a short tme between Stephen's
departure and Cat's appontment,

while the recrutment process was
underway, the board was not compliant
with provision 11 though this was swiftly
rectfied following Cat's appointment
Further detall on the appointment
process can ke found in the Nomination
Committee Report

Further to the anncuncement on 20
June 2023, Grant Foley joined the board
as Group Chief Financial Officer with
effect from 1 August 2023, more detall
on his appointment can be found in my
Statement onpages bto 7

The board has decided to voluntarily
disclose against the targets set out in the
new Listing Rule requirements, the targets
dictate that

- at least 40% of the board should
be women,

- atleast one of the senior board
positions {Charr, Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer or senior
independent director) should be
a woman, and

~ atleast one member of the board
should be from an ethnic minority
background, excluding white ethnic
groups (as categorised by the Office
for National Statistics)

The board currently meets the first two
targets, with 42% of the directors being
worman and Elzabeth Gooch as the
senior independent director.
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The non-executive directors, none of
whom has ever fulfilied an executive

role within the Company, are appointed
for an initial three-year term subject to
annual re-election at the Annual General
Meeting in accordance with the Code.
Prior to making director appointments,
the board (supported by the Nomination
Committes) considers other signficant
director appointments to assess whether
the candidate will have sufficient time to
undertake therr role effectively The board
has considered the other commitrments
of the non-executive directors and

the board continues to believe that at
non-executive directors have sufficient
time to continue undertaking their roles
effectively The non-exgcutive directors
are responsible for constructively
challenging and scrutinising the strategies
and performance of the executive
drectors using ther independence and
perspectives gained from ther diverse
experiences, as well as having broader
oversight of the Group through the work
of the board and its Cammittees

Biographies of current board members,
together with information on their

skills, experience and ther external
appointments, are included in this
Corporate Governance Report In
lanuary 2023, the board appointed
Rebecca-Joy Wekwete as Company
Secretary All directors have access to
the Company Secretary for advice on all
governance matters to help ensure that
the board 1s able to discharge s duties
and function effectively and efficiently
The Company Secretary ensures that
the board receives the financial and
operational information they require to
enable them to appropriately discharge
their duties and responsibilities and
cireulates board papers electronically

In advance of meetings. Directors may
also seek independent advice at the
Company’s expense where needed.

The board met 16 times during the year
(F¥22 15) and the attendance by each of
the Directors is set out below,

Attended
Non-executive Directors
Eizabeth Gooch 15415
Staphen Kunzer 1243
Joanne Lake” 14/156
Nigel Payne 13/15°
Lesley Watkins® 1A
Executive Directors
Nicholas Stone 1515
James Gundy 1545
Tris Simmonds 12146
1 Stephen Kunzer left the board or
31 January 2023
2 loarne Lake [oined the boarg with eftect ‘rom
1March 2022

3 In Nigel's absence, the meotings were charred
by loanne Lake
4 Lesloy Watking loft the boa'd on 31 March 2022

Board committees

The board has three standing
Committees Audit & Risk, Nomination
and Remuneraticn. Each of the board
Committees comprses solely of
INcependent non-executive directors.
The composition and responsisiities

of the board Committees are set out

in each of the Committee reports, on
pages 60 to 85 of this Annual Report
The Remuneration Committee Report
on pages 66 to 85 of this Annual Report
is incorporated into this Corporate
Governance Report by reference. The
terms of reference for each of the
Committees can be found in the Investor
section of the Company's website

The Group also has an Executive
Committee to support the Group
Chuef Executive Cfficer with the day-
to-day management of the Group
and the development and execution
of the Group's strategy. The Executive
Committee comprises the three
executive directors

-
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The Group also has a Risk Committec
The Risk Committee reports to the
Audit & Risk Committee on matters
including' the nsk managerment
activities, risk appetite, emerging risks
and other changes to the nsk matrix,
the work of the internal audit function,
and the day-to-day monitorng of the
Group's risk rmanagement framework.

It comprises the Group Chief Financial
Officer, Group Chief Operating Officer,
Company Secretary, Group Financial
Controller, Group Head of HR, Managing
Director (Singapore), Group Director

of Digital Transformation & IT and the
Group Head of Compliance. The Chair
of the Audit & Risk Committea has a
standing nvitation to attend meetings
of the Risk Committee and other
colleagues are nvited from time to time
to provide additional input on the Group's
operations and potential risk exposure
where considered approprate

Risk management, compliance
and effective controls

The directors have a duty to the
Company’'s shareholders to ensure that
the information presented o them is farr,
balanced, understandable, and provides
shareholders with the necessary
information to assess the Company’s
position, performance, business model
and strategy Further details of the
directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the Company’s Financial Statements
are set out In the staterment of directorg’
responsibilities on pages 88 to 89 of this
Arnnual Report.

In fulfiling ts responsibilities, the

board has established procedures for
identifying and evaluating any risks
associated with its strategic objectives
{including both emerging and principal
nisks) and considering how those risks
can be managed effectively The Aucit
& Risk Committee s responsiole for
the independent review and chalienge
of the adequacy and effectiveness

of the Company’s approach to nsk
management and reports ts findings to
the board
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The Audtt & Risk Committee s
supported by the Risk Committee

and the Internal Audit function. More
information on the work of the Audit &
Rigk Committee and the Internal Audit
function can be found in the Audit & Risk
Committee Report on pages 8¢ to 64 of
this Annual Report, and more information
on the Company’s rnsk management
processes, Including a summary of the
principal nsks facing the Group and the
procedures In place to identify emnerging
risks, is set out on pages 4/ to 53 of this
Annual Report

Culture and values

The Company's EPSG framework
recognises the three pillars of
environmental, social, and governance
that have become the widespread
defintion of ESG. with the addition of a
fourth pillar to recognise the peaple that
are the foundation of our busingss and
are integral to the communities we Ive
and work in. As part of this framework,
Braemar remains committed to providing
its services to the highest standards
and operating ethically, lawfully and with
professional integrity at all tmes The
frarmework enables the Company to
foster a culture and operating practices
that incorporate our values We believe:
that this will support the Group with its
strategy to grow the Braemar brand in
an increasing number of global markets
More information on our culture and
values, what action has been taken
during the year to ensure that policies,
practices and behaviour across the
Group are aligned with them, how we
engage with, Invest in and reward our
workforce, and our commitment to
diversity and inclusion can all be found
in the EFSG Report on pages 34 to 45
of this Annual Report

Strategic Report i,

Shareholder relations

The board recognises the iImportance
of maintamning gocd communication
with key stakeholders of the Company’s
buginess and talking the nierests of
those stakeholders into consideration N
its decision-making. Key stakeholders of
the Company include its shareholders,
with whorm the board seeks to engage
with regularly in order to fulfil its duties
under Section 172 of the Companies Act
2006 The Company follows an active
investor relations programme carried
out mostly through regular meetings of
the Grous Chief Executive Cfficer and
the Group Chief Financial Officer with
existing and potential investors following
the announcements of the intenm and
prefiminary full year results of the Group.

The Company has also organised
varous opportunites and forums
throughout the year to enable existing
and prospective investors to hear more
from the executive directors on the
business and Its strategy. From time to
time, the non-executive directors and the
nen-executive Chairman will also consult
with the Company’s major shareholders.
Feedback from the Company's
shareholders is also received through the
Group's corporate broker and corporate
affars team

In accordance with legal and regulatory
regurernents, the Company ensures
that shareholders are kept updated on
material information, especially that of a
potentially price sensitive nature, as soon
as possible This is done via corporate
announcements which are made
avallable on the Company’s website and
through announcements to the market.
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The Company encourages participation
at its AGM where each resolution 15
separately put to the meeting for a vote.
The Company notes that at last year's
AGM, all resclutions proposed were
passed with the requisite majorities

of votes. The Directors’ Rermuneration
Report received more than 20% of

the votes against, detalf on the action
taken to understand the reasons behind
the resuilt are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Internal independent investigation
As announced on 26 June 2023, the board
commenced an internal independent
investigation into an historical transaction
dating back to 2013 The irvestigation was
averseen by an Investigation Commitiee
charred by myself and comprised the
independent non-executive directors.

The nvestigation was conducted by FRP
Adwvisory Trading Limited, an independent
specialist forensic accounting firm, and
independent external counsel. Athough
the investigation was cormnplex, it was
comprehensive and uitimately focused on
a review of several transactions between
2006 and 2013

The independent investigation has now
been completed. The board and the
Group have acted promptly to address
the process and control areas that were
identified as reguinng improvement,
including taking key remedial actions and
the necessary steps to comply with the
Group's legal and regulatory obligations.
The beard 1s committed 1o mantaining a
high standard of corporate governance
and will ensure the remedial actions are
tracked through to completion

Nigel Payne
Chairman
15 November 2023
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James Gundy Grant Foley Tris Simmonds
Group Chief Executive Group Chief Financial Group Chief Operating
Officer Officer Officer

Appointment date 1 January 2021 1 August 2023 1 August 2021

Background and
relevant experience

James has over 35 years’
Shipbroking expenence
specialising in Tankers and
Sale and Purchase/New
bullding projects He joined
the Company in 2014 as

Chief Executive Officer of
Shipbroking following the
merger of Braemar Plc and
ACM Shipping Group Plc, where
James was the Chief Executive
COfficer of ACM Shipping
James was an integral part of
the successful integration of
the two businessaes which led
to his appointment as Group
Chuef Executive Officer in
January 2024,

Grant has over 25 years'
experience In leading public
and private financial services
and technology businesses

He joined the Company from
ClearScore. As Chief Financial
Officer at ClearScore, he drove
significant improvements
across the finance function,
Implernenting new systems,
processes and reporting as
the business scaled. Grant

also has additional transaction
expenence, and his other roles
have included CMC Markets Pic
where, as Group Chief Financial
Officer and Chief Operating
Qfficer, he was instrurnental in
the company's successful IPQO,

Tris has over 30 years’
experence in the commodities
industry including 14 years

at GFI Group where he
becarne Head of European
Commadites. Tris fournded
Atlantic Brakers in 2013 which
was sold to Braermar Pic in
2018 Since the acquisition in
2018, Tns held the position of
Managing Director of Brasmar's
derivative brokerage business
and he was appointed as
Group Chief Cperating Officer
n August 2021

Committee
Memberships

Nore

None

None

Finance, investor relations,

Skills Shipbroking, leadership, mergers Mergers & acquisitions,
& acquisitions, business mergers & acousitions, strategy business development,
development, sales, marketing, and risk management compliance and sales
investor relations, strategy

Extaernal Nore None MNone

appointments
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The Chairman leads the board and is responsible for its overall effectiveness in directing the
Company, taking into account the interests of the Company’s various stakeholders. The Group
Chief Executive Officer leads the executive and divisional management in the development of
strategy and the management of all aspects of the performance and operations of the Company

and its subsidiaries.

Nigel Payne
Chairman of the Board

Elizabeth Gooch MBE
Non-executive Director
& Senior Independent
Director trom 1 april 2022)

Joanne Lake
Non-executive Director

Cat Valentine
Non-executive Director

1May 2021

1 August 2021

1 March 2022

18 May 2023

Nigel joined the Company as
non-executive Charman n May
2021 Nigel has a proven record
of enhancing shareholder value
with over 30 years’ experience
on international public and
private boards both as an
executive and non-executive
director. Nigef's board roles
include organisations such

as Sportingbet pic, Gateley
Haldings plc, Sun Intermnaticnal
{JSE), BlueBet pty (ASX),
GetBusy ple, Ascot Racecourse
Betting and Gaming mited, EG
Solutions ple, Stride Gaming
plc, Hangar8 pic, Kwalee ttd
and Green Man Gaming ttd.
Nigel 1s a gualified Chartered
Accountant.

Elizabeth has over 18 years’
experence in governance,
compliance and financial
reporting of publicly listed
companies, having founded
and run EG Solutions plc.

Elzabeth works with founders
of UK Tech Startups and
Scaleups to help therm grow
and scale their businesses.
She 1s an angel investor, non-
executive director and Mentor
to tech companies in a wide
range of sectors including
Secure messaging, cyber
securty, artficial Intellgence,
robotic process automation
and e-commerce,

Joanne has over 30 years'
experience n financial and
professional services - both in
imvestment banking, with frms
including Panmure Gordon,
Evolution Securities and
Wiliams de Broe, and in audit
and business advisory services
with Price Waterhouse loanne
is a chartered accountant and
fellow of the Chartered Institute
for Securities & Investrment.

Cat was appointad to

the board in May 2023

She is a communications
professional with over 26
years experience, advising
small cap growth companies
on investor and corporate
communications. She joined
the strategic communications
advisory business, Belvedere
Communications, in 2017, where
she is director and co-owner.

Char of the Nomination
Commrtee

Chair of the Remuneration
Committee

Member of the Nomination and
Audit & Risk Commitiees

Charr of the Audit & Risk
Committee

Member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Member of the Audit &
Risk Cormnmittee and the
Rermuneraticn Committes

Leadership, strategy, business
development, mergers and
acquistions, investor relations,
finance and governance

Governance, complance,
financial reporiing, Investor
relations, equity fundraising

Capital markets, equity
fundraising, mergers &
acquisitions, strategy and
growth companies

Corporate communications,
investor and media relations,
equity capital markets, and

organisaticnal development

Non-executive Chairman of
Gateley Holdings Plc and Green
Man Garning Ltd.

Non-executive director of Sun
Internaticnal Ltd, GetBusy plc,
Ascot Racecourse Betting
and Garnng Ltd, Kwalee Ltd
and Blue Bet pty

Director of Tumkey Group

(UK Heldings) Limited and
Howarths HR and Employrment
Law Limited
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Non-executive Charr of Made
Tech Group Plc

Non-executive director and
Senior independent director
of Henry Boot Pic

Non-executive drector

of Gateley (Holdings) Plc, Pollen
Street Plc and Morson Group
Linited

Director of Belvedere
Communications
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Report of the Audit & Risk Committee

The Committee name was changed

to the ‘Audit & Risk Committee 1o
explatly reflect the Committee’s risk
management oversight responsibiliies.
The Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors
and its terms of reference can be

found in the Investors section of the
Company's website The Commitiee

is chaired by non-executive director
Joanne Lake, who was appointed 10 the
board with effect from 1 March 2022
and succeeded Lesley Watkins as Chair
of the Committee, following Lesiay's
departure on 31 March 2022 Jloanne is a
highly expenenced chartered accountant
with a strong financial background and
with the complementary skills of the
other members, continues to ensure
that the Committee has a sufficient

level of both financial and relevant
sector expenence. With respect to other
membership changes, Stephen Kunzer
left the Committee on 31 January 2023
Cat Valentine joined the Committee upon
her appointment to the board on 16 May
2023 The gualifications and expernence
of the members of the Committee can
be found In the director biographies on
pages 58 1o 52 of this Annual Report

The overall role of the Audit & Risk
Committee (the “Committee™) during
the financial year was largely
unchanged from previous years.

Only members of the Committee had
the nght to attend meetings however,
standing invitations were extended to
the Chairman, Group Chief Executive
Officer, Group Chief Operating Officer,
Group Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary, Head of internal Audit and
Risk Managerment and representatives
of the external auditor. The Company
Secretary acted as secretary to the
Committee The Internal and external
auditors attended Committee meetings
and periodically met in private with the
Committee Chair to discuss matters
relating to the Committee’s remit and
issues ansing from their work The
Committee held nine meetings durng
the year, the attendance of which can
be found to the left

The key function of the Committee

Is to address the followng specific
respansibilitios, while adaping ils
activities as appropriate t¢ address
changing pricrities within the business:

- Fmancial reporting: reviewing the
published half-year and annual
Financial Statements and reports,
and any other formal announcement
relating to the Group's financial
performance, and advising the
board on whether such information
represents a fair, balanced and
understandable assessment
of the Company’'s position and
prospects; monitoring compliance
with relevant statutory reporting
and listing requirements, reviewing
and considenng any changes
in acceuntng standards, and
considenng the suitability of, and any
changes to, accounting policies used
by the Group, Including the use of
estimates and judgements.

- Internal control and nsk management:

reviewing the adequacy of the
Group's internal controls; assisting
the board In conducting a robust
assessment of the Company's
emerging and principal rsks;

and monitonng the scope and
cffectiveness of the activities of the
Group's internal audit activities in the
context of the Group's overall risk
rmanagement framework.
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- As part of this responsibility, the
Committee recelves reports from the
Risk Committee and regularly reviews
the Group's compliance policies and
procedures, including those relating
to whistleblowing, the prevention of
bribery, corruption and fraud, and the
Group's KYC processes.

- Reviewing and monitoring the
effectiveness of the external auoit
process and the independence of
the external auditor conducting the
tender process to appoint an external
auditor and making recommendations
to the board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the
external auditor; ptanning wath the
external auditor the half-year review
and full-year audit programme,
Including agreement as to the nature
and scope of the external audit as
well as the terms of remineration in
the context of the overall audit plan,
monitorng the ongong effectiveness
of the external auditor; monitoring the
objectiveness and independence of
the external auditor;, and approving
and monitoring any non-audit
services undertaken by the external
auditor, together with the level of non-
audit fees

The following sections descrbe the work
of the Committee dunng the year ended
28 February 2023,

Review of Financial Statements
The Committee moniters the integrity
of the Company’s Financial Statements
and has reviewed the presentation of the
Group's intenm and annual results. As
part of this review, it considered matters
raised by the Group Chief Financial
Officer. together with reports presented
by the external auditor summarising

the findings of therr annual audit and
INterm reviews
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The key areas of estimates and
Judgements considered for the year
ended 28 February 2023 are:

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is
impaired reguires an estimation of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating
units to which these assets have been
allocated. The value-in-use calculation
estimates the present value of future
cash flows expected to arise for the
cash-generating unit The key estimates
are therefore the selection of sutable
discount rates and the estimation

of future growth rates which vary
between cash-generating units ("CGU")
depending on the specific risks and

the anticipated economic and market
conditions related to each cash-
generating unit. Climate change risk has
been taken into account in determining
the underlying nputs used in calculations
used for impairment rewews and is not
censidered to have a material impact on
the value-in-use calculations

The Committee considered the work
done to support the discount rate, the
growth assumpticns and the potential
impact of climate change and are
satisfied these estmates are approprate
The result of this work indicated that the
Goodwil relating to the acquisition of
Naves in 2017 was impaired and further
work was carried out to determine the
extent of that impairment.

Foliowing the completion of this work,
the Committee concluded that an
impairment of £91 milion was required to
bring the carrying value into ine with the
value in use. This work is described n
Note 10 to these Financial Statements

Acquisition accounting

Following the acquisition of Southport
Maritime in December 2022, the far
values of the assets and liabilties
acgurred at the acquisition date were
estimated with the support of a third-
party expert valuer This valuation

of acquired intangibles is subject to
estimation of future cash flows and
the discount rate applied to them
Determination of the useful economic
lives of intangible assets requires
assurnptions about future market
trends and future nsk of replacement or
obsclescence of those assets.
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The Committee reviewed the work of the
third-party expert, the forecast cashflows
and the discount rate applied and are
satisfied that they are approprate The
consideration 1s being treated as post
combination remuneration expense due
to the reguirement for the recipients

to continue working for the business

for a 3-year period. As a result of the
purchase price not being treated as
consideration, the Committee was
satisfied that the appropriate treatmant
was to recognise a gain on bargain
purchase arising from the recognition of
the net assets acquired

Fair value of VertomCory

contingent consideration

The estimate at the balance sheet date
of the fair value of the earnout payments
i3 £14 millon, an increase of £O1 million
fram the estimate In the previous year
The far value of the earnout payments
involves two critical estimates; the

future profitabikty of the combined
business and the discount rate used

to calculate the net present value. The
future profitapilty forecasts are based

on an updated business plan prepared
by the combined VertomCory business
following the first ten months of trading
as a combined entity. The discount rate
was used to calculate the net present
valug which was based on the credit risk
of Vertom Agencies BV following a credit
check performed by management.

The Committege reviewed the
assumptions on future profitability and
considered the most recent budget
provided by the combined VertomCory
business The Committee concluded
that management’s estimates are
appropriate and that the carmying value
of the earncut payment is reasonable

Recoverability of deferred tax assets
The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets I1s reviewed at each reporting
date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered

The Committee considered the
expected future taxabie profits of the
Group and are satisfied that these are
sufficient to allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.
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Share option vesting

The far value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on
the Group's estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will eventually
vest At each reporting date, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of
equity Instruments expected to vest as a
result of the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions.

The Committee s satisfied that the
processes to determine the effect of
non-market based vesting conditions
are appropriate

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables and accrued income

The provision for impairment of trade
receivables and accrued income
represents management’s best estimate
at the Balance Sheet date. Several
judgernents are made In the calcutation
of the provision, primarily the age of the
Invoice, the existence of any disputes,
recent historical payment patterns and
the debtor’'s financial pesition Further
details can be found in Note 22 to the
Financial Statements

The Group reviewed the impact of the
conflict in the Ukrane on the Financial
Staterments at 28 February 2023 to
ascertain if there was any evidence

to suggest that the Group’s trade
recevables may be at a higher risk of
becoming credit impaired as a result of
the conflict There was no evidence of
any matenal impact and therefore, no
impairment allowance was made.

The Committee reviewed management’s
process for determining the provision
and considered the Iikelhood of the
conflict in the Ukraine impacting the
collection of trade recevable and

were satisfied that the judgements

are approprate

Vaiuation of defined benefit

pension scheme

The Group uses an independent actuary
to provide annual valuations of the
defned benefit pension scheme The
actuary uses a number of estimatas in
respect of the scheme membership, the
valuation of assets and assumptions
regarding discount rates, inflation rates
and mortality rates.
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The membership details are provided
by an independent trustee while

the valuation of assets 1s verihied

by an independent fund manager.
The discount rates, inflation rates

and mortalty rates are reviewed by
rmanagement for reasonability. Further
detaills can be found in Note 29 1o the
Financial Statements.

The Committee considered the review
work performed by management in
respect of the estimates made by the
independent actuary and the information
provided by the independent trustee and
are satisfied with the process

L

Revenue recognition

IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts

with Customers” requires judgement

to determine whether revenue is
recognised at a “point in time” or “over
time”, as well as determining the transfer
of control for when performance
obligations are satisfied

The Committee considered the work
done to validate the accuracy of
revenue transactions and 1s satisfied
that management’s Judgement on
the timing of roveriue iccognition 1s
materially correct

Classification and recognition of
specific items

The Group excludes specific tems
from its underlying earnings measure;
rmanagement judgement is required
as to what items qualify for this
classification Each item reported as
specific 1s either drectly related to
acguisitions or not expected to be
incurred on an ongoing basis. Further
details can be found in Note 10 to the
Financial Statements.

The Committee reviewed the
items for reasonableness and
consistency and are satished with
management’s classification

Recoverability of defined benefit
pension scheme net asset

As aresult of actuanal movernments dunng
the period, including an increase in the
discount rate from 265% at 28 February
2022 10 490% at 28 February 2023,

the UK defined benefit scheme 1s in an
actuaral surplus position, net of tax, at 28
February 2078 (measured on an 1AS 19
‘Employee Benefts™ basist of £11 miflon
(28 February 2022 liabilty of £21 million)

The surplus has been recognised

on the basis that the Group has an
unconditional right 1o a refund, assuming
the gradual settlement of Scheme
liabiiities over time until all members have
left the Scheme

The Committec revicwed the terms

of the scherme and the discount rate
used to estimate the value of the assets
and habiiites of the scheme and have
concluded that the recognition of the
surpius was reascnabie.

Assessment of business
combinations

During the year, the Group acquired
the entity Madrid Shipping Advisors
SL Management concluded that the
transaction did not meet the definition
of a business combination, and as a
result, treated the transaction as the
recruitment of a team of brokers with
associated sign on bonuses.

The Committee considered the key
terms of the transaction and the
nature of the arrangement as a whole
As part of the transaction, no assets
were acquired, nor were any llabilities
assumed The Cormmiltee agreed
with management’s view that the
transaction did not meet the definion
of a business cormbination because
the acquired entrty only held service
contracts for key employees and was
a newly incorporated company, set up
specifically for the acquistion

Climate-related risks

Management have considered the
mpact of climate-related risks in
respect of impairment of goodwill, and
recoverability of recevables in particular
and do not consider that climate-related
risks have a material impact on any key
judgements, estimates or assumptions
N the consolidated Financial Statements
The potential impact of climate

change has been reviewed by the Risk
Committee and has been identified as
an emerging risk for the shipping and
energy sectors within which the Group
operates, but not one which is likely to
have an impact on the business In the
short to medium term

The Committee has also assessed the
short-to-medium-term impact relating
to climate change risks and it 1s not
expected that climate-related nsks will
have a material impact on the Group's
short-term financial performance
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Going concern and viability

The Group has drawn up ts accounts on
a going concern basis and the directors
have assessed the viability of the Group
over a four-year period Four years is
used because the Group's revolving
credit faciity will need renewing after this
four-year pernod.

The Committee receved reports to
support these matters and consictered
the assurmnptions made, the sources

of liquidity and funding, the risks and
sensitivities to the forecasts and the stress
tests used, Including the potential iImpact
from the Independent Investigation. The
Committee concluded that the application
of the going concern basis for the
preparation of the Financial Staterents

1$ appropriate. More detall can be found

N the Principal nsks and uncertainties
section of this Annual Report

In June 2023, the toard commissionsed
an internal Independent investigation
into an historical transaction from 2013
The investigation was overseen by an
Investigation Cormmittee chaired by the
Croup's rwon-execUtive Charman and
was conducted by an independent
specialst forensic accounting firm,
and independent external counsel.
The investigation was comprehensive
and complex and ultimately focused
on a review of several of transactions
between 2006 and 2013.

As a result of the investigation, the Group
has recognised a prevision of £20 millon
in relation to the uncertain obligations
connacted to a number of the
transactions and commission obligations
reviewed as part of the investigation.

Of the £20 million, £17 million relates

to historical unsettled commission
ayable, which has been reclassified
from trade payables to provisions

dunng the year While the board cannot
forecast with certanty final outcomes

in respect of these obligations, based

on the Group's current information, the
amount recognised 1S the current best
estimate of the amount required to settle
the obligations at the balance sheet
date, taking into account the nsks and
uncertanties surrounding the obligations,
including interpretation of speciiic laws
and lkelihood of settlement
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Capital reduction and dividend
rectification process

in December 2022, the Company
commenced a preject to research
options for increasing the distributable
reserves available tc the Company In
order to support the Group's stated
progressive dividend policy. The intial
focus was cn short term options that
would increase the distributable reserves
as at 28 February 2023 in order to allow
a final dividend recommendation with
the publication of year end results later
N 2023. A review of these short-term
options identified that charges taken

to retained earnings in recent years for
the impairment of the value of certain
preference shares held by the Company
represented unreaised losses and could
therefcre potentially be excluded from
the calculation of distributable reserves.
Whilst reviewing the possibility that the
impairment losses could be determined
as unrealised losses for the purpose

of measuring distributable reserves, a
broader review of other gains and losses
that had been recorded in retaned
earnings n recent years was carried out

This review identified certain gains that
had been recorded regularly relaling tc
share-based payments charges. The
gains N question araose when shares
were awarded to employees of other
Group companies and the cost of those
shares increased the cost of Investment
of those Group companies and retained
earnings. This review led the Company
to identify that a significant balance
within retained earnings (that was not
previously identified as created by
unrealised gains) was incorrectly used
by the Company N the calcutation of its
distriputable reserves. This meant that
the Company paid several dividends
between 2016 and 2023 without having
sufficient distributable reserves from
which to lawfully pay such dividends Full
detalls of the historic refevant dividends
are set out In the circular posted to
shareholders dated 28 March 2023,

The Company convened a General
Meeting which was held on 18 April
2023 where shareholders voted in
favour of all the capital reduction and
dwvidend rectfication special resolutions
put forward by the board With the
confirmation of the Court, the Company
cancelled its share premium account
and capital redermnption reserve The
Company then applied the sums
resulting from this cancellation reduction
to its distributable reserves.
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Review of the control environment
and financial processes

The audit for the previous year
highlighted weaknesses in some of
the Groug's accounting processes and
rescurces The Committee reviewed
the causes of the weakresses and
the associated control envircnment
and concluded that the Finance Team
dd nct have sufficient qualifhed and
experienced members. A plan was
therefore developed to strengthen the
resources in the Finance team and to
make the changes required to ensure
the weaknesses do not re-occur

The plan s in the process of being
mplemented and additional resources
have been recruited into Finance team,
including a new experienced Group
Financial Controller and additional
qualfied accountants in different areas
within the team Wark 1s ongoing to
strengthen the reguiar review and
financial control processes and Improve
the use of the financial systems available
A particular focus s being given to the
consolidation systern as several of the
weaknesses entified related 1o the
consolidation of the Group's results in
the context of disposals and acquisitions
rather than cngoing trading

This work has identified additional

prior period adjustments reguirad

in the current year to the Financial
Statements as are described in Note 35
and the Committee has reviewed the
reasons why they were not identified
previously This review has provided the
Committee with stronger assurance and
confidence that the improved control
environment will reduce the nsk of simiar
adjustments in the future. The Audit &
Risk Committee is keeping under review
the further process of Improvement to
ensure that the plan 1s continues to be
approprately progressed

Internal independent investigation
The intermal ndependent investigation
referenced In the Chairman's Statement
on pages 5 to 7 highlghted improverments
that were required in the Compliance
function, particularly around ‘Know Your
Customer’ ("KYC”) chacks and ongoing
monitoring. The Group has acted promptly
to address the weaknesses identified and
has implermented new procedures and

an ongoing imgrovement plan
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External audit

BDO LLP was reappointed as external
auditor at the 2022 AGM for therr fifth
year as auditer to the Group. The lead
audit partner at BDO LLP responsible
for the external audit 1s Oliver Chinneck
Oliver was a key audit partner in the
orevious four years but has taken over
the lead role in the current year and has,
therefore, served five years following the
conclusion of the 2023-year end audit

In line with the ndependence
regquirements Oliver should rotate after
five years However following the matters
ansing in the current year audit and

the change in Chief Financial Cfficer,

to maintamn audit quality, the Audit &
Risk Cormmittee wrote to BDO's ethics
partner to request that Oliver’s tenure as
lead audit partner be extended by a vear.
Following review, BDO agreed to the
one-year extension for the FY24 audit
and put in place effective safeguards to
maintan Independence.

The Group has a clear pohcy for the
approval of non-audit services, which
sets a limit on the level of fees for
non-audtt services at 70% of the
exlernal audit fee. The external auditor
is only appointed 1o perform a non-
audit service when doing so would

not compromise the independence
and effectiveness of the external

audit function, and when its skills and
expertise make it the most suitable
supplier. The Group policy for the
approval of non-audit services requires
the Committee’s grior approval of

all non-audit services. This year, the
external audit fee represents 81% of the
total fee paid to BDO LLP (FY22: 219)
The Committee also continues to agree
the scope and related fee for the annual
external audit. The non-audit services
performed during the year related to the
half-year review.

The Committee additionally monitors
the independence of the external

audit function, as well as its objectivity
and effectiveness. through the annual
schedule of meetings {at which it
discusses the auditor’s reports and
performance). through inviting feedback
from those involved with the external
auditor's work across the business, and
through additional meetings between
the Char of the Committee and the lead
audit partner
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Review by the Financial

Reporting Council

The Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”)
carrned cut a review of Braemar’s interim
results for the six months to 31 August
2022 in accordance with Part 2 of

the FRC Reporting Review Operating
Procedures Based on therr review,
there were no questions or queries

they wished to raise with the Company.
They did however highlight tems

where they belleved that the readers

of the accounts would benefit from
Improvements In disciosure which, to the
extent applicable, have been addressed
In the year-end Financial Staterments,

Internal audit

Internal audit is an independent
assurance function which supports
Braemar in improving its overall control
framework. The work of the internal
audit functicn supports Braemar to
evaluate and improve the design and
effectiveness of the nsk management
framework, internal control, and
governance processes. The Audrt & Risk

Committee defines the respensibility and

scope of the internal audit function and
approves its annual plan. Reporting to
the Char of the Audit & Risk Committee
and agmmnistratively to U Group Chiet
Financial Officer, the Head of Internal
Audit and Risk leads the Internal Audit
and Risk Management function.

The Audit & Risk Committee monitors
the delivery of the internal audit plan
throughout the year and provides
chalienge to ensure that management
1s sufficiently responsive 1o any

audit indings

Business functions, processes and areas
farming part of the roling three-year
risk-based Group internal audit plan are
based on assessment of risks to the
business, as described on pages 47

to B3 of this Annual Report The plan s
reviewed and updated at least annualily
to help ensure key Group and new or
emerging risks recelve appropriate and
timely audit focus Updates or changes
to the audit plan, and internal audit
reports, are reviewed by the Audit & Risk
Committec during the year

The Group's operaticnal and functional
management teams are engaged

and involved in the risk assessment
process and in the development of
the internal audit plan by way of the
following activibies

- Fisk Committee meetings to agree
and coordinate compliance, risk
management, and to provide input
into Internal audit activity;

- submission of operational and
financial senior management
cenfirmations that the results of
ther respective business areas are
accurate, that stated levels of debtors
and accrued income are recoverable,
adequate provisions have been
rmade for uncollectible amounts, and
that the business complies with the
Group's position on the UK Bribery Act
and there have been no breaches of
applicable sanctions;

- completion of semi-annual control
self-assessment questionnarres
by all Group entities to help ensure
that adequate controls are In place
Completed questionnaires are
reviewed and discussed with senior
management for ther respective
business areas; and

- suggestions for internal audit activity
are sought from each business
area, and operational and functional
departments.

Audits were conducted this year on
sanctions, Braemar Corporate Finance
and employee expenses, Management
action plans were developed and agreed
with action implementation dates for
identified control gaps or deficiencies
Progress against agreed management
actions from audits is monitored

through reguiar updates to the Audit

& Risk Committee

Risk and internal control
framework

During the year, the Audit & Risk
Committec continued its focus on review
and enhancernent of the Group’s nsk
and internal control framework Brasmar
15 committed to the highest standards of
conduct in all aspects of its business
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In reviewing and improving this
framewaork of policies, processes and
procedures, the directors remained
mindful of the potentially competing
interests of the Company’s stakeholders,
particularly the need to balance

cost, resource, and the interests and
perspectives of clients and other market
participants with the need tc mantain
its reputation for integrity and to comply
with iInternational laws and best practice.
This review, and the Audit & Risk
Committeg’'s ongong responsibilities

N this area, saw the Audit & Risk
Committee involved in

- reviewing the work of the Risk
Committee, particutarly on matters
such as the regular reviews of the
Group's ermmerging and principal risks
and the development of its enhanced
Risk Managerment Framework,

- reviewing and improving the Group’s
framawork of compliance policies
and procedures, Including in relation
to sanctions, bribery and corruption,
conflicts of interest, know your
customer, entertainment, meals, gifts,
tax evasion, anc whistleblowing;

- reviewing the design of a
comprehensive programme of
compliance traning for all staff;

- reviewing the financial reporting
framework and improving the
pracesses for regular reporting of key
financial jJudgements and estimates,
as well as other elements of nisk
management across the business;

- reviewing the Group's IT cyber
security monitering and planning
programme;

- reviewing the Group's insurance
coverage; and

- reviewing the Group's foreign
exposure and hedging strategy

More information on the Group's
emerging and principal risks, including
a summary of the principal risks facing
the Group and how these are managed
can be found on pages 47 to 563 of the
Annual Report

Joanne Lake

On behalf of the Audit & Risk
Committee

15 Novernber 2023



65

Strategic Report i

Report of the Nomination Committee

The prmary responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee are to ensure
that the board and its committees
have the right composition, to lead the
process for appointrents to the board,
and to ensure that the Company has
appropnate plans in place for succession
to the board and senior management
roles The Committee’s terms of
reference can be found In the Investors
section of the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committes comprises
three independent non-executive
directors and 1s chaired by the
Company’s non-executive Chairman,
Nigel Payne Following on from an
extensive reorganisation of the board and
the board committees in the previous
financial year and with the present
board being therefore largely new in
therr roles, aside from the appointrnent
of loarne Lake on T March 2022 (which
the Normination Cormmittee had met and
approved In the previous financial year).
it was not deemed necessary to hold
any review meetings dunng this inancial
year The Nomnation Commttee did
meet in February 2023 to discuss the
appontment of a new non-executive
director to replace Stephen Kunzer.

Board changes

Lesley Watkins stepped down as a
Director with effect from 1 March 2022
and was replaced by loanre Lake
Stephen Kunzer also stepped down from
the board with effect from 31 January
2023 When Stephen stepped down
from the board. the Committee led

the search to appoint a non-executive
director to the board. This search
comprised a review across a wide-
ranging numibser of industry sectors from
both internal and external sources

In considering the optimum criternia and
attributes for this roie, the Committee
considered the existing structure

and diversity of the board and senior
management, the culture of the
organisation and the focus of the
Group's future strategy The Committee
agreed that it was important to add
incremental skills to the board. In May
2023 the Committee was delghted

to recommend Cat Valentine for
appointmeant to the board, Cat was duly
appointed to the board for a three-year
term subject to annual re-election by
shareholders with effect from 16 May
2023 In June 2023, the Committee was
pleased to recormmend the appointment
of Grant Foley as Group Chief Financial
Ofhcer Grant joined the board with
effect from 1 August 2023, more detail
on his appointment can be found in my
Staterment on pages 5 to 7 Nick Stone
left the business on 31 July 2023 and on
behalf of the board, we thank Nick Stone
for his contributions and wish him well
for the future

Succession planning

The Nominaton Committeg’s succession
planning has two key areas of focus.
firstly. to ensure that the board has the
right combination of skills, experience,
knowledge and ndependence; and
secondly, to ensure that the Company
has plans in place for orderly succession.
This Includes the development of a
diverse talent pipeline for the Company's
senicr management and more broadly
across the Group The Committee
manages the former through its ngorous
and formal approach to new board
appontments and regularly challenges
the directors to consider the size and
compaosition of the board and the
appropriate range of skills and balance
between execulive and non-executive
directors through an evaluation process

The Committee manages the second
area through the review of the succession
plans in place for senior management
across the Group As part of this, the
Committec challenges the executive
directors and senior management across
the business to present detailed insights
into the organisational structures and
personnel profiles of the businesses and
how they look to develop key talent and
mitigate succession rigk.
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More information on how the Company
Invests N the training and development
of its people can be found on pages
34 to 45 of this Annual Report. Where
necessary, the Company also considers
how best to fill potential vacancies with
external candidates

tn both of these areas, the Committee
ensures that the directors and senior
management remain mindful of the
Group's diversity policy. Braemar
recognises the importance of diversity n
all respects, including (but nat limited to)
gender, skills, age, experience, ethnicity
and background The Cormmittee believes
that diversity and an inclusive culture are
important contributors to a company’s
ability to achieve its strategic objectives
and deliver long-term, sustainable
success. As at the date of this Report,
approximately 26% of the Group's
Executive Committee and its members’
direct reports are female (FY22: 10%) and
three of the seven board positions are
occupied by female board members
More information on the Group's policies
and approach on diversity can be found
in the “Culture and values” section earlier
in this Corporate Governance Report and
in the EPSG Report on pages 24 to 45 of
this Annual Report

Board evaluation

The board carries out regular self-
evaluaticns to monitor and Improve

on its performance and address any
weaknesses. As with the prior vear, it was
decided that the formal annual evaluation
could be effectual without the need for
any external facilitation, with the process
being led by the Charrman with the
assistance of the Company Secretary. An
important component of this process was
the completion of a set of questionnaires
by the directors tc record ther views on a
range of matters and to act as a catalyst
for broader feedback The Commitice
has considered the actions from the
evaluation exercise conducted in 2022 At
the tme the evaluation was carried out,
most of the directors were new to the
poard and it was therefore agreed that
an evaluation should be carried cut the
fcllowing year once the Doard had been
working together for a substantive period
time The Chairman continues to work
with the other directors and the Company
Secretary to Improve the effectiveness of
the board and its Commitiees

Nigel Payne
On behalf of the Nominaticn Committee
15 November 2023
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

On behalf of the board, | am pleased to
introduce the Directors’ Rermuneration
Report for the year ended 28 February
2023 Asin past years, the first section
of this intreductory statement details
the work of the Committee together
with our remuneration philosophy, which
remains unchanged. | will then go on

to describe how we paid our executive
directors in the year in the context of
Company performance, and to introduce
the remuneration items for which we
are seeking shareholder approval at our
2023 AGM. This year this includes the
three-yearly renewal of cur Directors’
Remuneration Policy.

The Remuneration Committee
and its work

The Remuneration Committee 1s
appointed by the board and cormnpriges
three independent non-executive
directors. The non-executive Chairman
15 nat a memper of the Committee
The Committee i1s chaired by Elizabeth
Gooch and its terms of reference can
be found in the investors section of the
Company's website The Committee's
main responsilities are to:

~ determine the policy and framewaork
for executive remuneration;

- set the remuneration for the executive
directors, the Chairman and the
Group's senlor management;

- review remuneration and retated
policies for employees across the
Group, and

- approve the design of, and determine
targets for, performance-related
ncentive schemes and/or equity
participation schemes across
the Group

In discharging these responsibilties,
the Committee may call for iInformation
and adwvice from advisers inside and
outside the Group. During the year,

the Committee tock advice from the
Charman of the board, the Group
Chief Executive Officer. the Group Chief
Operating Cfficer. the Group Chief
Fnancial Officer and the Company
Secretary, who all attended various
meetings at the invitation of the
Committee, but did not participate in any
decision making, nor were they present
for any discussions, regarding

or affecting thelr own remuneration

The Committee received independent
remuneration advice from FIT
Remuneration Consultants LLP “FHT” on a
range of matters within the Committee's
rermit, for which fees of £32679
(excluding VAT and disbursements

and calculated on a time-spent basis)
were charged dunng the year. FIT

are mambers of the Rermuneration
Consultants Group and, as such,
voluntarily operate under the Code

of Conduct in relation to executive
remuneration consutting in the UK.

FIT was also engaged to provide

advice In relation to the operation of

the Company’s share plans, and the
Committee 1s comfortable that the FIT
team continues to provide objective and
independent advice
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Remuneration philosophy

The Committe’s approach to executive
remuneration remains unchanged

The pay structures In our sector are
atypical compared with the norm

of executive pay. However, they are
proven to work within Braemar as well
as being accepted practice across

the shipbroking sector and other
commission based businesses. The
board carefully analysed whether the
business would be better served by a
non-shipbroking CEO and COO and
unanimously concluded that it would not

The Committee 1s focused on retaining
our executive drectors and appropriately
incentivising them to deliver shareholder
value, whilst also being mindful of best
practice and market trends (including
the guidelines of investor bodies) In
FY23. the Committee worked within the
existing shareholder approved policy to
reward our executive directors.

Our framework 15 based on five
core principles

R M PO the
success of our business Is entirely
dependent upon the experience
and skills of cur employees and
management team, the specialist
advice they offer, and the relationships
that they develop with our clients.
The structures, designs and quantum
of our remuneration arrangements
must be sufficient to allow us to retan
our team and compete In highly
competitive global talent markets.

i D R

T TP
— FAPE

.t oo we seek to pay no
rmore than is necessary and also
ensure that a substantial portion of
executive reward is aligned to both
prohtability and delvery of strategy
In line with our competitors, we
operate profit sharing arrangements
for those Individuals engaged in
broking activities
. . f B our
executive remuneration structures
must be clear and understandable for
participants and other stakeholders,
. ‘ L owe
align long-term rewards with the
long-term value of our shares through
share ownership guidelines and
share-based remuneration
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: we ensure that
remuneration drives the right
behaviours to support our strategy
and reflects our values, including
the identification and mitigation of
any risks that could anse from our
ncentive plans

Our performance in FY23 and

our review of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy

As more fully detaled in the Chairman’s
introduction to this Annual Report, FY

2022/23 was a second year of very
strong performance for Braemar:

- We achigved record revenue
(F152 9 millon) and record
profitability (£201 million underlying
operating profit)

- The Group's cash generation has
also been strong

- We mantained our progressive
dividend palicy with total dividends
per share for the year of 12 pence,
a 33% increase over the prior year
dividend of 9 pence per share.

- Our share price performance
remained strong in FY23, our TSR
grew by 251%, which compares
favourably to the performance of the
FTSE SmallCap (ex IT) in the same
period {minus 41%).

The Committee believes that the
performance of the Company 15
testament to the strong execution of
our clear strategy which is focused on
our core shipbroking activities This has
been the strategy of the business since
January 2021 when our Group Chief
Executive Officer. James Gundy was
appointed, with his combined role as
both leader of our shipbroking business
and CEQ

Performance and reward in FY23
Given the postive Group performance
and shareholder experience in the year,
the Committee approved bonuses for
our CEQC of £295 millon and for our
COO of £125 millon.

Strategic Report

FY23 was also the end of the three-year
performance pencd for the Long Term
Incentve Plan “LTIP” awards granted in
July 2020 These awards vested in full
as the relevant performance measures
were satisfied The underlying operating
profit for the previous Shipbroking
Division and Group EPS reported for the
pericd to 28 February 2023 were higher
than the maxirnum target as explained
further in this Report

Before confirming the cutcomes

for FY¥23 annual bonuses and the

LTIP vesting referred to above, the
Committee considered the nature of
the matters which were investigated
following the financial year end and
which necessitated the delay of the
Annual Report publication and the
related suspension of the Company’s
shares from trading The Committee
determined that the nature of the
rmatters investigated should not mpact
incentive plan outcomes given both ther
historical nature and the steps taken by
the current management team to rectify
and resolve these i1ssues when they
became apparent.

Review of our Directors’
Remuneration Policy

In preparing for the renewal of our
Directors’ Remuneration Policy by
shareholders at the 2023 AGM, the
Committee reviewed the operation of the
policy and its continued ability to support
the Company in executing Its strategy
and to drive performance which will
benefit our shareholders

The Committee acknowledged that the
structure of remuneration packages
designed n this way differs from the
norm for most UK PLCs, However, the
Committec also concluded that the
impact of the policy, which reflects the
norms and practices of the shipbroking
Industry, had been significantly

to shareholders’ bencfit since the
appointment of our CEQ and COO and
therefore it was unanimously agreed that
the policy should be continued
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In short, the rationale for maintaning the
current remuneration package structures
for our executive directors is that:

- The maodel whereby our CEO and
COOQ are paid on a continuing
basis for their shipbroking business
activities has served the Company
well since lames’ appointrment
as our CEQ in January 2021 and
Trig’ appointment as our CO0 In
August 2021

— The board believes it is in the interest
of all stakeholders to retain the
services of James and Tris

- By maintaining the current pay
arrangements for James and Tris, we
are maintaining the integrity of ther
packages from before they |oined the
board and honouring commitments 1S
at the core of Braemar’s values.

For completeness, we are making

two changes to the operation of

James’ bonus which we consider to

be appropriate foliowing the last two
years' demaonstration of his combined
PLC CEC and leading broker role These
changes have clanfied that the intially
expressed annual cap for James’ brokers’
bonus (£4 million per annum) is not
relevant (this 1s, we believe, 1s shown

to be the case by this year’s bonus
outcome which 1s beneath this level
despite the strong performance) We will
also remove the underpin requirement
on the first £425000 of bonus which
required specific consideration of Group
performance before that amount could
te paid. Our practical experience of

the way James approaches his role has
demonstrated that he appropriately
bhalances both overall Group activities
and personal front-ine broking work to
the benefit of all stakeholders

Other changes to our policy are
highlighted in the intraduction to the
remuneration policy section of this
Report These nclude certan changes in
remuneration practice previously advised
to sharehciders (for example, changes in
our policy of having a portion of bonus
outcomes deferred into shares).
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Implementation of our policy

in FY24

In short, our intention s for our Directors’
Remuneration Policy to continue to apply
consistently in FY24. This will involve

the following

: the base salaries of
our CEC and COO will remain frozen
at the same levels as appled In FY23,

-~ ' our CEQ and CCO will
again participate in the brokers’ bonus
which 1s driven by the profitability
of the broking desks and their
respective contributions towards this
In addtticn, part of the COO's bonus
will be jJudged against non-financial
metrics (relating to his leadership
of Group central functions and
leadership on acquisitions and other
strategic projects); the weighting of
nen-financial metrics for the COO
will likely vary year tc year depending
on the needs and pnorities of the
business Our COO plays a key role in
identifying, developing and delivering
opportunities for the business to
grow through strategic hires and
team acquisitions which complement
our core business. Successful and
prudent pursuit of such opporturites
will benefit our sharehelders in the
iong-term by adding further resilience,
strength and depth to cur business

-~ ot we will again operate our
LTIP plan in FY24, with each of our
executive Directors receiving an LTIP
award over shares worth up to 100%

of base salary

Applying a consistent approach to our
pay arrangements provides clarity to our
executive directors and has over time
led to both our CEQ and COC building
significant shareholdings in the Company
(shares worth almost five-times salary
for the CEO and shares worth almost
three-times salary for the COQ, reflacting
FY23 year-end share prices). This
provides very clear aignment of interests
between our executive directors and

our shareholders

In early 2023, following a benchmarking
exercise, the Chairman's fee was
reviewed and from 1 March 2023
INcreased to £135000 (F108000 in FY23).
This was the first increase of the Chair's
fee since 2019 and no other changes
are proposed to NED fees for FY24

As announced on 20 June 2023, Grant
Foley joined the Company on 1 August
2023 as Group Chief Financial Officer,
with Nicholas Stone standing down on
31 July 2023. Detalls of the new package
arrangerments for Grant and of Nick’s
leaving terms are surmnrmansed later in
this Report.

Format of the Report and matters
to be approved at our 2023 AGM
The remainder of this Report comprises
two sections

1. Our proposed new Directors’
Remuneration Policy This is
being proposed for approval oy
shareholders at the reconvened 2023
AGM and If approved will take effect
from the date of the reconvened 2023
AGM and may apply for a period of
up to three years, unless a different
policy is approved by shareholders i
the interim; and

2 The Annual Report on Remuneration,
which sets out the details of how
our policy was iImplemented
during FY23 and the decisions
taken in relation to the prospective
application of the policy in Fy24.
The Directors’ Remuneration Report
{comprising beoth the annual report
on rermuneration and this introductory
staterment) will be subject to an
advisory vote by shareholders at
the AGM
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We trust that our shareholders will
recognise the outstanding year of
performance delivered by cur exacutive
team and vote In favour of the
resolutions to approve the new Directors’
Remuneration Poficy and the Directors'
Remuneration Report at our 2023 AGM

Finally. the Cormmittee would like to

put on record its thanks to our former
Committee member, Stephen Kunzer,
for his work and his contribution to the
business of the Committee Stephen
stepped down as a member of the
Committee on 31 January 2023 With
respect to other membership changes,
I am delghted te welcome Cat Valentine,
who was appointed to the board in
May 2023 and to the Committee at
the same time. More detalls on Cat's
appointment can be found in the
corporate governance statement on
pages b4 to &7,

Elizabeth Gooch

On behalf of the Rermuneration
Committee

15 November 2023
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Remuneration Policy

This part of the Report sets out the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy (the “Policy”) as determined by the Remuneration Committee.

The Policy will be submitted to the 2023 AGM for shareheolder approval If approved by shareholders, the Policy will formally take
effect from the date of the reconvened 2023 AGM and will apply for three years beginning with the date of its approval. uniess a
new policy 1s presented in the interim.

How the Policy was determined and changes from the 2020 Policy

In preparing the Policy for approval at the 2023 AGM, the Committee has approved a number of changes These all reflect the
reality of changes in remuneration practices at the Company since the approval of the previous Directors” Remuneration Policy at
the 2020 AGM, together with matters that have been advised to our shareholders In subseguent Directors Remuneration Reports
The changes accordingly reflect the following:

o T o Lesi = James Gundy, our CEO, tock up his role In January 2021 and Tris Sirmmonds,
our COQO, took up h!S role In August 2021 These executives perform dual roles as both (1) the typical roles of a listed company
executive director, and (i) being leading operational executives in the core shipbroking business James and Tns have held these
roles in the core shipbroking business for several years Inline with the Directors’ Remunreraticn Policy In force at the time of
their appointment as executive directors and as both James and Trig were internal appomntments, they have maintained the pay
structures which they participated in prior to their appointments to the board. The proposed new Policy therefore includes these
structures, principally the “Brokers’ Bonus”, In which both James and Tris will continue to participate

- e boue s st s et e en oy 1 — As we explained in the 2022 Directors’ Remuneration Report, during the
prior year we rewewed our pollcy on deferral of vanable remuneration for brokers in which relatively high amounts of total annual
bonus outcomes were being deferred Into shares each year resulting in a negative impact on the iquigity of the Company’s
stock Whilst still recegnising the benefits of algnment to the longer-term expernience of sharehclders, we reduced bonus
deferral requirements across shipbroking in order to address this liquidity 1ssue. The policy was amended to defer 5% of brokers’
annual lbenus outcomes as opposed to the previous 10% However, we maintained the 10% deferral for our executive team.
These ongoing deferral requirements will be reflected in the new Policy.

— Lt

The Committee 1s satisfied that all of the proposed changas in the Pnilicy continue to align with cur rermuncration philesap! y,
as set out on pages 66 tc 67

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Remuneration Policy continued

Policy table for E

B
)

i - vl

Base Salary

To provide an
element of fixed
remuneration as
part of a market-
competitive
remuneration
package to attract
and retain the
calibre of talent
required to deliver
the Group’s
strategy.

Benefits

To provide

a market-
competitive
benefits package
for the nature and

location of the role,

xecutive Directors

L

Base salaries are determined
by the Committee, taking nto
account

- skills and expenence of the
ndividual,
5ize, SCoPe and complexty
of the role,
market competitiveness
of the overall remunegration
package,
performance of the indvidual
and of the Group as a
whole, and
pay and conditions
ekewhere in the Group

Base salares are ncrmally
reviewed annually with changes
effective from the start of the
financial year

Incorporates vanous cashy/
nen-cash benefts which are
competitive In the relevant
rmarket, and which may include
such benefits as a car {or car
alowance), ciub memibership,
healthcare, Ife assurance.
ncome protection insurance. and
rembursed business expenses
(Including any tax lability}

Wrere relevant, other cenefits
on broadly the same terms as
provided to the wider workforce
o t¢ reflect specific indvidual
crcumstances, such as housing.
relocation, travel. or other
expatnate alowances may also
be provided

Any reasonable business-related
SXDENSes can be rembursed
{and any tax thereon met if
determined to be a taxable
banefit)

Executive directors may also
participate N the Company's
Save Ag You Earn ("SAYE")
scheme on the same basis as
other employees and subject 1o
statutory imits
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No material
changes

While there 15 no defined None
maExImurm, salary Increases are

normally made with reference to
ncreases for the wider employee

population

The Cormmitiee retans discretion
1o award larger increases where
considered appropriate, to reflect,
for example

Where an exgcutive director
has had an ncrease in
responsibility

Where an executive director
has been promoted or has
had a change In scope

An individual's development
or performance in role {eg
o align a newly apponted
executive drector's salary with
the market over time)

- Where an executive drector's
salary 1s no longer market
competitive {eg due to an
ncrease in size and complexity
of the business)

Increases may be mplermented
over such time penod as the
Carmittee deems approprate

No material
changes

Benefit prevision, for which None
there is no prescribed monetary
maximurm, 1s set at an appropriate

level for the soecfic nature and

location of the role
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Eral e

Pension

To provide a post-
retirement benefit
to attract and
retain talent.

Annual Bonus

To incentivise and
reward annual
performance
afigned with

the long-term
objectives of
individuals and
the delivery of
strategy.

Deferral

into shares
strengthens long-
term alignment
with sharehoiders.

Tre Committee may offer
participatior n s defined
contribution pension scheme
or provide a cash allowance

Executive directors are eligible
to participate in the annual
bonus at the discretion of the
Committee each year

Where executive directors
undertake broking activities
they rmay, at the discretion of
tre Committee, be eligible to
participate in the Brokers' Bonus
arrangements

The Brokers' Bonus 1s non
contractual and 15 curreritly
calculated as a percentage
of profits from ether personal
and/or desk revenues
dependng or the role fulblled

Where executive directors

do not undertake broking
dtlvilies. they rhay patlicipdle
nan annual bonus for which
appropriate performance targets
are set at the outset of the year
In accordance with this policy

Payout levels for all executive
drectors are determined by
lre Commitiee after year-end

A portion of the annual bonus
wil be deferred into shares
under the Deferred Bonus Plan
"DBPY. described in more detail
in the section below

Clawback provisions will also
apply. as explaned on page 74
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The maximurm contribution for
any executive director will be in
hne with the level available for the
majority of UK employees at any
given tme (currently 5% of salary)

In ing with market practice for
the Comparwy's peers, there is no
cap on ndivickual Brokers' Bonus
awards However, the Brokers'
Benus s funded by broking
profeabity, any therefore any
amount 15 capced by the profits
generated by broking actvities.
as well as the profitability and
financial pesition of the Group as
a whole

Where executive directors do
not undertake broking activities,
the maximum annual bonus
opportunity 1s 100% of base
salary pa

Financial Statements

None

Where executive directors
participate in the Brokers’
Borius. this i1s currently
calculated as a percentage of
profits which, depenaing on
the indmidual’s role may reflect
ether persenal broking and/or
desk revenues

However. the Committee ray
also make a portion of the
Brokers' Bonus for executive
directors subject to the
attainrment of specific non-
financ al or personal metncs

Where executive directors do
not participate in the Brokers’
Borus, the performance
measures appled may be
financial or non-financial.
corporate or individual, and

N such proportions as the
Reruneration Committee
considers appropnate for any
fnancial year

For all executive directors, the
Committee retans discretion
to overnde any formulaic
bonus outcome, If It considers
it approprate to do so, to

take account of overall or
underlying Group or personal
performance or such other
factors as it considers relevant
The Committee may also set
‘gateways” or “underpmns”

for elements of an executive
drector's bonus which must
be attaned before that part
of the bonus 15 paid, should
the Committee consider

this appropriate

No matenal
changes

Clarified the
continued
participation in the
Brokers' Bonus for
those executive
dirgctors who
undertake broking
activities

Clarfied that during
the life of this
Policy. non-financial
metrics may be
apphed for part of
the Brokers' Bonus

Clarfied that where
exscutive directors
do not undertake
broking activities,
they will continue
to participate n a
normal executive
Directors’ annual
bonus, with a range
of performance
measures set
annually

The Committec has
the ability to overrde
formulaic bonus
outcomes for alt
executive directors
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Remuneration Policy continued

L1 R, P MR P e
Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP™)
To provide a Awards are made under the

variable element
which aligns

the reward of all
executive Directors
with long-term
performance
delivered for
shareholders.

2014 Long Term Incentive
Plan ("LTIP"} as approved by

General Meeting

Awards vest subject to
performance measured over a
period of at least three years

Vested awards are subject to
an additional holding period,
which unless the Committee
determines otherwise will run
up to the fifth an~versary of
tre date of grant

All executive directors are elgible

to participate each year at the
digcretion of the Committee

The Zormmitiee retars the
aiscretion to everride formulaic
vesting outcomes downward, if
It considers it appropnate to do
50, to take account of overal or
underlying Group or personal
performance or such other
factors as it congiders relevant

Awards are subject to clawback
provisions, as descnbed in maore

detail on page 74

Shareholding Requirements

Executive directors are regured
to build a shareholding of 100%
of base salary Shares subject
to unvested or vested but
unexercised awards under the

In-employment
shareholding
requirement.

To create greater
alignment between
executive Directors
and shareholders. all cases on a net of tax basis
Executive drrectors will be
required to retain ail of the
shares (net of tax) that vest

under the DBP and the LTIP unul

the shareholding requirerent
15 met

The Committee shall retain
a discretion to waive the

requirerments, in whole or in part,

in exceptional crcumstances
such as cntical liness or
persanal financial hardship
{including dvorce)
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shareholders at the 2014 Annual

DBP and vested but unexercised
LTIP awards rmay be included, in

The usual maximum award
opportunity In respect of

a finarcial year 15 120% of
base salary

However, In crcumstances that
the Comr~ittee conziders to
be exceptional. awards of up
10 200% of base salary may
he made

Not appicable

Mo material
changes

Vesting 18 based on the
achievement of performance
targets set in respect of key
perforrmance measures aligned
to the strategy and shareholder
value (currently underlying
garnings per share)

Up to 25% vests for threshold
performance

The Comrnittee retams
discretion 1o set alternative
measures and weightings
for awards over the Ife of
te Policy

Targets for performance
rmeasures are set and
asseszed by the Comm ttee
Inits discreten

Not applcable No rmatenal change
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Shareholding Requirements continued
Post-employment Executve drrectors are required Not applicable Not applicable Clanfied the
shareholding to mantain a shareholding ntroduction date for
requirement. equivalent to the n employment this policy from the
shareholding requirernent 2020 AGM
To ensure

mrmediately prior to departure
{or the actual share and award
holding on departure. if lower}
for two years post- cessation
Shares subject to unvested
awards under the DBF and
vested but unexercised LTIP
awards may be mcluded, in both
cases on anet of tax basis

continued
alignment of the
long-term interests
of executive
Directors and
shareholders post-
cessation.

The reguirerment will only apply
1o shares vesting under DBP
and LT awards made from the
2020 AGM onwards and will not
apply to shares acquired either
from awards granted before this
date or from shares purchased
directly by the executive director

Discretions retained by the Committee in operating the incentive plans

The Committee operates the Company’s vanous incentive olans accordng to ther respective rules and In accordance with HMRG
rules where relovant To ensure the efficient administration of these plans, the Committee may apply certain operational discretions
Including those described below

Awards under any of the Company’s share plans referred to in this Report may.

- be granted (if at all) at such trmes and within the Imits of the plans and policy as conditional share awards or nil-cost options or
In such other form that the Committee determines has broadly the same economic effect;

- have any performance conditions applicable to them amended or substituted by the Committee if an event occurs which
causes the Committee to determine an amended or substituted performance condition would be mere appropnate and not
matenially less difficult to satisfy Any such changes to performance conditions would be explaned N the subseguent Directors’
Remuneration Report and, if appropriate, be the subject of consultation with the Company’s major shareholders. This ability to
amend or substitute performance conditions will also apply to the annual bonus plan;

- incorperate the nght to receve an amount (in cash or additional shares) equal to the value of dividends which would have
been paid on the shares under an award that vests up to the time of vesting (or where the award is sulyect to a holding period,
release). This amount may be calculated assuming that the dividends have been reinvested in the Compary's shares on a
cumulative basis,

- be setled in cash at the Committee’s discretion and in exceptional cases (for example where there are tax or regulatory issues
which make 1t impracticable to settle n shares. to enable the Company to cash settle part of the award to cover any tax
withholding requirernents or on a change of control at the request of the acquirer); and

- be adjusted in the event of any variation of the Company’s share capital or any demerger, delisting, special dvidend or other
event that may affect the Company's share price

Furthermore, operational discretions are alsc retained as descried in the polcy table above and in respect of.

- determining the extent of vesting on the assessment of performance;,
determining "good leaver” status, the extent of vesting and related deterninations in the case of share-based plans or the
annual bonus;

- determining the extent of vesting and/or exchanges under share-tased plans in the event of a change of control and cther
material corporate events;

- approving arrangements to meet tax withholding obligations and in respect of exercise periods and processes;

- weighting of performance measures and setting targets for the annual bonus and LTIP from year to year, and

- inthe case of DBP awards only {cther than the CSOP element) the redesignation of conditional awards to nil-cost options and
vice versa
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Bonus deferral

A portion of the annual bonus will be deferred into shares under the DBP, the latest plan rules for which were approved by the
Company's sharehelders at the 2021 AGM Such awards will vest, unless the Committee determines otherwise. after three years
from the date of grant, subject to continued employment with the Group.

For executive directors, the Company’s policy is to defer 10% of annual bonus outcomes each year under the DBP.

The Committee may determine that DBP awatrds are made in conunction with the Company Share Option Plan (*CSOP”) to enable
UK tax resident individuals to benefit from the growth in value of the shares subject to the awards in a tax-officient manner In such
cireurnstances, when DBP awards are granted, a corresponding market value option will be granted under the terms of the CSOP,
the maximum, aggregate face value of which may be up to E6C,000. The ophons will vest on the same terms as and on the same
date as the corresponding DBP awards Under the terms of a CSOP, no ncome tax or employee’s or employer’s National insurance
contributions will be payable, on exercise, on the growth in value of the shares The number of shares in respect of which the

DBP awards will vest will be reduced 1o take account of the gain in value, as at exercise, of the corresponding CSCP options.
CSOP awards would only be made in conjunction with the DBP as described above, and not on a stand-alone basis

Clawback
Under the DBP and the LTIP, the Committee may reduce the number of shares subject to unvested awards and/or impose further
conditions on unvested awards {effectively "malus™) and/or require payments in cash or shares be made in certain crrcumstances

which include.

- amatenal misstatement or restatement of any financial results of the Company,

- amatenal failure of nsk management by the Company or a relevant business unit;

- senous reputational or inancial damage to the Cempany or a relevant business unit as a result of the particpant’s misconduct
or falure of supervision;

- the discovery of facts that could have ted to the dismissal of the participant prior to the vesting of the award,

- an error of caleulation;

- the Company sufferng corperate falure. or

- such other exceptional crcumstances as the Committee considers relevant

These terms may also apply n the case of the cash element of the annual bonus.

The relevant recovery periods are until the time of vesting of the relevant award in the case of DBP awards and at any time prior
to the second anniversary of vesting or payment of the award (as relevant) in the case of awards made under the LTIP and in the
case of the cash element of an annual bonus.

Performance measures and target setting
As set out in the policy table, the Brokers’ Bonus 1s non-contractual and is currently calculated as a percentage of profits
frorm ether personal and/or desk revenues depending on the role fulfilled A portion may alse be subject to non-financial or

personal metrics

The annual bonus where executive directors do not participate in the Brokers' Bonus 1s typically based largely on the financial
performance of the Group during the year When setting the financial performance targets each year, the Committee considers
a number of facters including the board's business plan Targets will be appropriately stretching and aligned to delivery of the
Group's business plan and strategy.

Performance measures and targets for the LTIP are determined by the Committee to reflect the Group's strategy and to align
exccutive drectors with long-term value creation for shareholders The Committee sets long-term performance targets that require
approgriately stretching levels of parformance, taking into account internal and external expectations

Existing remuneration arrangements

The Committee reserves the right to make any remuneration payments and/eor paymenits for loss of office (including exercising
any discretion available to it in connection with such payrments) notwithstanding that they are not in line with the Policy where
the terms of the payment were agreed erther () before this new Policy comes into effect, provided that the terms of the payment
were consistent with the shareholder-approved Directors’ Remuneration Policy in force at the time they were agreed:; or (i) at a
time when the relevant iIndividual was not a director of the Company and. n the opinion of the Committee. the payment was not
In corsideration for the Individual becoming a director of the Company For these purposes, “payments” includes the Committee
satisfying awards of vanable remuneration and, in relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are “agreed” at the
time the award I1s granted
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Hlustration of the Remuneration Policy
An illustration of the application of the remuneration policy for 2023 is set out below. The charts below give an indication of the
level of rernuneraticn that would be received by the executive director in accordance wath the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

£

Minimum performance

Performance in line
with expectations

Maximum performance

Maximum performance plus
50% share price growth

E4667

79%

Minimurm  On-target  Maxdimum

CEQ

Financial Statements

Fixed elerments of remuneration
only (being FY24 salaries,

5% employer pension
contnbutions; plus an

estimate for 2023/24 cenefits)

E4.905

10%

75%

i
5

Max with
growth

Minimum

£1,345

On-target

Mo annual benus award

For participants i1 Brokers’
Bonuses, the average of
the last 2 year's bonuses

For the CFO, 50% of base salary

For participants in Brokers' Bonuses,
the in fine with expectation bonus
plus 50%

For the CFC, 100% of salary

E2233

8%

62%

B6%

A

Maximum

Max with
growth

COO

Minirmum

No vesting

25% of maximum award vesting
{equralent 1o 25%% of salary} for
achieving expected performance

100% of maximum award vesting
{equivalent to 100% of salary) for
achieving maxmum performance

100% of maximum award vesting
feqguvalent to 100% of salary) for
achieving maximurn perfermance
plus hypothetical share price growth
of 0%

£993 P

£587

(%%

28%

Max with
growth

On-target  Maximum

CFO

Soe Proe Growh

!\*'; Fixezcd . Anra Booos . Langg werm o entw;
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External appointments

The Committee recognises that executive directors may be invited to become non-executive directors In other companies
{including at the request of the Company). Such additional external appointments should not be undertaken without the prior
approval of the board The Committee will consider whether a Director should be permitted to retain any fees paid for such service

on a case-by-case basis.

Policy tahle for the Chairman and Non-executive Directors

link to strategy

A v T U S S S P LY
To provide market- The remuneration of the Chairman is determined by the While there is no maxmum fee No material changes
appropriate fees to Corimittee and the rernuneration of the non-executive level fees are set considerng
recruit and retain directors is determined by the board {(excluding the non-
individuals of the executive Drrectors) Market practce for

comparative roles,
Feas are normally reviewed on an annual bass - the tme commitrment and

e the Ch ve CF th i duties involved, and
Where the 2Irman s a Nnon-execUlive Chairman, they wil the reaurremaent to aftract and

receve a single fee encormpassng afl dutes, Where the retain the quality of indviduals
Company has an Executive Chairman, they may be eligble
for addtional elements in line with the executive director
polcy table

calibre required to
deliver the strategy.

required by the Company

Non-executive directors recelve a basic fee and may also
recelve additiznal fees for Committee or other board duties

Fees are payable n cash, although the Company rnay retan
the nght to make payment in shares

Expenses reasonably incurred in the performance of the role
may be reimbursed or paid for drrectly by the Company, as
approprate, Including any tax due on the bonefits

A non executive Charman and non executive directors do
not participate n any of the Group's bonus arrangemernits,
share plans or pension schemes

Approach to recruitment remuneration

In respect of the appointment of a new execulive director. the overall approach of the Committee would be to provide
remureration arrangements sufficient to facilitate the appointment of iIndividuals of sufficient caliore to lead the busness and
deliver the strategy, whilst seeking to pay no more than it considers necessary to secure the reguired talent.

The Committee would normally seek, as far as practicable, to align the remuneration package with that set out In the policy table
for executive directors. Base salary would be set at an appropriately competitive leval to reflect skills and experience and, where
considered appropriate, ray be set at a level which allows future above-average salary progression to reflect performance in role.
If the individual was UK based, pension contributions or a cash allowance in lieu of pension would be payalie at a rate not greater
than that available to the majonty of the UK workforce. Currently this is 5% of salary Participation in the annual bonus and the LTIP
would be In ine with the structure and maximum opportunities set out I the policy table, other than as referred to below

Where an indhadual forfeits remuneration arrangerments with a previous employer as a result of appointment to the Company,
the Committee may offer compensatory payments or awards to buy-out the awards forfeited and so faciitate recrutment Such
payments or awards could Include cash as well as performance and non-performance related share awards, and would be in
such form as the Committee considers appropriate considering all relevant factors such as the form, expected value, anticipated
vesting and timing of the forfeited remuneration There 1s no Imit on the value of such buy-out awards. but the Committee's
irtention is that the vaiue awarded would be no higher than the estimated value forfeited. Such awards may be made under the
Company’s existing annuat bonus, DBP and LTIP plans or under arrangements established under 94 2(2) of the Listing Rules.

Where an executive director s appointed from within the Group, any legacy arrangements may be honoured mn ine with the oniginal
terms and conditions, Similarly, if an executive Director 1s appointed foliowing an acquisition of or merger with another compariy,
the Committee may determine that legacy terms and conditions are honcured

The remuneration package for a newly appointed Charman or non-executive director would be i ine with the structure set out in
the policy table for the Chairman and non-executive directors
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Service contracts and letters of appointment

The policy for executive directors is for them to have roling service contracts that provide for a notice period by either party.

The notice period may range between six and twelve months The Company may terminate the executive directer's contract by
making a payment mn lieu of notice of the unexpired notice period equivalent to a valus comprising salary, pension and contractual
benefits There 1s no provision In any of the service contracts of the executive directors for any ex-gratia payments

A non-executive Charman and non-executive directors are appointed pursuant to a letter of appontment The policy 1s that non-
executive directors are appointed for an intial term of three years which may be extended for further three-year penods on the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee and with the board's agreement, subject to annual re-election at the AGM The
non-executive drrectors Jetters of appointment are to be terminable on one month's notice from erther party

Executive Appointment date Notice period
Grant Foley 1 August 2023 6 months
James Gundly 10 November 2020 6 months
Tris Simmonds 21 July 2024 6 months
Non-executive

Elizabeth Gooch 21 July 201 1month
Joanre Lake 2 February 2022 1 month
Nigel Payne 6 Aprit 20241 1month
Cat Valentine 16 May 2023 1 month

Loss of office payment policy
In the event that the employment of an executive director 1s terminated, any compensation payable will be determired in
accordance with the terms of the service contract as well as the rules of any share or incentive plans

In the event of termination, the following will normally apply:
Ag set out above in the previous section, the Company may terminate empioyrment by making a payment in

leu of notice of the unexpired notice perod which shall compnse base salary, pengion entitlerments and other
contractual entitiements (or an amount N leu of thermn)

Payment in lieu of notice

There is nc automat.c entitlement in respect of the year of cessation, although the Coremittee retams the
discretion to make an award for good leavers. taking nto account the circumstances of departure Any such
award would remain subject to performance and the maximum opportunity would normally be reduced pro
rata to reflect the period of the year worked

Annual bonus

If cessation oF erployment is by reason of death. ll-health. inry o disability {cersfied to the satisfaction of the
Committee). retirement, redundancy or the employing entity no longer being part of the Groug, unvested DEP
awards shall vest in full (subject to the normal reduction if the corresponding CSOP eption 1s exercised) on the
onginal vesting oate. unless the Committes decides to accelerate vosting

DBP awards

If cessation of employment is for any ot~er reason. then the Committee retans discretion to apply good leaver
treatment To the extent the Committee does not exercise this discretion. unvested and vested but urexerased
DBP awards wil lapse in full
LTIP awards If cessation of employrent 1s by reason of deat~ inury. disabiity o li-health {certifiad to the sansfacton of
the Committee) the employing entizy no longer belrg part of the Group or at the d scretion of the Committee
any other reason. unvested awards will continwe and vest on the normal vesting date, unless the Sommittee
decides to accelerate vesting

For all other reasons, unvested awards will lapse on cessation The extent to which unvested awards vest In
these croumstances will be determined by the Committee. taking 1nte account the extent to which the orginal
perfarmance conditicns are satsfied and, unless the Committec determines cthenwse, the penod of bme that
has elapsed since the award was grarted until the date of cessation

Vested but unexercised awards held on cessation ordinanly remain exerasable for a imited penod

For LTIP awards which have vested at tme of cessation but have not yet been released from a holding period,
the vested awards will continue and ordinarily be released on the onginal release date

In the event that a buy-out award 's made on recruitment, then the relevant leaver provisions would be determined at the tirme of
the award
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The Committee reserves the right to make any other payments in connection with a director’'s cessation of office or employment
where the payments are made in good faith, In discharge of an existing legal obligation (or by way of damages for breach of such
an obligation} or by way of settlement of any claim ansing in connection with the cessation of a drector's office or employment
Any such payments may include, but are not limited to, paying any fees for outplacement assistance and/or the director’s legal
and/ar professional advice fees In connection with tharr cessation of office or employment

Remuneration arrangements across the Group

The Group operates in a number of different sectors and geograghies and therefore remuneration practices vary widely across
the employee population Differences in remuneration practices for executive directors, senior management and other employees
in the Group generally reflect differences in market practice taking into account role, seniority and geographical location The
Committee 1s alsc mindful of the ImMportance of executive remuneration being aligned and progortionate with wider remuneration
practices and policies at all levels across the Group

Remuneration arangements must be capable of attracting, retaming and engaging the calibre of talent needed to delver the
strategy in the specific talent markets in which the Group competes The involvement of employees in the Group's performance
15 encouraged through participation in incentive plans, appropriate for the markets in which the Group operates. In particular, our
shiphbrokers, Including any relevant executive directors, may participate in commissicn-based profit-shanng arrangements which
reflect market practice in industry peers. Alignment with shareholders through share ownership is widely encouraged through
participabion in share-based mcentive schemes.

When making decisions In respect of the executive director remuneration arrangerments, the Committee takes into consideration
the pay and conditions for employees throughout the Group, including levels of salary increase and the operation of key
incentive plans

Engagement with shareholders

The Commitee remains committed to and encourages open and constructive dialogue directly with shareholders The Committee
monitors investors’ views, best practice developments and market trends on executive remuneration. The Company encourages
shareholders to contact the Committee Chair with any questions regarding the Policy Sharehclders also have the opportunity to
engage with the Committee at the Company’s Annual General Meetings
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Implementation of the Policy for FY24
This part of the Report sets out details of how the Remuneration Committee intends to apply the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
(the “Policy”) to the current Directors in FY24

[
The base salaries for the current executive directors are shown below

Fy23 Fy24

L7000 £000 Change
Grant Foley N/A 326 N/A
James Gundy 475 475 0%
Tris Simmonds 375 3756 0%

1 .
L I PRI
LA i A . B

James Gundy, Grant Foley and Tris Simmonds receive benefits and pension in line with the Policy

Forvbren b

In ine with the Policy, as James Gundy and Tris Simmonds continue to undertake broking activities, they continue to be eligible to
participate in the Brokers’ Bonus arrangements This bonus 1s non-contractual and 1s based on profits generated through brokmg
activities as descrbed in the Policy

The annual bonus for Tris Simmonds will additonally have an element subject to the attanment of non-financial metrics,
depending on the needs of the business which can reflect the Group's strategy and operational cbjectives for the year, including
driving efficiencies and growth across the Group

The annual bonus for Grant Foley s based on a comiination of performance measures linked to Group financial performance and
the achievernent of the Group's strategy and operational objectives for the vear. In FY24, Grant Folay's participabon will be on a
pro-rata basis

A portion of the annual bonus awarcled to the CEQ, CIMO and COO will ke deterred into shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan, and
the deferral level will be at 10% of bonus outcome,

The board believes annual bonus targets to be commercially sensitive and, consequently, does not publsh details of them on a
prospective basis However, it will consider a fuller disclosure on a retrospective basis when it reports on the performance against
therm In the following year's Annual Report

The Committee proposes 1o grant LTIP awards to our executive directors for FY24 at normal policy levels of 100% of salary
{although on a pro-rata basis for Grant Foley). All awards will take the form of nit cost options to acquire ordinary shares of 10 pence
each in the Company following a three-year vesting period subject to meeting the performance critena set by the Commuttes and
the rules of the LTIP. More detail on the performance metrics and targets will be disclosed in the related arnouncement when the
awards are made. Any vested awards will be subject to a further two-year holding period

iy . . oo b ot

Curing the year. the Committee reviewed the Chalrman’s fee and this was increased to £135000 with effect from 1 March 2023

A summary of NED fees is set out In the table below.

FY23 FY24

£000 £°000
Chairrnan fee 108 136
Non-executive director fee 5 50
Audit & Risk Committee Char fee 10 10
Remuneration Committee Char fee 10 10
Committee membership fee! N/A 5

1 Cat Valentine recerves an adamional fee of £5.000 for her membershiz on the Remuneration and Audnt & R sk Co~mittces
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Implementation of the Policy in FY23
This secton sets out detalls of the remuneration cutcormes in respect of the year ended 28 February 2023, Those sections that

have been audited have been dentified below

N R

The rermuneration of the executive Directors in respect of FY23 is shown in the table below (with the prior year comparative).

James Gundy Nicholas Stone Tns Simmonds”
Fy23 Fy22 FY23 Fy22 FY23 Fy22
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £000
Base salary” 450.0 42560 250.0 2600 333.3 1458
Benefits” 26 36 1.6 22 27 21
Pension® 229 213 126 12.5 16.7 73
Annual bonus® 2,950 12480 0.0 440 1,250.0 2600
LTIP- 678.1 4790 484.4 106.0 - -
SAYE 79 - 4.6 - - -
Total 4,115 28770 7531 44.0 1,802.7 40672
Total Fixed 476.5 4499 26441 2647 352.7 165.2
Total Varable 3,636.0 24270 489.0 150.0 1,250.0 2500

1 Tris was appointed as Grous Chief Cperating Gfficer on 1 August 2021 and ris data for 2021/22 represents his remuneration for the year as a drector and does
not include hus remuneration as an employee for his role priar to his promotion His bonus for FY22 in that pernod was the £250.000 arnourt shown above This
corrects a disclosure of £145 000 madein this table last year mn error which had further pro-rated an alrcady pro rated numiper)

lames’ base salary was increased from £425 000 to £475 000 n Septernber 2022 Tris' base salary was mcreased from £250,000 to £375.000 0 July 2022
Benefts imclude private healthcare

Fension includes the value of pension cortrbutions to the Company’'s defined contr bution scheme {or an equivalent cash allowance) in résponse of the
relevant year

5 Annual bonus represents the full value of the annual bonus avarced nrecpect of the reievant inancial year, Including the portion that 1z defered into shares
pursuant Lo the DBP

LTIP represents the value of the LTIP award that vestz inrespect of a perforrance period eraing in the relevart financial year

SAYE represents the gamn on the oxercise of shares purchased through the save as you carn schame

V]

~1

The feas of the non-executive Directors are shown i the table below

Fued fee
FY23 Fyz22
E"00C £000
Lesley Watkins 35 525
Stephen Kunzer 40 425
Elizabeth Gooch 60 -
Nigel Payne 108 80
Joanne Lake 60 -

s oy e . T

In FY23, Elizabeth Gooch and Joanne Lake each receved a fee of £5000 for addittonal work on behalf of the board in the
managerment and resclution of reporting issues which delayed the publication of the FY22 accounts This work irvolved a
significant number of additional meetings in Summer 2022 This £5000 fee was in addtion 1o ther base NED fees and fees for
charing the Remuneration Committee and Audit & Risk Committee respectively

P R P

There were no payments to past directors in the year. A summary of Nicholas Stone's leaving arrangements 1s set cut below

- A payment in lleu of notice, totaling £5183050, was paid i his final salary, inclusive of basic salary and pension
cantrbution entitlernent

~- No bonus was paid in regpect of FY23 or Fy24

- With respect to cutstanding LTIP awards, Nicholas Stone received a payment of £5163050 in lieu of 36,653 vested 2019 LTIP
awards and retained all 156250 vested 2020 LTIP awards, subject to the terms of the LTIP including continued holding periods.
All 2021 LTIP awards (88485) were lapsed in full,

- All outstanding DBP awards and linked CSOP options (55180 i total), which were granted in 2020, 2021 and 2023 were lapsed
in full
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The following bonus payments have been provided for

- James continues to participate n the Brokers' Bonus, which delivered an outturn of £2850000 from a successful year This
represented a percentage of profits derved from personal broking revenues and a percentage of other revenues generated
across the business based on his rvolverment and leadership across afl desks The relevant revenues were then reduced for
agreed costs and an agreed profit share percentage was applied

- Tng bonus delivered an outturn of E1,250000 from a successful year The annual bonus for Trs Simmonds in FY23 was
determined with reference to the successful acquisitions made during the year and revenues of the broking desks across the
Group with a porticn of this revenue allocated to Tris for the purposes of bonus calculation An agreed profit share percentage
was then appled to this calculation.

As disclosed, Nicholas Stone did not recerve a bonus for FY23, accordingly we have not disclosed the onginal profit metrics that
were set for this item.

The Committee granted LTIP awards to James Gundy dunng the period at a level of 100% of salary and an exceptional 200%
of salary award for Tns Simmeoends in his first year as COO The awards have performance criteria based on the Company's
growth in Earmings per Share "EPS”, measured over a three-year performance penod ending on 28 February 2025,

The underlying EPS measure will be adjusted to efiminate 50% of the estimated impact of changes in foreign exchange
rates over the performance penod

The perforrmance targets require a 3-year CAGR growth of 25% or more for full vesting (100% of the award), with threshold vesting (26%
vasting of the award) at 15% CAGR For attaining 3-vear growth boetween these points, vestng will be pro-rata on a straight-ine basis

B . . . : ior . i
[ s : P i Lt

- The 2020 LTIP awards were granted in July 2020 and were based on performance over a three-year performance penod
ending 28 February 2023 against the following adjusted EPS targets set when the award was granted. 25% vesting for
underlying EPS of 30 pence in FY23 (the final yvear of the performance penod for the award), nsing on a straght-ine basis for
100% vesting for adjusted EPS of 42 pence

As James Gundy's award was granted prior to his becorning Group Chief Executive Officer, his award also included a performance
condtion Inked to the underlying operating profit achieved by the previous Shipbroking Division. with 35% of the award vesting

by reference to underlying EPS (with the same thresholds as Nicholas Stone’s award) and 85% vesting by reference to the
components making up the previously reported Shipbroking Division's underlying operating profit achieved in FY23 (the final year
of the performance period for the award) with 25% of this portion vesting for underlying operating profit of £138 million nsing on a
straight-line basis for 100% vesting for underlying operating profit of £18 milion

With an undertying EPS outturn of 4312 pence and a Shiplroking Division underlying operating profit outturn of £25 67 milllon. the
vesting outturn for each of Nichclas and James was 100% The awards that vested are now subject 1o a two-year holding penod,
following which they will be released and become exercisable.

s . .
st

Under the shareholding guidelines, executive Directors are required to build and retain a shareholding in the Group at least
equivalent to 100% of their base salary.

Non-executive directors are not subject to a shareholding guideline The following table sets out the shareholdings (including by
connected persons) of the directors in the Company as at 28 February 2023. This shows that James Gundy and Tns Simmonds
have met the shareholding guideline

Number of shares Shareholding

benehciaily held at asa %

28 February 2023 of salary’ Guideling met
Executive directors
James Gundy 772165 515% Yes
Nicholas Stone 14500 17% No
Tris Simmonds 348447 279% Yes
Non-executive directors
Stephen Kunzer 10,000
Nigel Payne 8258

Elzabeth Gooch _
Joanne Lake -

1 Sharchaolding as a percentage of salary s calculated using the base salary/fee and the closing share pnce on 28 February 2023
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

The table below provides details of the interests of the executive directars in incentive awards during the year

Awvards Awards
held at Share price Exercised, held at 28 Exercise  Exercisable  Exercrsable
1Mar 2022 Grant date on grant £ Granted released Lapsed Fel: 2023 price £ from [ta}
James Gundy
2008 TP 33,284 290ct18 230 - - N7243 33,2047 - 20May23 290ct28
2019 DBP 194,000 17 lun19 210 - 194,000 - 194,000 - 30 Aug 22 30 Aug?22
2012 LTIP 184,21C 1Jul19 186b - - 18,010 186,200 - 1Jul 24 14ul 28
2019 SAYE 5825 519 180 - 5,625 - - 160 1Aug22 1Feb23
2020 BBP 3861956 9 W20 121 - - - 386195 122 9Jul23 Q23
2020 LTIP 218,750 24 Jul 20 123 - - - 218,750 - 2426 24 Jul30
2021 DBP 189,926 8 lJun2i 268 - - - 189,925 266 8lun24 8lun24
2021 LTIP 300,884 14 jun 21 291 - - - 300884 - lun26 14 Jun3
2023 LTIP - 16 Feb 23 314 164,360 - - 164,360 - 15Feb 28 16 Feb 33

Nicholas Stone?

2019 LTIP 105,263 1)ul 12 18565 - - 68610 36,603 - 1Jul 24 1Jul 28
2019 SAYE 4500 5 Jule 180 - - - 45600 160 1Aug22 1Feb23
2020 DBP 28,245 9 Jul20 1A - - - 28,245 122! 9 Jut 23 9 jul 23
2020 LTIP 1668260 24 Ju 20 123 - - - 156,250 - 24425 24 Jul 30
2021 DBP - 8lun21 266 - - - 25,398 266 8lun24 8 lun?24
2021 LTIP - 14 un 21 201 - - - 88,495 - 1MMlun2zé 14Jlun3H
Tris Simmonds

2019 DBP 50000 17 Juli9 20356 - - - 50,000 200 30Aug?? 15ep?2?
2020 DBP 34511 920 122 - - - 34,61 - Q23 923
2021 DBP 8 Jul 21 286 26 415 - - 26,315 - 8ilun24 8lun24
2023 LTIP - 18 Feb 23 314 2595616 - - 269516 - 1B6Feb 26 16Feb 33

o]

Share price iIncluded s the market price on the date of grant When calculating the number of awards to be made, the Company uses the middie market quotations
for the three trading days pror 1o grant

James Gundy's 2018 LTIP award vested in regard Lo 33,294 sharas on 26 May 2021, wath the remander lapsing The award Lthat vested was now subpect to a two
year holding period which ended on 26 May 2023

Detalls of Nicholas Stoneg’s leaving arrangernents are sel out earlier n this report

Jarnes Gundy ang Nicholas Stone were also given corresponding oplions under the Company Share Option Plan ("CSOP™) uver 24 850 shares, which will vest an the
samae date as the DBP award Tris Simmonds was given corresponding optons under the CSOP over 15,000 shares, which will vest on the same date as the DBP
award The number of shares in respect of which the DBP award will vest will be reduced to take account of any gainin value, as at exercise, of the CSOP options

The performance conditions attached to the cutstanding LTIF awards are as follows

- 2012 LTIP Nichclas Stone's 2019 LTIP award 1s tested solely on adjusted EPS in FY22 (the final year of the performance period

for the award) with 26% vesting for adjusted EPS of 35 pence nsing on a straight-line basis for 100% vesting for adusted EPS
of 46 pence As Jlames Gundy's award was granted prior to his becoming Group Chief Executive Officer, his award included

a performance condition linked to the underlying operating profit achieved by the previcus Shipbroking Division with 16% of

the award vesting by reference to adusted EPS (with the same thresholds as Nicholas Stone's award) and 85% vesting by
reference to the préevious Shipbroking Division's underlying operating profit achieved in FY22 (the final year of the performance
penod for the award) with 25% of this portion vesting for underlying operating profit of £1125 millicn nising on a straight-line
basis for 100% vestng for underlying operating profit of £15 million Detail on the cutturn of these awards 1s set out In the 2022
Directors’ Remuneration Report forming part of the Group's Annual Report and Accounts 2022

2020 LTIP Nicholas Stone's 202C LTIP award is tested sclely on underlying EPS in FY23 (the final year of the performance period
for the award) with 26% vesting for underlying EPS of 30 pence rising on a straight-line basis for 100% vesting for underlymg EPS
of 42 pence As James Gundy's award was granted prior to his becoming Group Chief Executive Officer, his award agan ncluded
a performance condition linked to the underlying operating profit achieved by the previous Shipbroking Diision with 35% of the
award vesting by reference to underlying EPS (with the same thresholds as Nicholas Storne's award) and 85% vesting by reference
to the previous Shipbroking Division's underlying operating profit achieved in FY23 (the final year of the performance period for the
award) with 25% of this portion vesting for underlying operating profit of £138 miillon nsing on a straight-ne basis for 100% vesting
for underlying operating profit of £18 millon Detall on the outturn of these awards 1s set out above

2021 LTIP Both James Gundy's and Nicholas Stone's 2021 LTIP awards had performance criteria based on the Company’s
growth in absolute TSR measured over a three-year performance period ending on 13 June 2024, as follows: the maxirmum
possible opportunity will vest if growth in TSR is equivalent to a CAGR of 22% or more per annum over the three-year
performance period; If CAGR over the performance period is less than 12% per annum, none of the awards will vest; if CAGR

1S 12% per annum, 25% of the award will vest, and if CAGR 1s between 12% and 22% per annum, the vesting outcome will be
calculated on a straight-ine basis between 26% and 100%
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- 2022/23 LTIP: Both James Gundy’s and Tns Simmonds 2022/23 LTIP awards had performance criteria based on the Company's
growth in EPS measured over a three-year performance pericd ending on 28 February 2025 as follows' the maximum possible
cpportunity will vest if growth in £PS is equivalent to a CAGR of 25% or more per annum over the three-year performance
period; if CAGR over the performance period is less than 16% per annum, none of the awards will vest. If CAGR is 15% per
annum, 25% of the award will vest; and if CAGR is between 15% and 25% per annum, the vesting outcome will be calculated
on a straight-line basis between 25% and 100%

R . i P L I A B . £ v ot [P Tk

The following table shows the year-on-year percentage change in the salary, benefits and annual bonus of the directors and the
employees of the Company for FY23 The table also includes a comparison aganst the average for the Group's UK employees for
FY23 compared to FY2Z. The Company considers that the Group's UK employees 1s the more representative comparator group, as
the majenty of the Group's employees are not employed by the Company itself. and as the Group Chief Executive Officer and the
majority of the Group's workforce are UK-based.

% Change n base salary 2- Change in berehts % Change in annual bonus
FY22 to F¥21to FY22to FY21to FY22 to FY21ito
FY23 FY22 FY23 FY22 FY23 Fy22
Al UK employees 12% 8% 0% 0% 104% 13%
All Plc employees 7% 10% 0% -20% 66% 19%
Executive directors
Jarmes Gundy 6% N/A 0% N/A b1% N/A
Micholas Stone 0% 3% 0% 22% - -78%
Tns Simmonds” 50% N/A 0% N/A 194% N/A
Non-executive directors
loanne Lake? N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Lesley Watkins® 0% 0% N/A NFA N/A N/A
Stephen Kunzer 0% 0% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Nigel Payne* 0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Elizabetn Goocht 18% N/A N/A INJA N/A N/A

lames Gundy joned the board on 1 January 2021, so there 1s no pnor year companson in respect of FY20 and Fy21

Tng Simmords was appoitted as Group Chief Cperating Officer or 1 August 2021 se trere 1s ne prior year comparison
Joanne Lake joned the board on 1 March 2022, so there 15 ng pror year compasson

Lesley Watkins resigned on 31 March 2022

Nigel Payne joined the board on 1 May 2027, s0 there s no prof yoar Comparnson

Elzaboth Gooch joned the board on 1 August 2021, s0 there 1s no prior year companson

DO sy

[ T
The table below shows how the Group Chief Executive Officer’s single-figure remuneration for FY23 compares to the equivalent
single-hgure remuneration for the Group's UK employees ranked at the 25th, 50th and 75th percentile

25t 78lh

percentle Median percentle

Year Method pay ratio pay ratio pay ratic
2023 Option A 7441 40:1 18:1
2022 Option A 801 541 211
2021 Option A 211 131 51
25th 75th

percentile Median percentile

pay pay pay

2023 £ E £
Total pay and benefits 55,500 102,000 230,000
Salary element of total pay and benefits 48,500 78,462 120,000
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

The Company has again selected Option A as the method for caleulating the CEO pay ratio Option A calculates a single figure

for every UK-based employee in the year to 28 February 2023 and identifies the employees that fall at the 25th, 50th and 75th
percentiles This method was chosen as it is considered the most accurate way of identifying the relevant employees and aligns to
how the single figure table 1s calculated

The Company has included the following elements of pay in its calculation annual basic salary, allowances, bonuses, share
awards, empfoyer's pension contnbutions. and PTID benefits These pay elements were separated Into recurmng and non-recurnng
compenents The recurmng components were scaled relative to the proportion of the financial year worked by each individual
employee before being added to the non-recurring elements such as bonus and share awards.

This resulted In a single figure for each employee, from which the ndividuals at the 25th, 50th and 75th percentiles could
be identifed

L B oy

The chart below shows total employee remuneration and distributions to sharehclders paid during FY23 and FY22 (and the
difference between the two)

LN

FY23 Fy22 Change

£ milion £ rmilion 1%

Total employvee remuneration 98.3 720 365%
Distributions to shareholders 2 2 0%

ettty (B SLAPEEE R .

The chart below shows the Total Shareholder Return of the Company against the FTSE All-Share Index over the last ten years.
The Committec beloves the FTSE All-Share Index 15 the most appropnate index against which the Total Shareholder Return of the
Company should be measured

2000

1500

10C0

Indexed Total Return

500

2013 2014 2015 2018 2017 2018 2019 2020 2024 2022 2023
— Braemar Plc w= w= = FTSE All-Share

Source Dutastrearn (& Rehnmity nrodact)
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The table below provides remuneration data for the role of the CEO for the current and each of the last ten financial years over the

eguivalent period.

Fvy2t Fvy2Q
Ronald larmes
FY23 Fv2? Series/ Kidwell/ Fyio
James Jarmes James Ronald lames
Gundy Gundy Gundy Seres Kidwell
CEO £'000 £7000 £000 £000 £000
Single total figure
of remuneration 4,112 2830 714 324 404
Annual bonus
(% of maximurn) 74% 49% 34% 10% 0%
LTIP vesting
{% of maximum) 100% 90% 18 0% 0%

Statement of voting at AGM

Fy18 FY 17 FY1g F¥is Fyi4
Jameas James james lames James
Kidwell Kidwell Kiclwell Kidwell Kidwell
£7000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
579 404 577 549 438
50% 0% 60% Bb% 23%
0% 0% N/AY 0% 0%

The following table sets cut the votes cast (Including those cast by proxy) at the 2022 AGM in respect of the Committee’'s Report
for the year ending 28 February 2022 and at the 2020 AGM in respect of the priar Directors’ Remuneration Policy {(which was the
last general meeting of the Company at which a resoluticn was maved by the Company in respect of the Policy).

Voltes
for
Resolution # %
Approval of Remuneration Report for
year ending 28 February 2022 4,348,717 7124
Approval of Remuneration Policy 7823464 9750

Votes

agamnst
Total voles Votes
# A cast withheid
1,755,702 2876 6,104 419 1143182
250 7818850 15402456

195,386

The Committee noted and constdered the voting outcomes for the resolution to approve the Remuneration Report at our 2022
AGM However, as the Company disclosed in the announcement regarding the results of the 2022 AGM, the board considers that
the operation of its remuneration practices are very clearly in the best interests of all stakeholders of the business and that the

Remuneration Committee has discharged its duties property

The board further notes that some of the votes aganst the Directors’ Remuneration Report were cast as a result of "vote aganst”
recommendations being received from certain proxy shareholder advisory services From the Company’s perspective, these
recommendations did not take account of the Company's specific business model and governance structures and were not

informed by any direct engagement with the Company.

The board and the Remuneration Committee encourage an open and constructive dialogue directly with its shareholders and
continue to be wiling to engage with any shareholder on any relevant topics should they so wish, including all remuneration topics

within the Committee’s remit
Elizabeth Gooch

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee
15 November 2023
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Directors’ Report

for the year ended 28 February 2023

Rebecca-Joy Wekwete
Company Secretary

This section contains addmonal Information that the directors are required to include
within the Annual Report Together with the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 53,
forms the Management Report for the purposes of DTR 415R Other inforrmation that
15 relevant to this Directors” Report, and which is ncorporated by reference into this
Directors’ Report, can be found elsewhere in this Annual Report, as follows:

- Results and decisions relating to dividends on pages 5 to 6.

- Important events dunng the year ended 28 February 2023 and likely future
developments in the busingss of the Company or Its subsidiaries on pages S to 7
and 4 to 15.

- Going concern on page 30

- {Greenhouse gas emissions on page 38.

- Employee engagement and diversity on page 43.

- Engagement with clients and other key stakeholders on pages 32 t¢ 33

- Corporate Governance Report on pages b4 to 89

- Section 172 Staternent on pages 32 to 33.

- Risk and compiiance framework review on pages 47 to 53

- Principal decisions taken during the year on pages 2, 14 t¢ 15 and 32 10 33

- EPSG Report on pages 34 tc 45,

- Non-Financial Informaticn Staterment on page 46.

Principal activity

Braemar Plc (registered number 02288034} 1s the ultimate holding Company for
the Braemar Group, a global provider of expert investment, chartering, and risk
managermeant advice to the shipping and energy markets

Review of the business
A more detaled review of the business for the year Is included In the Chairman's
Statement. the Group Chief Executive Officer's Statement and the Financial Review

Amendment of Articles of Asscciation
The Company’s shareholders may amend the Company’s Articles of Association by
special resolution

Branches outside the United Kingdom
The Group has branches and/or representative offices in China. Switzerland and Greece

Change of control - significant agreements

No person holds secunties in the Company carrying special rights with regard to
control of the Company. The Company 1s not aware of any agreements between
holders of securities that may result In restrictions In the transfer of securities or
voting nghts

The Convertible Loan Notes that are summarised below carry certan accelerated
conversion rights In the event of default on iinancial commitments associated with
the mstruments or business distress within the Group The Convertible Loan Notes
shall automatically convert or be redeemed in the event that any person or persons
acting in concert holds more than B0% of the issued share capital of the Group or
an impairment charge in excess of €50 million is reflected in the audited Financial
Statements of the Group.

There are a number of ordinary course of business agreements that take effect,
alter or terminate following a change of control of the Company, but nore of these
are consiclered to have a significant potential impact on the business of the Group
as a whole

Convertible Loan Note Instruments

On 26 Septermber 201/, the Company completed the acquistion of Braemar Naves

A new class of convertible loan ncte Instruments {the “Convertibie Loan Notes™
formed a core part of the consideration for this transaction. The Company has issued
all of the Convertible Loan Notes to be issued in connection with this acquisition, of
which €4.448956 worth remain outstanding.
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These Convertible Loan Notes are unsecured and unlisted. The Convertible Loan Notes are denominated in euros and, as part of
the restructunng, it was agreed that they would carry a 5% per annum coupon from September 2025, increasing from 3% The
conversion prices were fixed at 3803 pence for management note holders and 4503 pence for non-management note holders
For more information on the Convertible Loan Notes, please see Note 27 to the Financial Statements.

Political contributions
There were no political contrbutions dunng the year ended 28 February 2023 (2022 £nil).

Share capital and voting rights

As at 28 February 2023, the Company’s total 1Issued ordinary share capital was 32,924 877 shares of 10 pence each {28 February
2022 32200279 shares) All of the Company's shares are fully paid up and quoted on the London Stock Exchange plc's Official
List The nghts and obligations attaching to the Company's ordinary shares (as well as the powers of the Company's directors and
any rdles relating to therr appeintment and replacement) are set out in the Company’s Articles of Association, copies of which can
oe found online at Companies House, or by writing to the Company Secretary. There are no restrictions on the voting nghts or the
transfer restrictions attaching to the Company’s issued ordinary shares

At the AGM held on © August 2023, shareholders passed a resclution to renew the directors’ authority to allot shares in the
Company. Further detalls are provided in the Notice of the AGM.

Share schemes
Detalls of long-term incentive schemes are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 72

Purchase of own ordinary shares

The Company 15 authonsed to make market purchases of the Company’s crdinary shares pursuant to the authority granted by its
shareholders at the AGM held on 2 August 2023 This authority will expire at the end of the 2024 AGM The Cormpany dig not use
this authenty in either the year ended 28 February 2022 or the year ended 28 February 2023

The directors proposed that this authonity be renewed at the 2023 AGM in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association
and this resolution was passed. In accordance with the ABI Investor Protection Guidelines, the maximum number of ordinary
shares which may be acquired under such authority is 10% of the Company’s issued ordinary shares. The directors will only make
a purchase of shares using this authority if It is expected to result in an ncrease in earnings per share and will take Info account
other avalable Investment opportunities, appropriate gearng levels and the overall position of the Company. Any shares purchased
In accordance with this authority will subsegquently be cancelled

Options and ESOP Trust
The total number of options to subscribe for shares in the Company that were outstanding as at 28 February 2023 was 2,754.003,
beng 836% of the issued share capital

Duning the year ended 28 February 2023, 2,795000 of the Company’s ordinary shares were purchased by SG Kleinwort Hambros
Trust Company (Cl) Ltd, as Trustee of the Company’s ESOP Trust (2022:2 740184). The Trustee had absolute discretion and
independence in respect of any trading decisions it made i respect of these purchases. As at 28 February 2023, the ESOP held
3579630 shares,

Directors and their interests

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Directors’ Report arg shown on pages 58 to 59 Lesley Watkins served as
a director of the Company during the year ended 28 February 2023 and until 31 March 2022 Stephen Kunzer also served

as a director of the Company during the year ended 28 February 2023 and until 31 January 2023, Nicholas Stone alsc

served as a director of the Company until 31 July 2023

The directors’ beneficial interests in the ordinary shares and share options of the Company as at 28 February 2023 are disclosed
in the Directors’ Rernuneration Report on page 81 There have not been any changes in such interests between 28 February 2023
and 31 October 2023

As at 28 Fepbruary 2023, the executive directors, In common with other employees of the Group, also have an interest In 357¢,630
{2022: 25669837) ordinary 10 pence shares held by SG Klenwort Hambros Trust Company (Cl) Ltd on behalf of the Employee Share
Ownership Plan and in 62,290 (2022 62.290) ordinary 10 pence shares held by Computershare Trustees (lersey) Limited on behalf
of the ACM Shipping Limited Employee Trust

The directors held no matenal interest In any contract of significance entered by the Company or its subsidianes dunng the year
ended 28 February 2023

Dunng the year. the Company mantaned cover for its directors and officers and those of ts subsichary companies under a
drrectors’ and officers hability msurance policy, as permitted by the Companies Act 2006
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Significant shareholdings

As at 28 February 2023, the Company was aware of approximately 334% cof its ordinary shares being held by Group employees
and the ESOP Trust The working vendors of Braemar Naves Corporate Finance GmbH currently hold £€44489568's worth of
Convertible Loan Notes.

As at 28 February 20232, the Company was aware of the following significant direct or indirect shareholdings of 3% or more

Percentage

of mgued

Number of ordinary

Name shares share captal
SG Kleinwort Hambsros Trust Company (Cl) Limited as Trustee of the Braemar Shipping Services Plc ESOP 3,641,220 1.06%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management 2871688 872%
Interactive Investor 2357228 716%
Quentin Soanes 1,288,990 391%
Barclays Wealth 1,186,936 360%
Nationa! Financial Services 1127906 343%
Magnus Halvorsen 1,000,000 304%

1 Percertages are shown as a percentage of lhe Company's total voting nghts as at 28 February 2023

Financial instruments
The Group's financial risk management cbjectives and policies are set out In the Corporate Governance Report on pages 58 to 5/

and in the Strategic Report on pages 47t 53,

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing this Annual Report and the Group and Company Financial Statements in accordance

with applicable laws and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and Company Financial Statements for each financial year Under such law,
they are required to prepare the Group Financial Statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity
with the Companies Act 2008 Under the Financial Conduct Authority's Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules, Group Financial
Staternants are required to be prepared in accordance with UK adopted IAS and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Under company law. the directors must not approve the Group Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and far view of the state of affarrs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and the Company for that
period.

In preparing these Financial Staternents, the directors are required to.

- select sutable accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estmates and
Errors and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- present information, including accounting policies, In a manner that provides relevant, retable, comparable and
understandable information:

- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs 1s insufiicient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group's financial posttion and
financial performance,

- Inrespect of the Group Financial Statements, state whether UK adopted IAS and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
have been followed, subject to any maternal departures disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements:

- inrespect of the Parent Company Financial Statements, state whether UK adopted IAS in conformity with the Companies Act
have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the Financial Staternents; and

- prepare the Financial Staternents on the gong concem basis unless it 1s appropriate to presurme that the Company and the
Group will not continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
and Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial postion of the Company and the Group and enable
them to ensure that the Company and the Group Financial Staternents comply with Section 403 of the Companies Act 2006
They are responsible for such intermal controls as they determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Staterments
that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general resporisibility for taking such steps as
are reasonably open 1o them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and datect fraud and other rregularities
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Under applicabie law and regulations, the directors are alsc responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Cirectors’ Report,
Directors’ Remuneration Report and corporate governance statement that complies with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the mairtenance and integnty of the corporate and financial nformation included on the
Company's website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statemenits may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the annual Financial Report
Each of the directors, whose detalls can be found on pages 58 to 58, to the best of therr knowledge confirm that the

- consoldated Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with UK adopted IAS and the requirerments of the Companies Act
2006 give a true and far view of the assets, labilties. financial position and profit of the Parent Company and undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a wholg;

— Annual Report, Including the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report, together includes a farr review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and undertakings included in the consolidation taken as & whole,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face,

- Annual Report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group’s positicn and performance, business model and strategy.

Disclosure of information to the auditors
In accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 20086, each person who is a Director at the date of approval of this Annual

Report confirms that

- sofar as the director is aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, and
- the director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
inforrmation and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Forward-looking statements

Where this Annual Report contains forward-looking statements, these are based on current expectations and assumptions

and only relate to the date on which they are made These statements should be treated with caution due to the nherent nsks,
uncerlainties and assumpticns underlying any such forward-looking informatiocn The Group cautions investors that a number of
factors, Including matters referred to In this Annual Report, could cause actual results to differ matenally from those expressed or
implied in any forward-looking statement. Such factors include, but are not imited to, those discussed on pages 47 to 53 of this
Annual Report.

Forward-looking statements in this Annual Report include statements regarding the intentions, beliefs or current expectations of
our directors, officers and employees concerning, among other things. the Group's results, financial conditton, lquidity, prospects,
growth, strategies and the business Neither the Group, nar any of the Directors, officers or emplayees, provides any representation
assurance or guarantee that the occurrence of the events expressed or implied in any forward-looking statements in this Annual
Report will actually ocour. Undue refiance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements. Other than in accordance
with cur legal and regulatory obligations, the Group undertakes ne obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking
statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Appointment of the auditors
In accordance with Secticn 489 of the Companies Act 2008, a resolution for the reappointment of BDO LLP as auditor of the
Company was proposed and passed at the AGM held cn 9 August 2023

Annual General Meeting

The 2023 AGM of the Company was held on € August 2023 at the Company's offices; anly those resolutions that did not relate
to the 2023 Annual Report and accounts were dealt with and the meeting was adjourned to a later date The reconvensd AGM
will e held at 10 am on 18 December 2023 at the Company's offices at One Strand. Trafalgar Sguare. London, WC2N BHR

The recenvened meeting will deal with resolutions 11o 4 {(inclusive}, as set out n the Notice of Meeting that was sent to
shareholders on 17 July 2023

By order of the board
Rebecca-Joy Wekwete

Company Secretary
15 November 2023
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Independent auditor’s report

10 the members of Braemar Plc

Opinion on the Financial Statements
In our opinion:

- the Financial Statements give a true and far view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affars as at
28 February 2023 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

- the Group Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards;

- the Parent Company Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepled Accounting Practice; and

- the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 20086

We have audited the financial staternents of Braemar Plc (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiares (the "Group”} for the year
ended 28 February 2023 which comprise:

Composition Financial reporting framework

Group - Consoldated Income Staternenit Applicable law and UK adopted international
- Consoldated Statement of Comprehiensive Income  accounting standards.
- Consolidated Balance Sheet
- Consoldated Staternent of Changes in Total Equity
- Consolidated Cash Fiow Statement
- Notes to the financial statements, including &
summary of significant accounting policies

Parent Company - Company Balance Sheet Applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
« Company Statement of Changes in Total Equity Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
+ Notes to the financial statements, ncluding a 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (Urited Kingdom
surmmary of significant accounting policies Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with inlermalional Slandads on Audliting (UK) (1I5As (UIK)) and applicablo law. Qur
responsizilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audrt of the financial statements
section of our report We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaned 1s sufficient and approprnate to provide a basis for our
opinion Our audit cpinion 1s consistent with the additional report to the Audit & Risk Committee

e o e

Following the recommendation of the Audit & Risk Committee, we were appointed by the board of drectors on 2 October 2018
to audit the financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2019 and subseguent financial pericds The perncd of total
uninterrupted engagement 1s five years, covering the years ended 28 February 2019 to 28 February 2023 We remain ndependent
of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied tc Isted public nterest entities, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requirements The non-audit services prehibited by that standard were not
provided to the Group or the Parent Company.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the

preparation of the financial statements 1s appropnate Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group and the Parent

Cornpany’s abillity to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

- Evaluating the directors’ going concern assessment and forecasts, Including assessing the underlying base case cash flow
forecasts by obtaining supporting decuments, mcluding current forward order book and considering other impacts such as.
- geo-political conflict on the business and the shipping INdustry;,

- current economic maters,

- climate-change, and

- the impact of the legally privieged ndependent intermal investigaticn (lect by independent external legal counsel and
supported by independent forensic accountants) (the “Internal Investigation”) and associated share suspension, both of
which were announced by the directors on 26 June 2023;

- Evaluating the stress tests performed by the directors, (ncluding addiional stress tests and sensitivities dentified by the
directors following the Intarnal Investigation and impact of the matter disclosed in Note 28 1o the financial statements) to
determine whether they are appropriate based on our knowledge of the business and industry and whether further stress tests
should be performed,

- Reviewing the reverse stress test forecast to assess the point at which covenants would be breached or a hquidity
event triggered.

— Considering the directors’ conclusion that the likelhood of the reverse stress case scenario matenalising is remote and the
ability of the directors to undertake further miigating actions that are within their control should this be required:
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- Assessing the Group's covenant compliance calculations (actual at year-end and forecast post year-end) with the terms of the
facility agreement,

- Assessing the post year end covenant waivers received from the prowvider of the banking facilities following the delay n approval
of the financial statements,

- Assessing the impact on the barking facilties as a result of the findings of the Internal Investigation and observing covenant
waner correspendeance;

- Assessing the mpact of prior period adjustrments on retrospective covenant compliance submissions; and

- Assessing the financial statement disciosures regarding gong concern to determine whether they are complete and accurate

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any matenal uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
Individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group and the Parent Company's ability to continue as a going
concern for a pencd of at least twelve moriths frorm when the inancial staterments are authonsed for 1ssue

In relation to the Parent Company’s reporting on how It has appled the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing
matenal to add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement In the inancial statements about whether the directors

considered It appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting

Our responsibilities and the responsibiities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.

Overview
Coverage 93% (2022: 98%) of Group revenue and 98% (2022 95%) of Group total assets
matters 1. Acquisition of Southport Maritime Inc v
2. Disposal of Cory Brothers Division”® v
3. Cut-off on revenue recogniton and comgliance with the requirement v
of IFRS 15 revenue recognition**
4. Imparment of goodwill in respect of the Corporate Finance Division v
(Naves) Cash Generating Unit ("CGU™)
5 Accounting treatment of certain legacy transactions subject to Internal v
Investigation
Ihe sceounting treatment for the disposal o Cory Brothers Diasion 15 ne longor corsidered to be a key audit matter for the 2023
audit on the basis that the transacucn completed in 2022
* Cut-off on revenue recognition 1s no longer considered to be a key auds matter duc to reduced assessed rizk in the currert year
Materiality Group financial staterents as a whole

£901000 (2022 £450000} based on 5% (2022 5% ) of underlying profit before tax

An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group has diverse international operations. Qur Group audit was scoped by obtaning an understanding of the Group and
its ervironment, including the Group's system of Internal control, and assessing the nsks of matenal misstatement In the Financial
Statements. We also addressed the risk of management overrde of intermal controis, ncluding assessing whether there was
evidence of bias by the Directors that may have represented a rnsk of material risstatement

We designed an audit strategy to ensure we have obtained the required audit assurance for each component for the purposes of

our Group audit opinien Components were scoped N to address aggregation nsk and to ensure suficient coverage was obtained
of group balances on which to base our audit opinion
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Bracimar Pic

v

For the work performed by component auditors, we determined the level of involvement needed In order tc be able to conclude
whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been cbtaned as a basis for our opinion on the Group financial staterments as a
whole Our involvement with component auditers included the following:

Significant components - We focussed our Group audit scope primanly on the audit work at four significant components

including the Parent Company, which were subject o full scope audit procedures

= The signihcant components comprnse 79% of Group Revenue and 77% of Group assels

- The Group audit team audited two significant components with the Singapore and Australia
components boing audited by local BDO momber firms n the respective countries

= The Group audtt team issued the Group instructions, oversaw the risk assessment process and
the overall audit approach and strategy with the component auditors at the ptanning stage. The
Group audt team performed remote reviews of the significant components working papers The
Group audt tcam attended several virtual conference meetings with the component auditers
throughout the planning, fieldwork and completion stages of the audit

Other full scope audits and - There were three components for which full scope audits were camed out in order to provide
Specified audit procedures additional audt coverage
+ There were two further components which were considered for specified audit procedures
+ Specified audit procedures were performed to address the nisk of matenal misstatement Imited
o the significart nsk in relation to revenue recognition and certan other financial statement areas
within these components. All other balances were sceped in for analytical review procedures.
+ The additional full scope audits and specific scope audit testing was performed on components
that contribute an aggregate of 14% of the Group revenue and 21% of Group assets
+ These procedures were performed by a compoenent team within BDO LLP, a BDO member firm
N Germany and a UK non-BDO Member firm The Group audt team directed the work for the
specified procedures through the 1ssuance of detaled instructions, bnefings and performing a
review of selected working papers

Remaining components - The remaining 17 components were scoped In for analytical review procedures to confirm our
conclugion that thels were 1o signilicant nsks of matenal misstatement N the aggregated
financial Nnformation

- Certan financial staterment areas of the 17 components were subject {0 unpredictability testing

All of the analytical reviews were completed by the Group audit team or BDO member firs

.

[
Cur work on the assessment of potental Impacts on climate-related nsks on the Group's operations and financial

statements included

- Enguines and challenge of management to understand the actions they have taken to identify climate-related risks and their
potential impacts on the financial staterments and adequately disclose climate-related risks within the Annual Report,

- Cur own gualtative risk assessment taking into consideration the shipping sector in which the Group operates and how cliimate
change affects this particular sector;

- Review of the minutes of board and Audit and Risk Committee meeting and other papers related to chimate change, and

- We challenged the extent to which chimate-related considerations, including the expected cash flows, where appropriate, in the
directors’ going concern assessment and viability assessment

We also assessed the consistency of management’s disclosures included as ‘Statutcry other Information” within the Annual
Report (ncluding the disclosures in the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures ("TCFD") section) within the financial
staternents and with our knowledge obtained from the audit Our responsibility over other information s further described in the
Reporting on other information section of our report.

Based on our risk assessment procedures, we did nat identify there to be any Key Audit Matters matenally impacted by
chmate-related risks
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Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgement. were of most significance In our audit of the Financial
Statements of the current penod and include the mest significant assessed nsks of matenal misstatement {whether or not due
to fraud) that we identified. Including those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources
IN the audrt, and directing the efforts of the engagement team These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Financial Statements as a whole, and In forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

Key audit matter

Acquisition
of Southport
Maritime Inc.

{See Note 14 and the
accounting policy in
Note 3a)

Impairment of
goodwill in respect
of the Corporate
Finance Division
(Naves) Cash
Generating Unit
(“CGU”)

(See Note 15 and the
accounting policy in
Note 3k)

On 16 of December 2022, the Group acquired
the entire share capital of Southport Martime inc
("Southport”) The purchase price amounted

to £66 milion in up-front cash (subject

to claw backs) and £25 milion in deferred
consideration in the form of shares of Braemar
Plc. All consideration is subject to future
employrment conditions

In line with IFRS 3 Business Combinations the
Group 15 required to record identifiabie assets
and liabilties at far value.

The purchase price aliocation parformed
requres significant judgement and estimates,
specifically in refation to the valuation of
acquired Intangble assets Changes in these
assumptions may have a matenal impact on
the far values. Due to all consideration being
contingent on future service, and therefore
treated as remuneration, the farr value of
consideration was £nil resuiting N a gain

on bargan purchase being recorded i the
consolidated iuine slatement ot £38 milhon

Key assumptions were particularly noted in the
cash flow forecast and discount rate.

There Is alsc a nsk that the disclosures are not
complete and accurate

Due to the matters described. we considered
this business combination and in particular the
purchase price allocation as a key audt matter

Due to the reducton in revenue and proft,
rmanagerent identified a potential iImpairment
of the corporate finance CGU

Management have assessed imparrment
using a value in use madel which requires a
number of assumptions and estmates

The impaiment review identified an
imparrment of £91 millon.

Key assumptions in the impairmant review
include short term revenue growth rates,
earnings marging, long term growth rates and
discount rates

For these reasons we considered this area as
a key audit matter
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How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter

Qur procedures included

- Review of the share purchase agreerment and
confirmation of key terms including confirmation that
all consideration was subject to future employrment
conditions;

- With the support of our internal valuation experts
and through interactions with the management
teamn of Southport, we assessed the completeness
of ntangble assets Identiied appropnateness of
valuation methodologies utiised and assessed the key
assumptions Including revenue growth rate and discount
rate applieq,

* Recalculating the gain on bargain purchase recorded
in the consclidated income staternant based on the
consideration and net assets acquired,

- Obtaining supporting evidence for all other rmaterial
acquired assets and liabilities, on a sample basis, other
than for cash which was tested in total, and

- We have also assessed the note disclosure (Note 14)
under the requirements of IFRS 3 for completeness and
accuracy

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed. we are satisfied
that the acqguisition accounting for Southport meets the
requirements of IFRS 3 and that the disclosures comply
with the requirements of the accounting framewaork.

Our procedures included

- Challenging management's assumptions in respect of
the cash flow forecasts including cbtaining supporting
documents for revenue growth such as current pipelire,
considenng historc forecasting accuracy, analysing
industry trends and using our knowledge of the business;
Challenging management on any significant changes in
assumptions from pricr year, including changes to short
term revenue growth rates, earnings margins, long term
growth rates and discount rates;

+ Utilising our own internal valuation experts to assess
the adequacy of the discounts rates and long-term
growth rates appled, and to assess the mechanics and
mathermatical accuracy of the value in use models, and

+ Considering management’s sensitivities and performing
our own sensitivities where considered necessary in
respect of the key assumptions.

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed. we are satisfied that
the assumptions made by management in the imparrment
review are appropriate and therefore also that the
Imparment recognised 1s within an acceptable range
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to the members of Braemar Plc

Key audit matter

Accounting
treatment of
cettain legacy
transactions
subject to Internal
Investigation

(See Note 28,
Charman’s Statement
pages 5 to 7, Financial
Review pages 28 to 30,
Corporate Governance
Report pages 54 to

89 and the Report

of the Audit & Risk
Committec pages

60 to 64)

As announced by the directors on 26 June
2023, with further updates announced on
22 September 2023 and 26 October 2023,
the directors engaged external forensic
accountarts and external legal advisers to
undertake the Internal Investigation, which
ultimately encompassed review of several
legacy transactions,

The 28 June 2023 announcement stated that
the Internal Investigation related to “a particular
transaction of circa $3 milkon, which cnginated
In 2013, and involves payments being made
through to 20177

Following the cormpletion of the internal
Investigation which was announced by the
directors on 26 October 2023, a provision of
£2 0 milicn was recorded on the Consclidated
Balance Sheet as set out in Note 28 The

£20 millon provision results from a £17 million
reclassification from trade payables where
the balance was recorded in the prior year
financial statements. and an addional charge
of £03 milicn to the Consclidated ncome
Staterment charge

There 15 a nsk that the accounting 1s not in ine
with the results of the Internal Investigation,

that further accounting entries are required
such that the provision is not complete and/or
accurate, and that disclosures are not complete
and/or accurate

Our application of materiality
We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements We
consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstaternents, inciuding ormissions, could influence the economic decisions of

reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements

How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures included:

* With the suppeort of our internal forensic specialists,
assessing the nature, scope and objectives of the internal
Investigation to ensure that it was appropriately designed
to address the potential issues raised;

reading the output from the Internal Investigation

Including and considenng management’s assessment

of the assoclated impact on the financial statements

in terms of the appropriate accounting treatrment and

disclosures;

+ assessing associated documents, including minutes of
meetngs held by the Groug's Investgation Committee,
and holding discussions with the firms undertaking the
Internal Investigation;

+ discussing the accounting treatment and quantum of
the provision with management and the Group's extenal
legal advisers; and

- assessing the completeness and accuracy of the
disclosures included in Note 28,

.

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performad, we are satished that
the accounting adopted in respect of the transactions 1s in
compliance wath the accounting framework adopted, and

that the disclosures are complete and accurate based on

the requirernents of the accounting framewaork adopted.

In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that any misstaterents exceed materiality, we use a lower materiality
level, performance materiality, to determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not
necessarly be evaluated as immatenal as we also take account of the nature of identified misstaternents, and the particular
cireumstances of they occurrence, when evaluating therr effect on the financial staternents as a whole

Based on owr professional jJudgement, we determined matenalty for the financial staterments as a whote and performance

matenality as follows:
Qroup
Materiality

£901000 (2022. £45C000)

Basis

Rationale

5% {2022 5%} of underlying profit before tax

Underlying profit before tax is considered the most
appropriate benchmark based on the nature of
the trading business where in our judgement the
stakeholders would be most interested in the
performance of the business and underiying profit
being a key perfermance measure in this regard
We also consider this to be consistent with market
practice and investor expectations
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Parent Company
£810000 (2022 £405000)

Based on 90% (2022; 90%) of Group matenality

Capped materialty at 90% (2022, 90%) of Group given the
assessment of component aggregation risk.
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Further materiality measures applied in the conduct of the audit include:

Measure Application
Performance Group £585000 (2022 £283000) Performance rmatenality was set at 65% (2022: 63%) based
materiality Parent £626000 (2022 £252000) on the history of misstatements identified In the pnor years

and the number of accounts subject to high degrees of
estimation and judgement.

Component The range of materiality used for components Our audit work at each component has been executed
materiality ranged from £430,000 to £810000 at levels of materiality applicable to each ndwidual entity
(2022 £120000 to £405000) based on its size and risk as approved by the Group
audit team and in each case, lower than that applied to
the Group

We set materiality for each component of the Group based
on a percentage of between 48% and Q0% (2022 27%
and 90%) of Group materiality dependent on the size and
our assessment of the rsk of material misstatement of that
component. In the audit of each component, we further
applied performance materiality levels of B5% (2022 62% to
70%) of the component materality to our testing 1o ensure
that the risk of errors exceeding component materiality was
appropriately mitigated

Reporting Group. £18000 (2022 £8,000) All audit differences In excess of the ‘reporting threshold’
threshold Parent. 16000 (2022 £8000) are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee. as well as
' ’ differences below that threshold that, in our view. warranted
reporting on gualtative grounds

Guantitative We also report to the Audit and Risk Commitee on disclosure mafters that we identiied when assessing the
& qualitative  overall presentation of the financial statements
disclosures

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the nformation included in the Annual
Report other than the financial staternents and our auditor's report thereon Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in cur report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s
matenally Inconsistent with the financial staternents or our knowledge obtaned in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears

to be matenally misstated. If we identify such matenal nconsistencies or apparent matenal misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives nise to a maternal misstatement in the financial statements themselves If based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaterment of this other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directors’ statement in relatton to going concemn, longer-term viability and that part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Parent Cormpany’s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have conciuded that each of the following elerments of the Corporate
Governance Statement 1s matenally consistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtaned during the audtt

Going concern and The directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of
longer-term viability accountng and any matenal uncertanties identified set out on page 52, and
» The directors’ explanation as to ther assessment of the Group's prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why the period is appropriate set out on page 106

-

Other Code provisions - Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 88;
+ Board's confirmation that it has carmed out a robust assessment of the emerging ana prncipal 1sks
set out on page 49;
- The section of the Annual Report that descnbes the review of effectivenass of fisk management and
nternal control systerms set out on page 84, and
+ The section describing the work of the Audit & Risk Committee set out on page 60

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023



06

Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Bracmar Plc

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting
Based on the responsibilities described below and our work performed during the course of the audit, we are required by the
Companies Act 2008 and ISAs (UK) to report on certain opinions and matiers as descrbed below

Strategic report and In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

Directors’ report * the information given In the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
- the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applcable
legal requirements.

In the hght of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Cormpany and its
environment obtancd M the course of the audit. we have not identified matenal misstatements in the
strategic repert or the Directors’ report,

Directors’ remuneration  In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 20086.

Matters on which we We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
are required to report 2006 reguires us to report to you i, In our opinion:
by exception + adeguate accountng records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or retums adequate for

our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

+ the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directers’ Remuneration Report to be
audited are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

+ certan disciosures of directors rernuneration speched by law are NOL rade. or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for beng satished that they give a true and far view, and for such internal control as the directors determine 1s
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company's ability to
contnue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicabie, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to iguidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no
realstic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whele are free from materal
rmisstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but 1g not a guarantee that an audit conductead in accordance with ISAs (UK} will always detect a material
rnisstatement when it exists Misstaterents can anse from fraud or error and are considered material if, indvidually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these iinancial statements

Irregulanties, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above. to detect material misstatements in respect of iregulanties, inclucing fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting rregularities, ncluding fraud is detaled below

- We gamed an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which it
operates. through discussion with management and the Audit and Risik Committee and our knowledge of the industry,

- We focused on significant laws and regulations that could give rise to a matenal misstatement in the financial statements,
including. but not limited to, the Companies Act 2006, the UK Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority, UK adopted
international accounting standards for the Group and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accourting Practice for the Parent
Cormpany, Health and Safety legislations, the Bribery Act 2010 and tax legislations;

- We considered compliance with these laws and regulations through discussions with management, and in-house legal counsel,
reviewing internal audit reports and discussing with the Audit and Risk Committee Our procedures also included reviewing
minutes from board meetings of those charged with governance to identify any instances of non-compliance with laws and
reguiations as well as attending Audit and Risk Committee meetings,

- With support from our internal forensic specialists, and pursuant to agreeing an appropnate limited waiver of legal professional
privilege, we read and assessed the report In respect of the Internal Investigation and associated documents, Inciuding minutes
from the Investigation Committee. and held discussions with the firms undertaking the Internal Investigation — our Key Audit
Matter “Accounting treatment of certain legacy transactions subject to Internal Investigation”™ above, contans further details,
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- With the support of our internal tax specialists, we reviewed the Group’s tax computations against the requiremenits of the
relevant tax legislation and where applicable, reviewed correspondences with relevant taxation authorities;

- We reviewed the financial staternents disclosures against the requirements of the applicable accounting framework; and

- We reviewed documentation in relation to the Capital Reduction process that was completed to address the payment of
unlawful dvidends histerically, and increase the Group's capacity to pay future dividends, as disclosed in Note 12,

- With the support of our forensic specialists we assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements to matenal
misstaternent, including how fraud might eccur. We considered the fraud nisk areas to be management override of controls and
revenue recognmon, as well as certain matters ansing from the Internal Investigation We performed a robust nisk assessment and
obtained an understanding of the design and iImplemertation of relevant controls surrcunding the revenue recogniton process for
each revenue stream and the relevanrt controls over the financial reporting close process (FRCP) such as controls over the posting
of journals and the consolidation process and cbtained an understanding of the segregation of duties in these processes;

- In addressing the nsk of fraud including managerment ovarride of controls we tested the approprateness of journal entries
made throughout the year by applying specific cntena to select a sample, verfied to supporting documents and cbtained an
understanding of the business rationale for each of the journal entnes;

- Inrelation to the iImproper revenue recognition fraud nsk, on a sample basis, we tested revenue recognised in relation to new
build and second-hand ship sales by obtaining evidence to support the satisfaction of the performance obligation and that
revenue was recorded in the correct period. We also tested material manual journals that impacted all revenue streams by
obtaining supporting decuments and assessing the business rationale and validity of the journals;

- We performed a detaled review of the Group’s year end adjusting and consohdation entnes and investigated any that appeared
unusual as to nature or amount through inquiry with management on the nature of the adjustment and venfication to supporting
evidence; assessed whether the jJudgerents made and accounting estimates were indicative of a potential bias particularly on
one-off transactions such as the acquisition of Scuthport Mantime Inc which involved judgements and estimates {refer to the
key audit matter section above), Specifically. we considered the facts and circumstances in respect of the intemal Investigation
and accounting referred to In Note 28;

- We also communicated relevant i[dentified laws and regulations and potential fraud nsks to all engagement team members
and component auditors, who were deemed to have the appropriate competence and capabilities, and remained alert to any
indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit;

- The component teams also considered the susceptibiity of the financial statements due to fraud In respect of the relevant
components. Teoting of managernen! uven ide was completed by the component teams through testing the appropriateness of
a sarmple of journal entnes in Ine with the journal testing procedures as detailed above and assessment of risk of management
bias on the signiicant judgements and estimates as detaled in Note 2.

- We applied professional scepticism in our audit procedures and perfermed randomised procedures to nclude a level of
unpredictability, and

- We performed an assessment of the Group's IT and the wider control environment and as part of this work obtaned an
understanding of the design and implementation of IT access controls.

Cur audit procedures were designed (o respond to nsks of materal misstaternent in the financial statements, recognising that the
nsk of not detecung a rmatenal misstaternerit due 1o fraud s higher than the risk of not detecting one resuling from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations or through collusion. There are inherent imitations
In the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-comphance with laws and regulations is from the events and
transactions reflected n the financial statements, the less likely we are to tecome aware of it

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Councils website at www.fre.org uk/
auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part of our auditor's report

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Cormpany’s memibers those
matters we are required to state t© them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law. we
clo not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent Company’s members as a body,
for our audtt work, for this repart, or for the opinions we have formed

Oliver Chinneck (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, UK

16 November 2023

BDO LLP 13 a imited llability partnershio registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127)
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 28 February 2023

Continuing operations

Revenue

Other operating ncome

Operating expense:
Operating costs
Acquisition-related expenditure
Impairment of financial assets’
Imparment of goodwill

Total operating expense

Operating profit

Share of agsociate loss for the year
Finance income
Finance costs

Profit before tax from continuing
operations
Taxation

Profit from continuing operations

Profit net of tax from discontinued
operatlons

Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

Total

Earnings per ordinary share
Basic
Diluted

Continuing operations

Earnings per ordinary share
Basic
Diluted

Notes

10

5,10

b, 10
10

20
8,10
8,10

10, 11

13
13

Underlying
£'000

162,91

(132,598)

(238)

(132,836)
20,075
{23)

19
(2,131)

18,040

(4,841}
13,399

13,309

Underlying

46.22p
38.52p

46.22p
38.52p

28 Feb 2023
Specific
items
£'000

3,846

(3655)
(1,999)
(848)
(9,050)

(12,252)
{8,408)

83
(266)

(8,589)

(214)
{8,803)

(8,803)

Total
£000

152,911
3,846

(132,953)
(1,999)
{1,086)

{9,050)

(145,088)
11,669
(23)

202
(2,397)

9,451
(4,855)

4,596

4598
Total

15.85p
13.25p

15.85p
13.26p

Unclerharg
£'000

131,310

(90,5C3)

(747}
(£1,250)
10,060

{19)

81
(1,237)

8,885

{1.839)
7046

1493
8,639

Underlying

27950
2278p

23.06p
18 790

28 Feb 2022

Spechz
iterms
£°000

(392)
122)

(514)
(514

Total
E000

11,310

(90,885)
(122}
(747)

(21,764)
9,548
{(9)

253
(1,237)

8,643
(1,839}

8,704

>~
)
[&)]

13,919

Total

4556p
3713p

2194p
17.88p

1 The 2022 operating coste have been restates to show imparrment of fnancial aszets separately or the Income statemert Imcarrent of financial assets was

previoushy within ane<ating costs

The accompanying notes on pages 104 to 165 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 28 February 2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(expense)

ftemns that will not be reciassified to profit or loss

— Actuanal gain on employee benefit schemes - net of tax

fterns thal may be reclassified to profit or loss

- Foreign exchange differences on retranslation of foreign operations
- Investment hedge

- Cash flow hedges - net of tax

Other comprehensive income/(expense) from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:
- Share of other comprehensive income/(expense) of associates
- Recycling of foreign exchange reserve

Other comprehensive income from discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

The accompanying nates on pages 104 to 185 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Notes

28

32

11,20

28 Feb 2023

£000
4,596

2,361

2,622
{129)
291

5,050

9,646

28 Feb 2022
£000

13,819

1,318

538

(1,968)

M2}

b2
408

460

14,267
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 28 February 2023

Assets

Non-current assets
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equiprnent
Other investments

Investment in associate
Denvative financial Instruments
Deferred tax assets

Pension surplus

Other long-term recewvables

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Financial assets

Dervative financial nstruments
Current tax receivable

Cash and cash equivalents
Assets held for sale

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Denvative financial instrurments

Trade and other payables

Current tax payable

Provisions

Convertible loan notes

Liakilities drrectly associated with assets classiied as held for sale

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax labilities
Cervative financial Instruments
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Convertible loan notes
Deferred consideration
Pension deficit

Total liabilities

Total assets less total liabilities
Equity

Share caprtal

Share premium

ESOP reserve

Other reserves

Retaned earnings/{defoit)

Total equity

Restated

Asat28Feb Asat 28 Feb

2023
Note £°000
15 1,407
18 3,980
17 5,320
19 1,780
20 701
24 30
9 4,794
29 1,120
21 8,564
97,686
22 43,323
24 -
24 1,224
o973
25 34,735
80,255
177,941
24 1,122
26 57,310
4,141
28 2,575
27 699
65,847
27 29,919
9 344
24 1,022
24 542
28 734
27 2,852
27 -
29 -
36,413
101,260
76,681
30 3,292
30 63,796
*H {(10,607)
32 28,819
1,381
76,681

2022
£000

70,891
007
7078
1,780
724

8
3713

5636
99,827

35792
54

13,964

49,810
149,637

638
39183
1608
488
1416

43,381

28,331

335
797
2765

495
2,082

34,765
78146
71491

3,221
53,030
(8,771)
26130
(4.119)

71491

Restated

Ag at 1 March
2021

£000

83,2560
2128
9,84
1,962
3,763

200
2,900

1,888
106,638

33.416
746
1673

14,11
436

50,282
156,920

17833
1,318
307
4,461
125

54,044

3634
174
56

620
2,681
882
3,819

39,036
93,880
62,940

3174
52510
(1.362)
27100
{18.482)

£2,94C

The Balance Sheets as at 1 March 2021 and 28 February 2022 have been restated for a prior period adjustment, see Note 35 for

mare detail

The Financial Statements on pages 104 to 165 were approved by the board of drrectors on 15 November 2023 and were signed on its

behalf by,

Grant Foley
Group Chief Financial Officer

James Gundy
Group Chief Executive Officer

Braemar Plc Arnual Report and Accounts 2023
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 28 February 2023

Reslated

28 Feb 2023 28 Feb 2022

Noles £'000 £000

Profit before tax from continuing operations 9,451 8,543

Proft before tax from discontinued operations 11 - 8,081
Adjustrnent for

Depreciation and amortisation charges 16, 17 3,364 3483

Loss on disposal of intangible assets 87 -

Net loss on disposal of PPE 20 10

Share scherme charges 4,520 2,894

Net foreign exchange gains with no cash impact (1,157) -

Gain on acquisition of Southport 14 (3,643) -

Gain on disposal of shares in AqualisBraemar 10,1 - (3,375)

Gain relating to disposal of Cory Brothers 10,1 (203) {4134)

Gain on trsposal of Wavespec 10,1 - {£94)

Loss on imparrment of Wavespec receivable 10, 11 - 2,381

Impairment of Naves goodwill 9,060 -

Imparrment of property, plant and equipment 10 150 392

Impairmenrt of intangible assets 60 -

imparment of financial asset 10 848 -

Reversal of dilapications proviston {1248) -
Adjustment for non-operating transactions mchuded in profit before tax

Net finance cost 8 2,195 984

Share of loss/{profit) In associate from continuing and discontinued operations 20 23 (b6)
Adjustrment for cash items in other comprehensive income/expense:

Contribution to defined beneht scheme 29 (450) (450)
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital 24,191 18,159
Increase in receivables (14,857) (7577)
Increase In payables 16,836 12,571
Increase in provisions 2,081 285
Cash flows from operating activities 28,251 23,438
Interest receved 19 1
Interest paid (1,925) (921
Tax pad, net of refunds (4,381) (2167
Net cash generated from operating activities 22,064 20,468

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement continued
For the year ended 28 February 2023

Restaled
28 Feb 2023 28 Feb 2022
Note £000 £000

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17 (695) {652)
Purchase of other ntangible assets 16 (90} {5185)
Investment in associate 20 - {326)
Acquisttion of business (cash acquired) 14 349 -
Disposal of Cory Brothers, net of cash disposed 1 6,500 (12,363}
Disposal of Wavespec, net of cash disposed 11 - (53)
Proceeds from disposal of iInvestrnent In associate 20 - 7232
Principal received on finance lease recelvables 18 607 799
Net cash generated from/{used in) investing activities 6,671 (5.868)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from RCF loan facility 7,694 8,282
Repayment of RCF loan facility’ {3,000) (8.000)
Repayment of principal under lease liabilities 18 {3,866) (3,621
Cash proceeds on issue of new shares 30 694 -
Cash proceeds on exercise of share awards settled by release of shares from ESCP 477 -
Dividends pad 12 (3,120) (2,109
Purchase of own shares 31 (7,963) {(7043)
Settlernent of convertible loan notes 27 (1,448) (2,596)
Net cash used in financing activities {10,601) (15,077}
Increasef(decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 18,134 477)
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of the year 25 13,964 14,164
Foreign exchange differences 2,637 277
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 25 34,735 13,964

1 The 2022 cash proceeds and repayment from the RCF faciity have been restated as they were previcusty reported as £292 000 on a net basrs

The accompanying notes on pages 104 to 165 form an integral part of these Financial Staterments.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Total Equity

For the year ended 28 February 2023

Group Notes
At 1 March 2021
Prior period adjustrment 35

At 1 March 2021 (restated)
Profit for the year

Actuanal gan on employee benefits
schemes - net of tax

Foreign exchange differences
Cash flow hedges - net of tax

Other cormprebensive iIncome from
discontnued operations

Other comprehensive income
Totat comprehensive iIncocme

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners:

Dividends 12
Shares issued 27,30, 3
Acquisition of own shares

ESOP shares allocated

Share-based payments 30

At 28 February 2022 (restated)
Profit for the year

Actuarial gain on employee benefits
schemes - net of tax

Foreign exchange differences
Cash flow hedges - net of tax
Net investment hedge

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive inceme

Transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners.

Deferred tax ncome on share awards
Dividends 12
Shares 1ssued 27, 30
Acquisition of own shares

ESOP shares allocated

Share-based payments 30

At 28 February 2023

Share
capial
2000

3174

3,174

A7
3,221

71
3,202

Share
premium
£000
52,510

52,510

766

768
53,796

ESOP
reserve
£000

(1,362

1,362)

{29)
(7043}
1,659

(5,409)
6,771)

{7,963)
4,127

(3.836}
{10,607)

Other
[ESErves
£000

28,094
(994)

27100

538
(1,868)
460
970
(970)

28,819

The accompanying notes on pages 104 to 1856 form an integral part of these Financial Staterments
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Retained
(deficrt)/
earnings
£000

(15,906}
(2676}

(18482
13,919

1,318

1318
15,237

(2,108)

{1,659)
2,894

{4,119)
4,696

2,361

2,361
6,957

863
{3,190)

(3,650)
4,520

(1,475)
1,381

Tolal
equity

£000
66,510
(3,570)

62,940
13,919

1,318
538
(1,968)
460
348
14,267

(2109
542
{7043)

2,824

(5,718)

71,491
4,696

2,361

2,522
291
(124)

5,050
9,646

863
(3190)
837
(7,963)
477
4,520

(4,456)
76,681
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Notes to the Financial Statements

General information

Braemar plc (the “"Company”, previously Braemar Shipping Services plc} is a public company limited by shares incorporated in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act The Company is registered in England and Wales and its registered address is 1 Strand,
Trafalgar Square, London, United Kingdom, WC2N 5HR The consclidated Financial Statements of the Comparny as at and for the
year ended 28 February 2023 compnse the Company and its subsidliaries {together referred to as the “Group”).

The Group Financial Statements of Braemar Flc for the year ended 28 February 2023 were authorised for 1ssue in accordance with
a resolution of the directors on 15 Novernber 2023
1 Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards
and with the requirernents of the Comparues Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under those standards

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the histonc cost convention except for iterns measured at fair value as set
out in the accounting policies below.

Certain statements in this Annual Report are forward-locking. Although the Group believes that the expectatons reflected In these
forward-looking staterments are reasonakle, it gives no assurance that these expectations will prove to have been correct. These
forward-looking staternents invelve nsks and uncertainties, so actual results may differ matenally from those expressed or implied
by these forward-looking staterments,

The Group Financial Statements are presented in sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand sterling (£°000)
except where otherwise indicated

There weare no new standards or amendments (including the amendments to IFRS 3, 1AS 1 and the Annual Improvements to IFRS
Accounting Standards 2018-2020 Cycie) that were adopted in the annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February
2023 which had a significant effect on the Group

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by the |ASE that are
effective In future accounting penods that the Group has decided not to adopt early

The following amendments are effective in future perods and have not been early adopted by the Group

- Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17);

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Vanture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28);
- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current {Amendments to (AS 1).

- Disclosure of Accounting Palicies (Amendments 1o IAS 1and IFRS Practice Staterment 2);

- Definien of Accounting Estirnates (Amendments to 1AS 8),

- Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilites ansing from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12); and

- International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules - Amendments to 1AS 12

The adoption of these standards and amendments 1s not expected to have a material impact on the Financial Statements of the
Group in future penods

In January 2020, the IASB 1ssued amendments to IAS 1, which cianfy the critenia used to determine whether liabllihes are classifled
as current of non-current These amendments clanfy that current or non-current classification s based on whether an entity

has a rnght at the end of the reporting penod to defer settiement of the lability for at least 12 months after the reporting penod
The amendments also clanfy that “settlement” Includes the transfer of cash. goods, services, or eguity Instruments unless the
obligation to transfer equty instruments anses from a conversion feature classified as an equity INstrument separataly from

the hability component of a compound financial instrument  Following concerns raised by stakeholders, the IASE 1ssuad further
amendments in Qctober 2022 1o specify that only those covenants which an entity must comply with on or before the reporting
peniod should affect classification of the corresponding llability as current or non-current The October 2022 amendments defer
the effective date of the January 2020 amendments by one year in order that both sets of amendments are effective for annual
reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 with earlier application permitted

Under the Group's current accounting policy, a financial labikty with an equity conversion feature 1s classthied as current or non-
current disregarding the impact of the conversion opticn. The amendments to IAS 1 will result in the equity conversion feature
relating to certan of the Group's financal liabilities, impacting the classification of those labilties While the Group's assessment
of the impact 1s ongoing, the Group expects that amounts included as non-current In relation to “Convertible Loan Notes” will be
reclassified to current lapilities

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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The Company has elected to prepare its Parent Cormpany Financial Statements in accorcance with Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework ("FRS 1017).

The Group and Company Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, In reaching this conclusion
regarding the gomg concern assumption, the directors considered cash flow forecasts to 28 February 2025 which 1s more than
15 months from the date of signing of these Financia! Statements

A set of cash flow forecasts ("the base case”) have been prepared by management and reviewed by the directors based cn
revenue and cost forecasts considered reasonable in the fight of work done on budgets for the current year and the current
shipping markets In putting together these forecasts particular attention was paid to the following factors

- The Group's compliance with sanctions put In place as a result of the conflict in the Ukrane has meant additional work
reviewing compliance obligations on a regular basis as the laws have been amended but did not have a matenal effect on
trading In FY23, nor is it expect to have an impact in FY23/24.

- The level of likely cost inflation, particularly around salaries and energy costs

- The Groug's Investment in a new office In Madnd, an acguisition in the US and new trading desks in the Secunties business
have started well and there 1s no indication that Integration risks are going to be a threat to the forecasts for FY23/24

- Geopoltical tensions can cause volatiity In shipping markets, kut if anything, that uncertainty can give rise to additional
opportunities for the business to support the industry and clients further. There is therefore no expectation that the current
global political tensions will have an adverse impact on trading in FY23/24.

- The impact of climate change is not expected to have any matenal mpact on the business N the short term and indeed could
lead to additional opportunities,

- The impact that the investigation and resulting delay in publishing the annual report and accounts could have on the
performance and reputation of the business

The directors have considered trading performance during the current year and have concluded that nore of these factors are
currently likely to have a significantly adverse impact on the Group's future cash fiows

The Group's balance sheet has been strengthened signficantly due to the strong trading and disposals of non-core assets during
the prior year. As at 28 February 2023 the Group held net bank cash of £69 milion (2022 net bank debt £93 millicn) As at 30
September 2023 the Group had net bank cash of £5.3 million, following the payment of vear end broker bonuses

30 Sept 2023 28 Feb 2023 28 Feb 2022

Note Em Em Em
Secured revolving credit facilites 27 25.9) (27.8) {23.3)
Cash 75 304 347 14.0
Net cash/f{debt) 5.3 8.9 (9.3)

During the period, the Group has extended its revolving credit facility ("RCF”) with its mam bankers, HSBC The RCF is for £300
million plus an accorchon lirmit of £100 million and has an inhal termimation date of November 2025 with two options, subject to
lender approval, to extend the term of the facility by 12 and 24 months respectively. Srawdown of the accordion facility is subject
to additional credlit approval [t has an EBITDA leverage covenant of 25x and a minimurm nterest cover of 4x At 31 May 2022, 31
August 2022, 30 Novermnber 2022 and 28 February 2023 the Group met all financial covenant tests In addiion, there 1s a further
requirement to provide HSBC with the Group’s audited Financial Statements within 6 months of the year-end Due to the delay in
completing the audited Financial Statements the Group obtained wawers for this requirement.

The cash flow forecasts in the base case assessed the ability of the Group to operate both within the banking covenants and
the facility headroom, and included a number of downside sensitivities on the budgeted revenue, including a reverse stress test
scenario. The directors consider revenue as the key assumption in the Group's budget The cost base I1s largely fixed or made up
of discretionary bonuses, which are directly Iinked to profitabdity Based on two flex scenaros. a revenue decrease of 75% and a
ravenue decrease of 16% from the base case, only very miner mitigations were necessary to meet banking covenants,

A reverse stress test was also performed to ascertain the pont at which the covenants would be breached in respect of the key
assumption of budgeted revenue deciine This test indicated that the business, alongside certan mitigating actions which are

fully in control of the directors, would be capable of withstanding a reduction of approximately 35% in budgeted revenue from

the base case assumptions from September 2023 through to February 2025, In light of current trading, forecasts and the Group's
performance over FY23, the directors assessed this downiturn in revenue and concluded the Iikelhood of such a reduction remote,
especially In ight of the forward order book of $65 millon at the end of Septembber 2023 (£38 milion of which s for the financial
year ending February 2024 and 2025), such that it does not impact the basis of preparation of the Financial Staterments and there
is no material uncertainty N this regard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 Basis of preparation continued
o e o IR

The consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the Fnancial Staternents of Brasmar Plc {previcusly Braemar Shipping Services
plc) and all its subsidiaries made up to 28 February each year or 29 February in a leap year.

Subsidianes are entities that are contralled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the nights to vanable raturns from its
involvernent with an entity and has the ability to affect those returns through ts power over the entity The results of subsidiaries
sold or acquired dunng the year are included in the accounts up to, or from, the date that control exists. All Intercompany balances
and transactions have been eiminated in full

2 Use of estimates and critical judgements

The preparation of the Group's Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assurmptions that

affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and labilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting
date. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated based on histoncal expenence and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances In the future. actual expenence may differ from thess
estimates and assumptions

The following are the key estimates and assumptions that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have a significant nsk of resulting N material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
llapiities wathin the next financial year

Goodwil is tested for imparrment on an annual basis, and the Group will also test for imparment at other tmes if there is an
nchication that an imparment may exist. Determining whether goodwill s impaired reguires an estimation of the value-in-use of
the cash-generaling units to which these assets have been allocated. The value-in-use calculation estimates the present value
of future cash flows expected to arise for the cash-generating units. The key estimates are therefore the selection of suitable
discount rates and the estimation of future growth rates which vary between cash-generating units depending on the specific
risks and the anticipated economic and market conditions related to each cash-generating unit (see Note 15 for a description of
the approach used by management to determine these key values)

As part of determining the value in use of each CGU group, Management has considerad the potential impact of chmate change
on the business performance over the next ive years, and the terminal growth rates While there 1s considerable uncertainty
relating to the longer term and quantifying the mpact on a range of cutcomes, management considers that environrental-related
incremental costs are expected to have a relatively low impact. Recognising that there are extreme but unlikely scenarios, the
Group considers that while exposed to physical nsks associated with chmate change (such as flooding, heatwaves, sea level rises
and ncreased precipitation) the estimated impact of these on the Group is not deemed material

in adcition, the Group 1s exposed to transitional risks which might arise, for examgle, from government policy, custormer
expectations. material costs and increased stakeholder concern The transitional nsks could result in inancial impacts such
as higher ervironmentally focused levies (eg carbon pricing} While the Group 1s exposed to the potental inancial mpacts
assoclated with transitonal nsks, based on information currently avalable. these are not deermed to have a significant mpact

Business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition method, based on the fair values of the consideration paid. Assets
and liabiities, with firmited exceptions, are measurad at ther farr value at the acquisition date The Group estimates the pravisional
far vaiues and useful ives of acqured assets and liabiities at the date of acquisition. The valuation of acguired intangibles 1s
subject to estimation of future cash flows and the discount rate applied to them. The valuation of the customer-related Intangible
assgets is determined based on an excess earnings methodology while the valuation of the marketing-related intangible asset is
based on a royalty savings method For further details on the acquistion in the year, see Note 14 Business combinations.

On 28 February 2022 the Group sold Cory Brothers to Vertom Agencies BY for maximum consideration of £155 million. Intial cash
proceeds of £65 millon were received on completion of the transaction, and three contractual "earn-out” payments will be made,
being an agreed percentage of the future gross profits of the combined VertomCory business over three subsecuent earm out
penods Fach of the three sarn-out payments are subyject to mnimurm and maxirmurm amounts which are spectfied In the share
purchase agreement,

The minmurm earmout consideration has been classified as deferred consideration receivable The minirmum amount 1s specified
i the SPA and is therefore not an estimate, however an estimate of a discount rate is necessary to discount the deferred
consideration recevable A discount rate of 2.32% was used to calculate the net present value, this was based on the credit risk of
Vertom Agencies BV folowing a credit check performed by management. Deferred consideration receivable is initially recognised
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
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The balance of the earnout consideration. up to the maxmum specified IN the SPA has been classified as contingent consideration
recevatle because it is contingent on the future profitability of the combined business The far value of the contingent consideration
recenvable Involves two critical estimates the future profitability of the combined business and the discount rate used to caiculate
the net present value The future profitability forecasts are based on a business plan prepared by the combined VertomCory
business. Contingent consideration receivable 1s inhally recognised at fair value and subsequently measures at fair value through
profit and loss

See Note 23 for further detalls, including a sensitivity analysis of the contingent consideration recewvable to the discount rate and
the assumptions of future profitability

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets I1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset {0 be recovered See Note @

The farr value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments 1s typically expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of the number of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At each
reporting date. the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-
market-based vesting conditions The impact of the revision of the onginal estimates, If any, 1s recognised in profit of loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to reserves. See Note 30,

Trade receivables and contract assets are amounts due from customers in the ordinary course of businass. Trade receivables and
contract assets are classified as current assets If collection 1s due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business If longer) If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

The provision for Impairment of trade recevables and contract assets represents management’s best esbmate at the Balance
Sheet date A number of jJudgements are made In the calculation of the provision, primarily the age of the invoice, the existence of
any disputes, recent historical payment patterns and the debtor's financial position

When measuring expected credit losses, the Group uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking informaticn, which is based
on assumptions for the future movernent of differcnit cconomic drivers and how these drivers will affect each other Probability

of default constitutes a key input In measuring expected credit losses. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of
default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future market
conditions. See Note 22

The Group uses an independent actuary tc provide annual valuations of the defined benefit pension scheme The actuary uses
a numier of estimates in respect of the scheme membership, the valuation of assets and assumptions regarding discount rates,
inflation rates and maortality rates.

The membership detalls are provided by an Independent trustee while the valuation of assets 1s verified by an independent fund
manager The discount rates, inflation rates and mortality rates are reviewed by management at each reporting date See Note 22

In the year ended 28 February 2022, the sale of Wavespec, the Group's Engineenng Division, completed for a maximum
consideration of £26 millon The fair value of the consideration s a crtical accounting judgement

The consideration was due to be satisfiad by the issuance of a promissory note with a rmaturnty date of 31 March 2026 The far
value of the consideration was based on the net present value of the promissory note (£2 4 millon). A discount rate of 211% was
used to calculate the net present value The discount rate was made up of two elements, the first being a B-year BBB+ bond yield
of 151%, the second being a premium for tack of marketability at 060%. A 5-year BBB+ bond yield was used because it matches
the matunty of the promissory note and reflects the credit rating of the bank that was expected to provide the letter of credit

As at 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023, the buyer had not delivered on its obitgations to secure the promissory note and
therefore management have made a judgernent that the promissary note 1s unlikely to be honoured and consequently the fair
value of the consideration 18 Impared and a credit loss of £2.4 millon was recognised within discontinued operations in the year
ended 28 February 2022

As described further ana set out in Note 28 - Provisions the directors have made significant judgements in relation to the
estimation of the amount of provision to be recognised in relation to uncertain commuission obligations.
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2 Use of estimates and critical judgements cont nusd
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The following are key judgements that the Group makes, apart from those Involving estmations (which are dealt with above), that
the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most signficant effect on
the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements.

IFRS 1€ "Revenue from Contracts wath Custermers” reguires judgement to determine whether revenug is recognised at a “pont in
time” or "over time” as well as determining the transfer of control for when performance obligations are satisfied

For Chartenng, the Group has defined the perfermance obligation to be satisfied at the paint In time where the negotiated contract
between counterparties has been successiully completed, being the discharge of cargoes, and therafore revenue is recognised at
this pont n tme This 1s a critical jJudgement since revenue recognition would differ If the performance obligations were deemed to
be satshied over a ime penod. or at a dfferent point in tme

As aresult of actuarial movements during the period, including an increase in the discount rate from 285% at 28 February 2022 to
490% at 28 February 2023, the UK defined benefit scherme 1s in an actuanal surplus posttion at 28 February 2023 (measured on an
IAS 12 “Employee Benehts” basis) of £11 millon (28 February 2022 lability of £21 millon) The surplus has been recognised on the
basis that the Group has an unconditional right to a refund, assuming the gradual settlement of Scheme habilities over time unti

all members have left the Scheme The surplus will be subject to a tax charge on its recovery which the Group does not beleve
meets the definttion of an INncome tax under IAS 12, and as a result, the surplus has been presentad net of the expectad taxes
payable of £08 millon, at a rate of 35%.

In reporting financial nformation. the Group presents Alternative Performance Measures (APMS™) which are not defined or
specified under the reguirements of International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™} The Group believes that these APMs,
which are not considered tc be a substitute for or superior to IFRS measures, provide stakeholders with additional helpful
information and enable an alternative comparison of performance over time.

| he Group excludes specific items from its underlying eamings measure Management judgement Is required as to what items
quahfy for this classification There can alse be judgernent as to the point at which costs should be recognised and the amount
to record to ensure that the understanding of the underlying performance 1s not distorted Specific tems include the results from
discontinued cperations. See Note 10

Dunng the year, the Group acguired the entity Madnd Shipping Advisors SL For a business combination to exist, the Group must
obtan control of a business. To be considered a business, an acguired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimurm, an
input and a substantive process that toyether significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs As part of the transaction, no
assets were acquired (such as brand, order book, preperty, glant and equipment), ner were any llabilities assumed The entity holds
the service contracts for key empluyees and was a newly ncorporated company, set up specifically for the acquistion The Group
has made the judgement that the acgusition did not meet the definition of a business combimation as the acquired entity did not
meet the defimtion of a business The transaction was treated as the recruitrrent of a broker team. which s consistent with the
substance of the arrangement

Management have considered the impact of climate-related risks in respect of iImpairment of goodwill, recoverability of recevabies
and the recoverability of deferred tax assets in particular and do not consider that climate-related risks have a material impact on
any key judgements, estimates or assumptions in the consolidated Financial Statements.

In the prior year, cimate change was assessed as part of ongoing discussions of key and emerging nsks for the Group and

the shipping and energy sectors within which it operates. Consideration of the potential short to medium-term impact of the
Environrnent and Climate Change nisk resulted in its inclusion as a Group Principal Risk
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3 Accounting policies
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardiess of whether equity Instruments
or other agsets are acquired, The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary cormprises the

- far values of the assets acquired;

- labiities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business,

- eqgurty interests 1ssued by the Group,

- fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangerment, and
- far valug of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

ldentifiable assets acquired and labilties and contngent labilties assumed N a business combination are, with limited exceptions.
measured initially at their far values at the acquisiion date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at far value or at the non-controling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net Identfiable assets

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred

The excess of the consideration transferred; amount of any non-controling interest in the acquired entity; and acquisition-date
far value of any previous equity interest In the acquired entity over the far value of the net identifiable assets acquired 1s recorded
as geodwill If those amounits are less than the far value of the net identifiatie assets of the business acqurred. the difference 1s
recognised directly in profit or logs as a gain on purchase

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the arnounts payable in the future are discounted to ther present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used I1s the entity’s Incrermental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a siritar
borrowing could be obtained from an iIndependent inancier under comparable terms and conditions

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial lability Amounts classfied as a financial llability are
subseqguently remeasured to far vakie, with changes In far value recogrised In profit or loss

If the: business combination is achieved N stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree s remaasurad to far value at the acquisition date Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurernent are
recoygnised N profit or loss

Due to the nature of the Group's business, amounts paid or shares issued to sellers are often Inked to ther continued employment
An assessment 1s perforrmed to determine whether the amounts are part of the exchange for the acquiree, or should be treated as a
transaction separate frorm the business combination Transactions that are separate from the business combination are accounted for
in accordance the relevart IFRSs which generally results in the amounts being treated as a post-combination remurieration expense.

T et e

Revenue 1s recognised in accordance with satisfaction of performance obligations Revenue of the Group consists of:

1) Chartering desks - The Group acts as a broker for several types of shipping transactions, each of which gives 1ise to an
entitlernent to commission:
Deoep sea tankors, specrafised tankers and gas. dry cargo and offshore
- for single voyage chartering, the contractual terms are governed by a standard charterparty contract in which the broker’s
performance obligation s satisfied when the cargo has been discharged according to the contractual terms, andg
- for urme charters, the commission 1s specified in the hire agreerment and the performance oblgation 1s spread over the term
of the charter at specified intervals in accordance with the charter party terms
1) Risk Advisory desks

Securtties

- forincome derived from commedity broking, the cormimigsion is recognised wihven a binding contractual arrangerment 1s
entered INto between the two parties, at which point. the Groug has fulfiled tts performance obligabon

i} Investment Advisory

Financial

- Income comprises retaner fees and success fees generated by corporate finance-related actvities Revenue 1s recognised in
accordance with the terms agreed in individual client terms of engagernent. Recurring menthly retaners are recogrised in the
month of invoice and success fees are recognised at the point when the perfermance obligations of the particular engagement
are fulfilled
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3 Accounting policies continued
T N o continued
m  Investment Advisory continuad
Sale and purchase:
- Inthe case of second-hand sale and purchase contracts, the broker’s performance obligation 1s satisfied when the
principals in the transaction complete on the sale/purchase and the title of the vessel passes from the seller to the buyer;
- with regard to newbuilding contracts, the commission is recognised when contractual stage payments are macdle by the
purchaser of a vessel 1o a shipyard which in turn reflects the performance of services over the life of the contract, and
- forincome denved from providing ship and fleet valuations, the Group recognises incorne wheh a valuation certificate 1s
provided to the client and the service is invoiced.
Iv) Logistics (a discontinued operation):
- the performance obhigation for agency ncome 1s satisfied at the peint In time when the vessel salls from the port
For forwarding and logistics Income the performance obligation 1s satisfied when the goods depart from therr load location
Where the Group acts as a principal rather than as agent, the revenue and costs are shown gross.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to recave payment is established.

‘ LN T A A S

Government grants are netted against the cost ncurred by the Group When retention of a government grant 1s dependent on the
Group satisfying certain criteria, it 1s intially recognised as deferred income and released to the Income Staterment once the critena
for retention have been satisfied See Note &

Transactions in currencies other than sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailng on the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gans and losses resulting from the seftlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currency are recognised In the Income Statement

in order to hedge s exposure to certan foreign exchange nsks, the Group enters Into dervative financial nstrument contracts,
mainly forward foreign currency exchange contracts which are designated as cash flow hedges (see Note 3(m)) Fer a qualifying
hedge relationship, the fair value gain or loss on the hedging nstrument 1s recognised as part of Revenue when the underlying
transaction 1s recognised in accordance with the Revenue recognition policy set cut above.

The presentational currency of the Group 1s sterling. Assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries, branches and associates are
translated from their functional currency Inte stering at the exchange rates ruling at the Balance Sheet date. Trading results are
translated at the average rates for the period Exchange differences ansing on the consolidation of the net assets of overseas
subsidianes are recognised through other comprehensive Income in the foreign currency translation reserve (see Note 32)

On disposal of a business, the cumulative exchange differences praviously recognised In the foreign currency translation reserve
relating to that business are transferred to the Income Staterment as part of the gain or loss on dispesal The Group finances
overseas nvestrents partly through the use of foreign currency borrowings in order to provide a net investment hedge over the
foreign currency rnisk that anses on translation of its foraign currency subsidianes For effective hedge relationships, the gain or loss
on the hedging instrument is recognised in equity through other comprehensive income

The taxation expense represents the sum of the current and deferred tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs frem net profit as reported in the Income
Statement because 1t excludes items of ncome and expense that are taxable or deductible In other years and « further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible The Group and Company’s lability for current tax is caloulated using rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date

Defened ncome tax 1s provided n full, using the hability method, on ternparary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets
and liabiities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated Financial Statements However, deferred tax labiliies are nat recogrised if
they arise from the inihial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax 1s also not accounted for if it anses from initial recognition of an
asset or labilty in a transaction other than a business combination that, at the tme of the transaction. affects netther accounting nor
taxable profit or less and does not give rse to equal taxable and deductitle termporary differences Deferred income tax 1s determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting penod and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset 1s realised or the deferred Income tax hability 1s settled Deferred tax assets and
habilities are offset where there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset curtent tax assets and labilties and where the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authorty Current tax assets and tax habiities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceatle
nght 1 offset and intends erther to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the llabiity simulttanecusty

Braemar Plc Annual Repart and Accounts 2023



111 Strategic Report Governance e P et

Current and deferred tax 1z recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to tems recognised In other
comprehensive Income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive Income or directly
N eguty, respectively

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method The goodwill recognised as an asset by the Group is
stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses

On the acguisiion of a business, farr values are attrilxuted to the net assets (including any identfable intangible assets) acgured
The excess of the consideration transferred, any non-controlling interest recognised and the fair value of any previous equity
interest N the acquired entity over the farr value of net Identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goocdwill Acquisition-related
costs are recognised In the Income Staternent as incurred in accordance with IFRS 3,

In relation to acguisitions where the fair value of assets acquired exceeds the far valug of the consideration, the excess farr value is
recognised immediately in the Income Statement as a gain on purchase.

On the digposal of a business, goodwidl relating to that business remaining on the Balance Sheet is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal As permitted by IFRS 1. goodwill on acquisitions ansing prior to 1 March 2004 has been rastaned at
pricr amounts and 15 tested annually for imparment.

The Group capitalses computer software at cost It 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of up to
four years

The Group capitalises internally generated development costs when it 15 able to demonstrate:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it is subsequently available for use;

- that there is a clear intention that the intangible asset would be completed and then used;

- that it is able to use the intangible asset;

- that future economic benefits are probabie:

— that there are adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use the asset, and
- the expenditure attnbutable to the iIntangitle asset during its developrment can be reliably measured

The Group amortises development on a straight-hne basis over its estmated useful economic Ife of up to three years. See Note 16

Research costs are expensed as incurred.

intangiole assets acquired as part of a business cornbination are stated in the Balance Sheet at their Tair value at the date

of acquisition less accumulated amaortisation and any provision for impairment. The amortisation of the carrying value of the
capitalised forward order book and customer relationships is charged to the Income Statement over an estimated useful Iife,
which 1s between four months to twelve years The amortisation in respect of capitalised brand assets is expensed to the Income
Staternent aver an estimated useful life, which is between three and twelve years.

Property, plant and eguipment are shown at histernical cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment
Depreciation 1s provided at rates calcuiated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value of each asset. on a straight-lne basis

over its expected useful Ife as follows (except for long and short leasehold nterests which are written off aganst the remaining
penod of the lease):

Motor vehicles - three years
Computer equipment - four years
Fixtures and equipment - four years
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3 Accounting policies cont nued
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The Group has various lease arrangements for properties, and other eguipment At inception of a lease contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract conveys the nght to control the use of an identified asset for a certain period of time and whether
It obtains substantially all the economic benefits from the use of that asset, N exchange for consideration The Group recognises a
lease latility and a corresponding nght-of-use asset with respect to all lease arrangerments in which it is a lessee, except low-value
leases and short-term leases of 12 months or less, costs for which are recognised as an operating expense within the income
statement on a straight-line basis

A right-of-use asset 1s capitalised on the Balance Sheet at cost, comprising the arnount of the initial measurement of the lease
halsility and lgase payments made at or before the commencernent date, plus any initial drect costs incurred in addition to an
estimate of costs to remove or restore the underlying asset Where a lease incentive I1s receivable, the amount 15 offset aganst
the right-of-use asset at inception Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
estimated life of the asset or the lease term.

The lease hability 1s intbally measured at the present value of future lease payments. Interest expense is charged to the
Consolidated Income Staterment over the lease pericd so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the rermaning
balance of the lability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit In the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of simiiar valug In a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions. Generally, the
interest rate implcit N the lease 1s not readlly determinable, as such the incremental borrowing rate is used to discount future
lease payments

For the Group, lease payments generally comprise the following:

— Fixed payments, less any lease incentives recevable;
- Vanable payments that are based on an ndex or rate, and
- Payments tc be made under extension options which are reasonably certain to be exercised

Lease payments made are apportioned between an interest charge and a capital repayment amount which are disclosed within
the inancing activities and the operating activities sections of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows respectively When an
adustment to lease payments based on an index takes effect, the lability 1s remeasured with a corresponding adjustment 1o the
nght-of-use asset

Contracts entered into by the Group have a wide range of terms and conditicns but generally do not impose any additional
covenants Several of the Group's contracts include indexation adjustments to lease payments in future penods which are not
reflected In the measurerment of the lease fiabilities at 28 February 2023. Many of the cantracts entered into by the Group include
extension or termination options which provide the Group with additional operational flexibility If the Group considers 1t reasonably
certan that an extension option will be exercised or a termination cption not exercised, the additional period 15 included in the
lease term

A modfication to a lease which changes the lease payment amount {e g due to a renegotiation or market rent review) or amends
the term of the lease, results in a reassessment of the lease lability with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset

The Group classified leases as ether operating or finance leases based on the substance of the arrangement At commencement
of a finance lease, a recevable 15 recognised at an amount equal to the Group's net INvestment In the lease Finance ncome 1s
recognised reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the lease Lease payrments from operating leases
are recognised as income on a straight-line basis

Investments in associates and joint venturés where the Group has joint control or significant influence are accounted for under
the equity method. Investments in associates are intially recognised in the Consolidated Batance Sheet at cost Subsequently
associates are accounted for under the equity method, where the Group's share of post-acguisition profits and losses and other
comprehensive Income 1s recoegnised in the Income Statement and Staternent of Comprehensive Income

Profits and losses ansing on transactions between the Group and Its associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
rivestors’ interests in the associate The investor's share In the associate’s profits and losses ansing from these transactions 1s

eliminated against the carrying value of the asscciate

Where the Group s share of the associate’s identifiable net assets is greater than the cost of nvestment. a gain on purchase is
recognised in the Income Statement and the carrying value of the investrment in the Consolidated Balance Sheet 1s increased
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When the Group disposes Of shares In associates or Joint ventures the Group recognises a profit or loss on disposal based on
the net proceeds less the weighted average cost of the shares disposed of On disposal the Group reclassifies foreign exchange
amounts previously recogrised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gan or loss
would be reguired to be reclassihed 1o profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilihies

The most recent Financial Statements of an associate are used for accounting purposes unless its imprachcal 1o do so. Where
the Group and an associate have non-coterminous reporting dates the associate's full-year accounts will be used for the purposes
of the Group's reporting at 28 February with adjustments made for any significant transactions or events

Investments where the Group has no signficart iInfluence are held at far value, with movernents In farr value recorded in profit
and loss

. 7Y SR B

The carrying amount of the Group's assets, other than inancial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed for imparment as descnbed below If any indication of impairment exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estirated
The recoverable amount is deterrmined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations and fair value less costs to sell, which
requires the use of estimates. Animpairment loss is recognised In the Income Staterment whenever the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount

Goodwill 15 reviewed for imparment at feast annually, Impairments are recognised immediately n the Income Staternent. Goodwill
is atocated to cash-generating units for the purposes of impairment testing

The carrying value of intangible assets with a finite Iife 1s reviewed for imparment whenever events or changes In circumstances
ndicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The carrying vaiues of other Intangible assets are reviewed for imparment
at least annually or when thare 1s an indication that they may be impaired

Right-of-use assets are reviewed for impairment to account for any loss when events or changes in arcumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be fully recoverable.

Where there 1s objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the iInvestrment 1s
tested for Imparment in the same way as other non-financial assets

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets, with the exception of goodwill, 1s increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. This cannot exceed the carrying amount prior to the impairment charge.
An imparrment recognised i the Income Statement. in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed

: e L N

Contingant consideration receivabie s initially recognised at fair value and is subsequently remeasured at tts far value at each
Balance Sheet date The resulting gan or loss is recognised immediately In the Income Statement. Contingent consideration
recevable is classified as level 3 1n accordance with the fair value hierarchy specified by IFRS 13 Deferred consideration is initrally
measured at its fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for imparrment. See Notes 23 and 24
L S ' L RTINS

Derivatives are initially recognised at far value and are subsequently remeasured at therr farr value at each Balance Sheet date

with gains and losses recognised immediately in the Income Staterment unless hedge accounting 1s applied. Recognition of the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument andg, if it is, the nature of the item
being hedged. Changes in the fair value of dervatives that do not gualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the
Income Staterment. The Group designates derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting as a cash fiow hedge where there is a high
probability of the forecast transactions ansing The effective portion of changes In the farr value of these dervatives 1s recogrised
IN equity The gain or loss ort denvalive mstruments not designated in hedging relationships and relating to the ineffective portion of
dernvatives designated in hedding relationships 1s recognised immediately in the Income Staterent within finance costs or Income
Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the Income Statement at the same time as the gains or losses on the hedged
tems When a forecast transaction ts no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gains or losses that were reported In equity are
immediately transferred to the Income Staternent

To qualify for hedge accounting, the terms of the hadge must be clearly documented at nception and there must be an
expectation that the denvative will be Pighly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flow of the hedged nsk Hedge
effectiveness is tested throughout the Iife of the hedge and if at any pomnt it 1s concluded that the relationship can na longer be
expected to remain highly effective in achieving its objective. the hedge relationship 1s terminated
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3 Accounting policies continucd
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The critical terms of the hedging instruments match the hedged transactions r in relation 1o currency, timing and amounts, meanng there

Is a clear economic relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item as required under IFRS @ Thereby, management

qualtatively demonstrates that the hedging instrument and the hedged iterms will move equally in the oppaostte direction.

When a hedging instrurnent expires or Is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge relationship
but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumuiative gain or losg at that point remaing in equity and is
recognised In accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs.

The fair value of derivative contracts is based either directly or indirectly on market pnces at the Balance Sheet date.
Financial assets and flabilities are classified N accordance with the far value hierarchy specihied by IFRS13 See Note 24

L e S R I SR S
Trade receivables and contract assets are mitially recognised at far value {less transaction costs) and subsequently measured at
amortised cost

At the Balance Sheet date, there may be amounts where invoices have not been raised but performance obligations have bheen
satished, and these are recognised as contract assets

Specific provision 13 made where there 1s evidence that the balances will not e recovered In full A prowision for expected credit
losses 1s made for trade recevables and contract assets using the simglified approach A provision matrix 1s used to calculate an
expected credit loss as a percentage of carrying value by age. The percentages are determined based on historical credit loss
experience as welt as forward-looking informaticn Expected credit loss provisions are made for other recevables based on Iifetime
expected credit losses using a mode! that considers forward-looking information and significant ncreases in credit nsk

Trade and other recevables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms payable within 30 to 20 days.

"}{ . [ O O LY SR
Cash and cash equivalents included in the Balance Sheet comprise cash in-hand, short-term depasits with an original maturity of
three months or less and restricted cash.

Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement include cash and short-term deposits Bank overdrafts are
included i the Balance Sheet within short-term borrowings

NN

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obhgation (legal or otherwise) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the cbligation and & reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation If matenal, the provisions are discounted using an appropriate current post-tax
interest rate

Short-term provisions for long service leave expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the llabilities are settled.

The provision for long service leave net expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date 15 measured at the

present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service.
Expected future payrments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on corporate bonds with terms to matunty and
currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows,

.-

The Group operates a number of cquity-sctiled share-based payment schemes

No awards may be granted under the schemes set out below which would result in the total number of shares issued or remaining
issuable under all of the schemes (or any other Group share schemes), In the ten-year penod ending on the date of grant of the
option, exceeding 10% of the Company’s 1ssued share caprtal (calculated at the date of grant of the relevant option),

The Group may provide a net settlerment feature, whereby it withholds the number of equity Instruments egual to the monetary
value of the employee’s tax obligation arising from the exercise (or vesting) of the award If the total number of shares that
otherwise would have been 1ssued to the employee The Group has no contractual obligation to provide a net settlement option,
and therefore the award 1s still accounted for as an equity settled award In full and the value of the shares foregone by the
employee is accounted for as a deduction from equity
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The net cost of the shares acquired for the shares held by the ESOP and the EBT are a deduction from shareholders’ funds and
represent & reduction in distributable reserves, Note 31 provides detail on the ESOP and the EBT and movements in shares to be ssued

During the year the Company operated the Braemar Shipping Services Plc Savings-Related Share Option Scherne 2014 (the “SAYE
Scheme™) and the Braemar Shipping Services Pic Internaticnal Savings-Related Share Option Scheme 2012 (the “International SAYE
Scheme™). Options are granted at up to a 20% discount to the prevailing market price and entitle employees to purchase shares in
the Company at a fixed pnce subject to continued employment The farr value of share options granted under the SAYE schemes
Is determined using a pinomial pricing model. The number of awards which are expected to vest is estimated by management
based on levels of expected forfeitures.

The Company adopted a Deferred Bonus Plan in May 2020 (the "2020 DBP"), pursuant to which future discretionary bonus awards
will be granted to staff including executive directors Awards under the New DBP may be nked to an aption granted under the new
Braemar Cornpany Share Ophon Plan 2020, which was also adopted by the Company in May 2020 (the “2020 CSOP™) Where an
employee recelves a linked award under the 2020 DBF, if the Company's share price rises over the vesting period, the 2020 CSOP
award can be exercised with the value of shares delivered on the vesting of the 2020 DBEP award being reduced by the exercise
gain on the 2020 CSOP award Awards under the 2020 DBP and the 2020 CSOP may be settled by the 1ssue of new shares of by
way of transfer of shares from the ESOP Histone practice has been to settle via the transfer of shares from the ESOP and it 1s the
current Intention to continue to cperate In this manner.

The number of awards granted under the Deferred Bonus Plan each year 1s related to the profits generated in the previous year
The cost of the award s therefore expensed from the beginning of that profit pencd until the vesting date which is usually three
years after the date of award and 1s subject to continued employment Awards made to now joners are expensed over the penod
from date of joining to date of vesting. Their fair value is estimated based on the share price at the time of grant less the expected
dividend to be paid during the vesting penod The number of awards which are expected to vest is estimated by management
based on levels of expected forfeitures

Curing the year ended 28 February 2015, the Company established a Restricted Share Plan {"RSP”) This scherme was set up to
grant awards to certain Key staff to try to retain them following the merger between Bragmar and ACM Shipping Group Plc, tbut it
can also ke used where the Remuneration Committee considers it necessary to secure the recruitment of a particular ndvidual
execulive directors of the Company are not eligible to participate in the RSP. RSP awards are made in the form of a nil cost option
and there are no performance critera other than continued employment. Therr fair value 1s estimated based on the share price at
the time of grant less the expected dividend to be pad durng the vesting period. The number of awards which are expected to
vest is estimated by management based on levels of expected forfertures.

The Company also operates an LTIP, which was approved by shareholders and adopted in 2014 LTIP awards under this plan take
the form of a conditional ight to recaive shares at nil cost. The awards normally vest over three years and are typically subject to a
performance condition such as earnings per share ("EPS”) or Total Shareholder Return (“TSR™, a market-based condition

The fair value of awards with the EPS condition are non-market conditions and their far value 1s estimated based on the share
price at the time of grant less the expected dividend to be paid during the vesting pericd. The far value of awards contaning
rmarket conditions is determined using Monte Carlo simulation models. The number of awards which are expected to vest is
estimated by management based on levels of expected forfeitures and the expected outcome of the EPS condition. For awards
subject to market conditions, no adjustment is made to reflect the likelihood of the market condition being met nor the actual
number of awards which lapse as a result of the condition not being met

Commissicns payable o co-brokers are recognised in trade payables due within one year on the earler of the date of Invoicing or
the date of receipt of cash

The Group has the following long-term employee benefits

The: Group operates a number of defined contnbution schemes Pension costs charged aganst profits n respect of these
schemes represent the amount of the contributions payable to the schemes in respect of the accounting penod The assets of the
schermes are held separately from those of the Group within independently administered funds. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
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3 Accounting pelicies continued

¢ R T

The Group operates a defined benefit scherne, the ACM Staff Pension Scheme, with assets held separately from the Group The cost
of providing benefits under the scheme 1s determined using the projected unit credit actuanal valuation method which measures
the lability based on service completed and aftowing for projected future salary increases and discounted at an appropriate rate

The current service cost, which 1s the Increase In the present value of the retirement benefit obligation resulting from employee
service In the currert year. and gains and losses on settlements and curtalments, are included within operating profit in the Income
Staternent The unwinding of the discount rate on the scheme habilitres which 1s shown as a net finance cost and past service
costs are presented and recognised immediately in the Income Staterment

The pension asset o liabity recognised on the Balance Sheet in respect of this scheme represents the difference between the
present value of the Group's obligations under the scheme and the fair value of the scheme’s assets Actuarial gains or losses
and return on plan assets net of tax, excluding interest, are recognised In the period in which they anse within the Statemant of
Comprehensive Income.

When the defined benefit plan is In a surplus, the asset 1s recognised at the lower of the surplus and the asset celling, less any
associated costs, such as taxes payable

The current service cost of other long-term benefits resulting from employee services in the current year 1s included within the
Income Staterment The unwinding of any discounting on the liabiities 1S shown in net finance costs

[ EEE R -

Arrangernerit costs for loan faciites are capitahised and arnortised over the Iife of the debt at a constant rate

Finance costs are charged to the Income Statement. based on the effective interest rate of the associated external borrowings
and debt instruments.

The convertible loan nules are considered to be a financial labilty host with an emibedded denvative convertible feature which s
required to be separated from the host The Group has an accounting choice to record the nstrurment in its entirety at far value
through profit and loss but has not chosen to apply this treatment Instead, the financial liabiity host i recognised as a euro
lability nitially recogrised at far value and prospectively accounted for applying the effective Interest rate method The denvative
conversion feature 1s recognised at far value through profit and loss Where there are conversion options that can be exercised
within one year the liability s recognised as current

When the terms of an existing financial hability are modified, management will consider both guantitative and qualitative factors
e assess whether the modification 1s substantial In the case that the modification of the terms of existing financial lability

is considered to be substantial, the modification shall be accounted for as an extinguishment of that financial lability and

the recogrition of a new financial lability If the modification s not considered substantial, then the existing financial tability 1s
remeasured In accordance with its onginal classification and any gain or loss 1s recognised immediately In the Income Staternent

Specific tems are signficant tems considered matenal In size or nature, INcluding acguisition and disposal-related gains and
losses These are digclosed separately to enable a full understanding of the Group's ongoing financial performance

A non-current asset of a group of assets, such as a disposal group, is classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be
recovered principally thraugh sale rather than through continuing use, it is avalable for mmediate sale and sale is highly probable
within one year

Oninitial classification as held for sale, non-current assets and disposal groups are measurad at the lower of previous carying
amount and far value less costs to sell with any adjustments taken to profit or loss

A discontinued operation 1s a component of the Group's business that represents a separate ine of business or geographical
area of operations that has been disposed of or Is held for sale, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria tc be classified as held
for sale, if earler When an operation s classified as a discontinuad operation, the comparative Income Statement 1s restated as if
the operation has been discontinued from the start of the comparative period

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed where an inflow of economic benehts 1s probable
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4 Segmental information and revenue

TS Y RE
Fallowing the simplification of the Group's activities and the way In which information 1s now presented te the Groug's Chief Operating
Decision Maker, the Group's operating segments are Chartering, Investment Advisory and Risk Adviscry Previously the Group's
operating segments were based on a Divisional structure of Shipbroking, Financial, Logistics and Engineering Divisions. The Logistics
and Engineering Divisions were scld in the prior year and are presented as discontinued operations in the comparative penod

The Chief Operating Decision Maker 1s considered to be the Group's board of directors. Each of Charterng, Investrent Advisory
and Risk Advisory are managed separately, and the nature of the services offered to clients 1s distinct between the segrments
The Charterng segment includes the Group's shipicroking business, Risk Advisory Includes the Group's regulated securties
husiness and Investment Adviscry focuses on transactional services

The segmental analysis is consistent with the way the Group manages tself and with the format of the Groug's internal financial
reporting. The board considers the business from both service line and geographic perspectives. A description of each of the lines
of service Is provided in the Operating and Financial Review. The Group's man geographic markets comprise the UK, Singapore,
the US, Australia, Germany and the Rest of the World The Group's geographical markets are determined by the location of the
Group’s assets and gperations.

Central costs relate to board costs and other costs associated with the Group's listing on the London Stock Exchange.
All segments meet the quantitative thresholds required by IFRS 8 as reportable segments

Underlying operating profit 1s defined as operating profit for continuing activities before restructunng costs, gam on disposal
of investment and acquisition and disposal-related tems

The segmental information provided to the board for reportable segments for the year ended 28 February 2023 1s as follows

Revenue Operating prefit

2023 2022 2023 2022

£000 £'000 E'000 £'000

Chartering 99,164 63,024 15,577 8,246
Investrnent Advisory 36,760 26,297 7,740 6,360
Risk Adwvisory 16,987 11,989 2,971 1615
Trading segments revenue/results 152,911 101,310 28,288 14,220
Central costs (6,213) {4.160)
Underlying operating profit 20,075 10,060
Specific tems included N operating profit (8,406) (514)
Operating profit 11,669 9,648
Share of associate’s loss for the year 23) {19
Net fimance expense (2,195} (984)
Profit before taxation 9,461 8,543

Prior year figures have been restated n line with the current segment definitions

The Group manages its business segments on a global basis. The operation's main geographical area and also the home country
of the Company is the United Kingdom.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

4 Segmental information and revenue continued
S N S A
Geographical Information determined Ly location of customers is set out below:

Revenue

2023 2022

£°000 £000
United Kingdom ' 80,353 54524
Singapore 26,674 19,423
Australa 16,599 12,5665
Switzerland Hnz 5435
United States 6,265 972
Germany 2,959 2,488
Rest of the World 8,967 . 5903
Continuing cperations 152,811 - 101,310
Discontinued operations - 452156
Total 152,911, 146525

The Group disaggregates revenus in fine with the segmental information presentied above and aiso by desk Revenug analysed by
desk is provided below.

2023 2022

£'000 £00C

Tankers 41,602 17837
Specialised Tankers 18,240 1,622
Dry Cargo 35,821 29,789
Offshore 5,501 3,776
Chartering 99,164 63,024
Sales and purchase 32,060 19,646
Corporate finance 4,700 6,651
Investment Advisory 36,760 26,297
Securities 16,987 11,989
Risk Advisory 16,987 11,289
Total continuing operations 152,911 101,31G

All revenue anses from the rendering of services There is no single custormer that contributes greater than 10% of the Group's revenue

The Group enters into some contracts, primarily in Chartering, which are for a duration longer than 12 months and where the Group
has outstanding performance obligations on which revenue has not yet been recognised. The amount of revenue that will be
recognised in fulure penods on these contracts when those remaning performance obligations will be satished 1s set out below

Forward crder book

Within 12 1-2 More than
months years 2 years Total
2023 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Chartenng 19,209 3,040 9,860 32,109
Sale and purchase 3,332 4 988 6,168 14,488
Total 22,5414 8,028 16,028 46,597
Within 12 12 More thar
months years 2 years Total
2022 £000 £000 £°000 £'000
Chartering 16,724 3,211 9057 27992
Sale and purchase 6,684 1832 924 9,340
Total 22,308 5043 9,981 37332
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5 Operating profit from continuing operations

Operating profit represents the results from operations before finance iIncome and costs. share of profit/{loss) In associate taxation

and discontinued operations

This 1s stated after charging/{crediting)-

2023
Note £°000
Staff costs 8 110,116
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 17 2,823
Amortisation of intangibles 16 192
Bad debt charge 22 238
Auditor's remuneration 7 1,354
Other professional costs 3,410
Office costs 1,695
IT and communication costs 3,264
Insurance 1,069
Net foreign exchange gains {1,465)
Specific items Nncluded in operating profit (see Note 10} 8,408

2022
£000
76814
2834
262
47
860
2,/82
1,800
2,607
8756
(432
(514}

Stalf costs for the prior year are stated after netting off grants totallng £01 millon against staff costs for continuing operations
detalled in Note 6; no grants were received in the current year. The grants were received from both the Singaporean Government
and the Austratan Government as a result of the impact of COVID All critena for the retention of both grants have been satisfied

and therefore the full amount has been recognised In the Income Statement

6 Staff cost
e O RS LR o e T e T
2023
Note £000
Salaries, wages and short-term employee benefits 100,039
Other pension costs 29 1,81
Social secunty costs 3,796
Share-based payments 30 4,520
Continung operations 110,116
Discontinued cperations -
Total 10,116

The numbers above include remuneration and pension entitlements for each director, Detalls are included in the Directors’

Rermuneration Report on pages 66 to 85.

2023

nurnber

Chartenng 253
Risk Advisory 32
Investment Advisory 63
Central 36
Continuing operations as4
Discontinued operations -
Total 384

The directors’ remuneration is borne by Braemar Plc
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2022
£'006
68,043
1,613
3,347
2,951

75,954
8344

84,298

2022
number

243
18
57
44

362
190

552
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6 Staff costs continucd

Sy ey P T S PR S

The remuneration of key management, which the Group considers to be the directors, is set out below. Further information about

the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 86,

2023
£'000
Salaries, short-term employee benefits and fees 5,879
Other pengion costs 52
Share-based payments 1,226
Total 7157

2022
Qo0

3,484
A4
521

4,046

Pension costs relate to contributions made to a defined contrisution pension scheme on behalf of three (2022 three) members of

key managerent.

7 Auditor’s remuneration
A more detalled analysis of the auditor's services is given below

2023
£000
Audit services.
- Fees payable 1o the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company’s Financial Staterments 740
Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates for other services:
- The audit of the Group's subsidianes pursuant to legisiation 457
- Other service — interim review 157
1,354
All fees paid to the auditor were charged tc operating profit n both years.
8 Finance income and costs
2023
Note £'000
Finance income:
— Gan on rmodfication of deferred consideration 10 -
- Interest on bank deposits 84
- Interest on lease receivables 35
- Interest on ¢f Cory earnout deferred consideration recewable 83
Total finance income 202
Finance costs.
- Interest payable on revolving credit and overdraft faciliics (1,151)
— Interest payable on defined benefit lability (54)
- Foreign exchange loss on derivative instruments not eligible for hedge accounting {292)
- Foreign exchange loss on non-GBP denominated credtt facilities (a9)
- Foreign exchange and derivative (foss)/gan on Naves liability (250)
- Interest payable on convertible loan notes (4286)
Subtotal fnance costs before interest on lease habilities (2,222)
- Interest on lease habiities {176)
Total finance costs (2,397)
Finance costs - net (continuing operations only) (2,195)
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2022
£000

540
334

86
960

2022
£000

172

72

263

(Q30)
{73)

225
{(130)

{208}
{329)

(1,237
(©84)
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9 Taxation

Current tax

UK corporation tax charged to the Income Statement
UK adjustment in respect of previous years

Overseas tax on profits in the year

Overseas adjustment in respect of previous years

Total current tax

Deferred tax

UK current year onigination and reversal of temporary differences

Due to change In rate of tax

UK adjustment in respect of previous years

Overseas current year ongination and reversal of temporary differences
Overseas adjustment in respect of previous years

Total deferred tax

Taxation

Taxation on continuiNg operations
Taxaticn on discontinued operations

Taxation

Reconciliation between expected and actual tax charge

Profit before tax from continuing cperations

Profit before tax at standard rate of UK corporation tax of 19%, (2022 19%.)

Utilsation of deferred tax asset at lower effective tax rate
Net expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Utiisation of previously unrecognised losses

Tax on overseas branch

Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable to profits in overseas subsidanes

Other dfferences leading 1o a {(decrease)/increase in tax
Share scheme movements™

Unrecognised deferred tax on losses*

Prior year adjustments**

Total tax charge for the year

Governance R

2023
£'000

1,194
4,559
394

6,147

(190)
(242)
(712)
(148)

1,292)
4,855

4,855

4,855

2023
£'000

9,451

1,796
22
1,680

(104)
672
758

(13)
316

({1786}
4

4,855

2022
E£°000

335
3432
517)

3,250

1,838
866

2,708

2022
£000

8,643

1,623
69
8343
(478)
234
392
4
228
{(135)
(941

1838

©Inthe prior year a single net amount of £03.000 was disclosed in respect of share scheme movements and unrecogrised deferred tax on losses To provide
further nformation, the comparative nformation has been updaled to spit out the £228 000 in relation to share scherme movements and £0135,0G0) in relatior

to urrecogrised deferred Lax on losses

*tIncluded within prior year adjustments in 202218 the release of overprovided corporation tax creditor of £0 8 milion in respect of Singapore following & tax rate

change from 17 0% 0 10 5%

Included within the total tax charge 1s £02 millon (2022 £05 milion) n respect of specific tems disclosed separately on the face

of the Income Staterment. See Note 10

A tax charge of £nil (2022, £03 millon] is included in the results for discontinued cperations as a result of the trading loss

contained therein (see Note 11} This tax charge arose rmanly as a result of the trading profits of Cory Brothers
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9 Taxation continued
P T T a.-‘i“!-\"

The Group's future tax charge will be sensitive to the geographic mix of profits earned, the tax rates in force and changes to the
tax rules in junsdictions that the Group operates in The UK Man rate is to increase to 26% from 1 April 2023 The impact of UK rate

changes on deferred tax were taken into account in the prior year

Reconcillation between expected and actual tax charge

Profit befare tax from discontinued operations

Profit before tax at standard rate of UK corporation tax of 19% (2022 19%)

Due to change In rate of tax

Net gamns not taxable for tax purposes
Utiisation of iosses

Other differences leading to increase N tax
Temporary differences

Other prior year adjustrnents

Total tax charge for the year

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuanal gain in respect of defined benefit pension schame

Deferred tax charge on defined benefit pension scheme
Movement in opering balance due to change in rate of tax

Sub-total
Total

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Cash flow hedge

Deferred tax charge on cash flow hedge
Movement in opening balance of tax due to change In rate of tax

Sub-total

Total

Total tax recognised in OCl

Total amounts recognised in OCI

2023
£000

2023
£'000

2,775

{414)

(M4)

2,361

388

(27)

(97)

291

(511)
2,652

2022
£000

8,081
1535

(1,098}
(74

88
406

866
2022
£000
1,391

(348)
275

{73)

1,318

{2.482)

620
(106)

614

(1,968)

44
(650)

Included within the UK current vear ongmnabon and ieversal of temporary differences 15 a debit of £44,000 (2022 £348000 credt)

Inrespect of deferred tax on the actuanal gan on the Group's defined cenefit pension scheme
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Deferred Tax Asset

At 1 March 2021
(Charge)/credit to Statement of Total
Comprehensive Income

Cradit 1o equity

At 28 February 2022

{Charge)/credit to Income Staternent
Charge to Other Comprehensive Income
Credt to equity

Balance at end of year
The movemnent in the net deferred tax asset
Balarce at beginring of year

Movement to Income Statement:
Adustments In respect of prior years

Strategic Report

Acceleraled
capital
allowances

80

(128)

{48)

Trading
losses

748

(498)

248
{248)

Movement in opening balance due to changé in rate of tax 25%/19%

Arising on pension costs
Arnsing on bonuses
Arising on other

Total movement to Income Statement

Balance ansing on business combinations
Movement to other comprehensive imcome:

Moverment in opening balance due to change in rate of tax 25%/19%

Related deferred tax asset
Movernent to ecity

Total movement to equity and other comprehensive income

Balance at end of year

Governance

Bonuses

713

3

Other
PIovISIONS

758

(285)
442

913
219
(511)

621

Employee
benefits

1,318

569

1.887

863
2,750
2023
£'000
3,713

390

29
832
170

1,291
(9086)

{511}
863

362

4,450

Toral

2,900

37
442

3,713
729
(51)
863

4,704
2022
£000
2,900

80

472

(94)
(187}

371

16
273

442

3,713

A deferred tax asset of £4.8 milion (2022: £37 millon) has been recognised as the directors believe that it 1s probable that there

will be suficiont taxakle profits in the future to recover the asset n full

vl A

Analysis of the deferred tax liabllities

Temporary differences

Balance at end of year

The movement in the deferred tax liability

Balance at begnning of year

Balance arising on business combinations

Adjustment in respect of previous vears

Current year ongination and reversal of temporary differences

Balance at end of year
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As at
28 Feb 2023
£'000

(344)
(344)

As at
28 Feb 2023
£°000

(908}

662
{344)

Ag al
28 Feb 2022
000

As at
28 Feb 2027
£000

(174

174
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9 Taxation cont nued
T LI
No deferred tax has been provided in respect of temporary differences assoclated with Investments In subsicianes and interests in
Joint ventures where the Group 1s In a position to control the tming of the reversal of the temporary differences and It is probable
that such differences will not reverse In the foreseeable future The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
nvestments in subsidiaries, for which a deferred tax hability has not been recognised, is approximately £nil {2022, £01 million).

10 Specific items

The following 1s a summary of specific items incurred Each tem meets the defintion of specific tems detailed in Note 3 {u) and
has an impact on the reported results for the year that is considered material either by size or nature and 15 not expected t© be
incurred on an ongeing kasis and. as such, will not form part of the underlying profit in future vears

2023 2022
£'000 £000
Other operating income:
- Gain on purchase of Southport 3,643 -
- (Gain on revaluation of Cory contingent consideration recewvable 203 -
3,846 -
Operating costs
- Commission obhgation (257) -
— impairment of financial assets (848} -
- Impairrment of goodwill {9,060} -
- Other operating costs (98) (392
(10,253) (392)
Acquisition-refated tems
- Consideration for Southport treated as an employment expense {1,325) -
- Madnd transaclion costs . (264) -
- Acquisition of Naves Corporate Finance GmbH (G0) (122)
- Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (350) -
(1,999) (122)
Discontinued operations:
- Wavespec - (1,787
- Cory Brothers - 4134
- AqualisBraemar - 3,375
- 5722
Other tems:
- Finance income - credit on modfication of deferred consideration - 172
- Finance income - Cory Brothers earnout deferred consideration receivable 83 -
- Finance expense - foreign exchange and derivative loss on Naves lability (266) -
Total (8,589} 5,380

A gain on purchase In relation 1o the acquisition of Southport was recognised during the year, with further details provided in Note 14,
The Group does not consider this gain to reflect the performance of the business in the year, and so 1s freated as a specific tern
Revaluation of the contingent receivable due in respect of the Cory Brothers disposal resufted in a gan of £0.2 million {see Note 23).
The tax charge on specific items included within other operating mcome was £nil (2022 £nil}

As set out n Note 28 Provisions, the Group has recognised a provision in relation to an uncertain commigsion obhgation. During the

penod, and amount of £0.3 million was recognised to increase the provision Due to the nature of the provision being an historical
transaction and not related to current trading, the Group has treated the cost in the year as a specihic item
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Dunng the year, an impairent charge of £08 millon was recognised in relation to a disputed staff loan with an ex-employee

of our Indian opérations Since no significant pregress had been made with the ongoing legal case it 1s now the opinicn of the
directors that recovery of this debt is unlikely Due to the size of the impairment and the fact that the orniginal debst arose several
years previously and s not related to trading, this impairment charge 1s not deemed to relates to the performance of the business
in the year and as such is treated as a specific item

In addtion, the final transaction costs of £01 millon related to disposals in the prior year were received In the pnor year, a loss of
£04 million was recognised in other operating costs arising from the impairment to a right-of-use asset in respect of a London
office which was vacated by AgualisBraemar LOC ASA (see Note 17 for more detalls)

During the year an mparment of goadwill of £91 milion was recognised in relation to the goodwill allocated to the Corparate
Finance busmess Further details are provided i Note 156 The Group does not believe that this impairment reflects the performance
of the business dunng the year, and as such, s treated as a specific item

The tax Income on specific items Included within operating costs was £01 million (EO1 millon charge)

F I N L L L
As set out in Note 14, as a result of the acquisition of Southport, due to the reguirement for cngeing employee service, the upfront
cash payment of £60 miion and working capital adustment of £06 millicn are treated as a post-combination remuneration expense
In addtion to the IFRS 2 charge related to share awards made to the sellers and existing employees of Scuthport. The total expense
related to amounts Inked to ongeoing employee service in connection with the acquisition of Scuthport was £13 milion in the year
The period of required employee service s three years from the acquisition date As a result, this specfic iterm will exist in future
periods In addition, as explained further iIn Note 14, the Group recognised a gain on acquisition of Southport. Consistent with the

Group's palicy on specific items, this cost does not reflect the performance of the business and so 1s treated as a specific tem

As a result of the recruitment of a team of brokers based in Madnd, service agreements were entered into with employees
The recruitment of the broker team in Madnd included the following key elements

- The Group assumed a liabiiity of £0.3 million for a post-contractual payment to the employees, which was fully vested on
signing the contracts

- Anupfront cash payment of £13 mulion with a further payment of £13 million due in December 2023

- Share awards lo a total value of FO8 milhon which vest evenly in one, two and three years from December 2022

The upfront payrments and share awards have a clawback mechanism which 1s inked to the continuad employment of the
brokers over a three-year period from December 2022 The costs associated with the upfront payments and share awards are
not considered by the Group to be specific items But the cost related to the post-contractual payment obligation is treated as a
specific item because it 1s akin to a transaction cost with no reguirement to provide service

Costs of £04 rllion (2022: £01 millon) are directly linked to the acquisition of Naves Corporate Finance GmbH. In the current

year £0.3 milliory rélates to foreign currency translation losses on the euro labilities linked to the acquisiion of Naves Corporate
Finance GrmbH and £01 millon in relation to an 1AS 19 service cost. The prior year expenditure included £01 milion related to foreign
exchange transtation of euro labilities linked to the acguisiion of Naves Corporate Finance GrmbH.

An amount of £04 million relates to the amortisation of acquired intangible assets, primarily in relation to intangible assets
recognised as a result of the acguisition of Scuthport

The tax charge on acquistion-related items wag £01 milion (2022, £nil)

in the prior year, the Group recognised a net gain of £6.7 millon on the disposal of discontinued operations. Gans arose on the
disposal of Cory Brothers, AqualisBraemar and Wavespec of £41 milllon, £3 4 million and £0 8 milion respectively, which were offset
by an impairment charge of £2.4 million on the consideration due in respect of Wavespec. See Note 1l

T

The unwinding of the discounting of the deferred recevable due in respect of the Cory Brethers disposal contributed interest
income of £01 milhon {see Note 23) This incorme s not 1eiated 1o the trading of the business n the period but is related to the
disposal of the logistics business In the prior year As a result, it s treated as specific item

The foreign exchange loss and farr value loss on the Naves-related labiliies and dernvative of £03 militon 1s included as a specific
item as it relates to the acquisition of Naves and is not related to trading In the prior year, on 3 June 2021 the Group completed a
restructunng of the deferred consideration amounts in relation to the acquisition of Naves This resulted in a gain on modification
of £02 millon, which 1s classified as specific finance income (see Note 27) The Naves-related gans and losses do not relate to the
trading performance of the businesses during the year, and as a result are classified as specic items The tax charge on specific
iterns included within other items was £0.2 million (2022 £nil)
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11 Discontinued operations
During the year ended 28 February 2022, the Group has sold its Engineenng Owision, Wavespec, its Logistics Division, Cory
Brothers, and its entire sharsholding in AgualisBraemar

(IR AT T T I SR

2023 2022
Undenrlying Specific Total underhying Spechic Total
£°000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Wavespec - - - (146) 1,787) (1,833
Cory Brothers - - - 1563 4134 b 697
AquahsBraermar - - - 76 3.375 3,451

Profit - - - 1493 5722 7216

On 31 March 2021, the Group completed the sale of Wavespec. which was classfied as held for sale at 28 February 2021 A gain
of £06 milion was recogrised on disposal. The sale was for maxinmum consideration of £2.6 milion which was expected to

be satisfied by the 1ssuance of a promissory note with a maturity date of 31 March 20268 The disposal agreerment contaned

an cbligation for the buyer to secure the note y providing a standby letter of credit 1Issued by an nternational bank with an
acceptable credit rating Should they fall to deliver such a letter of credit, the Group could elect to recenve a sum of cash of

£08& million from the buyer with the balance of the note of £21 milion remaining unsecured The far value of the consideration
was F24 milicn At 28 February 2022, the buyer had not delivered a secured lefter of credit nor had the cash sum of £05 millien
been received The letter of credt and cash dues continue to e outstanding at 28 February 2023 Management belleve that the
consideration {farr value of £24 million} 1s unlikely to be receved and the amount was provided for in full (charge of £24 million) in
the year ended 28 February 2022,

Year ended
28 Feb 2022
£000
Underlying.
Revenue 15
Costs (161)
Trading loss before tax (146)
Taxation -
Underlying loss for the year frorn Wavespec (146)
Specific terns
impairment to far value and other disposal costs (7
Gain on disposal 504
Credit impairment charge (2,374)
Loss from specific tems (1,787
Loss for the year from Wavespec (1933)
No taxation anses in relation to ths discontinued opération as Wavespec was loss making.
A reconciiabon of the derecogrition of the Wavespec assets held for sale to gan on disposal is as follows
£000
Intangibles 90
Property plant and equipment 1
Cash 53
Trade and other recewvables 207
Trade and other payables @271
Net assets held for sale digposed of 165
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Disposal proceeds

Net assets disposed of
Loan waiver

Disposal refated costs

Gain on disposal of Wavespec

Intercompany loans totalling £10 millon were owed to the Group from Wavespec were waved on disposal
There were nc cash proceeds from disposal in the peried.

[ A S R AT

£000
2374
168)
(1.006)
(608)

594

Cn 28 February 2022 the Company sold Cory Brothers to Vertom Agencies BV for a maximum consideration of £155 milhan,

Initial cash proceeds were £65 millon, in addition, three further cash payments are due based on a percentage of the gross
profit of the combined VertomCory business Each of the three earncut payments I1s subject 1o a minimum and a maxmum The
minimum aggregate earnout payment 15 £3./75 milion and the maximum aggregate earnout payment is £90 million The initial
estimate of the far value of the deferred and contingent consideration was £4.8 milion, preserted wihin recevables {more detan

on the calculation of the deferred consideratton is included in Note 23).

The profit on disposal ncluding foreign exchange recyciing totalled £4 2 million for the year ended 28 February 2022

Undertying
Rovonue
Costs

Trading profit before tax
Finance income
Finance expense

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Underlying profit frorm Cory Brothers
Specific temns
Gain on disposal

Total profit from Cory Brothers

A reconciliation of the derecognition of the Cory Brothers assets held for sale to gain on disposal 1s as follows.

Goodwill

Intangibles

Property, plant and eqguipment
Investments

Cash

Trade and other recevables
Trade and other payables

Net assets held for sale disposed of
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Year ended
28 Feb 2022

£:000

45215
{42,759)

2456
9
(36)

2,429
(868)

1,683

4134
5,697

£000

3,646
1120
1,220
19
12,353
15,10
{27042)

6,595
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11 Discontinued operations contnued

[P R

£'000
Disposail proceeds — completion payment €,500
Cisposal proceeds — earn-out payments (deferred) 4,758
Net assets disposed of (6,595)
Disposal-related costs 492}
FX recycing (37}
Gan on disposal of Cory Brothers for the year ended 28 February 2022 4134

Note 23 describes the valuation of the deferred receivable ansing from the earn-out payments

A sensitivity analysis of the contingent consideration 1o changes in the gross profits and discount rate is provided in Note 23

L TOT I S
The Group recogrised ts minority shareholding in AgualisBraemar as an investment In associate until its cisposal on 19 May 2021

In the prior year, the Group's share of profit of asscciate and the profit on disposal ncluding foreign exchange recycling totalled
£35 million (see Note 20}

Year ended
28 Feb 2022
£000
Underlying:
Share of asscoiate profit for the period — trading 76
Specific items
Profit on disposal 3,375
Profit from specific tems 3,375
Total profit for the penod from AgualisBraemar 3,451
L T T T S O N SATUE A SN TR AT I
The basic and diuted earnings per share in respect of discontinued operations were as follows.
Year ended
28 Feb 2022
Basic earnings per share 2382p
Diluted earnings per share 19.24p

. ot ot . ¢ ) : Vi R L
During the year there were net cash inflows of £65 million relating to nvesting activities concerning discontinuad operations,
being the cash proceads on completion of the Cory Brothers disposal. In the prior year, the cash flows relating to discontinued
operations were net operating cash nflows of £7.3 milion, net cash outflows relating to investing activities of £4.7 million, which
includes the £/72 million proceeds from the sale of AqualisBraemar shares less the combined cash of £12 4 million held within
Wavespec and Cary Brothers at the time of ther disposal
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12 Dividends

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year.
2023 2022
£'000 E£'000

Ordinary shares of 10 pence each

Final dividend of 70 perce per share for the year endad 28 February 2022 (2022 50 pence per share) 2,018 1499
Interim dwidend of 40 pence per share (2022, 20 pence per share) 1,172 610
3,190 2,109

The dividends paid by the Group during the year ended 28 February 2023 totalled £32 milhon (10 pence per share) which
comprised a final dvidend in respect of the year ended 28 February 2022 of £20 millon {70 pence per share) paid on 14 October
2022 and an interim dividend for the year ended 28 February 2023 of £12 milion (40 pence per share) paid on 4 January 2023,

The nght to receive dvidends on the shares held in the ESOP has been waved (see Note 31). The dividend saving through the
wanver 18 £04 milion (2022: £01 miillion)

During the year ended 28 February 2022 the Group paid dividends totallng £21 million {70 pence per share), beng a final dividend
In respect of the vear ended 28 February 2022 of £16 millon (50 pence per share) paid on 21 September 2021 and an interim
dividend for the year ended 28 February 2022 of £C6 millon (20 pence per share) paid on 16 December 2021,

In December 2022 the Compary cormmenced a project to research vanous options for increasing the distnbutable reserves
avallable to the Cornpany in order to support the stated progressive dividend policy After the payment of an intenm drvidend in
January 2023, the outcome of the research identfied an accounting practice of the Company used since IFRS 2 was introduced in
2005, which carmed realised gains which could only be used In very Imited creumstances with the conseguence that a signiicant
balance within retained garnings (that was not previcusly identified as created by unrealised gains) was ncorrectly used by the
Company in the calculation of distributable reserves,

Dividends paid between 2016 and 2023 were therefore paid by the Company wathout having sufficient districutable reserves
fram which to lawfully pay thern Having identified these issues, to rectify the gap in retained earnings and the unlawful payment
of dividends, after the Balance Sheet date, the Company reduced its share premium account and capital redemption reserve
and capitalised and reduced £198 rnillon of the merger reserve {*Capital Reduction”) and entered into releases from iiability for
the beneht of shareholders and directors (to ensure that no person was disadvantaged as a conseguence of the payment of
unlawful dividends)

0On 16 February 2023 the Company entered into deeds of release in favour of shareholders receving the unlawful dividends and
the directors of the Company at the time the unlawful dividends were paid. These releases were conditionat on various conditions,
including shareholder approval for the Capital Reduction the Capital Reduction becoming effective. and the terms of the deeds of
release for shareholders and directors. At a General Meeting of the Company on 14 April 2023, shareholders approved the Capital
Reduction and the deeds of refease for sharehoiders and directors which allowed the Company to proceed with the process for
the Capital Reducthon by seeking approval from the High Court of Justice On 9 May 2023 the High Court approved and confirmed
the Caprtal Reduction and on 5 June 2023 the Capital Reduction becarne effective providing the Company with £739 millon of
distributatle reserves at that time,

For the year ended 28 February 2023, a final ordinary dvidend of 80 pence per share has been proposed totaling £2 6 million
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13 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the earnings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, excluding ordinary shares held by the Employee Share Ownership Plan
and ordinary shares held by the ACM Employee Benefit Trust which are not treated as outstanding

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue i adjusted to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Group has dilutive ordinary shares, being those options granted to employees where the
expected consideration is less than the average market price of the Company's ordinary shares during the perod that they are
outstanding, and convertible loan notes issued in respect of the acquisiion of Naves

2023 2022

Total operations £°000 £000
Profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders 4,598 13210
pence pence

Basic earnings per share 15.85 4566
Effect of diutive share options (2.60) (8.43)
Diluted earnings per share 13.25 3713
2023 2022

Underlying operations E£'Q000 £000
Underlying profit for the year attnbutable to shareholders 13,399 8,539
pence pence

Basic earnings per share 46.22 2795
Effect of dilutive share options {7.70) (5.17)
Diuted earnings per share 38.52 2278

A reconciiation by class of instrument n relation to potential ditutive ordinary shares and their impact on earnmngs is set out below:

2023 : 2022
Woeighted ) Weighled
average Underlying Statutory average Underlying Statutory
number of earnings earnings numter of earnings earmings
shares £000 E:000 shares £'000 E000
Used in basic earnings per .
share 28,990,885 13,399 30552632 8539 13,919
RSP, DBP and LTIP 6,428,815 - 6,790,205 - -
Optians (SAYE) 218,764 - - 1479098 - -
Convertible loan notes 201,118 20 20 - - -
Used in diluted earnings per
share 34,837,582 13,419 4,616 37490785 8,639 13,912

14 Business combinations — acquisition of Scuthport Maritime Inc.
On 18 Decermber 2022, Braemar Plc acquired 100% of the issued capital of Southport Martime Inc (*Southport™. Southport 1s a
tanker broker basad in Narth Amenca, and thelr adddion s a key part of the Group's strateqc glabial growth plan

Southport strongly complements our existing Tanker desks in London, Singapore, Houston, and Geneva, and provides the ideal
platforrn for the Group to penetrate new markets and add further scale and reach to our global shipbroking activities

Consideration for the acquisiion was made up of

1} E£60 millon ($7.3 mitkon) cash paid on completion,
i) £06 millon ($0.7 milion} estimated working capital adjustment; and
i £26 milion ($30 millon) relating to 1016121 shares in Bragmar Plc

The cash amount of £8.0 millon i subject to a clawback Iinked to continued service under the terms of the Sale and Purchase
agreement with one third of the amount vestng to the sellers each year following completion. The working capital adiustment is
also subject to an employment service condition up to the date that it 1s agreed. The cash payments are treated as prepayments
for service with the cost recognised cver the vesting penod
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The Braermar Plc shares are subject to an employment condition and wit be issued on the third anniversary of completion, provided
the sellers are employees of the Group {(or the seller s a Good Leaver). The share consideration which 1s linked to ermployment 1s
accounted for as a share-based payment under IFRS 2 with the accounting charge recognised on a straight-line basis over the
three years from acquisition date to the vesting date. In addition to the grant of share awards to the sellers, other awards were
granted to key employees and are accounted for in the same way as the awards made to the sellers.

The acquisition date balance sheet of Southport, 1s summansed below

£000
Intangible assets 3,545
Property, plant and equipment 166
Trade and other receivables 2126
Cash 3492
Lease labllines (86)
Trade and other payables (1.347)
Corporation tax (203)
Deferred tax liabilty {908)
Net asset acquired 3.643
Farr value of consideration _
Gain on acquisition 3,643

The gross contractual value and far value of acquired recenvables was £21 million, As at the acquisition date, the fuil amaount
of receivables was expected to be collected. Intangible assets include Customer-related {relationships and order backlog) of
£30 millon, along with an intangible asset In relation to the Southport trade narme of £05 million

The accounting gain on acquisiton of £36 million arises due to the requirements of IFRS 3 which result in all consideration with an
employrmenl service condition being treated as a post-combination remuneration expense, rather than the economic reality that
they also represent the commeraial consideration for the acquired business. Because there is no consideration under IFRS 3, the
cash in the acquired business I1s reflected as a cash inflow for the Group In the Cash Flow Staternent.

The revenue and loss of Southport included in the Group's annual results are £3.7 millon and (£0.2 millon) respectively. Had the
acguisition taken place at the beginning of the financial year, the Group's revenue would have been £103 million higher than
reperted. and its profit would have been lower by £20 million

15 Goodwill

£'000
Cost
At 28 February 2021 91,614
Disposal of Cory Brothers (3.645)
Exchange adustments (419)
At 28 February 2022 875060
Exchange adjustments 566
At 28 February 2023 88,116
Accumulated impairment
At 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2021 7669
Impairment charge recognised in the year 9,050
At 28 February 2023 16,709
Net book value at 28 February 2023 71,407
Net book value at 28 February 2022 70,891
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15 Goodwill continued
All goodwillis allocated to cash-generating units The allocation of goodwill to groups of cash-generating units 1s as follows:

2023 2022
£'000 £°000
Chartering 68,696 68,696
Corporate Finance (part of Investment Advisory segment) 2,71 1185

M,407 79,891

These groups of cash-generating untts represent the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is menitored for internal
management purposes.

Following the simplfication of the Group's activities and the way in which information 18 now presented to the Group's Chief
Cperating Decision Maker, the Group's operating segments are Chartering, Investment Adwvisory and Risk Advisory The Chief
Operating Decision Maker 1s considered to be the Group's board of directors These three segments are managed separately on
the basis of the nature of the services offered to cllents and differences in the regulatory environment applicable to each segment
Previously the Group’s operating segments were based on a Divisional structure of Shipbroking and Financial The goodwaill
allocated to Shipbroking In 2022 1s now allocated to Chartering on the basis that the gocdwill arose and benefited the same CGUs
which were included in the Shipbroking segment and now included in the Chartering segment. Goodwill allocated to Corporate
Financial in 2022 continues to be allocated to Corporate Finance within the Investment Advisory segment in 2023

The table below llustrates the change i segment structure

2023 2022
Segment Chartering Shipbroking
Component Deep Sea Tankers Deep Sea Tankers
Specialised Tankers Specialised Tankers
Offshore Offshere
Dry Cargo Dry Cargo
Sale and Purchase
Secunties
Segment Investment Advisory Financial
Componrent Corporate Finance Corporate Finance

Sale and Purchase

Segment Risk Advisory
Cornponent Securities

Al goodwill is denominated in the Group's reporting currency, with the exception of the Corporate Finance Division which
is denominated in euros Goodwill denominated N foreign currencies is revalued at the Balance Sheet date The exchange
adjustrnent at 28 February 2023 was a gain of £566000 (2022 loss of £412000)

The Logistics Division, Cory Brothers, was disposed of on 28 February 2022, the goodwill previously held in respect of this cash-
generating unit was therefore disposed of. See Note 11

The Group I1s reauired to test, on an annual basis, whother goodwill has suffered any Imparment The recoverable amount is
determined based on value-in-use calculations The use of this method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the
determination of a discount rate in crder to calculate the present value of the cash fiows

The key assumptions on which the value-In-use calculations are based relate to () business performance over the next five years,
(i} long-term growth rates beyond 2027 and (i) discount rates applied

i} Business performance over the next five years — The estimated cash flows were based on the approved annual budgst for
the next financial year and projections for the following four years which are based on management's estimates of revenue
growth and cost nflation which reflect past expenience and management's expectahon of future events given the specfic risks
and economic and market conditions of each cash-generating unit Cash flows have been used over a percd of five years as
management beleves this reflects a reasonable time horizon for management to monitor the trends in the business.

il Long-term growth rates — this is the average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget pericd The rate 1s
consistent with forecasts included in incustry reports.

) Discount rates - The pre-tax discount rate was determmed based on a weaighted average cost of capital ("WACC”) and
adjusted for CGU-specific nsk factors specific to the CGU group.
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The results of the imparment tests are as follows'

G :
The key assumptions and resulting net present values are as follows:

Chartering 2023 2022
Post-tax discount rate 13.04% 1087%
Equivalent pre-tax discount rate 16.47% 1318%
Average revenue growth rate 3.5% 50%
Cperating proft margin years 2-5 15.0 - 15.4% 125 -161%
Long-term growth rate 1.7% 17%

A1 28 February 2023, the net present value of the Chartering segment is sigruficantly higher than the carrying value of the goodwill
in respect of this cash-generating unit At the Balance Sheet date, management conchuded that there were no reasonably possible
changes in the key assumplions used in the impairment review that wouid reduce headroom to nil or result in an imparment.

S I N I E

Revenues for the Corporate Finance Drvision are challenging to forecast because of the highly vanable nature of success fees.
Management forecasts over the pencd of two to five years consider recent performance and reflect managernent's best estmate
of success fee taken iNto account of volatility of the success fee. Growth rates used in the value-in-use test reflect this vanability
and were based on the best estimate of the Management.

Corporate Finance 2023 2022
Post-tax discount rate 14.82% 12 37%
Equivalent pre-tax discount rate 20.66% 15.01%
Average revenue growth rafe 5.0% 8.0%
Operating profit margin years 2-5 1.6% - 14.4% 345% - 456%
Long-term growth rate 1.7% 1.7%

The goodwill included m the Corporate Finance Division arose from the acquisition of Naves Corporate Finance GmioH in 2017,
At 28 February 2023. the recoverable amount of the Corporate Finance Division 1s based on a value-in-use of £2.835000, which
is lower than the carrying value of its assets This Is as a result of market conditions and trading below expectations in the year
to 28 February 2023 and an ncrease In discount rate from 16013 1in 2022 to 2086% 1n 2023 as well as a raduction in forecast
revenues compared to management view in the prior year. As a result, Management recognised an impairment of £91 milion at
28 February 2023

BRI A S PR o
To test the sensitivity of the results of the impairment review, the calculations have been re-performed, flexing the three
key assumptions

- revenue growth rate,
- post-tax discount rate, and
- revenue cutperforms or underperforms forecast

Change in post-tax Revenue oculperforms or
Change in revenue growth discount rate underperlorms forecast
+1% -1% +2% -2% +15% -15%
£000 £0C0 £:000 £000 £000 £000
Corporate Finance 372 (363) (383) 523 1,702 (1,702)

The effect on cash flows of ¢limate change was considered but assessed to have no materal impact at this time Management
does not believe that climate-related risks nor the potential impact of climate change on the Group's opearations would matenially
affect the recoverability of goodwillin erther of the cash-generating units (see Note 2)

-
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16 Other intangible assets

Other
Computer intangible
software assets Total
Note £°000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 28 February 2021 6,420 1,005 17425
Addrtions 515 - 515
Disposal of Cory Brothers (1,344) {1,480) (2.824)
Exchange rate adjustments (5) - {5)
At 28 February 2022 5,586 9,625 15,111
Additions Q0 - 20
Business combination 14 - 3545 3,545
Disposals 87) - (87)
Exchange rate adjustments 5 33 38
At 28 February 2023 5,594 13,103 18,697
Amortisation
Al 28 February 2021 4775 10,521 16,296
Charge for the year 346 107 4563
Reclassified as held for sale (275} {1.359) (1,634
Exchange adjustments 1 - )
At 28 February 2022 4,845 9,269 14,114
Charge for the year 192 349 54
IMmpairmernit 60 - 60
Exchange adjustments 1 1 2z
At 28 February 2023 5,098 8,619 14,717
Net book value at 28 February 2023 496 3,484 3,980
Net book value at 28 February 2022 741 256 og7

Other Intangible assets brought forward from the pricr year relate to forward bocks of Income acquired in acguisitions which are
beng amortised over the perod that the ncome 1s being recognised; customer relationships which are amortised over a period
of up to twelve years; and brand which is being amortised over a peniod of up to ten years

The addition of £35 millon relates to the acquisttion of Scuthport, which gives rise to customer-related intangble assets of
£31 million (including customer relationships of £2 8 million and order backlog of £03 milion) and an asset of £04 million in
relation to the tradename The amortsation period for customer relationships 1s twelve years, order backlog 1s four months,
and tradename s five yvears

The customer relationships and order backlog have been valued using an excess earnings method Under the excess earnings
method. a stream of revenue and expenses are identified as those associated with a particular group of assets This group

of assets includes the subject ntangible asset as well as other assets (contributory assets) that are necessary to support the
earnings associated with the subject Intangible asset. By identifying and subtracting contributory assets, the residual earnings are
estimated to be attributable to the subject ntangible asset and are discounted to present value at an appropnate discount rate
(estmated at 19%) The tradename has been valued using a royalty savings method The royalty savings method is a dervation
of the income appreach often used 1o value intangible property that may be hcensed to third parties Under this method, it 1s
assumed that a company, without a similar asset, would license the nght to use this intangible asset and pay a royalty related to
turnover achieved The value of the asset 1s established by calculating the present value of the royalty stream (estimated at 4%)
that the business is saving by owning the asset.

At 28 February 2023, the Group had no contractual commitments for the acquisition of cormputer software or other intangible
assets (2022 £nil)
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17 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Fixtures and
buldings Computers equipment Total
Note £'000 £000 £°000 £000
Cost
At 28 February 2021 - as reported 14,308 259 2,384 17,561
Restaternent’ 475 835 224 1,534
At 28 February 2021 - restated 14,783 1,694 2,608 19,085
Additions at cost 1087 315 337 1,739
Disposals 244) - B3N (875)
Disposal of Cory Brothers {1,294) (416} (478} {2188)
Exchange differences 75 3] 42 123
At 28 February 2022 14,407 1,598 1,878 17884
Additions at cost 757 374 334 1,465
Business combinaticn 14 86 - 80 166
Disposals (2,445) {4 (369) (2,818)
Exchange differences 427 A4 88 556
At 28 February 2023 13,232 2,010 2,011 17,253
Accumulated deprectation
At 28 February 2021 - as reported 5,378 352 1980 7,710
Restaterment’ 565 83b 134 1034
At 28 February 2021 - restated 5,043 1187 2n4 9,244
Charge for the year 2663 148 220 3,03
Disposals (244} - B20) (884}
Imparrment 392 - - 392
Disposal of Cory Brothers {420) (300) (178) (268)
Exchange differences (65) 26 10 (722)]
At 28 February 2022 {restated) 8199 1,081 1546 10,806
Charge for the year 2477 i 175 2,823
Disposals {1,862) () (313) {2166)
Imparment - 150 - 150
Exchange differences 234 25 &1 320
At 28 February 2023 9,058 1,406 1,469 1,933
Net book value at 28 February 2023 4,174 604 542 5,320
MNet hook value at 28 February 2022 6.208 538 332 7078

1 AL 28 February 2021, both cost and accumulated depreciabion have been increased by £15 milion (Computers ncrease of £0 8 mikon, Fixtures and cqupment
increase of EG 2 million: Land and buldings docrease of £65 mifhon) This pnmanly relates to a correction of grossed up dispasals in prior years relating
to business combinations where the addition of the asset was based on its far value at the pont of acausition but the eventual disposal being based
an angnal coast

On 28 March 2022, the Group assigned the lease for its Bevis Marks premises to Beat Capital. The imparment charge of £382000
recognised in the year ended 28 February 2022 1s equal to the subsequent loss on assignment of this lease, being the lease
assignment premium paid plus the net book value of the ROU asset disposed of less the outstanding lease liability. At 28 February
2023, the Group had no contractual commitments for the acguisition of property, plant and equipment {2022: £nil),
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18 Leases

I T

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions from which it operates In some junsdictions it is customary for lease
centracts to provide for payments 10 Increase each year by inflation and in other property leases the penodic rent 1s fixed cver
the lease term The Group also leases certan items of plant and equipment which are typically motor vehicles. These contracts

normally compnise only fixed payrménts over the lease terms

At 28 February 2021
Additions

Amortisation

Irpairment

Disposals

Disposal of Cory Brothers
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022
Additions

Business combination
Depreciation
Disposals

Exchange differences

At 28 February 2023

At 28 February 2021
Additions

Interest expense

Lease payments
Disposal of Cory Brothers
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022
Addttions

Business combination
Disposal

Interest expense
Lease payments
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2023

Land and
buldings

Nate £000

7307
1,036
(2.079)

(392)

(856)
166

5182

M

14 86
{2,079}

(481

166

3,585

Fixtures and
equipment
£o00

138

1

{76)

{10)

(&1)

Note

Total
£000
7445
1,047

(2,155)
(392)
(1)
(Q07)
166

5164
770
86
(2,087)
{491)
167

3,639

Total
£000
12,654
814
329
{3,950}
(1,243)
2

8,606
770
86
(632)
175
{4,039)
161

5,027

Right-of-use assets and lease hatilities arising on business combinations represents lease on property of £88,0C0. For further

details refer to Note 14 Business combinatians.

Total cash outflow for leases 1s £4,039000, of which £175000 represents payment of interest
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At 28 February 2021
Disposal

Interest income

Lease payments

Disposal of Cory Brothers
Moverment in provision
Exchange afferences

At 28 February 2022
Disposal

Interest iIncome

Lease payments
Movement in provision
Exchange dfferences

At 28 February 2023

Short-term lease expense
Short-term iease income

IRV B CE R R

Strategic Report

Centractual payments by matunty are provided in Note 24e

R S N

Contractual receipts by matunty are provided in the table below

Within 102 2tob
1 year Years years
E000 £000 £000
At 28 February 2023 642 241 -
At 28 February 2022 642 642 284

More than
b years
£o00

Governance

Total
£000

883
1,668

Unearned

nterest

F'O00
7

66)

Provision Net
£'060 000
- 2827
- (236)
- 72
- (870
- (272)
18 18)
- (2
(18} 1494
- (39}
- 35
- (642)
6 6
{12) 854
2023 2022
£'000 £000
(217} (234)
a1 73
Net
Prowvision recewvahle
£000 E£000
{12) 854
(18) 1494

During the year, the financial effect of revising lease terms ansing from the effect of exercising extension and termination options
was an increase of £88000 in the recognised lease labilities. As at 28 February 2023, potential future cash outflows of £29 rmilion
{undiscounted) have not been INcluded in the lease iiability because it is not reasonably certain that the leases will be extended

{or not terminated).

19 Investments

Unlisted investrments

The Group recognises uniisted investments at far value through profit or loss

Movement in unlisted investments

At 1 March 2021
Disposal

At 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023
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£000

1,780

2022
000

1,780

Total
£'000

1,962
(182)

1,780
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19 Investments cont nuoed
A list of subsidiary undertakings 1s included in Note 34

The Financial Statements of the pnncipal subsidiary undertakings are prepared to 28 February 2023.
L A RTINS

The Group's unlisted investments include 1000 (20221000} ordinary £1 shares in London Tanker’s Broker Panel Limited. The
investment is carried at far value of E15 million, beng the value of the most recent comparable transaction, which occurred during

the year ended 28 February 2019, There have been no transactions or events in the current or prior year which would result in a
materal adjustment to the fair value at 28 February 2023,

20 Investment in associate

On 22 October 2020 the Group subscribed for 1000 ordinary shares in Zuma Labs Limited. Zuma Labs Limted s a private
company Incorporated in Engtand and Wales and its registered address is Kemp House, 128 City Road, London, United Kingdom,
EC1V 2NX. Zuma Labs Lirnited has one share class and each share carnes one vote

Duning the perod, in accardance with the shareholders’ agreement, four further subscriptions for shares were made totalling of
305 millon (FG3 million), iIncreasing Braemar's shareholding by 1500 shares.

At 28 February 2023 the Group's shareholding was 2500 shares, which equates to 200% of Zuma Labs Limited's share capitai and
200% of voting righits (2022 2500 shares, 20% of share capital and 20% of voting rights) The Group has representation on the
board of Zuma Labs Limted. and as a result, the Group considers that 1t has the power to exercise significant influence In Zuma
Labs Limited and the investrment in it has been accounted for using the equity method

A purchase price alocation exercise was undertaken to measure the farr value of the net assets on the date at which Zuma Labs
Limited became an associate, and also at each date at which further shares were subscribed for Based on the purchase price
allocation exercise, the difference between the cost of the Investment and Braemar's share of the net far value of Zuma Labs
Limned's identinable assets and habilites will be accounted for as goodwill Amortisation of that goodwill 1Is not permitted

IAS 28 requires the most recent Financial Statements of an associate are used for accounting purposes, and that coterminous
information should be used unless it 1s impractical to do so. Zuma Labs Limited has a year end of 31 March and accounts up to

31 December 2022 have peen made available, so for practical reasens Zuma Labs Limited's management accounts for the nine
months ended 31 Decermber 2022 will be used for the purposes of the Group's full-year reperting at 28 February with adjustments
made for any signficant transactions and events Zuma Labs Limited will prepare its next set of Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023, At 28 February 2023 Zuma Labs Limited had no cortingent labilities.

The summarnsed financial nformation of Zuma Labs Limited for the period ended 28 February 2022 15 as follows These figures
are taken from the management accounts of Zuma Labs Limited, adjusted for any far value adjustments but before any
Intercompany elminations

28 Feb 2023
£'000

Balance Sheet
Current assets 177
Non-current assets 223
Currenit liabilites {68)
Net assets (100%) 332
Group share of net assets (20%) 66
Income Statement
Revenues -
Post-tax loss (116)
The Group's share of the loss 23)

Management have reviewsd the carryng vaiue of the investment n Zurma Labs Limited at 28 February 2023 and do not consider
this to be Impaired.
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On 21 June 201¢ the Group recognised an investment in associate as a result of the divestment of the Offshore, Manne and
Adjusting product ines in return for a significant sharehelding in AgualisBraemar LOC ASA AgualisBragmar LOC ASA 1s listed on the
Oslo Bars, its principal place of business is Oslo and its registered address 1s Olav Vs gate 6, 0161, Oslo, Norway AqualisBraermar

LOC ASA has one share class and each share carries one vote

On 28 January 2021 the Group s0ld 2600000 shares and on 19 May 2021 the Group sold its entire remaining shareholding in
AqualisBrasmar LOC ASA, see Note 11. The Group was entitied to representation on the board of AgualisBraemar LOC ASA for as
long as the Group's shareholding remains more than 100% Based on this the Group considers that it had the power to exercise
signficant influence for the year ended 28 February 2022, and until it sofd its shareholding on 19 May 2021 At that pont significant
nfluence was lost, the Group ceased to equity account for AqualisBraermar and the Group's interest in AqualisBraemar was limited
10 tts holding of 8523877 performance-based warrants which were accounted for as a financial asset at far value

On 20 August 2021, 1000000 of the 8523277 warrants vested with the remainder lapsing. A loss on vesting of £2000 was
recognised In specific items The shares received were subsequently sold on 31 August 2021 crystafising a further loss of £4.000

At 28 February 2022 and 28 repruary 2023 the Group's shareholding was nil which equates to 0% of AgualisBraemar's share
capital and 0% of voting rights

The results of AqualisBraemar are presented within discontinued cperations,

Trhe movernents n the mvestrment n associates are provided below.

Zuma AgualisBraermar Total

£000 £'000 £000
At 1 March 2021 418 3,345 3,763
Book value of 450 shares acquired 326 - 326
Share of profit in associate (20) 76 56
Share of associate’s othar comprehensive income - 52 52
Book value of 9640621 shares disposed - (3,473) (3,473}
At 28 February 2022 724 - 724
Share of loss In associate — underlying (23) - (23)
At 28 February 2023 701 - Pt

A reconcilation of the book value of the AgualsBraemar shares disposed of to the profit on disposal in Note 11 1s as follows

19 May 2021
Number of shares sold 9640621
Share price NOK 200

NOK*C00
Gross disposal proceeds 86,776
Broker's commussion at 15%/2% (1,300
Net disposal proceeds 85,475

£000

Net disposal proceeds 7232
Book value of shares sold (3.473)
Legal costs (13)
Recycle of armounts in other comprehensive income (371)
Profit on disposal 3375
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21 Other long-term receivables

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Deferred consideration 2,540 3482
Contingent consideration 1,004 1,276
Security deposits 16 17
Finance lease recevables 228 861
Prapayments 4,766 -
8,554 5,636

Deferred consideration of £25 million and contingent consideration of £10 milion reiates to the earn-out payments receivable in
respect of the disposal of Cory Brothers, further detail 1s provided in Note 23 Prepayments includes an asset of £4.8 millon (2022,
£nil) which is the non-current efement of the clawback provision on joining Incentives paid to certain employees This includes an
amount of £3.6 million added in the year in relation to the acquisition of Southport and £0.2 million in retation to the broker team in
Madnd The recevable is amortised over the clawback period.

See Note 18 for a maturty analysis which reconciles the tong-term finance lease receivables 1o the undiscounted lease receipts
and unearmed finance Income

22 Trade and other receivables

Reslated

2023 2072

£'000 £1000

Trade receivables 31,989 24,270
Provision for imparment of trade recewables (3,725) {3159
Net trade recewvables 28,264 21,81
Deferred consideration 1,097 -
Contingent consideration 403 _
Other receivables 4,148 7822
Finance lease receivables 626 633
Contract assets 3,388 1,965
Prepayments 5,397 3,212
Total 43,323 35,792

Deferred consigeration of £11 miion and contingent consideration of £04 million relate to the earn-out payments receivable in
respect of the dispasal of Cory Brothers, further detail is provided in Note 23

Included in other recervables at 28 February 2022 1s £65 million of completion proceeds relating to the disposal of Cory Brothers
The cash was received on 2 March 2022 Also included in other receivables In both years are security deposits, VAT and other

sales tax receivables and employee loans

Frepayments includes an asset of £4.0 millon (2022: £21 millon) in respect of the current portion of the clawback provigion on
Joining INncentives paid to certain employees which are being charged to the Income Statement In accordance with the clawback
provisions of the underlying contracts This includes an amount of £20 million added in the year in relation to the acquisition of
Southport and £02 millon in relaticn to the broker team in Madnd. The recervabie 1s amortised over the clawback perod.

The movernent in the asset between years is due to the invoicing of all pnor year assets and the accrual of amourts relating 1 the
current year

The total recewvables balance s denominated in the following currencies

Restaled

2023 2022

£°000 £000

US dollars 35,888 20.083
Sterling 6,114 14.451
Other 1,321 1,258
Total 43,323 35,792
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The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade recevables approximate to therr far value

Trade receivables are non-interest bearng and are generally on terms payable within 30-90 days; terms associated with the
settlement of the Group's trade receivables vary across the Group Specific debts are provided for where recovery 1s deemed
uncertain, which will be assessed on a case-by-case basis whenever debts are older than the due date, but always when debts
are older than usual for the industry in which each business in the Group operates.

As at 28 February 2023, trade recevablas of £3003000 (2022 £2008000) which were over 12 months old were treated as credit
imparred and have been provided for No provision (2022 £396,000) has been made for speciic trade receivables which are less
than 12 months overdue

The Group applies the IFRS § simphfied approach to measuring expected credit fosses using a lifetime expected credit loss
pravision for trade recewvables and contract assets To measure expected credit losses on a collective basis, trade recewvables and
contract assets are grouped based on similar credit rsk and ageing. The contract assats have similar nsk characteristics to the
tradie receivables for similar types of contracts,

The expected loss rates are based on the Group's historical credit losses and rates are then adjusted for current and forward-
locking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the Group's customers

The ageing profile of trade recevables and the lifetime expected cradit loss for provisions and contract assets 1s as follows:

Total

provision for

Impatrment

Trade Expected Group ECL . oftrade

receivables loss rate provision provision receivables

2023 £°000 % £'000 £'000 ~  E000

Up to 3 moniths 23,556 0.015 - 333%

3 to 6 months 3,185 0.020 - S

6 to 12 months 2,078 0.051 - L VT

Over 12 months 3,170 0.591 3,033 a9 3,132

Trade recevables 31,989 0.096 3,033 652 3,685

Contract assets 3,388 0.012 - 40 40

Total 35,377 0,020 3,033 692 3.725

Total

provision for

impairment

Trade Expected Group ECL of trade

recenables loss rate RroVISIoN CHOVISION ecewables

2022 £a00 % £000 £000 2000

Up to 3 months 14,562 0015 100 210 310

3 to & months 3,982 0.020 100 77 177

8 to 12 rmonths 4036 ¢ 051 196 196 392

Qver 12 months 2,420 05691 2,008 243 2,251

Trade recawvables 24970 00886 2,404 726 3130

Contract assets 1965 0.015 - 29 29

Total 26,935 0.028 2404 755 3,159
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22 Trade and other receivables continued
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables and contract assets were as foliows

2023 2022

£°000 £'000

At 1 March 3,159 2.85h8
Bad debt charge 238 747
Receivables written off dunng the year as uncollectivle - {204)
Reclassification of other provisions azs -
Transferred on disposal - {242
At 28 February 3,725 3160

L i
The Group's contract assets related to accrued ncome which has not yet been invoiced at the Balance Sheet date Signihcant
changes In contract assets during the period are analysed as follows:

E'000
At 1 March 2022 1,965
Changes due to busmess combinations 647
Contract assets converted to receivables on completion {2,049)
Contract assets ansing on new contracts in-year 2,825
At 28 February 2023 3,388

Contract assets increased by £0.6 milion due to the acquisition of Southport In December 2022; all other moverments In contract
assets anse from normal underlying operations.

23 Deferred and contingent consideration receivable

FEE T O R TR S I I [ B TR S A I P IR I

On 28 February 2022 the Company sold Cory Brothers to Vertom Agencies BV for maximum consideration of £155 millon Initia!
cash proceeds of £65 milion were receved on completion of the transaction and three further cash payments are due contingent
on an agreed percentage of future gross profit of the combined VertomCery business These “earmout” payments are subject to a
combined minimum of £375 million and a combined maximum of £90 mdlion.

Each agreed minimum earnout payment is presented as deferred consideration recegnised at amortised cost, using a discount
rate of 230% deterrmined on initial measurement. The uncertain elerment of each eamout payments is recogrised at far valle
through profit or loss and presented as contingent consideration

The far value of the contimgent censideration is calculated using the forecast gross profit for the combined VertomCory business
for each earnout penod, applying the agreed percentage, deducting the minimum payment and discounting the forecast
contingent cashflow using the discount rate of 529% (2022: 2.39%).

Deferred and contingent consideraticn are included in other long-term recevables (see Note 21) and current other recevables
(see Note 22) The amortised cost of the deferred consideration 1s £38 milion (2022: £35 milion) The fair value of the contingent
consideration s £14 million {2022 £1.3 million)

The valuation of the contingent consideration nvolves two cntical estimates the future profitability of the combined business

and the discount rate used to calculate the net present value The future profitability forecasts are based on a business plan
prepared by the combined VerternCory business and was reviewed by management as part of the financial dus diigence process
A discount rate of §29% was used to caleulate the net present value, this was based on the credit sk of Vertom Agencies BY
following a credit check performed by management.

The contingent consideration relating to the first earnout payment is resolved as i 1s based an the performance of the VertomCary

business to December 2022 The receivable held on the Balance Sheet at 28 February 2023 in relation to the first earmnout payment
15 £15 milion (£11 million deferred consideration and £0.4 million contingent consideration),
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Management have considered the sensitivity of the contingent consideration receivable ansing from the second and third
earnout payments to both changes in the estimate of future profitatility of the VertornCory agency business, and the discount

rate selected

Carrying

value as at

28 Feb 2023

£000s

Payment due on 31 May 2023 403
Payrment due on 31 May 2024 515
Payment due on 31 May 2025 489
Total 1,407

Sensiivity Lo the estimate of future
gross profits of the VertomCory

business
Undiscounted agency husiness

value as at Decrease Increase
28 Feb 2023 by 10% by 10%
£'000s £'000s £000s
408 n/a n/a

560 {178 176

560 (187} 187
1,508 (343) 343

Sensitivity to change in the
discount rate selected

Decrease Increase
by 1% pa by 1% pa
£O00s E£'000s
n/a n/a

& ()

11 (10)

17 (16}

The 107 increase/decrcase in future gross profits of the VertomCory agency business considered in the sensibivity analysis 1s
selected to reflect a reasonably likely vanation in outcomes, which lie within range covered by the minimum and maximum earnout
thresholds. The change in discount rate considered reflects the observed range of three-year GBP corporate bond rates with

similar credit risk.

24 Financial instruments and risk management
The Group is exposed through ts operations to the following Hinancial nsks

- Currency nsk
- Interest rate nsk
- Credit risk

- Liguidity risk

In common with all other businesses, the Group 1s exposed to nsks that anse from its use of financial Instruments This note
describes the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing those nisks and the methods used to measure them
Further quantitative information in respect of these nsks is presented throughout the Financial Statements

There have been no substantive changes In the Group's exposure to financial instrument risks, its objectives, poiicies, and other
processes for managing those nsks or the methods used to measure them from previcus periods

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial nisks anse. are as follows

- Trade and other recewvables

- Cash and cash equivalents

— Deferred consideration receivable

- Contingent consideration recevable
- Unlisted investrents

- Trade and other payables

- Revolving credit facility

- Lease liabilities

- Dernvative inancial Instruments

- Defarred consideration payable
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24 Financial instruments and risk management continued

St H N

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group's financial assets and habilites measured at far value through profit and loss. includng therr far value hierarchy, are as
follows Far value 1s the amount at which a financial Instrument could be exchanged in an arr's length transaction, other than in a
forced or iquidated sale.

As at
Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 2B Feb 2023
£'000 £°000 £'000 £°000
Financial assets

Unlisted investment - 1,780 - 1,780
Contingent consideration receivable - - 1,407 1,407
Dervative contracts* - 1,254 - 1,254
Total - 3,034 1,407 4.441

Financial habilities.
Derivative contracts™ - 1,760 - 1,760
Embedded derivative - - 384 384
Total - 1,760 384 2,144
As at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 28 Feb 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000

Financial assets-

Unlisted nvestment - 1,780 - 1,780
Contingent consideration recevable - - 1,276 1,276
Derivative contracts* - 62 - 62
Total - 1,842 1,276 3118

Financial liabilities:
Derivative contracts® - 772 - 772
Embedded dervative - - 251 251

Total - 772 251 1,023

* Currency forwards with a fair value of £1,224.000 12022 £584.000) maturng within 12 months have been shown as cutrent assels Currency forwards with a
far value of £30.000 (2022 £8,000) matunng within 12 to 24 moriths of the Balance Sheel dale have been shown as non-current assets Liabiites include
currency forwards with a far value of £1108 000 (2022 £688,000) maturing within 12 months shown as cutrent labilibes and currency forwards with a fair value
of £652. 00012022 £84.000] matunng within 12 ta 24 months of the Balance Sheet date shown as non-current labiities

The level in the far vatue hierarchy within which the financial asset or lability 1 categorsed 1s determined on the basis of the lowest
level nput that is significant to the far value measurement

Financial assets and habilities are classified In ther entirety intc one of three levels

- fevell Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilties,

- Level 2; Inputs other than guoted prnces mcluded within Level 1that are observable for the asset or lablity, either directly
or indirectly.

- Level 3 Imputs for the asset or lability that are rot based on observable market data

Unlisted investment

The unlisted investment relates to the Group's investment In the London Tanker's Broker Panel, see Note 19 The investment ig
carred at far value, being the value of the most recent comparable transaction and 1s thersfore classified as Level 2 in the far
value hierarchy

There was no maovement in the far value of the unlisted investment.
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Contingent consideration receivable

The farr value of the contingent consideration receivable Includes unobservable nputs and are therefore classified as Level 3
The contingent consideration recevable relates to the disposal of the Logistics Division whereby the Group is entitled to three
future cash payments. The SPA provides for a minimum guaranteed amourst in each of the three years, this amount has been
classified as deferred consideration The balance of the earnout consideration 1s contingent on the future performance of the
combined business up to a maximum speciiied In the SPA, this has been classified as contingent consideration. The far value
of the contingent consideration has been calculated by reference to management's expectation of the future profitability of the
combined business and discounted to present value using a discount rate of 529% The discount rate is based on the credit nsk
of Vertom Agencies BV assessed by a third party credit agency See Note 23 for further details and a sensitivity analysis on the
contingent elernant

Derivative contracts

Contracts with denvative counterparties are based on ISDA Master Agreements. Under the terms of these arrangements, only in
certain situations will the net amounts owing/receivable to a single counterparty be considered outstanding. The Group does not
have the prasent legal ability to set-off these amounts and so they are not offset in the Balance Sheet Of the denvative assets
and derivative llabiities recogrised in the Balance Sheet, an amount of £01 millon (2022 £01 million} would be set-off under
enforceable master nefting agreements

The far value of the forward currency contracts are based on prices guoted by the counterparty within these contracts versus the
market rate at the Balance Sheet date and have therefore been classified as Level 2 in the far value hierarchy See the currency risk
section for further details

The fair value of the currency options are based on prices quoted by the counterparty within these contracts versus the market
rate at the Balance Sheet date and have therefore been classihed as Level 2 in the farr value hierarchy

Embedded derivative

The convertible loan note nstruments ssued on the acquisition of Naves contain an embedded derivative, being a euro hability

of principal and interest The equity value of the underlying dervative 1s not considered closely related to the debt host, therefore
the loan note 1s considered to be a tinancial liability host with an embedded derivative convertible feature which s required to be
separated from the host The far value of the embedded derivative iIncludes unobservable Inputs and is therefore classified as
Level 3. They key assumptions underpirning the farr valug of the embedded derivative relate to the expected future share price of
the Group and the GBP'EUR exchange rate. The fair value has been determined using a Black-Scholes valuation model.

Aloss of £18000 (2022 gan of £87000) has been recognised in the Income Statement in respect of the fair value maoverment of
the embedded dervative from 1 March 2022 to 28 February 2023,

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The Group's financial assets and lakiliies that are not measured at far value are held at amortised cost Due to ther short-term
nature, the carrying value of these financial Instruments approximates their far value. Their carrying values are as follows

2023 20022
Financial assets £'000 000
Cash and cash equivalents 34,735 13,964
Deferred consideration recevable 3,637 3482
Trade and other receivables 41,448 38,601
Total 79,820 56,047

2023 2022
Financial liabilities £°000 £000
Trade and other payables 6,446 7779
Convertible loan notes 3,561 4666
Long term borrowings 27,815 23,254
Total 37,812 35,699
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24 Financial instruments and risk management cont nucd

Deferred consideration receivable

The inttial far value of the deferred consideration receivable was determined by discounting the guaranteed minimum amounts
as per the SPA to present value using a discount rate of 2.39% and it 1s subsequently measured at amortised cost

Lo e H
Currency nsk anses when Group entities enter into transactions denominated in a currency other than their functional currency
The Group's policy 1S, where possible, to allow Group entities to settie labiftes denominated in therr functional currency with the
cash generated from operations in that currency. The Group’s currency risk exposure arises mainly as a result of the majority of
its Shipbroking earnings being denominated in US dollars while the majorty of ts costs are denominated in sterling There is also
some currency exposure related to convertible loan notes and deferred consideration denominated in euros and from the carrying
values of its overseas subsichanes being denorninated n foreign currencies.

The Group manages its transactional exposures to foreign currency risks using forward exchange contracts and currency options
The Group 1s primarily exposed to fluctuations in US dollar to sterling exchange rates on foreign currency sales and hedges a
proportion of those expected cash flows out to 21 months The principal source of hedge ineffectiveness 1s the nisk of changes

in timing of the forecast transaction or that they do not occur, which is addressed by only hedging a proportion of future foreign
currency sales There were no hedged transactions forecast in the current year which did not oceur (2022, nil).

The Group's results, which are reported in sterling, are exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates across a number
of different currencies with the most significant exposures relating to the US deftar The Group 1s exposed to the underlying
translational movernents which remain outside the control of the Group. The Group's translaticnal exposures to foreign currency
risks relate to both the translation of income and expenses and net assets of overseas subsidiaries which are converted into
stering on consohdation The Group finances overseas iInvestrnents partly through the use of foreign currency borrowings in order
to provide a net iInvestment hedge over the foreign currency risk that arises on translation of its foreign currency subsidianes

The Group continues to apply hedge accounting to hedging instruments that meet the criteria set out in IFRS @,

Cash flow hedges are used to hedge the variabilty in cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions caused by changes in
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates Where & darizative financial inshiument 1S designated in a cash flow hedge
refabonship with & highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any change in far value anising 1s deferrad In the
cash flow hedging reserve within equrty, via the Statement of Comprehiensive Income The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
part 15 recognised in the Income Statement within net finance expense Amounts deferred in the cash flow hedging reserve are
reclassmied to the Income Statement in the perods when the hadged tem 1s recognised in the Income Statement

If a hedging instrument expires or is sold but the hedged forecast transaction s stil expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the transaction occurs. If the
hedged transaction Is no Ionger expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised
immediately in the Income Statement If a denvative inancial Instrument 1s not formally designated in a cash flow hedge
relationship, any change in fair value is recognised in the Income Statement,

The critical terms of the hedging nstrurments match the hedged transactions in relation to currency, timing and amaounts,
meaning there 1s & clear economic relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item as required under IFRS 9
Thereby, managernent qualitatively demonstrates that the hedging instrument and the hedged tems will move equally In the
opposite drection

Aloss of £4 826000 (2022 £1813000 gain) has been recognised in the Income Statement in respect of denvative contracts which
have matured in the penod.

The Group entered into currency options featuring a “cap and floor” feature. The intrinsic value of the options is designated in
cashflow hedge relationstips The time value of the options 1s deferred In equity as 2 cost of hedging and reclassified to the
Income Statement In the period that the hedged cash flow affects the Income Staterment

The Group also entered into a currency option which is not designated n a cash flow hedge relationship with a fair value of a

£02 milkon liability (28 February 2022 £nl liability). The £C.2 milion maovement in far valug in the penod was charged to the Income
Staterment (2022 £nil} and is included within Finance costs.
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The effects of the foraign currency-related hedging instruments on the Group's financial position and performance are as follows

Currency options 2023 2022
Carrying amount of {lability)/asset (£28,000) £14000
Total notional amount $1,500,000 $5,000000

March 2023 to April 202110
Maturity dates April 2023 August 2022
Hedge ratio 11 18
Change in fair value of outstanding hedging instruments since inception of the hedge (£23,000) £14,000
Change n value of hedged item used to determine hedge ineffectiveness £23.000 (£14000)
Weighted average strike rate for outstanding hedging instruments 12310 1.208 132
Forward currency contracts 2023 2022
Carrying amount of asset £1,254,000 £62,000
Carrying amount of liability (£1,5647,000) (E771,000)
Total notional amount US $123,048,000  US 549300000

March 2023 to March 2022 to
Maturity dates November 2024 August 2023
Hedge ratio 11 11
Change in far value of outstanding hedging instruments since inception of the hedge (£218,000) (£723,000)
Change in value of hedged item used to determine hedge ineffectiveness £218,000 £723000
Weighted average strke rate for ocutstanding hedging instruments 122 137

The Group uses its US dollar dennminated borrowings as a hedge aganst the translation exposure on the Group's net nvestrment
In cverseas companies The Group designates the spot rate of the loans as the hedging instrument There was no ineffectiveness
to be recognised on hedges of net Investments in foreign operations. Where the hedge 1s fully effective at hedging the vanability in
the net assets of such companies caused by changes in exchange rates, the changes in value of the borrowings are recognised
N the transiation reserve within equity, via the Statement of Comprehensive Income The ineffective part of any change n value
caused by changes in exchange rates 1s recognised in the income Statement The effective portion will be recycled inte the
Income Statement on the sale of the foreign operation.

The table below provides further information on the Group's net investrment hedging relationships:

2023 2022
£'000 £000
Hedge ratio 11 n/a
Change in value of hedging instruments due to foreign currency movernents since 1 March 124 n/a
Change In value of the hedged tem used to deterrmine hedge effectiveness {124) n/a

The balances and movements Into and out of the foreign currency translation reserve are shown in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity respectively. The amount in the foreign currency
translation reserve m relation to hedge accounting 1s a loss of £01 miliion (2022, £nil} and is spht as follows

- continuing net Investment hedges loss of E01 million (2022, £nil), and
- hedging relationships for which hedge accounting 1s no longer applied, £nil (2022: £nil)
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24 Financial instruments and risk management continued

: AVITENS

The effect on equity and profit before tax if the US dollar or the euro strengthened/{iweakened} by 103 against sterling. with all
other variables being equal, s as follows.

Profit or loss Equity. net of tax
+10% strengthening 10% weakening +10% sirengthening 10% weakening
E'000 £'oco £oco £000
28 February 2023
US dollars 874 (1,220) (4,529) 3,656
Euros {36) 36 (36} 36
Total 838 (1,184) (4,565) 3,692
28 February 2022
US doltars 2,897 (2,697) 2185 (2,185}
Eurcs {1t Ll (90} 20
Total 2586 (2,586) 2,005 (2,095)

Voo

The Group is exposed to Interest rate risk frorn borrowings at floating rates The Group minimises its short-term exposure to
imterest rate risk on its cash and cash equivalents by pooling cash balances across the Group's hubs.

The Group has not entered into any financial Instruments to fix or hedge the Interest rates applied to its bank borrowings
and overdrafts

The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturty, of the Grou's financial Instruments which are exposed to interest
rate risk’

2023 2022
Notes £'000 £000
Floating rate
Within one year
Cash and cash equivalents 25 34,735 13,9684
Long-term borrowings 27 (27,815} (23,254)
6,920 (3,290)

Cash batances are generally held on overnight deposits at floating rates depending on cash requirements and the pravaiing
market rates for the amount of funds deposited The other financial Instrumaents of the Group arc non-interest bearing

The effect on equity and profit before tax of a 1% ncrease/{decrease) in the interest rate, all other vanables being equal, 15 as follows

“roft or loss Equity. net of tax
+1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
£000 EQO0 £000 £000

28 February 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 187 {187} 187 {187)
Long-term borrowings (195) 195 (195) 1956
Total (8) 8 (8) 8
28 February 2022
Cash and cash eqguivalents 63 {83) 51 {51)
Long-term barrowings (104) 104 84 84
Total 41 A (33) 33

Braemar Plc Arnual Report andd Accounts 2023



149 Strategic Report Governance s N

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting peniod 1s the carrying amount of each class of financal assets
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade recevables are limited due to the diversity of the Group’s customer base.
The directors believe there 1s no further credit nisk provision required In excess of normal provisions for doubtful receivabies,
estimated by management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment The Group
seeks to trade only with creditworthy parties and carries out credlit checks where approprate The maximum exposure is the
carrying amount as disclosed in Note 24

Liguidity nsk anses from the Group's management of working capital and the finance charges and principal repayments on its
debt instruments [t s the risk that the Group witt encounter difficulty In meeting its financial cbligations as they fall due

The Group's policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow It to meet its llabilites when they become due
Managernent receive roling 13-week cash flow projections on a weekly basis to ensure the Groug has sufficient liquidity

The board receives rolling 12-month cash flow projections on a monthly basis as well as information regarding cash balances.
At the end of the financial year, these projections indicated that the Group expected to have sufficient liguid resources to meet its
obligations under all reasonably expected circumstances

The following table sets cut the undiscounted contractual amounts due, in relation to the Group's financial habilities which exposes
the Group to liquidity risk: ’

Between. ’ Total Total
Upto3 3and 12 Between1 -~ Between 2 Cver contractual carrying
months months andZyears and6yeérs 6 years amount amount
At 28 February 2023 £°000 —E’OOO £'000 £°000 ___gg_o_o;
Trade and other payables 4,971 SRR [ e N - 6,446
Loans and borrowings 422 S 129124 9] - 32,618
Lease liabiities 757 . 70 7 09, 23 5,225
Deferred consideration 66 764 109 3,726 - 4,666 _'
Total 6,216 5,689 3,269 33,767 23 48,054 [N42'839F
Forward currency contracts 1,547
Gross outflows 14,749 48,926 29,414 - - 93,088
Gross inflows (14,6563) (48,866) (28,521) - - (91,940)
Currency options 23
Gross outflows 3,107 5,693 1,864 - - 10,564
Gross inflows (3,084) {5,593) {1,864) - - {10,541)
Net outflow from derivative contracts 219 59 893 - - 111
Between Total Total
Upte 3 Zand 12 Between ! Between 2 Cver contractual carrying
rmonths months  and 2 years  and 5 years b years armount amount
Al 28 February 2022 E0Q0 £°000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Trade and other payables 5,649 2130 - - - 7779 7779
Leans and borrowings - - 23264 - - 23254 23,254
Lease labilities 864 2567 3197 213 16 8775 8,506
Deferred consideration - 1,450 1,664 1662 - 4,666 4 6606
Total 6,513 G147 28105 3,693 16 44 474 44,205
Forward currency contracts 772
Gross outflows 11,204 18,748 6,498 - - 36,450
Gross inflows {1,034) (18,231 (644} - (35,679)
Net outflow from forward currency
contract 170 517 84 - - 771

Loans and borrowings have been represented to show the expected mterest payments payable on the revolving credit facility in
addition to the repayment of the loan
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24 Financial instruments and risk management continued
The Group manages Its capital structure so as tc mantain investor and market confidence and to provide returns te shareholders
that will support the future development of the business. The Group makes adustments 1o the capital structure if required in
response to changes in economic condttions. The Group considers its capital as consisting of ordinary shares and retained
earnings. To maintain or adjust the captal structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to

shareholders or 1ssue new shares.

The Group has a policy of maintanng positive cash balances and also has a revolving credit facility which it draws down as
required to provide cover against the cyclical nature of the shipping industry.

The board monitors underiving business performance 1o determme the ongoing use of capital, namely executive and staff
incentive schemes {and whether to fund this through cash or share incentives); acquisition appraisals ahead of potential business
combinations, investrent in property, plant and equipment; and the level of dvidends

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 28 February 2023 and 28 February 2022,

B T T T VO R O E IS S PRV PR IRPREES FRRYL F R

Loans and Deferred Lease
borrowings consideration liabilities Total
£°000 £°000 E'000 £'000

At 1 March 2022 27,425 495 8,506 36,426

Cash fiows 2,762 - {4,039} {1,287)
Nen-cash flows.

- Shares issued (111} - - (11
- Denvatives issued ) - - )
- Accrual of service cost - 59 - 69

- Interest accruing in the penod 440 - 176 815

- New |eases - - 770 770

- Business combinations - - 86 86

- Lease terminations - - (632) {632)
- Amounts reclassified from deferred consideration t¢ loans 615 (815) - -

- Effects of foreign exchange 317 61 161 539

At 28 February 2023 31,367 - 5,027 36,394

Current portion 699 - 2,923 3,622

Loans and Deferred Lease
borrowings  consideration llabiities Total
£000 L0000 £000 £:000

At 1 March 2021 30,142 882 12,564 435678

Cash flows (2.955) - (3.260) (5,200)
Non-cash flows:

- Shares 1ssued (541) - - (Bd1)
- Derivatives 1ssued (293) - - (283)
- Interest accruing in the penocd 571 238 329 1,238

- New leases - - 814 8i4

— Amounts reclassified from deferred consideration to loans 625 {625) - -

- Cory Brothers disposal - ~ (1243) i1243)
~ Effects of foreign exchange {224) - 2 {222)
At 28 February 2022 27425 495 8,508 36,426

Current. portion 1,4HB - 3429 4845
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25 Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022

£'000 £000

Cash at bank and cash on hand 34,73% 13,964
Total 34,736 13,964

Cash and cash eguivalents largely comprise bark balances denominated in sterling, US dollars, euros and other currencies for the
purpose of setthng current labilites

Cash includes an amount of £40 million (2022, £2.9 milion) held in the bank accounts of regulated entities where there is a
requirement to hold a certain amount of cash at any one time in order to cover future obligations. No charge or other restriction
of use 15 held over this cash

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approxmate to their fair value

26 Trade and other payables

Restatled

2023 2022

Current liabilities £'000 E£000
Trade payables 1,809 3,397
Lease liabilties 2,923 3,429
Other taxation and social security 1,869 721
Other payables 767 400
Contract liabilites 329 154
Accruals 49,613 31,082

Total 57,310 38,183

Accruals includes accrued bonuses and other general accruals

The average credit penod taken for trade payables 1s 33 days (2022 102 days). The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
trade payables approximate to therr far value.

27 Borrowings

2023 2022
£'000 E'000
Long-term borrowings
Secured revolving credit faciliies 27,815 23,254
Lease labilibes 2,104 5077
Total 29,918 28,331

During the perod, the Group extended its revolving credit facility ("RCF”) with its main bankers, HSBC. The RCF is for £300 million
plus an accordion limit of £10.0 millon and has an initial termination date of Novernber 2025 with two options, subject to lender
approval, 1o extend the term of the facility by 12 and 24 months respectively. Drawdown of the accardion facility 15 subject to
additional credit approval. The RCF agreement has an EBITDA leverage covenant of 25x and a minimum interest cover of 4x. At
31 May 2022 31 August 2022, 31 November 2022 and 28 February 2023 the Group met all financial covenant tests Amounts can
be rolled on a monthly basis until the facility expires subject to certain conditions, and on that basis the borrowings have been
classified as non-current The amounts drawn under the RCF bear interest based on SONIA, SOFR and EURIBOR from amounts
drawn i sterling, US dollars and euros respectively, plus a credrt margin dependent on the Group’s leverage ratic

All revolving credit facilities are drawn by Braemar Plc and appear in the accounts of the Company. See Note 25 for details of the
Group's cash pooling arrangements and the net overdraft avallable to the Group

The directors consicler that the fair value of the revolving credit facility liabiity is equivalent to its carrying amount
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27 Borrowings continued

: R e ey T HC . .
In September 2017, the Group acquired the entire share capital of Naves Corporate Finance GrnbH ("Naves”). Naves 1s an
established and successful business, headquartered in Hamburg, Germany, which advises national and international clients
on corporate finance refated to the maritime industry Including restructuning advisory, corporate finance advisory, M&A, asset
brokerage, interim/pre-insolvency management and financial asset management including 1oan servicing

The acouisition agreement provided for consideration of £160 million (€18 4 million) payable as follows:

G at completion in cash of £73 milkon (€8 2 rmullion}, wn shares of £13 million (£15 milllon) and in convertle loan notes of
£64 million (€74 million); and

1} deferred consideration in cash of £05 million (€06 milion) and convertible loan notes of £05 milion (£0.6 million), payable in
instalments over the three years after the acquisition

No consideration was contingent consideration As at 28 Feoruary 2023, there 1s £nil outstanding deferred consideration
{2022 £nill) to non-management sellers

The acquisition agreement also provided deferred ameounts that would be payable to management sellers, conditional on ther
ongoing service In the business IFRS 3 states that amounts paid to former owners which are conditional on ongoing service are
for the benefit of the acquirer and nat for the benefit of former owners Consideration linked 1o the ongoing service of former
owners Is treated as remuneration for post-combination services and classiied as acouisition-related expenditure undar specihc
items in the Income Staterment

The deferred amounts payable to management sellers cornprised,

i) deferred cash of £13 milion (€15 milion) and deferred convertible loan rotes of £4 3 million (€42 million) conditional only on
the Individual management seller's continued service payable In INstalments over the five years after the acguisition and

iy deferred convertible loan notes of up to £94 millon (E11.0 milhon) conditional on the individual management seller's continued
service and the post-acguisition Naves' EBIT in the three years post-acquisition By February 2C21, there was no contingency
remaining and the total amount paid was £46 milicn (€53 milion)

In 2022 the amount of service accrual of £05 million is presented within deferred consideration Following the issuance of new
corvertible loan notes in relation to this armount dunng the year, ot February 2023 Eni (2022, £05 milkon) due to managerment
sellers was subject to future service conditions. Note 27 sets out the cutstanding ammounts in relation to the Naves acguisttion

Post-acquisition remuneration of £01 million associatad with the acquisition were incurred during the year ended 28 February 2023
(2022 £0Z milhon) and have been classified as acgusition-related expenditure under specific items in the Income Statement
See Note 10

The Group issued convertible loan notes In connection with its acquisition of Naves in September 2017

These convertible loan note nstruments are unsecured, unisted and non-transferable The notes are eure dencrminated and carry
a 3% per annum coupon Each franche is redeemable on or after two years from the date of Issue by the Group or by the Indimdual
holder The conversion prices were fixed at 3903 pence for management sellers and 4503 pence for non-management sellers

The convertible loan note instruments carry certain accelerated conversion nghts n the event of default on financial cormimitrrents
assoclated with the instruments or business distress within the Group The loan notes shall autcratically convert or be redeemed
in the event that any person or persons acting in concert hold more than 50% of the issued share capital of the Group or an
impairment charge n excess of £439 million (€580 million) s reflected in the audited Financial Staterments of the Group

The ambeddead denvatives within the convertitle loan notes are valued using level 3 hierarchy techniques under IFRS 13 See Note 24.

The total value of convertible loan note liabilites, including linked dervatives, 1s £3 2 miilion (2022, £49 milion). The following table
shows amounts in the Group balance sheet relating to the convertible loan notes issued on the acguisition of Naves.

2023 2022
Represented in the Group Balance Sheet £°000 £000
Current hiabilities:

Convertible loan notes 699 1,418
Non-current fiabiities:

Convertible loan notes 2,852 2,755

Accrued employee costs - 495

Derivatives 384 251

3,238 35601

3,935 4917
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The movernent In the Naves-related balances in the Group Balance Sheet during the vear is explaned by the items below

2023 2022
£°000 £000
Total Naves-related balances at start of year 4,917 8,080
Finance expense 426 130
Post-acquisition rermuneration 59 238
Foreign exchange movements 250 (226)
Renegoetiation gan - (172)
Cash pad (1,606) (2,683
Equity issued {m) (5410
Total movernents (982) (3163)
Total Naves-related bafances at year end 3,935 4917
The current year cash paid ncludes mterest of £168000
The foan notes have the following maturities:
Accounting value Nominal value
2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £'000 €000 €000
Due at the reporting date
30-Sep-22 - 1,184 - 1399
31-Dec-22 - 215 - _
30-Sep-23 606 592 699 699
not yet
30-Sep-24 5560 earned 699 Bo9
30-Sep-25 2,395 2180 2,929 2,929
3,551 4171 4,327 5,726
Derivatives thereon 384 25
Accrual for notes subject to future service - 495
Total habiities on loan notes 3,036 4,917

Note that current habiliies m respect of the loan notes differs from the amounts shown above matuning within one year due to
interest payable within one year on non-current loans and the outstanding current hability to deliver cash and shares in respect
of matured loan notes

Where loan notes are subject to future service condrtions, they are accrued as an employee expense over the relevant service
period At the end of the service penod they are recogrised as financial iInstruments The nominal value of loan notes subject to
future service 15 included in the maturity analysis above but 1s not ncluded in the Group's financial labilites The accrual in respect
of these items was £nil at 28 February 2023 (2022 £05 million)

On 3 June 2021 the Group reached an agreement with two of Braesmar Naves' managing directors, Axel Siepmann and Mark
Kuchenbecker, and therr connected parties. to restructure certain convertible loan notes owed by the Group Thesa loan
notes arose on vanable consideration for post-acquisition services arising from the 2017 Naves acguisition. At the time of the
renegotiation there were no contingencies or further service cbligations outstanding in respect of any of these amounts

A total of £2.5 million (€29 million) which was previously due to mature before the end of Decermber 2022 was deferred to mature
no earler than September 2025 In addition, a further amount of £07 millen (€075 milhon} was agreed to be satished by the

issue of Braemar shares in theee tranches The first two tranches, totaling £08 mitlon (€06 millon) were issued n September and
December 2021 with the remaining tranche of £01 million (€01 milkon) issued n Decemibder 2022 As part of the moadification the
Group also agreed to increase the interest rate on certain convertible loan notes, to the extent that they are still outstanding, to 5%
per annum frem Septernber 2025 from the 3% payable until that date

In the prior year a credit of £02 millen was recognised in respect of the accounting for the modification and classiied In finance
income under specific items In the Income Statement See Note 10
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28 Provisions

Uncerian

COMMISSION
Diiapidations obligation Other Total
000 £1000 000 £°000
At 28 February 2021 675 - 322 997
Provided in the year 7 - 279 286
At 28 February 2022 682 - 80t 1,283
Reclassfication 18 1,707 (346) 1,379
Provided in the year - 257 462 712
Utilised in the year - - (15) (15)
Reversal of provision in the year (124) - - (124)
Exchange differences 16 - 51 &7
At 28 February 2023 592 1,964 753 3,300
Current 122 1,964 489 2575
Non-current 470 - 264 734
At 28 February 2023 592 1,964 753 3,309

Dilapidatons relate to future cbligations to make good certan office premises upon expiration of the lease term The provision Is
caleulated with reference to the location and square footage of the office

Employee entitements of £05 million is included in other, which relate to statutory long service leave In Braermar ACM Shipbroking
Pty Limited. This is based on the principle that each Australian employee is entitled to eight weeks of leave over and above

any annual leave on completion of ten years’” continuous service The provision is calculated with reference to the number of
employees whn have at least sevon yoars of continuous service.,

In June 2023 the board comnnissionad an iIndependent internal investigation into an historical transaction onginating n 213 The
Investigation was overseen by an investigation Committee chaired by the Group's non-executive Charrman and was conducted by
an independent specialist forensic accounting firm, and Independent external counsel The INvestigation was comprehensive and
complex and ultimately encompassed several transactions between 2006 and 2013 which required further iInvestigation.

As aresult of the Investigation, the Group has recognised a provision of £20 million in relation to the uncertan obligations
connected to a number of the transactions and commission obligations identified as part of the investigaton Of the £20 mifion.
£17 million relates to an historical unsettled commission payable which was recorded in 2017 upon completion of the relevant
contracts which criginated n 2013 This balance has been reclassified from trade payables to provisions during the year While
the board cannot forecast with certainty final cutcomes n respect of these obligations, based on the Grouw's current information,
the amount recognised is the current best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligations at the balance sheet date,
taking Into account the risks and uncertanties surrounding the obligations, Including nterpretation of specific laws and Ikelhood
of settlement

As the ultimate potential obligations and outcomes are uncertan N relation to the transactions subject to the internal INvestigaticn,
there remains a risk that the final outcomes could matenally impact the recognised balance within the next or in future financial
years. It s impracticable to provide sensitivity estimates of potential downside variances at this time

29 Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates a defined benefit scheme in the UK A full actuanal valuation was carned out as at 31 March 2020 and
updated by the 1AS 19 valuation as at 28 February 2023 All valuations have been carned out by a qualified independent actuary

The Group's obligations in respect of the funded defined benefit scheme at 28 February 2023 were as follows

2023 2027
£'000 £000
Present value of funded cbligations 10,558 15156
Farr valug of scheme assets, net of tax {11,678) (13,104)
Total {(surplus)/dehcit of defined benefit pension scheme {1,120) 2,052
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DI B R

The Group sponsors a funded defined benefit scheme (the ACM Staff Pension Scheme) for qualifying UK employees The
Scheme 15 administered by a separate board of Trustees which 1s legally separate from the Group. The Trustees are composed
of representatives of both the employer and employees. The Trustees are required by law to act in the interest of all relevant
bensficianes and are responsible for the investment policy with regard to the trust assets and the day-to-day administration

of benefits

Under the Scheme, employees are entitled to arnual pensions on retirement at age 60 of 1/60th of final pensionable salary for
each year of service Pensionable salary 1s defined as basic salary plus the average of the previous three years' bonuses {capped
at three times basic salary) Pensionable salanes for members who joined after 1 June 1982 are also subject to an earmings cap
Other benefits are payalle, for exarmple those provided on death

The scheme is closed to future accrual and from 1 February 2016, post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees
through a separate defined contripution arrangement

HEEREE T R T Y S

The defined benefit cbligation includes benefits for current employees. former employees, and current pensioners Broadly,
around 51% of the labllities are attributable to deferred pensions for current and former employees, with the remaining 49% to
current pensicners

The Scheme duration 1s an indicator of the weighted average time until benefit payments are made For the Scheme as a whole,
the duration 1s around 15.3 years.

LS ERT I PO AR FIPLI CE R

UK legislation requires that pension schernes are funded prudently. The most recent funding valuaticn of the Scheme was
carned out by a gualfied actuary as at 31 March 2020 and showed a deficit of £15 millon As a result, the Company has made
contributions of £460000 pa between April 2020 and March 2023. Contributions to the Scheme have ceased since March 2023
L FA BN S ST

The Scheme exposes the Group 1o a number of fnisks, the most sigrificant of wineh are

The iiabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields; if assets underperform this yield, this
will create a deficit The Scheme holds a sigrificant proportion of growth assets which, though expected to cutperform corporate
bonds in the long term, create volatiity and risk In the shart term The allocation to growth assets is monitored to ensure it remains
appropriate given the Scheme’s long-term cbyectives

An increase n corporate bond yields will decrease the value placed on the Scheme’s habilities for accounting purposes, although
this will be partially offset by a Decrease in the value of the Scheme’s bond holdings

A proportion of the Scheme's benefit obligations are Inked to nflation and Figher iInflation will lzad to tugher hatiities {although, i
most cases, caps on the fevel of inflationary Increases are in place to protect aganst extreme inflation) The majonty of the assets
are ether unaffected by or only loosely correlated with inflation, rmeaning that an ncrease n nflation will also Increase the dehiort

The majorty of the Scheme's obligations are to provide benefits for the Iife of the member, so Increases In Iife expectancy wil result
N an increase in scheme liabitties.

The Company and Trustees have agreed a long-term strategy for reducing investment risk as and when approprate This includes
moving assets to match pensioner liabilities when members reach retirement.

The Trustess Insure certain benefits payable on death before retirement
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29 Retirement benefit schemes cont nued

v

The principal assumptions used for updating the latest valuation of the Scheme were.

Discount rate
CPlinflation

Pension increases'
CPlcapped at 25% pa
CPl capped at b0% pa

Deferred pension Increases.
CPlcapped at 25% pa
CPl capped at 50% p.a

Life expectancy from age 60 for
Current 80-year-old male
Current 80-year-old female
Pre-retirement mortality
Post-retrernent mortalty

Early retrement

Withdrawals from active service
Cash commutation

2023
(% pa)

4.90
3.0

20
3.0

2.0
3.0

2023
Years

261
277

2022
(% pa)
285
31

21
32

21
32

2007
Years

275
287

S2 PXA, CM! 2021 (min 125%)

33% of members retire at age 55, with the remainder retinng at age 60

No allowance
25% of the member’s pension is commuted

Under early retirerment it 1s assumed that 33% of members will retire at age 55, with the remamnder retring at age 60

The Scheme's assets are splt by type of asset in the following table.

Scheme assets

Scheme assets are cornprised as follows

UK equities

Overseas squities
Unquoted equities
Absolute return

High yield debt

Cash

Inflation-linked bonds
Corporate bonds
Government bonds
Other

Total

The Pensicn Schame assels do not include any ordinary shares issued by the Compary. All assets are held through pocled

investrent vehicies
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2023
£'000

434
4,374
78
1,019
707
1,022
1,883
1,303
1,462

12,282

2022
£'000

3686
4,3
57
315
325
322
4,364
1547
234
1193

13104
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2023 2022
Expense recognhised in the Income Statement (included in operating costs) £'000 £000
Current service cost _ _
Curtailment credit N ~
Interest cost on net asset/liability 54 73
Expense recognised n Income Staterment 54 73
Remeasurements in other comprehensive expense:
Loss/(gan) on assets in excess of that recognised in net mterest 1,061 (316)
Actuanal gans due te changes in financial assumptions {4,594) (2.174)
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic assumptions (220} (268)
Actuaral logses due to hlatility experience 274 1,368
Deferred tax charge 414 72
Expected tax charge onrecovery of agsets 804 -
(Gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income (2,361) {(1,318)
Total amount recognised in Income Statement and other comprehensive expense (2,307) (1,245)
Changes to the present value of the defined benefit cbligation are analysed as follows
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Cpening defined benefit cbligation 15,156 18,174
Interest expense 402 307
Actuarial logsos due to changes in financial assumptions {4,594) (2174)
Actuarial losses due to changes In demographic assurmptions (220) (268)
Actuarial gains due to lability experience 374 1,368
Net benefit payments from scheme {660) (251)
Closing value at 28 February 10,558 15156
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are analysed as follows
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Opening fair value at 1 March 13,104 12,355
Interest income 348 235
Fair value (losses)/gains on assets {1,061) 318
Contributions by employers 450 A50
Net benefit payments from scheme (559) (252)
Expected tax charge on recovery of assels {604) -
Closing value at 28 February 1,678 13,04
The Group does not expect to make any contributions to the scheme In the next 12 months (2022 E412500).
2023 2022
Actual return oh Scheme assets £'000 £000
Interest iIncome on plan assets 348 235
Remeasurement (oss)/gain on assets 1,061} 316
Actual return on assets (713) 551
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29 Retirement benefit schemes contnued
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The table below ilustrates the sensitivity of the Scheme kabilities at 28 February 2023 to changes in the principal assumptions The
senstitivities assurme that all other assurmptions remain unchanged and the calculations are approximate (full calculations could lead
to a afferent rasult)

Approxmate  Approximate

INCrease N Increase N

habilites liabilites

Change in assumption % £000
Interest rate reduced by 05% pa, 12z 1180
Inflabion assumption increased by 05% pa”* 72 760
increase In Iife expectancy of one year for all members reaching 80 22 230

* The nflation assumplan senstivily applcs to bath the assumed rate of increase inthe CPLand the BRI and ncludes the wnpact on the rate of increases to
pensions. both before ara after retirement

There are a number of defined contrbution schemes in the Group the principal scheme being the Braemar Pension Scherme,
which 1s open 1o all UK employees Cash contnbutions paid into the defined contribution schemes are accounted for as an Income
Staternent expense as they are incurred The total charge for the year inrespect of this and other defined contribution schemes
amounted 1o £1,811,000 (2022 £1813000) of which £181,000 (2022 £915,000) was in respect of continuing operations

No contributions were due to these schemes at 28 February 2023 (2022 £99000).

The assets of these schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of the Trustees.

30 Share capital
Orcnary shares Ordinary shares
2023 2022 2023 2022
Number Number E£'000 £'000
Cr o
Ordinary shares of 10 pence each 34,903,000 34903000 3,490 3480
Crdinary shares Ordinary shares Share prermum
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Number Number £000 £:000 £'000 EO00
Fuily paid ordinary shares of 10 pence
each
As at start of year 32,200,279 31,731,218 3,221 3174 53,030 52,510
Shares issued and fully paid (see below) 724,598 469,061 71 47 766 520
As at end of year 32,924,877 32200279 3,292 322 53,796 53,030

During the year, In cornachion with setting up a broker team in Madnd. 253,434 shares were 1ssued to certan employess as a
joIning Incentive, and 37636 shares were 1ssued to setile part of the deferred consideration payable in respect of the acgusition
of Naves

During the year ended 28 February 2023, no shares were issued as part of the restricted share plan scheme, nor the long-term
Incentive programme (2022 no shares were 1ssued at nil cost). 433528 shares were issued in the year as part of the Save As You
Eamn {*SAYE") Scheme (2022 no shares were 1ssued), for which cash totaling £694,000 was received on exercise

No shares remained unpald at 28 February 2023 or 28 February 2022

The Cormpany has one class of ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income
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The Company cperates a variety of share-based payment schemes which are listed below

Detalls of the share options inissue and the movements in the year are given below.

Number at
Year oplion  Number at 1 28 February Exsrcise price Exercisable
Share scheme granted March 2022 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2023 (pence) between
SAYE 2N 437422 - 1433,528) {3.804) - 1800 2022-2023

The weighted average share pnce on exercise for awards exercised during the year was £2 82 (2022: n/a).

These options are valued using a binormial pricing model. The value of the awards was expensed over the penod from the date of
grant to the vesting date

The number of cutstanding share options as at 1 March 2022 has been updated from the previously reported figure at 28 February
2022 of M3771. During the year, 433528 options were exercised (2022- no options exercised).

Details of the share awards In issue and the moverments In the year are given below:

Nurnber at Number at
1 March 28 February  Exercise price

Share scheme 2022 Granted Exercised Forferted 2023 (pence) Exercisable

Jun-19 1,512,351 - (1422169) (©90196) RENNES ni iun-22
Jul-20 3030763 - (18160)  (179,536) #2183310678 il ul-23
Nov-20 341905 - (15,000) (10,030, SEEZ15lg75% il Nov-23
Jun-21 1,212193 - - {40342) 1,172,051 nil Jun-24
Now-21 239415 - - - 239,416 il Nowv-24
Sep-22 - Q87737 - {33,043) 934,694 nil Jun-2b
Jan-23 - 400,679 - - 400,679 il Jun-25
Feb-23 - 137132 - - 137,132 nil Jun-26
Deferred Bonus Plan 6,336,627 1505548 (1.455,315) (363,847) 6,033,013

The weighted average share price on exercise for awards exercised dunng the year was £3.32 (2022 £277) The weaighted average
share price at grant date for awards granted during the year was £2.98 (2022 £303). The fair value of the award 1s estimated
based on the share price at the time of grant less the expected dividend to be paid dunng the vesting period.

Under both the Flan and the New DBP, sufficierit shares to satisfy each award are bought over the course of the vesting

period, and held In an employee trust ("ESOP”) until vesting As at 28 February 2023, the ESOP held 3587130 ordinary shares
(2022 2669603} The ESOP holding 1s In line with expectations of how many shares will be needed to satisfy the current awards
under this scherme This armount is net of expected lapses in the scheme and the fact that recipients typically forege sufficient
shares in order 1o satisfy the associated tax liability that arises on their vesting,

The number of outstanding share awards at 1 March 2022 has been updated from the previcusly reported figures at 28 February
2022 of 33,387 for Jun-18 (to nil), 1,808,422 for Jun-19, 3167855 for Jul-20, 315975 for Nov-20, 1,328536 for Jun-21 and nil for Nov-21
During the year ended 28 February 2015 the Company 1ssued 1409000 RSP awards. of which 50% will vest after three years and

25% after each of the fourth and fifth years provided the indmduals remain employed by the Group

During the year ended 22 February 2016 a further 315,000 RSP awards were grarted, of which 50% will vest after three years and
25% after each of the fourth and fifth years provided the individuals remain employed by the Group

During the year ended 28 February 2019 a further 144000 RSP awards were granted. of which 100% will vest after three years
provided the individuals remain employed by the Group

During the year ended 28 February 2022 a further 13000 RSP awards were granted, of which 100% will vest after seven months
provided the ndividuals remain employed by the Group,
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Detals of the RSP share awards inissue and the movemeants in the year are given below:

Nurnber at Number at

1 March 28 February
Share scheme 2022 Granted Exercized Lapsed 2023 Exercisable between
luly 2014 13,750 - - - 13,750 Jul 17 - Jul 24
August 2015 12,500 - - - 12,600 Aug 18 - Aug 25
Novermnber 2020 144,000 - (144,000 - - Feb 22 - Feb 29
November 202 13,000 - (13,000) - - Feh 22 - Feb 29

Restricted Share Plan 183,250 - (157,000) - 26,250

The nurmiber of outstanding share awards at 1 March 2022 has been updated from the previcusly reported figures at 28 Felbruary 2022
of 36,320 for July 2018 (to nil} and nil for Noverber 2021

The weighted average share price on exercise for awards exercised during the year was £3 32 (2022 £281).

The fair value of the nil cost opticns 1g approximated to the share price at the time of grant less the expected dividend o be paid
during the vesting period

The value of the awards are expensed aver the period from the date of grant to the vesting date or if used as a recrutment
Incentive, from the date of joning to the vesting date The awards are satished by the issue of new shares

The Comparny also has LTIP awards, which allow for the form of a conditional nght to receive shares at nil cost. The awards
normally vest over three years and are subject to various performance conditions based on earnings per share ("EPS™ or
segmental operating profit.

In June 2018, awards of 527464 shares were made to one executive director and three senior members of management

In June 2018, awards of 394,736 shares were made to one executive director and three senicr members of management

In June 2020, awards of 508250 shares were made to one executive director and three senior members of management
In June 2021, awards of 437118 shares were made to two executive directars and one senior member of management.

in February 2023, awards of 624,174 shares were made to twe executive directers and four senicr members of management.

Details of the LTIP share awards in 1ssue and the moverments In the year are given below.

Number at Number at
1 March 28 February
Share scheme 2022 Grarnted Exercisad Lapsed Forfeited 2023  Cxercisable belween
LTIP 2018 33,294 - - - - 33,294 May23-0Oct28
LTIP 2019 331678 - - (86,620} {42 1085) 202,853 ul24 - Jul 29
LTIP 2020 431,260 - - - {56,250 375,000 Jul 256 - 1l 30
LTIP 2021 437166 - - - {47787) 389,379 Jun 26 - Jun 3t
LTiP 2023 - 624174 - - - 624,174 Wl 27 - Jul 32
Long-Term incentive
Pian 1,233,288 624174 - (88,620) (146142 1,624,700

The weaighted average share prnce at grant date for awards granted dunng the year was £314

The farr value of the LTIP 2021 award which has g TSR based vesting condition has been calculated using a Monte Carlo simulation
The far value of the other LTIPs 1s determined based on the share price at the time of grant less the expected dividend to be paid
durnng the vesting penod calculated using the market consensus dividend vield

The value of the awards is recognised as an expensée over the pericd from the date of grant to the vesting date The awards are
satishied by the issue of new shares
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On 5 December 2022, 263434 shares were awarded as a joining incentive 1o certain employess of Madnd Shipping Advisors SL
and on 16 December 2022, 1016121 shares were issued to the former owners of Southport, as part of the acquisttion In addition,
on the acquisition of Southport, a further 872,821 shares were awarded to key employees of Southpart The far value of the awards
is determined based on the share price at the time of grant less the expected dividend to be paid during the three-year vesting
perod calculated using the market consensus dividend yield For further details, see Note 14 Business combinations.

The value of the awards Is recognised as an expense over the period from the date of grant to the vesting date. The awards will be
satisfied by the 1ssue of new shares

Mumber at Number at
1March 28 February
Share award 2022 Granted Exercised Lapsed Forfeited 2023 Vesting
Southport Maritme Inc. - 1,888,042 -~ - - 1,888,942 Dec 25
Madrid Shipping
Adwisors SL - 253,434 - - - 263,434 Doc 23~ Dec2b

31 ESOP reserve

An Employee Share Ownership Plan ("ESOP”) was established on 23 January 1995, The ESCP has been set up to purchase
shares in the Company. Thess shares, once purchased, are held in trust by the Trustee of the ESOP, G Klenwort Hambros Trust
Compary (CI} Limrted, for the benefit of the employees Additionally, an Emplayse Benefit Trust {"ERT”) previously run by ACM
Shipping Group plc also holds shares in the Company. The ESOP and EBT are accountad for within the Company accounts

The ESCP reserve represents a deduction from shareholders’ funds and a reduction in distributable reserves The deduction equals
the net purchase cost of the shares held in trust by the ESOP Shares allocated by the ESOP to satisfy share awards issued by the
Group are released at cost on a First in First Out basis

Group and Company £000
At 29 February 2021 1,362
New shares fully paid up and issued to the ESOP 25
Shares acquired by the ESOP 7043
ESOP shares aliocated (1.659)
At 28 February 2022 8,771
Shares acquired by the ESOP 7963
ESOP shares allocated @127
At 28 February 2023 10,607

As at 28 February 2023, the ESOP held 35796830 (2022 2669,837) ordinary shares of 10 pence each The funding of the purchase
has been provided by the Company In the form of a gift and the Trustees have contracted with the Company to waive the ESOP's
nght to receive dividends. The fees charged by the Trustees for the operation of the ESQOP are paid by the Company and charged
to the Income Staternent as they fall due.

As part of the acguisition of ACM Shipping Group ple in July 2014, the Company 1ssued 125821 shares into an Employee Benefit
Trust ("EBT") previously run by ACM Shipping Group ple. As at 28 February 2023, the EBT held 82,280 (2022: 62 290) ordinary
shares of 10 pence each.

The total cost to the Company of shares and cash held n the ESOP and EBT at 28 February 2023 was £10606000 (2022 £5,771000)
Including starnp duty asscclated with the purchase. The shares owned by the ESOP and EBT had a market value at 28 February 2023
of 10848000 (2022 £6420305) The distrbution of these shares 1s determined by the Remuneration Committee

1877473 shares (2022 598,388) have been released to employees during the year. The shares acquired by the ESCP had an
aggregate cost of £80 milion.
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32 Other reserves

Foreign
Captal currency
redemption Merger translation Hedging
feserve rESErve reserve reserve Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 March 2021 396 2484 1622 1435 28,094
Prior period adjustrment (994) (Q04)
396 24 64 628 1,435 27100
Cash fiow hedges
- Transfer 1o income statement - - - (1.613) {1.613)
- Far value losses in the periad - - - {869) (869)
Exchange differences - - 998 - 208
Deferred tax on terns taken to equity - - - 514 514
At 28 February 2022 396 24,641 1,626 (533) 26,130
Cash flow hedges.
- Transfer to income statement - - - 4,826 4,826
- Fair value gain/losses in the pernod - - - (4,438) {4,438)
Investment hedge - - {124) - {124}
Exchange dfferences - - 2,622 - 2,522
Deferred tax on itermns taken to equity - - - 97} 97)
At 28 February 2023 396 24,641 4,024 {242) 28,819

The capital redempition reserve arose on pravious share buy-backs by the Company.

The merger reserve arses on transactons where the Company issues shares pursuant to an arrangement to acguire more than

a 90% interest in ancther company and no share premium is recorded. The merger reserve arose principally in 2001 in relation to
the acquisitions of Braemar Shipbrokers Limited and Braemar Tankers Limited Further additions have arisen in respect of Naves
and Atlantic Brokers The amounts In the merger reserve are unrealsed profits relating to the corresponding assets acauired by the
Company on the issue of shares These profits may become realised on the disposal or write down of these assets

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change i fair value of cash flow hedging instruments
relating to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred of £321C00 liability (2022: £710000 labkility) A decrease of £97000 in
the deferred tax asset {2022 £514000 ncrease) 1s attnibutable to these transactions

The Group defers the time value of option contracts In the costs of hedging reserve.

33 Contingent liabilities
The Group has contingent habilites in respect of guarantees entered into In the normal course of business given as follows,

2023 2022
£°000 £000
Bank guarantees given to:
Third parties (non-cash collateralised) 324 837

Total 324 837

The Gompany and certan of its subsicdianes have provided cross guarantees and fixed and floating rate charges over ther assets
to secure thelr borrowing facilities and cther financial nstruments (see Note 24)

From time to trme the Group may be engagead in liigation in the ordinary course of business The Group carres professional

indemnity nsurance There are currently no liabilties expected to have a matenal adverse financial Imgact on the Group's
consolidated results or net assets
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During the period the Group entéered into the following transactions with joint ventures and investments:

Recharges
to/(from)
Group . £°000

AqualisBraermar LOC ASA

BN Y oy

AqualisBraemar

Dividends

2023

Balance due

(to)/ from

£'000 £7000
n/a)

Recharges

221 -

LOC ASA was a related party untl the Group sold its significant shareholding In the entity and lost its

2022
Balance due
to/(from}) Dividendis {to)/ from
£'000 £'000 £000

282

representation on the board, on 19 May 2022 All transactions with Aqualis Braemar LOC ASA in the prior year have been included
as related party transactions Rechargeés to AgualisBraemar LOC ASA consisted prirnarily of rent, IT services and HR services in
accordance with a transitional services agreement In the prior year, the net recharge to AgualisBraemar LOC ASA included a fee

payable to the Group's former Chairman, Ronald Series of £3,750

The balance due from AgualisBraemar LOC ASA 1s unsecured, interest-free and rmmmediately repayable.

Key management compensation 18 disclosed n Note 6

Fleover Ty R R A A I A F O B 1S

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are

not disclosed in this Note,

A hst of the Group's subsidiary undertakings 1s on pages 163 to 165. Unless otherwise indicated, all shareholcings owned directly or
indirectly by the Company represent 100% of the 1ssued share capital of the subsidiary and the share capital comrises ordinary

shares. All entities primarily operate In their country of incorporation.

Suutomiitic

Incorporated in England & Wales
One Strand, Trafalgar Square, London WC2N 5HR

Braemar Shipping Group Limited*
Braermar Secuntes Holdings Limited”
Braemar Financial Holdings Limited”
Braemar Shipbrokers Limited*
Seascope Capital Services Limited*
Braemar Shipping Services Limited
Braemar Developments Limited”
Braemar Tankers Limited

Incorporated in the US
2800 North Loop West, Suite 200, Houston, Texas 77082, US

Braemar Holdings (USA) Inc

2401 PGA Boulevard, Suite 236, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 US

Southport Maritme Inc

Incorporated in Spain
Madrid, ctra. Humara 43, 8, Spain

Madrid Shipping Advisors SL
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Principal activity

Holding compary
Holding company
Holding company
Shipbroking
Non-trading
Dormant
Cormant
Dormant

Principal activity

Hotding company

Principal activity
Shipbroking

Principal activity
Shipproking

Registration number

05290315
10010985
10917086
1674710
03592796
02360525
02186790
02001027

Registration number
FEIN 81-1568938

Registration number

66-0342509

Registration number
B10866028
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Incorporated in England & Wales

One Strand, Trafalgar Square, London WC2N SHR
Bragrmar Shipbroking Group Limited*
Bracmar Shiphroking Limted

Braemar Shipbroking (Ory Cargo) Limited*
ACM. Shipping USA Limited™*

Braemar Valuations Limited*

Braemar Securities Limited

Braemar Corporate Finance Lirmited*
ACM Shipping CIS Limited

Braemar Martime Limited*

Braemar Burness Maritime Limited*
Burness Maring (Gas) Limited”*

Braemar Pension Trustees Limited

Incorporated in Germany
Domstrasse 17, 20095 Hamburg, Germany

Braemar Corperate Finance GrmbH
Braernar Financial Holdings Gerrmany GmbH

Incorporated in United Arab Emirates
One JLT 06-55 One LT, Plot No. Dmec-Exi-1ab, Jumeirah Lakes Towers,
Dubal, UAE

Braemar ACM Shiphbroking DMCC

Incorporated in the US
2800 North Loop West, Sulte 900, Houston, Texas 77092, US

Braemar ACM Shigbroking (USA) Inc
Bracmar Technical Services (USA) Inc

24 Grassy Plain Street — Ste 4, Bethel, CT 06801-1700 US
Braemar ACM Shipbroking LLP

Incorporated in Singapore
BO Robinson Rd, #24-01/02, Singapore 068888

Braemar Shipkroking Pte Limited
Braernar Corpoerate Finance Pte Limited

Incorporated in Australia
Level 3, 70 City Road, South Bank, Melbourne, Victoria 3006, Australia

Braermar ACM Shipbroking Pty Linmited

Incorporated in other overseas countries
Piazza 2 Giugno No 14, 54033 Carrara, Haly

Braemar Seascope ltallia SRL
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Principal activity

Holding company
Shipbroking
Shipbroking
Shipbroking
Valuations
Futures breker
Corporate finance
Dormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
Nen-trading
Dorrmant

Principal activity

Corporate finance
Holding company

Principal activity
Shipbroking

Principal activity

Shipbroking
Erergy loss adjuster

Principal activity
Shipbroking

Principal activity

Shipbroking
Corporate finance

Principal activity
Shiphroking

Principal activity
Shipbreking

Registration number

01611006
0020987
07223609
08391132
034397656
07899368
02710842
069340565
03321809
03674230
01081837
06502209

Registration number

HRE 114161
HRBE 146089

Registration number
DMCC-749566

Registration number

46-2641420
76-0036958

Registration number
1088337

Registration number

200602647M
201834/60K

Reglistration number
ACN 000862 593

ABN 35 000 862 293

Registration number
01268770458
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Suite 2009, Building C Luneng International Center,
No.211, GuoYoa Road, Pudong District, Shanghai, 200126, China Principal activity Registration number

Braemar Seascope {Shanghai) Limited Shigbroking SIR00COLBEBLGA/0

2nd Floor, Building No. 22, Pushp Vihar, Commercial Complex,
Madangir, New Delhi — 110 062, India Principal activity Repistration number

Braernar ACM Shipbrokmg India Private Limited (499% owned) Shipbroking UE3000DL2003PTC120247

Office No. 1004, 10th Floor, Dalamal House, 206-Jamanalal Bajaj Road, Nariman
Point, Mumbai-400021, India Principal activity Registration humber

ACM Shipping India Limited Dormant LUJ93090MH2006FLC184019

Subsidianes marked with an asterisk (*} are exempt from the reguirernents of the Companies Act 2008 relating to the audit of
individual accounts by virtue of section 478A of the Companies Act 2005 for the financial year ended 28 February 2023 The
Company has provided a guarantee of all cutstanding liabilities to which these subsidianes were subject as at 28 February 2023
In accordance wrth section 479C of the Companies Act 2006

35 Prior period adjustment

During the preparation of the 2023 Financial Statements, erfors In consolidation entries from prior years were identfied These
errors date back to before 2021 and were not fully corrected as part of the prior year adjustments in the Financial Statements

for the year-ended 28 February 2022 Therefore, the Group has provided a restated Balance Sheet as at 28 February 2022 and 1
March 2021 in accordance with IAS 8 Principally, there were two errors identified 1) A consolidation error in relation to the sale of
the Group's Technical Division in 2012 resulted in the overstatement of other receivables, and retained earnings as at 1 March 2021
and 28 February 2022 of £11 riliory; i) An error in the elimination of intercompany balances principally related to postings required
in respect of the Naves transaction and assocrated liatxlities resulted in the overstaterment of other raceivables and understaterment
of other payables The effect of the restatement on the 2022 Balance Sheet 1s to decrease trade and other recevables by

£19 millon, merease trade and other payables by £05 million, decraase retained eamings by £14 milon and foreign exchange
reserve by £10 millon The effect of the restaterment at 1 March 2021 15 to decrease trade and other recevables by £02 millon
increase trade and other payables by £2 2 millon and decrease retaned earnings by £14 million and foreign exchange reserve
by £10 mition

The overall effect of the restaterment on the 2022 Balance Sheet 1s to decrease trade and other recevables by E30 million and
increase trade and payables by £08 millon, with an overall reduction in retaned earnings of £2.6 millen and foreign exchange
reserve of F10 millon The overall effect of the restatement at 1 March 2021 is to decrease trade and other receivables by

F14 million and increase trade and other payables by £2 2 milien. with an overall reduction in retained earnings of £28 milion

and foreign exchange reserve of £10 milion The Impact on the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year to February 2022
i5 1o decrease the moverment in receivatles by £16 milion with a corresponding decrease to the movement in payables balances
and does not impact any actual cash movements.

36 Events after the reporting date

In June 2023 Bracmar Plc completed a capital reduction in relation to ts share premiurm and merger reserves. For further details
see ‘Note 12 Dividends’ There were no other adjusting or significant non-adjusting events between the reporting date and the
date these Financial Statoments were authonsed
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Company Balance Sheet
As at 28 February 2023

As at As at
28Feb 2023 28 Feb 2022
Note £°000 £000
Assels
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 5 422 627
Property, plant and equipment 6 2,004 3,891
Investrments 8 119,539 108,389
Deferred tax assets 10 844 179
Other long-term recevables 1 13,732 38775
136,541 151,861
Current assets
Other receivables 12 8,442 10,8C0
Dervative financial nstrurments 16 1,183 -
Cash and cash equivalents 13 2,174 700
11,799 11,600
Total assets 148,340 163,361
Liabilities
Current liabillties
Other payables 14 60,010 45 208
Convertitle loan notes 16 703 1,416
Derivative labilities 16 42 -
60,756 46714
Non-current liabilities
Cther payables 14 868 570
Long-term borrowings 15 28,744 27305
Convertible loan nctes 16 2,899 3,271
Denvative llabilities 16 564 86
Provisions 17 417 5N
33,482 1772
Total liabilities 94,237 78,4886
Total assets less total liabilities 54,103 84,875
Equity
Share capital 18 3,292 3,221
Share prermium 18 53,706 53,030
ESOP reserve 19 {10,607} (8,771
Other reserves 20 23,762 23762
Retained {deficit)/earnings (16.,140) 1,633
Total equity 54,103 84,875

in accordance with the exermphions allowed by Section 408 of the Compares Act 2008, the Company has not presented 1S own
profit and loss account A loss of £25534000 (2022 profit of £15,220000) has been dealt with in the Financial Staterments of
the Company

The accompanying notes on pages 168 to 172 form an mtegral part of these Financial Statements

The Financial Staternents of Brasmar Plc on pages 186 to 178 were approved by the board of directors on 15 Novermber 2023 and
were signed on its behalf by

James Gundy Grant Foley
Group Chief Executive Officer Group Chief Financial Officer Registered number 02286034
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Company Statement of Changes in Total Equity
For the year ended 28 February 2023

Retaned

Share Share ESOP Other samings, Total

capital premium reserve resernves (defiat) equity

Note £'O00 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00C0

A1 March 2021 3,174 52510 {1,362) 23767 {2,713} 75,371
Profit for the year - - - - 165,220 15,220
Dwvidends paid - - - - (2109 {(209)
Issue of shares a7 520 {25} - - 542
Own shares acquired - - (7.043) - - (7.043)
Issue of shares held by ESQP - - 1,858 - (1659} -
Share-based payments - - - - 2894 2,894
At 28 February 2022 3,21 53,030 (B,771) 23,762 1,633 84,876
Loss for the year - - - - (25.694) (25,694
Drvidends paid 4 - - - - (3190} (3,190
Issue of shares 18 71 766 - - - 837
Own shares acquired 19 - - (7963) - - (79863)
Issue of shares held by ESQP 19 - - 4127 - {3,660) 477
Share-pased payments - - - - 4520 4520
Deferred tax credit on share awards - - _ _ 241 o4
At 28 February 2023 3,292 53,796 (10,607) 23,762 (16,140) 54,103

The accompanying notes on pages 168 to 179 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

General information v

The separate Financial Staterments of Braemar Plc (previously Brasmar Shipping Services Pic) for the year ended 28 February 2023
were authorised for 1Ssue In accordance with a resciution of the directars on 15 November 2023 Braemar Plc is a puklic imited
company incorporated n England and Wales, and its principal activity 1s a holding company for the shipbroking business.

The term “Company” refers to Brasmar Plc.

1 Significant accounting policies
5 [ Thote o e

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdorn Generally Accepted Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (United Kingdorm Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice). No Income Statement is presented for Braemar Plc as provided by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008,

The Financial Statennents have been prepared under the historic cost convention except for items measured at fair value as set
out in the accounting policies below and have been prepared on a going concern basis

The Company Financial Staternents are presented in stering and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand sterling (£'000)
except where otherwise indicated.

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework The
Company has applied the exemptions avalable under FRS 101in respect of the following disclosures

- cash flow staterment and related notes,

- comparative peried reconciiations for share capital;

- disclosures in respect of ransachons with wholly owned subsidianes;

- disclosures in respect of capital managernent;

- the effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs; and

- disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management persennegl,

As the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group on pages 98 to 165 include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has
alsc taken the exermnptions under FRS 101 avalable in respect of the following disclosures:

— IFRS 2 "Share-based Payment” in respect of Group-settled share-based paymenis,

- certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 “Farr Value Measurement” and the disclosures required by IFRS 7 “Financial Instrument
Disclosures”; and

- the requirermnents IN 1AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures” to disclose related party transactions entered into between two or more
members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which 1s a party to the transaction 1s wholly owned by such a member, and
the exemption to disclose key management compensation.

i TR I 5.
The Company Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis In reaching this conclusion regarding the gomng
concern assumption, the directors considered cash flow forecasts for a penod of greater than 12 months from the date of signing
of these Financial Staterments. The going concern assumption for the Compary is considered together with the going concern
assumption for the Group, see Note 1in the Consolidated Financial Statements for more detail

The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and latlites, and the disclosure of contingent Jabiities, at the
reporting date. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated based on histoncal experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the crcumstances. In the future actual expenence may
differ frum these estimates and assumptions

The following are key areas where the Company makes significant estimates and judgements

Estmates regarding {3 the far value of contingent consideration recevable and (i) share option vesting are described in the Notes
to the Consclidated Financial Statements on pages 104 to 165

Preference share assets

The Company holds Investments n preference shares issued by a subsidiary at far value through profit and loss The preference
shares are not traded in any market and there are no similar assets in guoted markets Therefore, the Company performs a
valuation based on the present value of future cashflows using unobservable ("Leve! 37) nputs
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The Company develops unobservable mputs using the best Information available in the arcumstances, which include the Group's
forecasts of cash flows for the underlying businesses of the holding company issuing the preference shares using a nsk-adjusted
discount rate See also accounting policies Note 1 (d).

The key estimates are therefore the selection of suitable discount rates and the estimation of future growth rates which vary
between cash-generating units depending on the specific nisks and the anticipated economic and market conditions related to
each cash-generating unit. The fair value was estimated based on discounted cashflow forecasts with an adjustment for net debt
In relation to balances not forming part of working capital of the entity. The discount rates and growth rates are consistent with
those applied to the same business in the Group’s assessment of the mpairment of goodwill (see Note 15 in the Consolidated
Financial Statements for a description of the approach used by management to determine these key values).

Investrents in subsidiaries

The Company recognises provisions for impaimment of iInvestrents In subsidianes based on managerent's judgement of whether
or not there is an indication of Impairment at the Balance Sheet date. A udgement 1s made based on the net assets, cash balance
and future trading perfoermance of the subsidiary,

Provision for impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries

The provision for impaimnent of amounts due from subsidiaries represents management's best estimate at the Balance Sheet
date. A number of judgements are made in the calculation of the provision, primarily based on the net assets, cash balance and
future trading performance of the subsichary.

The applcation of IFRS € “Financial Instruments” results in an additional provision for expected credtt losses. When measuring
expected credit losses, the Company uses reasonable and supportable forward-looking information, which 1s based on
assumptions for the future movement of different economic crivers and how these dnvers will affect each other Probability
of default constitutes a key Input 'n measuring expected credit losses. Probabilty of default s an estmate of the likelihood

of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which mcludas historical data, assumptions and expectabions of future
rmarket conditions

Classification of financial assets

The Company holds nvestments in preference shares issued by a subsidiary. The preference shares do not provide a contractual
right to unpaid amounts i the event of a bankruptcy of the issuer and therefore, in the judgement of the directors, the returns do
not meet the conditions of being solely payments of principal and interest and are required to be held at far value through profit
and loss The valuation of these shares is considered In the use of estimates and critical judgements above The preference shares
are recognised as amounts due from subsidianes recenvable after more than one year

¢ O S R Lot
The Company's accounting policies are the same as the accounting polcies of the consolidated Group described on pages 104 to
116 except for the policy described below.

Investments i subsidianes, assoclates and jont ventures are held at cost less accumulated impairment Where there 1s objective
evidence that the investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
nvestment I1s tested far impairment n the same way as other non-financial assets

For share awards granted to employees of subsidiary companies, the IFRS 2 charge 1s recognised as an increase of the
Company's investment in the relevant subsidianes

Investments where the Company has no signficant Influence are held at far value, with movernents in farr value recorded in profit
and loss.

The expected credit Iosses on amounts due from subsidraries 1s assessed under the general approach with reference to changes
N credit qualty since Intial recognition An amount due from a subsicdiary 1s considered to be in default and credit impared when
there 1s evidence that the subsidiary Is in significant inancial difficulty such that it will have insufficient iguid assets to repay the
loan The assessment of a significant ncreasea in credit nisk s performed gualitatively by reference to the borrower’s expected cash
flows, iguid asset posiion and considers the impact of the wider Group's support.

The merger reserve arses on fransactions where the Company 1ssues shares pursuant to an arrangement to acquire more than an
90% interest In another company and nNo share premium s recorded The amounts In merger reserve are unreabsed profits relating
to the corresponding assets acquired by the Company on the issuc of shares Those profits may become reabsed on the disposal

or write down of thege assets,
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

2 Loss/profit for the year
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008 the Company has elected not to present its own statement of
comprehensive income {including the profit and loss account} for the year

The auditor's remuneration for audit services to the Company is disciosed In Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Staterments,
All fees pard to the auditor were charged to cperating loss/profit in both years

3 Staff costs
Staff costs for the Company durnng the year {Including drectors) are prowded in the table below

2023 2022

£000 £'000

Salaries, wages and short-term employee benefits 2,391 1,776
Other pension costs 46 51
Secial security costs 764 214
Share-based payments 1,264 (S3)
4,465 2,097

The numbers above include remuneration and pension entitlerments for each director. Detalls are included in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 85

The average number of full-time employees of the Company was 16 (2022 16).

4 Dividends

Amounts recognised as distributions to eguity holders in the year are detailed in Note 12 to the Consoldated Financial Staterments
Certain dividends paid between 2016 and 2023 were pad by the Company without having sufficient distributable reserves

from which to lawfully pay them The Company has rectified its posiion with respect 1o these dividends. refer to Note 12 1o the
Consolidated Financial Statermenits for further details

5 Intangible assets

Cornputer
software Total
E'0O00 E£'000
Cost
At 28 February 2021 782 782
Addrtions 272 272
At 28 February 2022 1,064 1,064
Additions 74 74
Cisposal 87) 87
At 28 February 2023 1,041 1,041
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 28 February 2021 243 243
Charge for the year 184 184
At 28 February 2022 427 427
Charge for the vear 132 132
Impairment 60 50]
At 28 February 2023 619 619
Net book value at 28 February 2023 422 422
Net book value at 28 February 2022 627 627

At 28 February 2023. the Company had no contractual commitments for the acguisition of computer software (2022 £nil)
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6 Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 28 February 2021
Additions at cost
Disposals

At 28 February 2022
Addrtions at cost
Disposals

At 28 February 2023

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 28 February 2021

Charge for the year

Imparrment

Disposals

At 28 February 2022
Charge for the year
Disposals’

At 28 February 2023

Net book value at 28 February 2023

Net book value at 28 February 2022

Governance
Land and

buldings Computers
£000 £'000
G142 6
- 214
(164) -
8,968 220
- 7
(2,161) -
6,827 227
3,604 3
1,647 27
392 -
(154) -
5,289 30
1,244 55
(16568) -
4,965 B85
1,862 142
3,699 190

Fixtures and
equipment
£'000

222

{208)
17

17

193
27

{205)
15

17

Total
£'000

8,370
214
(359}

9,225

(2,181
7,01

3,700
1.601
392
(359}

5334
1,301
(1.668)

5,067

2,004

3.891

1 The disposal inthe year pumarly relates Lo the Bevis Marks premises asaigned to Beal Capital by the Company As part of Ihe arrangement, a payment of
£09 miion was macde mrelation Lo the ocutstanding lease habilty The disposal resulled in the derecognition of land and buidings of £0 5 milon net book

value and the transfer of £0 5 miion of the lease hability resulting in no gan or ioss In the year

The leaseholds category includes land and buldings held under leases and leasehold improvermnents. At 28 February 2023, the
Company had no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2022: £nil).

The impairment charge in the prior year arose following the assignmert of a lease. On 28 March 2022, the Group assigned

the lease for its Bevis Marks premises to Beat Caprtal. The impairment charge of £392,000 1s equal to the subsequent loss on
assignment of this lease, being the lease assignment premium paid pius the net book value of the nght-of-use asset disposed of

less the outstanding lease liabiity on that lease.

7 Leases

At 28 February 2021
Armortisation
Impairment

At 28 February 2022
Amaortisation
Disposal

At 28 February 2023
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Land and
buldings
£000
5,271
{1,436)
(382)

3443
{1,168)
(527)

1,748

Fixtures and
equipment
000

23

23)

Tatal

Fo00

5,204
{1,459}
{392

3443
(1,168)
(527)

1,748
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

7 Leases continusd

] P
PN LIS P

At 28 February 2021
interest expense
Lease payments
Exchange differences

At 28 February 2022
Interest expense
Lease payments
Disposal

At 28 February 2023

1 Refer to Note 6 Property plant and eouprment for the detals of the disposal

At 28 February 201
Interest received
Lease payments
Meovement in provisirm
Exchange dfferences

At 28 February 2022
interest received
Lease payments
Movement In provision
Disposal

At 28 February 2023

Land and
Buldings
£'000
8,928
226
(2.517)
4)
6,631
125
(3,.080)
(650}

3,026

Gross
£000

2,106
b5
{(642)

©)

1,612
35
(642)

38)
887

Fixtures and
equipment
£°000

1
15
(126)

Provision
Co00

(9)

Taotal
E000
9,037
241
(2.643)

6,631
125
(3.080)
{B20)

3,026

There was no short-term lease expense, no short-term lease Income and no low-value lease expense in the year (2022 £nil)

i+ [

Between

Upto 3 3and 12

months months

£000 £'000

At 28 February 2023 539 1,615
At 28 February 2022 6b4 1,963
Belween Between

Upto 2 Zand 12 fand 2

manths manlhs years

£oco E£'000 £'000

At 28 February 2023 160 482 245
At 28 February 2022 160 481 642
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Belween
Tand 2
YEars
£'000

934
2818

Between
Zand
years
OG0

285

Betwsen
2and B
yeas
£000

1669

Cver &
years
£000

Qver & Unearned
years Total Interest
£'000 £000 £000
- 3,088 (82)
- 6,204 (273}
Unearned
Tolal mierest Prowision
£:000 £'000 £'ooc
887 (20)
1568 {56) (16}

Net
payable
£'000
3,026

8,631

Net

recevable

£000
858
1,487
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8 Investments

Unlisted
Subsidianes nvestrents Total
£°000 £000 E'000
Cost
At 1 March 2021 115,311 1,500 16,811
Capital contribution to Cory Brothers 3664 _ 3.664
Disposal (4,462) - (4,462)
Share-based payments 2959 - 2 959
At 28 February 2022 17472 1,500 18,972
Additions 7824 - 7894
Share-based payments 3,256 - 3,256
At 28 February 2023 128,622 1,500 130,122
Impairment
At 1 March 2021, 28 February 2022 and 28 Fetruary 2023 10,683 - 10,583
Net book value at 28 February 2023 118,039 1,500 119,539
Net book value at 28 February 2022 106,889 1,500 108,389

The Company recognises nvestments in subsidiaries at cost less imparment.

Additions for the year represent an investment made on the acquisition of Southport Maritime Inc of £6.5 mithon and an investrment
made in respect of Madrid Shipping Advisors SL of £14 million. Both payments are subject to claw-back conditions linked to
continuous employrment within the Group which are treated as a cost of investrnent by the Company, but treated as prepayments
for future service In the Group For further details on the acquisition of Southport refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 14 Business cornbinations

The Company invested E23 milicn (2022° £30 milicn) in the subsidiaries of the Group n respect of share-based payrment charges
incurred In the year.

The carrying value of the Company’s investmenits in subsidiary undertakings are reviewed for indicators of impairment on an
annual kasis In the event Imparrment indicators are Identified, the recoverable amount 18 determined based on a value-in-use
calculation which requires the deterrmination of appropriate assumptions in relation to cash flows over a forecast period, the leng-
term growth rate to be applied beyond thig period and the nsk-adjusted discount rate used to discount the estimated cash flows
to present value There is no indicator of impairment in relation to the Company’s investments measured at cost If any impairment
indicators arise, the investrents would be tested for iImpairment.

The Company's principal investment in Braemar Financial Heldings Limited is held as preference shares: see Note 1l for
further information

RN

Cn 28 February 2022 the Company sold its investment in Cory Brothers Shipping Agency Limited A reconciliation of the
derecognition of the Investment to the gain on disposal is as follows.

£000
Disposal proceeds 9,897
Carrying value of investrment (4,449)
Disposal-related costs (485)
Gain on disposal cf Cory Brothers 4963

For the year ended 28 February 2022, the disposal proceeds attributable to the Company 1s an 88% share of the Group's £113 million
disposal proceeds for the sale of the entire Cory Brothers group The disposal proceeds had not been received at year end;

other receivables Includes a £65 millon completion payment which was not receved untit 2 March 2022 (see Note 12), long-term
recetvables includes £35 milion deferred and contingent consideration (2022 £4.8 million) (see Note 1) The 12% share of disposal
proceeds due to Braemar Holdings (USA) Inc on a pass-through basis is included in amounts due to subsidiares (see Note 14)
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

8 Investments continued
Investments with a carrying value of £13000 relating to Wavespec were also disposed of dunng the year ended 28 February 2022

A lst of subsidiary undertakings i1s Included in Note 34 of the Consclidated Financial Staternents

The Financial Statemenits of the principal subsidiary undertakings are prepared to 28 February 2023.
The Group's unlisted investments include 1,000 (2022, 1000} ordinary £1shares in London Tanker Broker Panel. The investrment
Is carned at far value, being the value of the most recent comparabie transaction, which occurred during the year ended

28 February 2019 There have been no transactions or events In the current or prior year which would result in an adjustment
to the far value at 28 February 2023

9 Investmentin associate
The Company recognises its investment in AgualisBraemar LOC ASA at cost less imparrment  AqualisBragmar LOC ASA is listed on
the Oslo Baers, its principal place of business is Oslo and its registerad address s Olav Vs gate 6, 0161, Oslo, Norway.

£000
At 28 February 2021 3,247
Disposal (3,247}
Cost at 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 -
On 12 May 2021 the Company fully disposed of ts mincrity shareholding in AqualisBraemar LOC ASA for cash proceeds of
£7232000. A reconciliation of the derecognition of the investment to the gain on disposal 1s as follows:
£000
Disposal proceeds 7232
Carrying value of investrment (3.247)
Gain on disposal of AqualisBraemar 3,985

At 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 the Group's shareholding was nil which eguates to 0% of AqualisBraemar’s share
capital and 0% of voting rights (2021 market value of £63 million, being 1042% of share capital and 1042% of voting nghts)

10 Deferred tax

Total
The movement in the deferred tax asset £°000
Balance at 1 March 2022 179
Credit for the year to profit or loss 404
Credit for the year to reserves 241
Balance at 28 February 2023 844

A deferred tax asset of £08 millon (2022, £0.2 millon) has been recognised as the directors believe that it 1s probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits in the future to recover the asset in full
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11 Other long-term receivables

2023 2022
Note £'000 £'000

Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings
Preference shares measured at fair value 3,576 26,01
Other amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 6,638 7399
Provision for impairment of other amounts due from subsidiary undertakings (258} (257}
Net amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 9,956 33,153
Deferred consideration 2,540 3482
Contingent consideration 1,004 1,276

Finance lease

Finance lease recenvables 7 241 879
ECL provision for mpairment of finance lease recevables 9) {(15)
Net inance lease receivables 232 864
Other long-term receivables 13,732 38,775

The Company holds an investment in preference shares 1ssued by a subsidiary, Braemar Financial Holdings Limited, which holds
the Company’s investment in the Naves enthies, at farr value through profit and loss and recognised as amounts due from
subsidiares recavable after more than one year The preference shares are not traded in any market and there are no similar
assets in quoted markets The Company performs a valuation based on the present value of future cashflows usiNg unobservable
("Level 3"} inputs

The Company develops uncbservable inputs using the best information available in the circumstances, which include the Group's
forecasts of cash flows for the underlying Finance businesses of the holding company issuing the preference shares using a risk-
adjusted discount rate

The key estimates are therefore the selection of suitable discount rates and the estimaton of future growth rates which vary
between cash-generating units depending on the specific nsks and the anticipated economic and market conditions related to
each cash-generating unit The discount rates and growth rates are consistent with those applied to the same business in the
Group's assessment of the impairment of goodwill. See Note 16 in the Consalidated Financial Staterents for a description of the
approach used by management to determine these key values and the sensitivity analysis on the impairment.

The far value of the iInvestment in preference shares is based on the value-in-use of the Corporate Finance Division of £28 milion
(see Note 15 in the Consolidated Financial Statements), with adjustments to determine a fair value, principally an adjustment for
net dabt in relation to balances not forming part of working capital of the entity of £O7 milion. The reduction in fair value dunng
the current year 15 as a result of market conditions and trading below expectations in the year to February 2023, an increase in
discount rate in 2023 as well as a reduction In forscast revenues compared to Management's view in the prior year. As a result, a
fair value loss of £247 millon has been recognised In the profit and loss account N the yaar

Deferred consideration of £25 million and contingent consideration of £10 milhon relates to the non-current elerment of the earn-
out payments recevable in respect of the disposal of Cory Brothers, The deferred consideration relates to the mirimum earnout
payments accounted for on an amortised cost basis The contingent consideration represents the vanable eiement of the earnout
payments which are contingent on the future gross profit of the newly formed VertomCory agency business. which are recognised
at far vaiue through profit or loss Nete 23 in the Consoldated Financial Staternents provides further deta!

See Note 7 for a maturty analysis which reconciles the long-term finance lease recevaples to the undiscounted lease recepts and
unearmed finance INcome
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

12 Other receivables

2023 2022

£'000 £7°000
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 4,881 2,294
Deferred consideration 1,097 -
Contingent consideration 403 -
Other recevatyles 1,11 7625
Finance lease receivables 826 833
Prepayments 324 248
Total 8,442 10,800

Deferred consideration of £11 million and contingent consideration of £04 million relates to the current element of the earn-out
payments receivable in respect of the disposal of Cory Brothers. Other receivables as at 28 February 2022 includes the compietion
payrment of £65 million for the disposal of Cory Brothers which compileted on 28 February 2022, although the cash was not
receved untl 2 March 2022

The total recevables balance (ncluding long-term receivables) 1s dencminatad in the following currencies

2023 2022
£°000 £°000
Sterhing 18,598 21563
Euro 3,576 28012
Total 22,1774 49,575

The Company has no trade receivables (2022 £nit) Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings are interest-free, unsecured and
repayable on demand. The Company provides for impairment using a lifstme expected credit loss provision for amounts due from
subsidiary undertakings,

13 Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
£'000 £000
Cash at bank 2174 700

Cash and cash equivalents largely comprise bank balances denominated in sterling, US dollars, euros and other currencies for the
purpose of settling current labilities

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximate to their fair value,

14 Other payables

2023 2022
Current liabilities £'000 £000
Leass labilities 2,097 2,580
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings payable within one year 56,334 40,780
Other payables' 751 779
Accruals 828 1,159
Total 60,010 45,298

1 ciuded in other payables, s a payable of £587.000 in refalion Lo the working capital adjustment on the acausition of Southport

Arnourts owed to subsidiary undertakings payable within one year are interest-free and unsecured and repayable on demand

2023 2022
Non-current liabilities E£'000 £000
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings payable after more than one year 425 570
Other long-term payables 443 -
Total 868 570
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15 Borrowings

2023 2022
Long-term borrowings £'000 £000
Lease liabilities 929 4051
Secured revolving credt facilities 27,815 23,254
Total 28,744 27308

During the penod, the Group extended its revolving credit facility (*RCF”) with its main bankers, HSBC. For further details see ‘Note
27 Borrowings’ in the Group’s Financial Statements Amounts can be rolled on a monthly basis until the faciity expires subject to
certain conditions. and on that basis the borrowings have been classfied as hon-current The amounts drawn under the RCF
bear interest based on SONIA, SOFR and EURIBOR from amounts drawn in sterling, US dollar ang euros respectively, plus a credit
margin dependent on the Group's leverage ratio

16 Convertible loan notes and derivative financial instruments

The Company has issued convertible loan notes as part of the acquisition of Naves Corporate Finance GmbH (further details of
the acquisition are provided in Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Convertible loan notes have been valued at
amortised cost with a dervative liabilty recognised in respect of the conversion feature

2023 2022
£'000 E'000
Assets
Derivative assets maturing within one year” 1,183 -
Liabilities
Issued convertible loan notes maturing within one year 703 1416
Issued convertible loan notes matunng after more than one year 2,899 3,271
Dernative liahilties due within one year 42 -
Dernvatve labiltties due after mare than one year 554 a5
Total liabilities 4,198 4772

Currency forwards with a farr value of £1383.000 (2022 nil) matunng within 12 months have been shown as current assets
Flraeto Lo i b o T b ooy o T e
The foliowing tabie shows amounts In the Company Lalance sheet relating to the convertible loan notes issued on the acquisition
of Naves The amounts shown in the table below differ from the similar amounts disclosed In Note 27 to the Group's Consclidated
Financial Staterments primanly due to the difference in accounting ansing from the employment condition relating to certain of the
instruments issued. which results in different effective interest rates applying at the Group and Company level At 28 February 2023,
there are no unsatished ongoing employment conditions

2023 2022
£'000 £000
Current liabilities
Convertible ioan notes 703 1416
Derivatives 14 -
Non-current liabilities
Convertible loan notes 2,899 3,271
Dervatives 370 85
3,269 3,3b6
3,986 4772
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

17 Provisions

Dilapidations Total

£'000 £000

At 28 February 2021 and 28 February 2022 54 54
Reversal of provision in the year {124) (124)
At 28 February 2023 47 447

The Company helds a diapidations provision of £04 milion (2022- £05 milion) which 1s classified as a non-current liagility
Dilapidations relate to future obligations to make good certain office premises upon expiration of the lease termn The provisicn 1s
calcutated with reference to the location and sguare footage of the office

18 Share capital #and share premium
The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income Note 30 to the Consclidated Financial
Statements provides detail on authorised share capital and movements in issued share capital

19 ESOP reserve

An Employee Share Ownership Plan ("ESOP”) was established on 23 January 1995, The ESOP has been set up 10 purchase
shares in the Company. These shares, once purchased, are held in trust by the Trustee of the ESOP. G Kleinwort Hambros Trust
Company (CI} Limited. for the benefit of the employees Additionally, an Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT™) previously run by ACM
Shipping Group pic alse holds shares in the Company The ESOP and EBT are accounted for within the Company accounts.

The net cost of the shares acquired for the shares held by the ESOP and the EBT are a deduction from shareholders’ funds and
represent a reduction in distributable reserves. Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Staternents provides detail on the ESOP and
the EBT and movements in shares to be 1ssued

20 Other reserves

Capttal
redemphon WMerger
regerve reserve Tow
£'000 £000 £1000
At 28 February 2021 {restated), 28 February 2022 and 28 February 2023 3986 23,368 23,762

The capital redemption reserve arcse on previous share buy-backs by the Company.

The merger reserve arnses an transachons where the Company issues shares pursuant to an arrangement to acquire more than
an 90% interest in another company and no share premium is recorded. The merger reserve arase principaily In 2001 1n relation to
the acquisitions of Braemar Shipbrokers Limited and Braemar Tankers Limited. Further additions have arisen in respect of Naves
and Atlantic Brokers inclucied in the prior period adjustrment (£1.3 million and £2 0 million respectively) Foilowing a transfer to
retained earnings in the prior year in relation to fair value losses on the Company’s investrent In the preference shares issued by
Braemar Financial Holdings Limited, there 1s no remaining balance relating to the Naves acquistion The amounts in merger reserve
are unrealised profits relating to the corresponding assets acguired by the Company on the 1ssue of shares These profits may
become realised on the disposal or write down of these assets.
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21 Contingent liabilities
The Caempany has contingent iabilities in respect of guarantees entered into on behalf of its subsidiaries in the normal course of
busingss given as follows:

2023 2022
£°000 £000
Bank guarantees given to:
Third parties {(non-cash collateralised) 232 710
Total 232 710

The Company and certain of s subsidianes have provided cross guarantees and fixed and floating rate charges over ther assets
to secure therr borrowing facllites and other financial instruments

From time to time the Company may be engaged in iigation n the ordinary course of business. The Company cames professional
Indernnity Insurance There are currently no labdities expected to have a matenal adverse financial Impact on the Company's
results or net assets

The Company has issued guarantees to certam subsidianies in order to exempt them from audit for the year ended 28 February
2023. See Note 34 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

22 Related party transactions
The Company has applied the disclesure exemption of FRS 101in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries.

Cunng the period the Group entered into the foliowing transactions with joint ventures and investrments:

2022/23 2021/22
Recharges Balance Recharges Balance
tof(from) Dividends duefto)/ from [HUST Duadends dusltol/ from
£°000 £°000 £000 £000 £°000 £oo0
AgualisBraemar LOC ASA - - - 221 - 282

On 18 May 2021 the Comypany fuily disposed of its minority shareholding In AgualisBraemar LOC ASA, see Note 11in the
Consoldated Financial Statements for details.

In prior year, recharges to AguaiisBraemar LOC ASA consisted prmiarily of rent, IT services and HR services in accordance with a
transitonal services agreement. Included in the net recharge to AgualisBraemar LOC ASA is a fee payable to the Group's former
Chairman. Ronald Seres of £3750

A list of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings is provided in Note 34 in the Consclidated Financial Statements

23 Events after the reporting date

In June 2023 the Company completed a Capital Reduction relating to its share prermium and merger reserve. For further details, see
‘Note 12 Dividends’” in the Group's Financial Statements There were ne other adusting or significant non-adjusting events between
the reporting date and the date of authornisation
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Five-year financial summary (unaudited)

Consolidated Income Statement

Continuing operations

Group revenue

Other operating expenses
Speofc items (net)
Total operating expenses

Operating profit/{loss)

Gain on revaluation of Investrment

Net interest expense

Share of associate profit for the peniod

Profit before taxation
Taxahon
Gainf(loss) for the year from discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) after taxation

Dividends
Intenm
Final proposed

Earnings per ordinary share - pence
Basic - underlying from continuing operations

Diluted - underlying from continuing cperations

Braemar Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023

12 months to

28 Fob 2023
£000

'(132,'836)!
(8,408)
(141,242)

1,669

{2,195}
(23)

9,451
(4,858}

4,596

1172
2,634

3,806

46.22p
38.62p

12 months o
28 Feb 2022
£000

101,310

(91,250}
(514}
(91,764)

9,546
172
(1156)
{12)

8,543
(1,839)
7215

13,919

e10
2,264

2,864

2306p
18790

12 months to
28 Feb 2021
E'000

83695

(75,978)
(1.097)
(77073)

6,622

(1485)

5136
{1.574)
g70

4532

1,495
1,495

15 60p
12.91p

12 months 1o
29 Feb 2020
£000

117655

(106,925)
(3.344)
(109,96}

/7,086

(1,8563)
438

6,269
48
(2,209)

4,016

1564

1564

2045p
26.62p

12 manths to
28 Feb 2019
E000

17853

{108,787}
{11,719)
{(120,508)

(2,653)
500
(987)

(3,140
(1525)
(22,700}

(27.365)

1504
2,951

4,452

23.32p
21.36p
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Five-year financial summary (unaudited)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at
28 Feb 2023
£'000
Assets I
Non-current assets Lo
Goodwill 7,407
Other intangible assets 3,980
Property, plart and equipment 5,320
Other investments 1,780
Investrment in associate 701
Financial assets Co- -
Denvative financial nstruments : -30
Deferred tax assets © 4,794
Pension surplus 1,120
Other long-term recewvables 8,564
97,8686
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 43,323
Financial assets -
Dervative inancial nstrurments 1,224
Current tax recevable 873
Assets held for sale -
Cash and cash equivalents 34,735
80,255
Total assets 177,941
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Dervative inancial nstruments 1,122
Trade and cther payables 57,852
Short-term borrowings -
Current tax payable 4,140
Provisions 2,575
Convertible loan notes 699
Deferred consideration -
Liabiltes drectly associated with assets classified as held for sale -
66,388
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 29,919
Deferred tax liabilities 344
Denvative financial Instruments 1,022
Provisions 733
Conwvertible loan notes 2,862
Deferred cansideration | L -
Pension defcrt ; -
34,870
Total liabilities 101,258
Total assets less total liabilities 76,686
Equity :
Share capital 3,202
Share pramium 53,796
ESOP reserve {10,607)
Other reserves 28,819
Retained eamings 1,381
Total equity 76,686
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As at

28 Feb 2022
£000
(restated}

79,891
997
7078
1,780
724

8
3,713

5,636
09827

356,792

54

13,864
49,810
149,637

688
39183

1,608
486
1416

43,381

28,331

335
797
2,765
495
2062

34,765
78146
71,491

3,221
53,030
6,771)
26,130
{4.19)

71,491

As at

28 Feb 2021
£°000
trestated)

853,965
2129
9,841
1,862
3,763

200
2,800

1,888
106,638

33416
746
1573
436
14,11

50,282
156,920

47833

1,318
307
4,461

125
54,044

31,634
174

56
690
2,681
882
3,810

39,838
93,980
62,940

3174
52510
(1,362)
27100
(18,482}

82,240

As al
29 Feb 2020
£°000

83812
2,41
1,928
1,962
7315
1184

3,620

2487
14,699

32,64

28749
68,200
182,989

437
47209
25116
1334
201
4444
177

78,818

34,685
803

765
2,603
2,293
3672

44 861

123,779
56,210

3167
52510
(2.498)

25,862
(19.831)

58,210

As at
28 Feb 2012
E'000

83812
2,226
1,978
1,773

1,640

264
91693

37128

10,61
24mM

71,850
163,043

49
44,887
35844

1,408
20
6,339
600
2,797

92,014

930
324
4,579
5,367
1,986

13,176
106,190
58,353

3144
65,805
(3,446)
22857
(20,007)

58,353
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Contact information

Registered office

Braemar Plc

One Strand

Trafalgar Sguare

London

WC2ZN BHR

Company numiber: 02286034

Telephone. +44 (0)20 3142 4100

Web address:
www braemarcom

Principal offices
S b ki

One Strand
Trafalgar Square
London

WOC2N 5HR

80 Robinson Road
#24-01/02
Singapore
068898

Level 3, 70 City Road
South Bank
Melbourne

Victona 3008
Australia

DomstraBe 17
20095 Hamburg
Germary

One Strand
Trafalgar Square

London
WCZN BHR

www.braemar.com
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